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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Mahindra &
Mahindra Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Standalone
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow and the Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Standalone Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
the relevant circulars, guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
from time to time ("RBI Guidelines’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit (including
other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Key Audit Matter

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers
(Refer Note 2.5 (ii) for material accounting policies and Note 49.2 for credit risk disclosures)
As at March 31, 2025, the Company has | Our audit included assessing the
reported gross loan assets of ¥ 1,19,673.02 crores | appropriateness of management’s judgment
against which an impairment loss of ¥ 3,459 | and estimates used in the impairment
crores has been recorded. The Company | analysis through procedures that included,
recognized impairment provision for loan | but were not limited to, the following:
assets based on the Expected Credit Loss
(“ECL") approach laid down under ‘Ind AS 109 e Obtained an understanding of the
- Financial Instruments’.

modelling techniques adopted by the
Company including the key inputs

The estimation of ECL on financial instruments
involves significant management judgement
and estimates and the use of different
modelling techniques and assumptions which
could have a material impact on reported
profits. Significant management judgement and
assumptions involved in measuring ECL is
required with respect to:

» ensuring completeness and accuracy of the
data used to create assumptions in the
model.

» determining the criteria for a significant
increase in credit risk.

> factoring in future economic assumptions
techniques used to determine probability of
default, loss given default and exposure at
default.

and assumptions;

Considered the
accounting policies for estimation of

Company's

Expected Credit Loss on loans and
assessing compliance with the
policies in terms of Ind AS 109;

Obtained an understanding of the
management’s updated processes,
systems and controls implemented in
relation to impairment allowance
process.

Accuracy of the computation of the
ECL estimate
reasonableness of the methodology

including

and assumption used to determine
macro-economic overlays;
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These parameters are derived from the
Company’s internally developed statistical
models and other historical data.

Disclosure

The disclosures regarding the Company’s
application of Ind AS 109 are key to explaining
the key judgements and material inputs to the
ECL results. Further, disclosures to be provided
as per RBI circulars with regards to Non-
Performing Assets and provisions is also an area
of focus.

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the overall financial statements and
extent of management’s estimates and
judgements involved, it required significant
auditor attention. Accordingly, we have
identified this as a key audit matter.

Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over
completeness and accuracy of the key
inputs and assumptions considered
recording,
monitoring of the impairment loss
recognized and staging of assets;

for calculation,

Assessed the critical assumptions
and input data used in the estimation
of Expected Credit Loss models for
specific key credit risk parameters,
such as the movement logic between
stages, Exposure at default (EAD),
probability of default (PD) or loss
given default (LGD);

Evaluated the reports and working
for the methodology used in the
computation of Through The Cycle
PD, Point In Time PD and LGD,
among others;

Performed test of details over
calculation of ECL, in relation to the
completeness and accuracy of the
data;

Obtained written representations
from management and those charged
with governance on whether they
believe significant assumptions used
in calculation of expected credit
losses are reasonable;

Assessed the appropriateness and
adequacy of the related presentation
and disclosures of Note 49 “Financial
risk management” disclosed in the
accompanying financial statements
in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and related
RBI  circulars and Resolution
Framework.

L
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Information Technology and General Controls

The Company is highly dependent upon its
Information Technology (IT) systems for
carrying out its operations and owing to the
significant volume of transactions that are
processed daily basis as part of the operations,
which impacts key financial accounting and
reporting. The company has put in place the IT
General Controls and application controls to
ensure that the information produced by the
company is complete, accurate and reliable.
Among other things, the Management also uses
the information produced by the entity’s IT
systems for accounting and preparation and the
presentation of the of the financial statements.

Since our audit strategy included focus on
entity’s key IT systems relevant to our audit due
to their potential pervasive impact on the
financial statements, we have determined the
use of IT systems and related control
environment for accounting and financial

reporting as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures for assessment of the
IT systems and controls over financial

reporting, which includes carrying out the
key audit procedures, but were not limited
to the following:

Obtained an understanding of the
Company’s key IT systems, IT General
Controls  which
controls, program/ system changes,

covered access
program development and computer
operations i.e., job processing, data/
system incident
management and application controls
relevant to our audit.

backup and

Tested the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the
general IT controls over the key IT
systems that are critical to financial
reporting. This included evaluation of
entity’s controls to ensure segregation
of duties and access rights being
provisioned / modified based on duly
approved requests, access for exit
cases being revoked in a timely
manner and access of all users being
re-certified during the period of audit.

Tested
(automated

controls
related
interfaces and report logic for system

application
controls),

generated reports relevant to the audit

of loans, expenses, payroll,
borrowings and investment among
others, for evaluating completeness

and accuracy and;

Tested compensating controls
performed alternate procedures to
assess whether there any
unaddressed IT risks that would

or

were
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impact the controls or completeness
and accuracy of data.

s We have also relied on IS and other
technology audits conducted during
the year.

e We have obtained management
representations wherever considered
necessary.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information.
This other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report (including
annexures thereto) and Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) (collectively
referred to as “Other Information”), but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this Auditors’ Report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

7. In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the Other Information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Other Information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

8. The accompanying Standalone Financial Statements have been approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act,
RBI Guidelines and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
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10.

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

11

12.

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section
143(10) of the Act we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial

Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit;
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13.

14.

15.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors and management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concerr;

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation; and

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Standalone Financial

Statemenits of the Company to express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and are therefore the Key Audit Matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

16.

These Standalone Financial Statements include the figures for the year ended March 31, 2024
which were audited by predecessor auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion as
relevant on those Standalone Financial Statements vide their audit report dated May 04,
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2024. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17.

18.

19.

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company
has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of
and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure
I, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure I, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act based on
our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying
Standalone Financial Statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in
paragraph 17(g)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the Rules”);

the Standalone Financial Statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
financial statements of the Company as on March 31, 2025 and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure II wherein we have expressed an
unmodified opinion; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

8
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ii.

ii.

iv.

Vi.

The Company, as detailed in Note 43 to the Standalone Financial Statements, has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2025;

The Company, as detailed in Note 47 to the Standalone Financial Statements, has made
provision as at March 31, 2025, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025. The
Company, as detailed in Note 18 to the Standalone Financial Statements, has regularly
transferred the required amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 36 (vi) to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (the
Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 36 (vi), to the Standalone Financial Statements no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b)
above contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the company
during the year in accordance with the provision of section 123 of the Act; and

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used various
accounting software for mamtammg its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, which have operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software, except in respect of customer masters in

9
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two accounting software wherein earlier value is not retained, databases maintained in
two accounting software where the audit trail feature was not enabled for part of the
year and five accounting software where the audit trail feature at the database level
(DML logs) was not enabled throughout the year to log any direct data changes. Based
on our procedures performed, we did not notice any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with. In respect of the aforesaid masters and databases, in the absence
of audit trail for the said period, the question of our commenting on whether the audit
trail was tampered with, does not arise. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved
by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For M. P. Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 107122W/W100672 Firm Regn. No.101851W
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Annexure I referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to
the members of Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i.a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of Right-Of-Use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

. During the year, the management has carried out physical verification of all the Property,

Plant and Equipment. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the title deed of the immovable property
disclosed in the financial statements included under PPE are held in the name of the
Company.

. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-

Of- Use assets) and intangible assets during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been

initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. The Company is engaged in providing financial services primarily into non-banking

financial services (NBFC). Accordingly, it does not hold any inventory and hence reporting
under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by banks and

financial institutions, in aggregate based on the security of loans (assets). We have observed
reconciliation items in the quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital
limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions as compare
to the books of accounts maintained by the Company. However, we have not carried out a
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specific audit of such statements. The details of such difference /reconciliation items are
given in Note 17 of the standalone financial statements of the Company.

. The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its principal business is to give loans.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. The investments made, guarantee provided, security given and terms and conditions of the

grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

c. The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC’), registered under provisions

of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder and is regulated by various
regulations, circulars and norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India including Master
Circular - Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
pertaining to Advances. In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by
the Company, we report that the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular except
for certain instances as below:

Overdue amount as on March 31, 2025

Particulars - Days past due Total amount due (in crores)

1-30 days 435.98
31-90 days 743.42
More than 90 days 1,789.95
Total 2,969.35

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, the total amount which is overdue

for more than 90 days in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given in the
course of the business operations of the Company aggregates to Rs.1,789.95 Crores as at
March 31, 2025 in respect of 1,17,623 number of loans. Further, reasonable steps as per the
policies and procedures of the Company have been taken for recovery of such principal and
interest amounts overdue.

e. The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, and its principal business is to give loans.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which are
repayable on demand (except for the short-term loan) or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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iv. Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities to the
parties that are covered under the provisions of sections 185 or 186 of the Companies Act,
2013, and hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

In our Opinion, the Company had complied with the directive issued by the Reserve Bank
of India ("the RBI') with regards to the deposits accepted and amounts deemed to be deposits
during the year. According to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), are not applicable to the Company being an non-
banking financial company registered with the RBI. We are informed by the management
that no order has been passed by the Company Law Tribunal or RBI or any Court or any
other Tribunal against the Company in this regard.

vi. The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)

of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii.a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed

statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company. As explained to us,
the Company does not have any dues on account of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise and Value Added Tax.

The following undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund are in arrears as
at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable:

Name of | Nature of the | Amount Period to | Due Date of | Remarks
the Dues due in Rs. | which the | Date payment
Statute amount (if paid)
relates
Provident | PF 14,85,672 | April 2022 - | Various | - Due to
Fund Contribution September due pending
2024 dates Aadhar
Seeding of
employees

- According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the |Nature of |[Amount (% in Period to which  |Forum where
statute dues crores) the amount dispute is pending
relates
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viii.

ix.

FY 2013-14; 2016- | Commissioner of
Income Tax
Income Tax 435,51 17; 2017-18; 2018- Income Tax
Act, 1961
19 (Appeals)
VAT -
o Value f55 FY 2008-09 to Fy | Andhra Pradesh
a : .
nOMTE 1 Added Tax 2013-14 High Court
Pradesh
Appellate
VAT - :
Madhoa Value - FY 2013-14 to Adithorityof
y Added Tax : 2016-17 Commercial Taxes,
Pradesh Bhopal
Value FY 2010-11; FY Maharashtra Sal
VAT- | Added Tax 75 2012-13 to FY anarasiira vates
Maharashtra 2015-16 Tax Tribunal
Deputy
VAT - Value 0.45 FY 2011-12 Commissioner of
Maharashtra| Added Tax Sales Tax {Appeals)
2007- FY i
Service Tax 93.66 200705 0 Custom.s:,, Bxaiae&
Service Tax 2014-15 Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Allahabad High
GST - Uttar | Goods & 22,82 FY2017-18t0 | a ta La kn‘fw
, Luc
Pradesh |Services Tax 2019-20 o
Bench
Joint Commissioner
GST - ds &
Goods 0.85 FY 2017-18 of State Tax,
Maharashtra | Services Tax
Maharashtra

transactions were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), which have not been recorded in the books of

accounts.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any

lender during the year.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial

According to the information and explanations given to us and as verified by us, no

institution or other lender or government or any government authority.
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c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though
idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in
readily realisable liquid investments.

d. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on accounts of or to meet the obligation of its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and as verified by us, the
Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate.

x. a. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us and as verified by us, the company
has utilized funds raised by way of private placement of debentures for the purpose for
which they were raised and there was no preferential allotment or private placement of
shares during the year.

xi. a. To the best of our knowledge according to the information and explanations given to us and
as verified by us, no fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
Accordingly, to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit except
for misappropriation cash by its employees or cheating and forgery of documents by its
employees or by the customers of the Company identified by the management during the
year, involving amounts aggregating to Rs. 6.33 Crores as mentioned in Note 42 of the
accompanying standalone financial statements. The Company has initiated necessary action
against the employees and customers connected to such instances including of their
employment contracts and recovery of the amounts.

b. To the best of our knowledge, report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act has been filed by the predecessor Joint Statutory Auditor in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government
on June 12, 2024.
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C.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.a.

XV.

XVi. a.

_XVIi.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year and provided to us, determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and all details have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

. We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for

the period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the Company.

. During the year, the Company has not conducted any Non - Banking Financial activities

without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the RBI as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Further, Company has not conducted any Housing Finance activities and is
not required to obtain CoR for such activities from the RBIL.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBL. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the

management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has 4 CICs forming part of the group.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.
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XViii.

Xix.

XX.

XXi.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our
knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, we are of the opinion
that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 107122W/ W100672 ) Firm Regn. No.101851W
M / - -
“j \L"}u\‘b@ / : FRN : < n/\\'. f\/
R (5¢ sariaznt §3) then?
. . \af wioosr2 §e
Sanjay Khemani \\,7 MUMBAI /,-3,/ Ashutosh Pednekar
Partner 2”60 ; @ Partner
Membership No.: 044577 = Membership No.: 041037
UDIN: 25044577BMOBDL4882 UDIN: 25041037BMLWNS7695
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: April 22, 2025 Date: April 22, 2025
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Mahindra &
Mahindra Financial Services Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

(Referred to in paragraph 17(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Mahindra &
Mahindra Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended March
31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Board of Director’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Standalone Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their
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operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
8. Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls

with reference to standalone financial statements and such controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 107122W /W100672 Firm Regn. No.101851W
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Membership No.: 044577

Ashutosh Pednekar
Partner
Membership No.: 041037

UDIN: 25044577BMOBDL4882 UDIN: 25041037BMLWNS7695
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: April 22, 2025 Date: April 22, 2025
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Standalonc Balance Sheel
as at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Financial Assets
a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,666.56 311.07
b) Bank balance other than {a) above 4 3,869.31 2.955.99
¢) Derivative financial instruments 3 30.95 -
d) Receivables
- Trade receivables 6 53.02 24,74
¢) Loans 7 1,16,214.02 99,195.18
f) Investments 8 10,400.48 9.650.82
g)  Other financial assets 9 247.53 228.83
1,32.481.87 1.12,366.63
Non-financial Assets
a) Current tax assets (Net) 601.68 609.78
b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 10(1) 640.99 691.08
¢) Property, plant and equipment 11 (a) 876.38 B11,11
d) Capital work-in-progress 11 () 0.52 0.15
e) Intangible assets under development 12 (a) 65.10 105.10
f) Other Intangible assets 12 (b) 172.89 14.61
) Other non-financial assets 3 708.75 560.75
3,066.31 2,792.58
Total Assets 1,35,548.18 1,15.159.21
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
a) Derivative financial instruments 14 390.05 335.27
b) Payables 13
) Trade payables
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
ii} total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,208.56 1,459.47
I Other payables
i) total outstanding cues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 7 2.80
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises 17.62 62.62
c) Debt securities 16 26,204.83 27,697.03
d) Borrowings (Other than debt sccurities) 17 69,734.92 54,467.22
e} Deposits 18 11,404.15 7,544,18
) Subordinated liabilitics 19 5,529.57 4270.15
£)  Other financial liabilities 20 790.60 687.92
1,15,283.01 96.526.66
Non-Financial Liabilities
a) Current tax liabilities (net) 69.73 119.26
b) Provisions 21 217.04 205.13
¢) Other non-financial liabilitics 22 166.17 150.67
452.94 475.06
EQUITY 23
a) Equity share capital 246.98 246.88
b) Other equity 19,565.25 17.910.61
19.812.23 18,157.49
Total Liabilitics and Equity 1,35.548.18 1,15.159.21
The accompanying notes form an integral part of (he Standalone financial statements. 11038
In terms of our report attached.
For M M Nissim & Co LLP x N For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants = FRN: Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

Particulars

Revenue from operations

i) Interest income

ii) Dividend income

iii) Rental income

iv) Fees, charges and commission income

v) Net pain on fair value changes

vi) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized cost category

I Total revenue from operations
I Other income

1 Total income ([+II)

LExpenses
i) Finance costs
ii) Feesand commission expense
iii) Impairment on financial instruments
iv) Employee benefits expenses
v) Depreciation, amortization and impairment
vi) Others expenses

v Total expenses
v Profit before exceptional items and tax (ILI-IV)
Vi Exceptional items

VII Profit before tax (V+VI)
VI Tax expense :

(i) Current tax

(ii) Deferred tax

IX Profit for the year (VII-VIID)

X Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans
- Net gain / (loss) on equity instruments through OCI
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (A)
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Net gain / (loss) on debt instruments through OCI
-Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging
instruments in a cash flow hedge
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B)
Other Comprchensive Income (A+B)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X)
X1 Earnings per equity share (face value Rs. 2/- per equity share)
Basic (Rupees)

Diluted (Rupees)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finn‘ﬂ Registration No: 107122W/W 100
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Sanjay Khemani
Pariner
Membership No: 044577

Dr. Anish Shah
Chairman
[DIN: 02719429]

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101851W
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Ashutosh Pednekar Pradeep Kumar Agrawal

Partner Chief Financial Officer
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Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

15,331.41 13,108.76
15.46 2.89
153.45 115.46
510.59 174.67
6.14 525

1.90 -
16,018.95 13.407.03
55.74 155.39

16,074.69 13.562.42

7,898.30 6,426.94
97.84 109.90
1,617.86 1,822.79
1,903.13 1,712.63
273.42 228.71
1,136.87 905.98
12.927.42 11.206.95
3.147.27 2.355.47
3.147.27 235547
779.45 664.93
22.78 (69.08)
802.23 595_85
2,345.04 1,759.62
(9.99) (6.64)
84.26 -
(18.69) 1.67
5558 (4.97)
96.49 70.58
(62.23) (3.39)
(8.62) (16.91)
25.64 50.28
81.22 4531

242626 1.804.93

18.99
18.99

14.26
14.25

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

’{laul Rebello
Managing Director & CEO

[DIN: 10052487]

gt ol

Brijbala Batwal
Company Secretary
Membership No.F5220



Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Statement of Standalone cash flows
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

Particulars

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before exceptional items and taxes

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Impairment on financial instruments (excluding bad debts and write offs)
Bad debts and write offs

Interest expense

Interest income from loans

Interest income from other deposits with banks

Net (gain) / loss on fair value of derivative financial instruments
Unrealized foreign exchange (Gain)/loss

Share based payments to employees

Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes

Interest income on invesiments

Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment

Net (gain) / loss on sale of investments

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital -
Loans

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Other financial liabilities

Other non-financial assets

Trade Payables

Other non-financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Provisions

Cash generated from / (used in) operations before adjustments for interest received and
interest paid

Interest paid

Interest received from loans

Cash gencrated from / (used in) operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)
B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investments measured at amortized cost

Proceeds from sale of investments measured at amortized cost

(Increase) / decrease in Investment in Triparty Repo Dealing System (TREPS) (net)
Purchase of investments measured at FVOCI

Proceeds from sale of investments measured at FVOCI

Purchase of investments measured at FVTPL

Proceeds from sale of investments measured at FVTPL

Purchase of shares in a subsidiary company

Proceeds from / (Investments in) term deposits with banks (net)

Interest received from other deposits with banks

Interest income received on investments measured at amortized cost, FVOCI, FVTPL and at cost

Change in Earmarked balances with banks
NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

3,147.27 2,355.47
273.42 228.71
58.95 107.90
1,558.91 1,714.89
7,978.79 6,386.09
(14,500.50) (12,328.95)
(318.80) (266.11)
(107.25) 9.47
37.74 (76.49)
7.25 4.49
0.85 (3.46)
(512.11) (521.57)
(4.10) (6.65)
(1.31) -
(2,380.89) (2.396.21)
(17,514.42) (22,063.71)
(28.42) 2.28
(18.70) (13.91)
31.26 31.69
(150.41) (199.81)
(296.00) 358.58
15.50 26.59
131.08 145.10
L.25 (61.84)
(20,209.75) (24,171.24)
(7,630.56) (6,336.35)
13,379.76 12,823.56
(14,460.55) (17,684.03)
(820.88) (716.76)
(15.281.43) (18.400.79)
(425.10) (289.03)
64.49 50.31
35.25 169.32
124.98 (124.98)
- (167.41)
476.40 44526
(17,823.01) (3,280.79)
16,604.91 3,569.77
- (206.39)
(914.42) 1,049.09
319.99 215.27
525.11 528.21
(0.09) 0.03
(1,011.49) 1.958 66




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Statement of Standalone cash flows (Continue:l)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings through Debt Securities
Repayment of borrowings through Debt Securities
Proceeds from Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Repayment of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Proceeds from borrowings through Subordinated Liabilities
Repayment of borrowings through Subordinated Liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in loans repayable on demand and cash credit/overdraft facilities with
banks (net)

Increase / (decrease) in Public deposits (net)
Payments of lease liability
Dividend paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES ( C)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

Componcnts of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

- Cash on hand

- Cheques and drafis on hand

- Balances with banks in current accounts

-Term deposits with original maturity up to 3 months
-Interest accrued on Term deposits

Total
Note :

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

27,048.97 17,802.10
(28,613.08) (15,835.68)
42,239.22 35,806.06
(27,105.20) (22,478.11)
1,500.00 700.00
(274.04) (140.15)

2 (169.97)
3,733.33 1,655.37
(102.41) (94.85)
(778.38) (741.32)
17,648.41 16,503.45
1,355.49 6132
311.07 249.75
1.666.56 311.07
47.85 52.92
16.28 27.92
293.51 230.23
1,307.00 -
1.92 s
1,666.56 311.07

The above Statement of Standalone Cash Flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Ind AS 7 on 'Statemnent of Cash

Flows'.

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represents additions to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

adjusted for movement of capital-work-in-progress during the year.

In terms of our report attached.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) with Corporate ID No.: L65921 MH 199 IPLC059642, incorporated on 1 January 1991 and
domiciled in [ndia, is a public limited company, headquartered in Mumbai. The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC"), primarily engaged
in financing new and pre-owned auto, utility vehicles, tractors, passenger cars and commercial vehicles through its pan India branch netwark. The Company
has a diversified lending portfolio across retail, small and medium enterprises and commercial customers with a significant presence in rural and semi-urban
India.

The Company is registered as a Systemically Important Deposit Accepting NBFC as defined under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI')
Act, 1934 with cffect from 4 September 1998, with registration no. 13.00996 and classified as NBFC-Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC) pursuant
to circular DNBR (PD) CC.No.097/03.10.001/2018-19 dated 22 February 2019, The equity shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited ("NSE") and the BSE Limiled ("BSE") in India. The Company is a subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited.

The Company's registered office is at Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, Mumbai 400001, India,
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

Statement of campliance and basis for preparation and presentation of financial statements

These standalone or separale financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS") as per
the Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), and is in
conformity with the ing principles g lly accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act. Further, the Company has complied with all the
directions related to Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards preseribed for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) in accordance with the RBI
notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020.

3

Any application guidance/ ¢l / directions/

pectations issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable.

Accounting policies have been istently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These standalone or separate financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorized for issue on April 22, 2025.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or 'Rs.') which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts are rounded-off to the
nearest crore, unless indicated otherwise.

Basis of measurement

The financial statemenis have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for cerain assels and liabilitics which are
measured at fair values as required by relevant Ind AS.

Measurement of fair values

The Company's certain ing policies and disclosures require the of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has established policies and procedures with respect to the measurement of fair valucs. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3; Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market dala (unobservable inputs)

Use of estimates and judgements and Estimation uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company's
accounting policics and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, exp and the disclosures of contingent liabilitics. Actual resulis may differ from
these estimnates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions of estimates are recognized prospectively.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
matenal adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
ond estimates on paramelers ilable when the fi ial statements were issued. Existing cir 1ces and ptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Following are arcas that involved a higher degree of estimate and judgement or complexity in determining the carrying amount of some assets and liabilities.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
for the vear ended March 31, 2025

R®s 1 crore

2.5 Uscoflesti and judgel s and Estimation uncertainty (Contirued)

i) Effective Inferest Rate (EIR) Method
The Company recognizes inlerest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of
the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as
well as ckpected changes Lo other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

ii) Impairment of Financial Assets
The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets and commitments, requires judgement, in estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows and
recoverability of collateral values while determining the smpairment losses and assessing a significant increase in credit risk

The Company's Expeeted Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a complex model with a number of urfdcrlying assumptions regarding the choice of
variable inputs and their interdependencics. Elements of the ECL model that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

- The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk

- The classification of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

- Development of ECL model, including the various formulae and the choice of inpuls

- Selection of forward-looking macrocconomic scenarios and their probability weights, to provide the economic inputs into the ECL model

- Management overlay, if any, used in ci where manag t judges that the existing inputs, assumptions and model techniques do not capture all
the nisk factors relevant to the Company's lending porifolios.

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary (refer note 49).

iii) Provisions and contingent liabiities
The Company docs not recognise a contingent liability but discloscs its existence in the financial statements.
Contingent asscts are neither recogniscd nor disclosed in the financial ts. H , conlingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually
cerfain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the assct and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. Contingent
Liabilities in respect of show cause notices are considered only when converted into demands.

The reliable measure of the estimates and judgments pertaining to litigations and the regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business
are disclosed as contingent liabilitics.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may
have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of ocutflow of resources is remote, no provision is made. The
disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources. The Company also discloses present abligation for which a reliable estimate cannot be made as a contingent liability.

iv) Provision for income tax and deferred tax asscts:
The Company uses esti and judg based on the relevant rulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is
excrcised while determining (he provision for income tax, including the amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions. A deferred tax
asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses,
if any, can be utilized Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

v} Defined Benefit Plans:
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making vanous assumptions that may differ from actual developments i the future. These include the determination of the di rate, future
salary increases and moriality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to
changes in these assumplions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

vi} Going Concern
The financial statements of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis [or the year ended March 31, 2025,
The Management is satisficd that the Company shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast

significant doubt on the going concern assumplion. In making this the Manag, has id
and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources

d a wide range of information relating to present




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Rs in crore

2.6 Revenue recognilion @

a) Recognition of interest income

Interest income is recognized in Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method for all financial instruments measured at amortized cost,
debt instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) and debt instruments designated at Fair Value Through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL). The effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an gral part of (he Transaction costs include
incremental costs that are direclly altributable to the acquisition of financial asset

[f expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is recorded as a positive or
negative adjustment 1o the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increasc or reduction in interest income The adjustment is
subsequently amontized through interest income in the Statement of profit and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

In case of credit-impaired financial assets, the Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment loss on financial assets at
EIR. If financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis (amortised cost).

Additional interest levied on customers for delay in repayments/ non payment of contractual cashflows is recognised on realisation.
Interest on trade advances, are recognized when they become measurable and when it is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection.
I from bill di ing is gnized over the tenure of the instrument so as to pravide a constant periodic rate of return.

Interest income from investments is recognized when it is certain that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportionate basis, by reference 1o the principal outstanding and at the cffective interest rate
applicable.

b

Recognition of interest income on securitized loans

receivables, also acts as Servicer with a responsibility of collection of receivables from ils borrowers and depositing the same in Collection and Pay-out
Account maintained by the SPV Trust for making scheduled pay-outs to the investors in Pass Though Certificates (PTCs) issued by the SPV Trust. These
securitization transactions also requires the Company to provide for first loss credit enhancement in various forms, such as corporate guarantee, cash
collateral, subscription to subordinated PTCs as credit support in the event of shortfall in collections from underlying loan contracts, By virtue of existence
of eredit enhancement, the Company is exposed to credit risk, being the expected losses that will be incurred on the transferred loan receivables to the
extent of the credit enhancement provided.

The Company securitizes certain pools of loan receivables in dance with applicsble RBI guidelines. The Company, being Originator of these loan

In view of the above, the Company has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset and thereby does not meet the de-
recognition criteria as set out in Ind AS 109. Consideration reccived in this transaction is presented as "Associated liability related to Securitization
transactions" and the loan receivables securitized are continued to be reflected as loan assets. These loan assets are carried at amortized cost and the
interest income is recogaized by applying the EIR to the gross camying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaircd assets.

In case of credit-impaired financial assets, the Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment loss on financial assets at
EIR. If financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis (amortised cost),

) Subvention income

Subvention income received from manufacturer / dealers at the inception of the loan contracts which is directly attributable to individual loan contracts in
respect of vehicles financed is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method over the tenor of such loan contracts
measured at amortized cost.

In case of subvention income which is subject to confirmation from manufacturer and received later than inception date is recognized in the Statement of
profit and loss using straight line method over the tenor of such loan contracts

d} Rental Income

Income from operaling lcases is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In certain lease arrangements,
variable rental charges are also recognized over and above minimum commitment charges based on usage pattern and make/madel of the asset.

¢) Income from finance lease

The income earned on finance lease are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss account based on pattem reflecting constant periodic return on the
company’s net investment in lcase.
The fees / charges received towards fleet management services rendered to customers is recognized over the lease term.

N Fees, charges and commission income :

The Company recognises service and administration charges at point in time lowards rendering of additional services to its loan custamers on satisfactory
completion ol service delivery

Fees and commission that are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial asscls are recognised at point in time in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the right to receive the same is established

Instrument Return Charges levied on customers for non payment of instal on the ¢ | date 1s gnised on realisation

Distribution income is camed by distribution of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements. The income so carned s
recognised on successful distribution on behalf of other entitics subject to there being no significant uncertainty of its recovery from the other entitics

Foreclosure or prepayment charges are collected from loan customers for carly payment/closure of loan and are recognised on realisation

Collection fee related to transferred assets under itisation ( ions is gnised on remi of collection p ds 1o Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) created under securitization transaction.
Collection fee related to transferred assets under assig deals is gnised on remittance of callection proceeds to assignees as per the service

agreement entered with the assignees

) Income on Derecognised (Assigned) Loans :

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprises of the difference between interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which
the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS) The future EIS basis the expected cash
flow on execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and
loss
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for the year ended March 34, 2025
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2.7

2.8

Property, Plant and Equipments (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost ofacquisition (including incidental expenses), less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Cost of acquisition consists of purchase price or construction cost which is the amount paid, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses direetly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management
Subsequent expenditure is r dasani in the carrying amount of the assel when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the
cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item ¢an be measured.

Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE (excluding lease impr )} outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed separately as “Capital
advances” under other non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are not ready for its intended use at the reporting date and
cost of leaschold improvements. Capital waork-in-progress is stated at cost, net of impairment loss, if any. On completion of work related to leaschold property
improvements, the relevant cost is capitalized and the same is amortized over the lease term

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight-line basis in accordance wilh the useful lives specified in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013 on a pro-rata
basis subject to exceptions listed here below. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

In accordance with Ind AS 116 - Leases, the Right-Of-Use assets (Leaschold premises) are initially recognized at cost which comprises of initial amount of
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease less any lease incentives These are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-Of-Use assets (Leaschold premises) are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorier of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The estimated vsclul lives used for compulation of depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 60 years
Computers and Data processing 3 to G years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipments S years

Vehicles 8 years and 10 years
Vehicles under lease Over the lease term of the respective agreements
Right-Of-Use assets (Leaschold premises) Over the lease term of the respective agreements
Exceptions 1o useful lives specified in Schedule II to the C ies Act, 2013 -

- Assels costing less than Rs.5000/- are fully depreciated in the period of purchase.
- Vehicles provided to employees as part of Cost-To-Company (CTC) scheme are depreciated using estimated useful life of 4 years.
- Rej | vehicles capilalized for own use are depreciated at 15% leading lo an cstimated useful life of 6.67 years,

PPE is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected (rom ils use. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are
generally stated at the lower of their carrying amount & fair value less costs to sell. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in other income / nested off from any loss on disposal in
the Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognized

Intangible nssels =

Intangible assets arc stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Subscquent expenditure is capitalized only when il increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset 1o which it relates, All other
expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Intangible assets representing computer software arc amortised using the straight-line method over a period of 3 to 6 years, which is the Management's
estimate of useful life. Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year, and changes, if any, are accounted for
prospectively,

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Bal Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets under development”.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefils are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecagnised.
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.9 [nvestments in subsidiaries, associate and joint venlures :

Investment in subsidiaries, associates and Joint Ventures are recognised at cost and are not adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting period as allowed
by Ind AS 27 ‘Separate financial stalement'. Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisilion of the said investment

The Company reviews the carmying amounts of its in: in subsidianics, iate and joint ventures at the end of cach reporting period, to determine
whether there is any indicalion that those investments have impaired If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the investment is estimated in

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any)} and provided for accordingly. Such impainnent loss is reduced from the carrying value of
investments,

2.10 Foreign exchange transactions and translations :

a)  [Initial recognition
Transactions in foreign currencics are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates between the reporting currency and a foreign cusrency on the
transaction date

b} Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the t ions. Foreign exchang
gains and losses resulting from the seilement of such transactions and from the translation of monelary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign
currencics at year end exchange rates are recognized in Stalement of profit and loss

ded Airnal

Foreign exchange differences reg asan to borrowing costs arc presented in the statement of profit and loss within finance costs. All other
forcign cxchange gains and losses arc presented in the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as past of the fair value gain or loss. Thus, translation
differences on non- monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognizéd in profit or loss as part

of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as cquily investments classified as FVOCI are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured al historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated at reporting date,

2.11 Financial instruments :
a) Initial Recognition
Financial asscts and financial Liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Financial asscts and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) arc added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly altributable 1o the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in Statement of profit and loss.

b} Classification and Sul measurement of financial nssets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortized cost;

- FYOCI - debt instruments;
- FVYOCI - equily instruments;

- FVTPL
Amortized cost -
The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios being the level at which
they are managed. The financial assct is held within a busi model of collecting contractual cash flows as per the contractual terms that give rise on

specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and intcrest (*SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, the Company
measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and other financial instruments that meet the SPPI criterion at amoriized cost.

FVOCI - debt instruments -

The Company measures its debt instruments at FVOCI when the instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

FVOCI - equity instruments -

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the Company’s management has clected to classify
irevocably some of its equity instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments and are
not held for trading,

If the Company elects to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in
other comprehensive income. This cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss on disposal of such instruments. Investments
representing equity interest in subsidiary, joint venture and associate are carried at cost less any provision for impairment

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets unless
designated as effective hedge instrument which are accounted as per hedge accounting requirements discussed below
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Finaneial instruments {Continued)
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Subsequent ement of fir ial assets

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method The amortized cost 1s reduced by
impairment losses. [nlerest income, and impairment provisions arc recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition is
recognized in Statement of profit and loss, '

Debt investment at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income at coupon rate and impairment provision, if any, are recognized n
Statement of profit and loss. Net gains ot losses on fair valuation are recognized in OCL On derecognition, pains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to Statement of profit and loss

For equity investments, the Company makes an election on an instrument-by-instrument basis 1o designate equily investments as measured at FVOCL
These elected investments are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes i fair value recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified 1o Statement of profit and loss on disposal of the investments These
investments in equity are not held for trading Instead, they are held for strategic purpose. Dividend income received on such equity investments are

recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Equily investments that are not designated as measured at FVOCI are designated as measured at FVTPL and subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in Statement of profit and loss,

Financial assets at FVTPL are subscquently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in
Statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilitics and equily instruments:
Clussification as debt or equity - )

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company arc classified as either financial liabililies or as cquity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

Equity instriments -
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of an entity afler deduting all of ils liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by Company are recognized at the proceeds received. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities -
Financial liabilities are classified and ‘measured at amortized cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classificd as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading or it is a derivative (that does not mect hedge accounting requi 1s) or it is designated as such on initial recognilion, Other financial liabilities

are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expensc and foreign cxchange gains and losses are recognized in
Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is also recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantec coniracts:

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer lo make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because 2
specificd debtor fails 1o make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issucd by a Company are initially mcasured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, arc subsequently
measured at (he higher of:

4.

- the amount of loss allowance d ined in ac with impati t requi of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments; and
- the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 113
Revenue from Contracls with Customers.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a Financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ovmership of the financial assct are transferred or
irrwhich the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the bligation in respect of the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of profit and loss

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modificd and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In
{his case, a new financial liability based on the madified terms is recognised at fair valuc.
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2.11 Fi ial instr (Contimmeed)
N Derivative linancial instruments and hedee accounting

)

The Company enters into derivative [inancial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward contracts, currency swaps and principal & interest rate
swaps, to manage its borrowing exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and charactenistics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/loss is recognized in Statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the
nature of the hedged item.

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as cither fair value hedges or cash
flow hedges. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Company documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with ils
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an angoing
basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is highly cffective in offselting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk.

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (relating to effective portion as described above) are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or cxercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting, Any gain or loss gnised in other prehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When a forccast transaction is no longer expected 1o oceur, the gain or
loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.,

Impairment of Minancial instruments
Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,

The Company recognizes lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) when there has bcl:n a significant increase in cre.dll nsk since initial recognition and when
the financial instrument is credit impaired. If the credit risk on the fi ial has not i d ificantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognized is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition-12-month-ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months afer the reporting date.
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

When delermining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses,
the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without unduc cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience and forward-looking information. (refer note 49).

The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for trade advances. The expected credit losses on trade advances are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Company's historical credit loss experience.
The industry benchmarking is used for lcasing portfolio in the absence of suficient history.

Management overlay is used to adjust the ECL allowance in ci where T Jjudges that the existing inpuls, assumptions and model
techniques do not capture all the risk factors relevant 1o the Company'’s lending portfolios. Emerging local or global macroeconomic, micro economic or
political events, and natural disasters that are not incorporated into the current parameters, risk ratings, or forward looking information are examples of
such circumstances. The use of management averlay may impact the amount of ECL recognized.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the asscts. For debt securities measured at
FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in QCL
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Impairment of financial instruments (Confinucd)
Loan contract renegotintion and modifications:

Loans are identified as renegotiated and classified as credit impaired when the Company modifies contractual payment terms due to significant credit
distress of the borrower. Renegotiated loans remain classified as credit impaired until there is sufficient evidence Lo demonstrale a significant reduction in
the risk of non-payment of [uture cash flows and retasn the designation of renegotiated loan until maturity or derecognition

A loan (hat is renegotiated is derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new agreement is made on substantially different terms, or if the
terms of an existing agreement are modificd such that the re d loan is a sul 1ally different fi ial i . Any new loans that arise
following derecognition events in these circumstances are considered to be originated credit impaircd financial asset and continue to be disclosed as
rencgotialed loans.

Other than originated credit-impaired loans, all other modified loans could be transferred out of stage 3 if they no longer exhibit any evidence of being
credit impaired and, in the case of renegotiated foans, there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a significant reduction in the risk of non-payment of
future cash flows over the minimum obscrvation period, and there are no other indicators of impairment. These loans could be transferred to stage 1 or 2
based on the risk assessment mechanism by comparing the risk of a default occurring at the reporting date (based on the madified contractual terms) and
the risk of a default occurring at initial recognition (based on the original, unmodified contractual terms). Any amount written off as a result of the
modification of contractual terms would not be reversed

Loan modifications that are not identified as renegotiated are considered to be commercial restructuring. Where a commercial restructuring results in a
modification (whether legalised through an amendment to the existing terms or the issuance of a new loan contract) such that the Company’s rights o the
cash flows under the original contract have expired, the old loan is derccognised and the new loan is recognised at fair value. The rights to cash flows are
generally considered 1o have expired if the commercial restructure is at market rates and no payment-related concession has been provided. Mandatory and
general offer loan modifications that are not borrower-specific, for example market-wide customer relief programmes announced by the Regulator or
other statutory body, have not been classified as rencgotiated loans and so have not resulted in derecognition, but their stage allocation is determined
considering all available and supportable information under the Company's ECL policy.

h

Simplificd approach for trade reccivables and contract assels

The Company follows *simplificd approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component, The application of simplified approach docs not require the Company Lo track changes in credit risk.

i} Collateral repossessed -

The underlying loans in respect of which collaterals have been repossessed but not sold are considered as Stage 3 assets and impairment allowance is
estimated as per the ECL policy.

In the normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess asscts/properties in its loan portfolio, but enguages external agents to
repossess and recover funds, generally by selling at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are retumed to the customers/ obligors. As a
result of this practice, the assets / propertics under 'egal repe ion pre are not separately recorded on the balance shect.

i) Writeoffs -

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset 1s written off when there is no realistic prospect of [urther recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the debtor/borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could gencrate sulficient cash flows fo repay the amounts
subject to the write- off as per the Company's policy. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject 1o enforcement activities under the
Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made from written off assets are netted off against
the amount of financial assets written off during the year under "Bad debts and write offs" forming part of "[mpairment on financial instruments® in the
Statement of profit and loss,

2.12 Ewmployee benefits:

a) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of recciving employce services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits
include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are d on an undi d basis and these are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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2.12 Employee benefits (Continued)

213

b)

<)

d)

e}

Contribution (o provident fund, Superannuation fund, ESIC and National Pension Scheme -

The defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund {(administered through Regional Provident Fund Office), superannuation scheme and employee state
insurance corporation and National Pension Scheme are post-employment benefit plans under which a Company pays fixed contributions and will have no
legal and constructive obligation to pay further amounts beyond its ibutions. The Suy ion scheme, a defined contribution scheme,

admini d by Life [ Corporation of India and the Company has no obligation to the scl beyond its contributions

Prepaid contributions arc recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund, Superannuation scheme, ESIC and National Pension Scheme is recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity and post retirement medical benefit -

The Company's liability towards gratuity and post retirement medical benefit schemes are determined by independent actuaries, using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated [uture cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation Past services arc
recognized al the carlier of the plan amendment / curtailment and recognition of refated restructuring costsiermination benefits,

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability {asset), taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contribution to the plan. To calculate the present value of cconomic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requireinents.

R cmenf gainsflosses -
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, retum on plan assets excluding interest income ace recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Remeasurements are not reclassificd to

Statement of profit and loss in the subsequent period.

When the benefits of a plm are changed or when a plan is cunalled the resullmg change in benefit that relates o past service (‘past service cost’ or *past
service gain') or the gain or loss on curtail is re d di L of profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs,

lly inS

Leave haent / ¢ d al I sick leave -

The Company provides for the encashment / availment of leave with pay subject to certain rules as per leave policy of the Company. The employees are
entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future cncashment / availment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutifized
leave at each balance sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuati

Employee stock options :
Compensation cost on Equity-setiled share-based payments to employees are recognized as an expense al the fair value of equity stock options at the grant
date. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-setiled share-based p is exy d on a straight-line basis over the graded vesting

period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vesl.. with a corresponding increasc in equily.

Long-Term Incentive Plan:

The Company pays Long Term Incentives 1o certain employees on fulfilment of prescribed criteria/canditions. The Company's liability towards Long
Term Incentive is determined actuarially based on certain assumptions regarding rate of Interest, staff attrition and mortality as per Projected Unit Credit
Methed. Expenses towards long term incentive are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Finance costs

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective financial instruments measured at Amortized cost.
Financial instruments include bank term loans, associated liabifities in respect of securilization transactions, non-convertible debentures, fixed deposits

mobilized, ial papers,

d debis and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings ta the extent they are regarded as an

adjustment 10 the interest cost. Finance costs are charged to the Statement of profit and loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities computed by applying the Company's weighted age incr | borrowing rate has been included under finance costs,
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2,14 Taxation - Current and deferred tax:

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income

a)

b)

Current tax:

Current tax comprises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss [or the year determined in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961
and any adjustment to the tax payable or reccivable in respect of previous years The Company’s current tax is calculated using fax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peried. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes
including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being ined in lax A tax 1t can involve plex issues, which can
only be resolved over extended time periods.

Current tax assets and liabilitics are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realisc the asset
and scttle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate Lo items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or direclly in

equity, in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
The manag it periodicall, luales positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establis} provlswns where appropriate.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and
liabilities and their respective lax bases. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequence that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilitics.

Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference could be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilitics are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of defesred tax assels is reviewed
at the end ol cach reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probablc that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part
of the asset lo be recovered. Deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also rccognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and labilitics are offsct only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on cither the same taxable entity or different
taxable entitics which intend either to settle current tax liabilities on a net basis or simultancously.
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115 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent nssets:

2.16

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and 1t is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation, Provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to refiect the current best estimate. [f it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seftle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability

When there 1s a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision is made. The
disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources. The Company also discloses present obligation for which a reliable estimate cannot be made as a contingent liability. Contingent Liabilities are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of cconomic benelit is probable,
When some or all economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from third party, a receivable is recogmised as an asset, if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be reccived and the amount can be measured reliably.

Lenses :

The Company as a lessee -

As a lessee, the Company’s lease asset class primarily consist of buildings or part thereof taken on lease for office premises, certain [T equipments and gencral
purpose office equipments used for operating activities. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for ideration. To assess wheth

a contract conveys the right o control the usc of an identified assct, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating cxpense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to delermine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. ROU assets and corresponding lease liabilities constitute lease contracts for office premises.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options lo extend or terminate the lease befare the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilitics includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that option to extend will be excrcised and option to terminate will not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost which comprises of initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the commencement date of the lease less any lease incentives. These are subsequently measured at cost less ! p tion and impat losses,
if any, Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the dale on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the C 's | ge borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are ed with a corresponding adj to the related right of
use asset if the Company changes its of whether it will is¢ an extension or a ination option

In the Balance Sheet, ROU assets have been included in property, plant and equipment and Lease liabilitics have been included in Other financial liabilities
and the principal portion of lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows, The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with similar characteristics.

Where the Company is the lessor -

At the inception of the lease, the Company classifies each of its leases as either a finance Icasc or an operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessce, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company has given certain vehicles on lease where it has substantially retained the risks and rewards of ownership and hence these are classified as
operating leases, Thesc assets given on operating lease are included in PPE. Lease income is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as per contractual
rental unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time patiern in which the benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Costs

including depreciation are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs are recognized immediately in S of profit
and loss.
In case of assets under Finance Lease, amount receivable from lessees are 1 ised at the net in in the leases measured by using the interest rate

implicit in the lease contract. All initial direct cost incurred to put the leased asset for intended use are included in the initial measurement of net investment.
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2.16

217

Leases (Contined)

[n accordance with Ind AS 116, Leases, the financial information has been presented in the following manner,
a) ROU asscts and lease liabilities have been included within the line items "Property, plant and equipment” and "Other financial liabilities” respectively in the
Balance sheet,

b) Interest expenses on the lease liability and depreciation charge for the right-lo-use assct have been included within the hine items "Finance costs" and
"Depreciation, amontization and impairment” respectively in the statement of profit or loss,

¢) Short-term lease payments and payments for leases of low-value assets, where exemption as permitted under this standard is availed, have been recognized
as expense on a straight line basis over the lease term in the statement of profit or loss.

d) Cash payments for the principal and interest of the lease liability have been presented within "financing activities” in the statement of cash flows;

The disclosures as required in d: with Ind AS 116, Leases, are set out under note no. 40.

New standards or amendments to the existing standards and other pronouncements :

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
as issued from time to time As on March 31, 2025, there is no new standard notified or amendment to any of the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

3

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Rs. in crore
L
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

47.85 52.92
Cheques and drafts on hand 16.28 27.92
Balances with banks in current accounts 29351 230.23
Term deposits with original maturity up to 3 months 1,307.00 -
Interest accrued on Term deposits 1.92 -
1.666.56 311.07
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Rs. in crore

Earmarked balances with banks -
- Unclaimed dividend accounts

March 31,2025  March 31,2024

0.66 0.57
Term deposits (with original maturity - more than 3 months)
- Free 2,273.95 2.311.59
- Under lien # 1,429.06 471.00
Interest accrued on Term deposits 165.64 166.83
3.869.31 2.955.99
# Details of Term deposits - Under lien
Rs. in crore
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Bank balances other than Total Bank balances other than cash Total
cash and cash equivalents and cash equivalents
(Note 4) (Note 4)
For Statutory Liquidity Ratio 356.00 356.00 - -
For securitization transactions 982.78 982.78 444.23 444.23
Legal deposits 7.67 7.67 0.21 0.21
For Constituent Subsidiary General Ledger (CSGL) account 30.00 30.00 30.90 30.90
Other collateral deposits 52.61 52.61 1.66 1.66
Total 1,429.06 1.429.06 _ 477.00 - 477.00
Derivative financial instruments
Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Notional Fair value Notional Fair valuc of|
amounts  of Assets amounts Asscts
Currency derivatives :
Forward contracts 1,669.00 5.26 - -
Swaps 827.70 25.69 - -

Total derivative financial instruments

2.496.70 30.95




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

6 Receivables

Rs. in crore

Trade receivables
i) Secured, considered good* :

- Lease rental receivable on operating lease transactions

March 31,2025 March 31,2024

3.15 17.04
Less : Impaimment loss allowance (0.43) 0.29)
2.72 16.75
ii) Unsecured, considered pood* :
- Other income receivables 50.30 7.99
iii) Credit impaired* :
- Subvention and other income receivables - -
Less ; Impairment loss allowance - -
53.02 2474
*Includes dues from related partics
There is no due by directors or other officers of the company or any firm or private company in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade Receivables aging schedule
As at March 31,2025 Rs. in Crore
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan6 6 months- 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
months 1 year
i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
- considered good 51.16 - - - - 51.16
— which have significant increase in credit risk 1.31 - - - - 1.31
— credit impaired 0.01 0.39 0.52 0.06 - 0.98
i) Disputed Trade Receivables —
— considered good - - - g E -
— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
— credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 5248 0.39 0.52 0.06 - 53.45
There is neither an instance where due date is not specified nor any unbilled dues.
As at March 31,2024 Rs. in Crore
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan6 Gmonths- 1-2years 2-3years Morethan 3 years Total
months 1 year
i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
— considered good 13.61 - - - - 13.61
— which have significant increase in credit risk 10.65 ° - - - - 10.65
— credit impaired 0.51 0.20 0.06 - - 0.77
ii) Disputed Trade Receivables —
~ considered good - - - = = 4
— which have significant increase in credit risk - - = 3 - -
— credit impaired = - 3 - - .
Total 24.77 0.20 0.06 - - 25.03

Reconciliation of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables

There is neither an instance where due date is not specified nor any unbilled dues.

Particulars

Impairment loss allowance as at beginning of the year
Net increase/(decrease) during the year
Impairment loss allowance at the end of the year

March 31,2025 March3i, 2024

0.29
0.14
0.43

5.47
(5.18)
0.29




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
us af March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

7

Loans

Rs. in crore

A) Loans (at amortized cost) :

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Term loans :

- Retail loans 1,09,239.78 94,190.74

- Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) financing 4,825.83 3,757.67
Bills of exchange 1,322.71 1,054.74
Trade advances 3,197.47 2.879.10
Finance lease 1,087.23 , 71452
Total (Gross) 1,19,673.02 1,02,596.77
Less : Impairment loss allowance (3,459.00) (3,401.59)
Total (Net) 1,16,214.02 99.195.18

B) 1) Secured by tangible assets 1,13,499.66 97.436.10
i) Secured by intangible assets - u
iii) Covered by bank / Government guarantees 11.82 133.36
iv) Unsecuredff 6,161.54 5,027.31
Total (Gross) 1,19,673.02 1,02,596.77
Less : Impairment loss allowance (3,459.00) (3,401.59)
Total (Net) 1.16.214.02 99.195.18

C) i) Loans in India

a) Public Sector - -

b) Others 1,19,673.02 1,02,596.77
Total (Gross) 1,19,673.02 1,02,596.77
Less : Impairment loss allowance (3,459.00) (3.401.59)
Total (Net) - C (i) 1,16,214.02 99.195.18
ii) Loans outside India - -
Less : Impairment loss allowance - .
Total (Net) - C (ii) = -
Total (Net) - C (i+ii) 1.16.214.02 99.195.18

Notes:

- There is no loan asset measured at FVOCI or FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.
- Refer nole no. 49 for information related to stage-wise classification of loan assets and ECL movement.
ff Includes loans against Fixed Deposits.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statcanents (Comrinued)

as al March 31, 2025

Rs in crore

9

10

(i

i)

Other financial assets

Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Security Deposits
Gross 98.93 77.62
Less : Impairment loss allowance (0.48) -
Net 98.45 77.62
Excess Interest Spread on Direct Assignment 1.90 -
Others #
Gross 148,13 151.93
Less : Impairment loss allowance (0.95) (0.72)
Net# 147.18 151.21
247.53 228.83
# includes receivables related to insurance claims and online payment aggregators.
Deferred tax assets (net) and Tax expense
Deferred tax assets (net)
Rs. in crore
Balanceas (Charge)) Charge/ Charge/ Balanceas (Charge)/ Charge/ (credit) Balance as at
at  creditto (credit) to  (credit) to at credit to to OCI March 31,
April 1 2023 profit and 0cCI ocCI March 31, profit and 2025
loss 2024 loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities :
- Application of EIR on financial assels (80.10) (0.09) - - (80.19) (14.15) - (94.34)
- Application of EIR on financial liabilities (8.68) (13.92) - - (22.60) - - (22.60)
- Share based payments (4.74) (L.67) - - (6.41) 2.51) - (8.92)
- FVTPL financial assect 0.30 (1.32) - - (1.03) (1.22) - (2.24)
- Others # (131.59) 44,02 - - (87.57) 10.68 - (76.90)
(224.82) 17.02 - - (197.80) {7.21) - (205.01)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets :
- Provision for employce benefits 26.21 - - 1.67 27.88 - 2.51 30.39
- Net gain .(loss) on equity instruments through OCI (21.20) (21.20)
- Derivatives 51.96 (3.05) - - 48.91 0.68 - 49.59
- Allowance for ECL 586.79 56.95 - (17.76) 625.98 (22.36) (24.28) 579.34
- Application of EIR on financial liabilities - - - . - - -
- Provision on standard assets 152,92 (15.98) - - 136.94 12.78 - 149.72
- Other provisions 44.18 4.14 - 0.85 49,17 (6.67) 15.66 58.16
862.06 42.06 - (15.24) 888.88 (15.58) (27.31) 846.00
Net deferred tax assets 637.24 69.08 - (15.24) 691.08 (22.78) {27.31) 640.99
« # includes deferred tax on account of sccuritization transactions, fair valuation of Govt. securities / bonds and timing differences arising on PPE.
I tax recognized in Stat t of profit and loss
Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
(a) Current tax:
In respect of current year 779.45 666.56
In respect of prior years Gl (1.63)
779.45 664.93
(b) Deferred tax:
In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary differences 22.78 (69.08)
Adjustments due to changes in tax rates - E
Adj recognised in the current yr in relation 1o the deferred tax of prior years - R
Wrile down / Reversal of previous write-downs of deferred tax assels » .
In respect of prior ycars - .
22.78 (69.08)
Total Income tax recognized in Statement of profit and loss 802.23 595.85

W100672

MUMBAI




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limiied

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
as af March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

10

(i)

(iv)

Deferred tax assets (net) and Tax expense (Continued)

Income tax recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Deferred tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income during the year :
Remeasurement of defined employee benefits 2.51 1.67
Net gain / (loss) on equity instruments through OCI (21.20) -
Net fair value gain on inv in debt i at FVTOCI (24.28) (17.76)
Net fair value gain on investinents in equity shares at FVTOCI s y
Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a cash  flow hedge 15.66 0.85
Investee's share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted investments - E
Total Income tax recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (27.31)] (15.24)
Rs, in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Classification of income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Income taxes related to items that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss (18.69) 1.67
Income taxes related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (8.62) (16.91)
Total (2731) (15.24!
Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss:
Rs. in crore
As at As at
March 31.2025  March 31.2024
Profit before tax 3,147.27 2,355.47
Applicable income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected income tax expense 792.10 592.82
Tax effect of ad justments to reconcile expected Income tax expense at tax rate to reported income tax expense:
Effect of income exempt from tax
a) Dividend Income (3.89) 0.73)
Effect of expenses / provisions nat deductible in determining taxable profit
a) Penalty (case sctilement, MSME interest, other penaltics) 0.06 0.08
b) Donation and CSR 14.51 6.36
¢) Any other item 9.45 3.98
Effect of 1ax incentives and concessions (rescarch and development and other allowances)
a) Any Other [tem (7.09) (5.03)
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation (o the current tax of prior years - (2.91) (1.63)
Reported income tax expense 802.23 595.85
Effective tax rate 25.49% 25.30%

During the year, the Company has opted to avail the benefits under the Vivad se¢ Vishwas (VSV) Scheme 2024, introduced by the Government of India as a one-time dispute resolution
initiative aimed at reducing pending tax litigation. The scheme allows taxpayers to setile disputed tax liabilities by paying the agreed amount without incurring interest or penaltics,

thereby promoting ease of compliance and cfficient tax administration

The Company has elected to settle various ongoing tax dispules covering AY 2003-04, AY 2004-05, AY 2005-06, AY 2008-09, AY 2012-13 under the VSV Scheme, for a cumulative
period of five years. As aresult, a total tax provision of Rs. 7.43 crores has been recognized in the financial stalements for the year, representing the full and final settlement of the related

tax demands for these years

This decision is aligned with the Company's strategic objective of de-risking its operations from prolonged tax litigations and achieving greater certainty in tax posilions, The
management believes that opting for the scheme will resull in substantial savings in terms of time, cost, and resources otherwise associated with tax-related legal procecdings. Further, it

1s expected (o contribute positively 1o the overall financial health and governance framework of the Company.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2025
Rs. in crore

13 Other non-financial nssets

Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital advances 81.67 84.08
Prepaid expenses 89.90 67.13
Balances with Government Authorities 485.80 37799
Unamortized placement and arrangement fecs paid on borrowing instruments - 0.1
Insurance advances 27.10 13.07
Other advances 24.28 18.37
708.75 56075 |
14 Derivative financial insiruments
Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Notional  Fair value of Notional Fair valuc of|
amounts Liabilities amounts Liabilities
Currency / interest rate derivatives unhedged: (refer note 54 ([11))
Currency swaps 241.06 47.05 709.00 154.30
Total (A) 241.06 47.05 709.00 154.30
Currency / interest rafe derivatives hedged = (refer note 54 (111)
Forward contracts 4,303.13 262.76 835.52 177.40
Currency swaps 1,541.16 80.24 827.70 357
Total (B) 584429 343,00 1,663.22 180.97
Total derivative linancial instruments (A+B) 6,085.35 390.05 237222 33527

Movement in Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year (7.28) {4.79)
Recognised on Cash Flow Hedge Reserve (62.23) (3.3%)
Reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income Tax relating to gain/ loss on the OCI 15.65 0.85
{53.86) [7%
1S Payables Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1) Trade Payables
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - =
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors olher than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,208.56 1,459.47
I1) Other Payables
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 2.80
ii) total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 17.62 62,62
1,228.89 1,524.89

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers during the year regarding their status under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than the
stipulated period and other disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (hereinafier referred to as “the MSMED Act”) arc

given below :

a) Dues remaining unpaid 1o any supplicr at the year end
- Principal
- Interest on the above

appointed day during the year
- Principal paid beyond the appointed date
- Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act

d) Amount of intcrest acerued and remaining unpaid

to the small enlerprises

c) Amount of interest duc and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond the appointed day during the year

¢) Further interest due and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest duc as above are actually paid

b) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amount of payment made to the supplicr beyond the -

Rs, in cror
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025
2.71 2.80)
2.7 2.80
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Contintcd)
as at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

Trade Payables aging schedule

As at March 31, 2025 Rs. in crore
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year
i) MSME 271 - - - 271
i) Others 1,179.69 25.22 1041 10.86 1,226.18
Total 1,182.40 25.12 10.41 10.86 1,228.89
Disputed dues —
- MSME - - - - -
= Others - - - 0.00 0.00

There is neither an instance where due date is not specificd nor there is any unbilled due.

As at March 31, 2024 Rs. in crore
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year
i) MSME 2.30 - - - 2.80
i) Others 1,476.64 23.03 7.57 14.85 1,522.09
Total 1,479.44 23.03 7.57 14.85 1,524.89
Disputed dues —
~MSME - - - - -
— Othiers - - - -

There is neither an instance where due date is not specified nor there is any unbilled due,

16 Debt Securilies
Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

At Amortized cost

Naon-convertible debentures (Secured) 22,974.56 21,738.39
Non-convertible debentures (Unsecured) 1,076.79 1,076.52
Commereial Papers (Unsecured) 2,153.48 4,882.12
Total 26,104.83 27,697.03
Debt securities in India 26,204.83 27,697.03

Debt securities outside India

Total 26,204.83 27,697.03

Note: There is no debt securities measured at FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.,

The Secured Non-convertible debentures are sccured by pari-passu charges on Buildings (forming part of PPE) and exclusive charges on receivables under loan
contracts having carrying value of Rs. 24,995.84 crore (March 2024: Rs. 23,571.34 crare),

There are no redeemed bonds/debentures which the Company has power to reissue.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2025

Rs. i crore

16 Debt Securitics (Confinued)

Details of Non-convertible debentures (Secured) :

Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate range Amount  Iaterest rale Amount
A) Issued on private placement basis (wholesale) -
Repayable on maturity @
Maturing within | year 6.25%-9.00% 6,283.50  7.45%-8.95% 4,529.50
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 1.90%-8.25% 6,724.23  6.25%-9.00% 9,523.50
Maturing between 3 years to 5 years 71.75%-8.48% 510250  7.90%-8.25% 75435
Maturing beyond 5 years 1.45%-8.00% 2,900.50  7.45%-8.48% 4,978.00
Sub-total at face value 21,010.73 19,785.35
Repayable in Half yearly instalments :
Maturing within 1 year 6.35% 112,50 6.35% 56.25
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 6.35% 56.25 6.35% 168,75
Sub-total at face valuc 168.75 225.00
Total at lace value (A) _Zl.,l'i_943 20,010.35
B) Issued on retail public issuc -
Repayable on maturity =
Maturing between 1 year to 3 ycars 9.20%-9.30% 869.15  9.20%-9.30% 869.15
Sub-total at face value (B) 869.15 B69.15
Total at face value (A+D) 2204863 20,879.50
Less: Unamortized discounting charges 21.78 3L10
Add: Interest accrued but not due 947,72 289.98
Total amortized cost 22,974.56 21,738.39
Details of Non-convertible debentures (Unsecured) =.
Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate range Amount  Interest rate Amount
Repayable on maturity :
Maturing beyond 5 years 8.53% 1,000.00 8.53% 1,000.00
Taotal at face value 1,000.00 1,000.00
Less: Unamortized discounting charges 4.30 4.59
Add: Interest accrued but not due 81.09 8111
Total amortized cost 1.076.79 1,076.52
Details of Commercial Fapers (Unsccured):
Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate range Amount  Interest rate Amount
Repayable on maturity :
Maturing within 1 year 7.75%-8.00% 2,175.00 7.69%-8.30% 4,975.00
Total at face value 2,175.00 4,975.00
Less: U ized di ing charg 21.52 92.88
Total amortized cost 2,153.48
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
as al March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

17  Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

At Amortized cost
a) Term loans

1) Secured -
- from banks 52,998.12 44,788.39
- External Commercial Borrowings 7,022,09 2,156.61
- Associated linbilities in respect of sccuritization transactions 8,684.41 5,597.66
- Triparty repo dealing and settlement (TREPS) against Government sccurities 999.82 1.534.71
it} Unsccured -
- WCDL from banks - 2.47
- from other parties - 150.82
b} Loans rom related parties
Unsecured -
- Inter-corporate deposits (ICDs) 21.64 63.96
¢) Other loans and advances
Unsecured -
- Inter-corporate deposits (ICDs) other than related partics 8.84 172.60
Total 69,734,92 54,467.22
Borrowings in India 62,712.83 52,310.61
Borrowings outside India 7,022.09 2,156.61
Total 69,734.92 54,467.22

Note: There is no borrowings measured at FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.

The secured term loans from banks and External Commercial Barowings are secured by exclusive charges on receivables under loan contracts having carrying
amount of Rs 62,770.62 crore (March 2024: Rs 51,919.57 crore).

The borrowings have not been guaranteed by dircetors or others. Also the Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal and interest




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2025

Rs ncrore

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) (Continued)

Details of term loans rom banks (Securcd) Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Interest rate range Amount  Interest rate Amount
1) Repayable on maturity =
Maturing within 1 year 7.60%-9.20% L,601.00  6.75%-8.95% 2,636.00
Maturing between | year to 3 years 7.70% 400.00 770%-8.30% 480.00,
Total for repayable on maturity 2,001.00 3,116.00
2) Repayable in instalments :
i) Monthly -
Maturing between | year to 3 years - -
Sub-Total - -
i) Quarterly -
Maturing within 1 year 5.70%-8.95% 11,894.49  5.15%-8.70% 7.687.85
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 5.715%-8.55% 19,001552  5.70%-8.70% 13,757.19
Maturing between 3 years to 5 years 6.40%-8.55% 449113 5.75%-8.35% 4,880.88)|
Sub-Total — 3540114 26,325.92
i} Ilalf yearly -
Maturing within 1 year 6.72%-9.05% 297198 6.25%-8.80% 3,504.30
Maturing between | year to 3 years 1.75%-9.05% 4,951.18  6.97%-83.80% 5,443.01
Maturing between 3 years to 5 years 7.79%-8.60% 1,406.78  7.80%-8.80% 2,535.81
Maturing beyond 5 years 1.90% 50.00 8.15% 111.12
Sub-Total 9.379.94 11,594.24
iii) Yearly -
Maturing within 1 year 7.19%-9.00% 2,154.17  7.59%-9.00% 1,585.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 8.30%-9.00% 3,71750  7.59%-9.00% 2,666.67
Maturing between 3 years to 5 years B.55% 250.00  8.50%-9.00% 955.00
Sub-Total 6,121.67 5,206.67
Total for repayable in instalments 50,902.75 43,126.83
Total (142) (As per contractual terms) 52,903.75 46,242.83
Less: Unamortized Finance Cost {0.25) (0.47)
Add: Interest accrued but not due 94.62 80.74
Total Amortized Cost 52.998.12 46,323.10

The rates mentioned above are the applicable rates as at the year end date linked to MCLR (Marginal Cost of funds based Lending Rate), RBI Policy Repo Rate,

Mibor, and Treasury bills plus spread.

Disclosure of information related to borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the hnsis'ol'!ecurily of current assets

The quarterly retumns or statements comprising (book debl st

and other stip

d financial information) filed by the Company with such banks are in

agreement with the books of account of the Company except for certain differences which has been duly reconciled and presented here below.

Summary of reconciliation
- Year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Quarter ended
June September December March
2024 2024 2024 2025
Value as per quarterly returns / statements filed with Banks 1,243.07 1,320.09 2974.17 2,805.17
Difference in Overdue balance due to credits not considered in relurns 0.14 6.69 30.75 10.78
Ind AS adjustments rclated to Effective Interest Rate (EIR) / Amortized cost 4.18 3.56 442 5.97
Value as per Ind AS books of account [,247.39 1,330.34 3,009.34 2,821.92
Year ended March 31, 2024
Rs. in crore
Quarter ended
June September December March
2023 2023 2023 2024
Value as per quarterly returns / statements filed with Banks 2,561.53 2,556.60 2,556.49 2,557.03
Difference in Overdue balance due 1o credits not considered in returns 34.14 25.59 18.41 6293
Ind AS adjustments related to Effective Interest Rate (EIR) / Amortized cost 9.82 546 7.89 7.45
Value as per Ind AS books of account 2,611.49 2,587.66 2,582.79 2,627.41

g MUMBAI
=

*
(2]
o




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as al March 31, 2025
Rs. in crore

17 Barrowings (Other than Delnt Securities) (Continued)

Details of External Commercial Borrowings (USD & JP'Y)

B;GHHE 1

Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate range Amount  Interest rate Amount
Maturing within | year 6.61%-8.11% 1,793.49 6.61% 363.59
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 1.68%-8.22% 5,134.88  661%-8.11% 1,743.99
6,928.38 2,107.58
Less: Unamortized Finance Cost (27.60) 5.53
Add: Interest acerued but not due 121.31 54.56
7,022.09 2,156.61
Details of associated liabilities related to Securitization transactions
Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate range Amount Intcrest rate rangge Amount
Maturing within | year 4.76%-8.00% 3,454.15 3.70%-7.55% 2,538.53
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 4.76%-8.00% 4,518.97  3.70%-7.55% 2,643.24
Maturing between 3 years to § years 6.20%-8.00% 680.90  4.76%-7.55% 410.67
Maturing beyond 5 years 6.20%-7.45% 18.79 S :
8,672.80 5,592.45
Add: Interest accrued but not due 11.61 S.21

5.597.66

Details of Triparty repo dealing and selilement (TREPs) against Government securities

Rs. in crore

From (he Balance Shect date

Maturing within I year

Add: Interest accrued but not due

As at March 31, 2025

Interest rate range Amounl Interest rate range Amount
6.30%-6.65% 1,000.00 -
1,000.00 -

(0.18) -

999.82

Details of Unsecured term loans from banks

As at March 31, 2024

Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate range Amount Interest rate Amount
Repayable on maturity =
Maturing within I year - 9.25% 2.47
= 2.47
Less: Unamortized Finance Cost - "
Add: Interest accrued but not due = o
Z 247
Details of Unsccured term loans from others
Rs. in crore

From the Balance Sheet date

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Intcrest rate range Amount  [nterest rate Amount|
Repayable on maturily :
Maturing within 1 year - 8.20% 75.00]
Maturing between | year to 3 years - 8.20% 75.00!
- 150.00]
Add: Interest acerued but not due - 0.82]
- 150.82
Details of Loans from related parties & Other Parties (Unsccured) - Inter-corporate depasits (ICDs)
Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Inter-corporate deposits (ICDs) (Related Partics) Interest rate range Amount Interest rate Amount
Repayable on maturity =
Maturing within 1 year 6.25% 1850 6.25%-7.80% 41.00
Maturing between | year to 3 years - 6.25% 18.50
18.50 59.50
Add: Interest accrued but not due 3.14 4.46
21.64 63.96
Inter-corparate depasits ([CDs) ( Other Than Related Parties)
Repayable on maturity :
Maturing within 1 year 7.75% 8.50 7.50%-8.00% 170.00
8.50 170.00
Add. Interest accrued but not due 0.34 2.60
8.84

172.60]




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

13

Deposits

Rs. in crore
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
At amortized cost
Deposits {(Unsecured)

- Public deposits * 6,947.62 6,109.41

- Accepted from corporates 4,456.53 1,434.77
Total 11.404.15 7.544.18

— |

Note: There is no deposits measured at FVTPL or designaled at FVTPL,
*as defined in chapter II, para 3 (xiii) of Master directions - Non-Banking Fi

Directions, 2016 as issued by RBI

1 C

Accep of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank)

There are no amounts that are due and remain unpaid o Investor Education and Protection Fund as at the close of the year. there was no delay in transferring any

amount 1o the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Details of Deposits (Unsecured) - Public deposits

Rs. in crore
From the Balance Sheet date As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate rangc Amount  Interest rate Amount]
Repayable on n_mlnrity :
Maturing within 1 year 5.75% - 8.45% 399364 5.65%-9.15% 2,660.39
Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 5.90% - 8.45% 5904.55 5.75%-8.45% 3,588.40
Maturing beyond 3 years 1.25% - 8.45% 102825  5.09%-8.4% 948.41
Total at face value 10,926.45 7,197.20
Less: Unamortized discounting charges 33.20 22.46]
Add: Interest accrued but not due 510.90 369.44
Total amortized cost 11,404.15 7,544.18
Subordinated liabilities
Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
At Amortized cost (Unsecured)
Subordinated redeemable non-convertible debentures - privaie placement 2.967.30 1,652.29
Subordinated redeemable non-convertible debentures - retail public issue 2,562.27 2,617.86
Total 551957 4.270.15
Subordinated liabilities in India 5,529.57 427015
Subordinated liabilities outside India » =
Total 5,529.57 4,270, '|5=,

Note: There is no Subordinated liabilities measured at FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as al March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

19

20

21

22

Subordinated liabilities (Continued)

Dctails of Subordinated liabilitics (at Amordized cost) - Unsecured

vertible d oS

From the Balance Shect date

A) Issued on private placement basis -
Repayable on maturity :

Maturing within | year

Maturing between I year to 3 years
Maturing beyond 5 years

Sub-total at face value (A)

B) Issued on retail public issuc -
Repayable on maturity :

Maturing within | year

Maturing between | year to 3 years
Maturing between 3 years to 5 years
Maturing beyond 5 years

Sub-total at face value (B)

Total at face valuc (A+B)

Less: Unamortized discounting charges
Add: Interest accrued but not due

Total amortized cost

As at March 31, 2025
Interest rate range Amount

8.90%-9.10% 175.00

7.35%-8.35% 2,712.90

2,887.90

7.90%-9.00% 1,380.25
9.35%-9.50% 336.87
7.95%-8.05% 643.96

2,361.09

5,248.99
19.29
299.87

5.529.57

Rs. in crore
As at March 31, 2024
Interest rate Amount
9.18%-9.60% 215.00
8.90%-9.10% 175.00
7.35%-8.35% 1,212.90
1,602.90
1.75%-185% 59.32
8.53%-9.00% 933.01
7.90%-9.50% 784.12
7.95%-8.05% 643.96
2,420.41
4,023.31
17.65
264.49
427015

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions as per note numbers 16 1o 18 for the specific purpose for which these were availed.
In respect of all the borrowings, there is no default in payment of either principal or interest.

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful

defaulters issucd by the Reserve Bank of India.

Other Minancial liabilities

Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Unclaimed dividends # 0.66 0.57
Unclaimed matured deposits and interest accrued thereon # 382 4.37
Deposits / advances received against loan agreements 45.39 35.51
Insurance premium payable 19.81 3.42
Salary, Bonus and performance payable 6.3 8.80|
Provision for expenses 258.29 210.08
Lease liabilities (refer note 40) 383.19 367.92
Amount payable under assignment of receivables 0.67 B
Others 7243 57.25
Total 790.60 687.92
# There are no amounts due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013 as at the year end.
Provisions
Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provisian for employce benefits
- Gratuity (refer note 35) 27.39 8.70
- Leave encashment 81.58 84.38
- Bonus, incentives and performance pay 102.29 112.03
- Post retirement medical benefit 5.09 3
Provision for loan commitment 0.69 0.02
‘| Total 217.04 205.13
Other non-financial linbilities
Rs. in crore

Deferred subvention income
Statutory dues and taxes payable
Others *

Total

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

6.28 14.37
154.34 125.76]
555 10.54
166.17 150.67

* Others include monies adjusted from share capital and otlier equity on account of shares held by MMFSL ESOP Trust pending transfer to the eligible employees

and lease rental advances.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
23 Equity Share capital

Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authorized:

2,50,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 2,50,00,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.2/- each 500.00 500.00
50,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 50,00,000) Redeemable preference shares of Rs,100/- each 50,00 50.00
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up:

1,23,55,29,520 (March 31, 2024: 1,23,55,29,920) Equity shares of Rs.2/- each fully paid up 247.11 247.11
Less: 6,68,537 (March 31, 2024: 11,43,808) Equity shares of Rs,2/- each fully paid up issued to ESOP Trust under Company's 0.13 023

ESOP Schemes but not yet allotted to employees pending exercise of stack options by employees

Adjusted Issued, Subscribed and paid-up Share capital 246.98 246,88

—t e

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares  Rs, in crore No. of shares Ras. in crore

a) Reconcilintion of number of equity shares and amount outstanding:

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up:

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,23,55,29,920 247,11 1,23,55,29,920 247.11

Balance at the end of the year 1,23,55,29,920 247.11 1,23,55,29,920 24711

Less: Shares issued to ESOP Trust but not yet allotted to employees 6,68,537 0.13 11,43,808 0.23

Adjusted Issued, Subscribed and paid-up Share capital 1,23,48,61.383 246.98 1,23,43,86,112 246,88
b) Number of equity shares held by holding company or holding

including shares held by its subsidiaries / associates:

Holding Company: Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 64,43,99,987 128.88 64,43,99,987 128.88

Percentage of holding (%) 52.16% 52.16%
) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of the aggregate shares:

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 64,43,99,987 128,88 64,43,99,987 128.88

Percentage of holding (%) 52.16% 52.16%

d) Terms / rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.2/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend
proposed by the board of directors and approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting is paid in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
as af March 31, 2025

Rs.in crore

Other Equity
Description of the nature and purpose of Other Equity (refer Statement of Changes in Equity) :
Statutory rescrve as per Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934

Statutory reserve represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 through transfer of specified percentage of net profit every year before
any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utilized only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from time 1o time and cvery such utilization shall be reported to
the RBI within specificd period of time from the date of such utifization

Capital redemption reserve (CRR)

Capital redemption reserve represents reserve created pursuant to Seclion 55 (2) {c) of the Companies Act, 2013 by transfer of an amount equivalent 10 nominal value of
the Preference shares redecmed. The CRR may be utilized by the Company, in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the members of the Company as
fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Securitics premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilized only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accardance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

General reserve

General reserve is created through annual transfer of profits at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956.

Consequent 1o introduction of the Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to datorily transfer specified p ge of net profits to General reserve has been
withdrawn. However, the amount previously transfecred to the General reserve ¢an be ulilized only in accordance with the specific requi of the Companies Act,
2013,

Employee stock options outstanding

The Employee Stock Options outstanding represents amount of reserve created by recognition of compensation cost al grant date fair value on stock options vested but
not exercised by employees and unvested stock options in the Statement of profit and loss in respect of equity-settled share options granted to the cligible employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries in p of the Employee Stock Option Plan.

Retained earnings

Retained carnings or accumulated surplus represents total of all profits retained since Company's inception. Retained carnings are credited with current year prafits,
reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay-outs, transfers to General reserve or any such ather appropriations to specilic reserve.

Elements of Other Equity with balance:

Rs, in crore

Particulars Nature and purpose March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory reserve as per Section Statulory reserve represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-1C of 3,352.35 2,8831.35
45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 the RBI Act, 1934 through transfer of specified percentage of net profit every

year before any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utilized only for

limited purposes as specified by RBI from time to time and every such

utilization shall be reported to the RBI within specified period of time from the

date of such utilization.
Capital redemption reserve Capital redemplion reserve represents reserve created pursuant to Section 55 50.00 50.00

(2) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 by transfer of an amount cquivalent to
nominal valuc of the Preference shares redeemed. The CRR may be utilized by
the Company, in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the
members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
Sccurities premium Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The 7,195.09 7,185.65
reserve can be utilized only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013.
General reserve General reserve is created through annual transfer of profils at a specified 798.61 798.20
percentage in accordance with applicable regulations under the erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956. Conseq to introduction of the Companics Act,
2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer specified percentage of net
profits to General reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount
previously transferred to the General reserve can be utilized only in accordance
with the specific requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
Employee stock options outstanding The Employee Stock Options outstanding represents amount of reserve created 9.18 12.24
by recognition of compensation cost at grant date fair value an stock options
vested but not exercised by employees and unvested stock options in the
Statement of profit and loss in respect of equity-setiled sharc options granted to

the eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in pursuance of the
Employee Stock Option Plan.
Retained earnings Retained earnings or lated surplus rep total of all profits retained 8,128.10 7,037.93

since Company's inception. Retained earnings are credited with current year
profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay-outs, transfers to General
reserve or any such other appropriations to specific reserve,
Other comprehensive income

- Debt instruments through OCI The Company recognises changes ia the fair value of debt instruments held with 1.26 (70.94)
a dual business objective of collect and sell in other comprehensive income
These chanpes are accumulated in the FVOCI debt investments reserve, The
Company transfers amounts from this reserve to profit or loss when the debt
instruments are derecognised. Any impairment loss on such instruments is
reclassified i diatcly to the St of Profit and Loss.

- Equity instruments through OCI The Company has opted to recognise changes in the fair value of certain 84.51 21 46
investments in equity in other comprehensive income. These changes are
accumulated in the FVOCI equity investments reserve. The Company transfers
amounts [rom this reserve to retained carnings when the relevant equity
mvestments are derccognised.

- Effective portion of cash flow hedges 1t represents the cumulative gains/{losses) arising on revaluation of the (53.85) (7.28)
deivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges through OCI

Total

19,565.25 17,910.61
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Contined)
us ol March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

Dividend distributions made and proposed
i) Dividend on equity shares declared and paid during the year

Rs. in crore

Dividend paid

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

778.38 74132

Profit for the relevant year 1,759.62 1,984.32]

Dividend as a percentage of profit for the relevant year 44.2% 37.4%
ii) Dividends proposed for approval at the annual general meeting (not recognised as a liability as at respective reporting date)

Rs. in crore

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Face value per share (Rupees) 2.00 2.00

Dividend percentage 325% 315%

Dividend per share (Rupees) 6.50 6.30

Total Dividend on Equity shares (a) 803.09 778.38

Profit after tax for the relevant year (b) 2,345.04 1,739.62

Dividend proposed as a percentage of profit after tax (a/b) 34.2% 44.2%|

The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Sor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

24

25

26

27

Interest income

Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
On financial instruments measured at Amortized cost (refer note 2.6)

Interest on loans 14,255.57 12,150.12

Interest on Finance lease 12431 1276

Income from bill discounting 120.62 106.07

Interest income from investments 224.79 203,87

Interest on term deposits with banks 318.80 266.11
On financial instruments measured at fair value through OCI (refer note 2.11 (b))

Interest income from investments in debt instrument 28732 309.83
Total 1533141 13,108.76
Note: There is no loan asset measured at FVTPL.

Fees, charges and commission income
Rs. in crore

March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Service charges and other fees income 280.08 155.75
Income from commission services - life insurance 149.94 -
Income from commission services - general insurance 6131 -
Fees, commission / brokerage received from mutual fund distribution/other products 6.77 717
Collection fees related to transferred assets under securitization transactions 12.49 11.75
Total 510.59 174.67
Revenue from contracts with customers
Set out below is the revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to the statement of profit and loss. Rs. in crore
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Type of services or service
Fees and commission income 510.59 174.67
Total revenue from contract with customers 510.59 174.67
Geopgraphical markets

India 510.59 174.67

Outside India =
Total revenue from contract with customers 510.59 174.67
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 51059 174.67
Services transferred over time - =
Total revenue from contract with customers 510.59 174.67
Contract balances

Rs. in crore
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Fees, commission and other receivables 53.02 24.74
53.02 24.74
-Impairment loss allowanee recognised on contract balances 1s Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)
-Contract assct as on March 31, 2025 is Nil (Previous year Nil)
Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes
Rs. in crore
March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments a1 FVTPL
On trading portfolio

- Investments {0.42) 239
Others - Mutual fund units 6.56 2.86
Total Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at FVTPL 6.14 5.25
Fair value changes :

- Realized 131 -

- Unrealized 4.83 5.25
Total Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at FVTPL 6.14 5.25
Note: Fair value changes in this schedule are other than those arising on account of accrued interest income/expense.

Other income
Rs. in crore -
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 S .
Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 4.10 665
Net gain on sale investments measured at amortized cost - 185
Income from shared services 45.04 146 17
Others 6.60 062
Total 55.74 155.39




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

28  Finance costs

Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
On financial liabilitics measured at Amortized cost
Interest on deposils 728.83 473.41
Interest on borrowings 4,484.08 3,399.09
Interest on debl securities 2,362.83 2,191.45
Interest on subordinated liabilities 372.01 295,79
Net loss / (gain) in fair value of derivative financial instruments (107.25) 9.47
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 40) 3104 26.35
Others 26.76 31.38
Total 7,898.30 6,426.94
Note: There are no financial liabilitics measured at FVTPL
29  Impairment on financial instruments
Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
On financial instruments measured at Amortized cost
Bad debls and write offs 1,558.91 1,714.88
Loans 57.65 114.49
[nvestments - (0.98)
Loan commitment 0.67 (0.41)
Trade receivables and other contracts 0.63 (5.19),
Total 1,617.86 1,822.79
Note: There are no financial instruments measured at FVOCL
30 Employce benefits expenses
Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Salaries and wages 1,756.36 1,58835
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 110.86 B7.51
Share based payments (o employees 725 4.49
Staff welfare expenses 28.66 32.28
Total 1,903.13 1,712.63
——— |
31  Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (refer note 11) 154.62 139.32
Amorlization and impairment of intangible assets (refer note 12) 36.65 10.20
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset (refer note 11 and 40) 82.15 79.19
Total 273.42

228.71
———




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2023

Rs. in crore

32

33

Other expenses

Rs. in crore
March 31,2025 March31,2024
Rent 12.61 12.78
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 832 9,76
Electricity charges 18.18 18.17
Repairs and maintenance 11.01 12.06
Communication costs 48.07 51.82
Printing and stationery 12.80 12.99
Advertisement and publicity 26.61 40.22
Directors' fees, allowances and expenses 422 3.81
Auditor's fees and expenses -
- Audit fees (including quarterly limited reviews) 1.66 1.48
- Other services 0.54 0.46
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.07 0.01
Legal and professional charges 154.57 149.21
Insurance 58.99 5230
Manpower outsourcing cost 193.66 122.03
Donations 23.04 0.18
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses (refer note 45) 34.61 26.98
Conveyance and travel expenses 147.84 150.65
Other expenses 380.07 238.07
Total 1.136.87 905.98

Earning Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated in accordance with Ind AS 33 'Earnings Per Share' by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into cquity shares of the Company.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Rs. in crore

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Profit for the year (Rs in crare) 2,345.04 1,759.62]
Weighted average number of Equity Shares used in computing basic EPS 1,23,46,29,576 1,23,39,32,506
Effect of potential dilutive Equity Shares 4,16316 6,47,658
‘Weighted average number of Equity Shares used in computing diluted EPS 1,23,50,45,892 1,23,45,80,164
Basic Earnings per share (Rs,) (Face value of Rs. 2/- per share) 18.99 14.26
Diluted Eanings per share (Rs.) 18.99 14.25




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

34 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The Company had allotted 48,45,025 Equity shares (face value of Rs.2/- each) (adjusted for stock-split in the ratio of 5:1 n February 2013) under Employce Stock Option Scheme 2010 at par
on February 3, 2011 to Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited Employees’ Stock Option Trust ("the Trust") set up by the Company. The Trust holds these shares for the benefit of

cmployees and allots equity shares to eligible employecs on excrcise of stock options as per the terms and conditions of ESOP scheme granted as per the recommendation of the Compensation
Commiltee

Pursuant to the Rights issue of one equity share for every equity share held as on record date, at an issue price of Rs.50 per Equity Share (including a premium of Rs. 48 per Equity Share),
made by the Company, 20,63,662 equity shares have been allotted to the Trust in respeet of its rights entitlement on August 17, 2020. All the option holders (beneficiaries) under existing

grants have automatically became entitled to additional options at Rs.50/- per option as rights adjustment and accordingly, the number of outstanding options stand augmented in the same
ratio as the rights issue. All the terms and conditions applicable to these additional options issued under rights issue have remained same as original grant.

Upon exercise of stock options, including additional options issucd as per Rights issue, under the scheme by cligible employees, the Trust had issued 70,25,425 equity shares lo employees up
to March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 65,50,154 equity sharcs), of which 4,75 271 cquity shares (March 31, 2024: 7,87,641 equity shares) were issued during the current year. This has resulted
in an increase in equity sharc capital by Rs. 0.10 crore for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 - Rs 0.16 crore).

a) The terms and conditions of the Employees Stack Option Plans

=

Employees Stock Option Scheme 2010

Particulars Terms and conditions

Type of arrangement

Contractual life

Number of vested options exercisable
Method of settlement

Vesting conditions

Employees share based payment plan administered through ESOP Trust

3 years from the date of each vesting

Minimum of 50 or number of options vested whichever is lower

By issue of shares at exercise price

In 5 equal tranches @ 20% each on expiry of 12, 24, 36, 48 and 60 months from the datc of
grant

il

MAIIINDRA AND MANINDRA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED — RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS PLAN 2023 (“MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023")
Newly formulated employec stock option plan, namely, Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited - Restricted Stock Units Plan 2023 (“MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023%)in

accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, and the same was approved by the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on April 28, 2023

Particulars Terms and conditions

Employees share based payment plan administered through ESOP Trust

5 years from the date of each vesting

R5Us granted under the MMFSL RSU Plan 2023 shall vest not carier than minimum Vesting|
Period of | (One) year and not fater than the maximum Vesting Period of 7 (Seven) years
from the date of Grant of such RSUs,

Type ol arrangement
Contractual life
Vesting terms & conditions

The vesting of RSUs would be based on achievement of performance parameters.

The Committee would lay down the parameters for vesting of RSUs which would include
one or more of the Company performance parameters such as:

a) Assct Quality

b) Asscts Under Management (AUM) Growth

¢) Cost control

d) Profit growth

¢) Return on Assets (ROA)

f) Digital maturity: use of technology and data

g) Environmental, Social & Govemance (ESG) performance

Vesting Schedule In 3 or 5 equal tranches on expiry of 12, 24 and 36 months (i.c. 33.33% each) or on expiry of

12, 24,36,48, 60 months (i.c. 20% each), up to a maximum of 7 years from the grant date
Minimum of 50 or number of options vested whichever is lower
By issuc of shares at excrcise price

Number of vested options exercisable
Method of settlement

b

P

Options granted during the year:
i) Employec Stock Option Scheme 2010

After formulation of new scheme - MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023, no further stock options can be granted under the old scheme - Employees’ Stock Option Scheme 2010 However, live
options already vested can be exercised within the validity period as per the tenns and conditions of the scheme.

Following are the stock option grants under this scheme which were live during the year with remaining validity period for exercise of vested options

Particulars Grant dated Grant dated  Grant dated
January 5, January24, October 24,
2017 2018 2018
Exercise price (Rs.) 200 2.00 200
Fair value of option (Rs.) 337.36 495,92 35534

ii) MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has granted 6,49,326 stock options (March 31, 2024 ; 2,83,171) to eligible employees under the newly formulated employee stock
option plan, namely, MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023, in accordance with the Sccunties and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Bencfits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021,
which was approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 28, 2023,

Following are the grants which are liver under MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023,

Particulars Grant dated Grant dated| Grant dated
Octaber 21 April 23 October 26

2024 2024 2023

Exercise price (Rs.) 2.00 200 2.00
Fair value of option (Rs.) 262.53 246.47 246.47

107122W
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

<)

The key assumptions used in black-Scholes model for calculating fair value as on the date of grant are

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,
2024
Grant dated Grant dated  Grant dated
October 21 April23  October 26
2024 2024 2023

Varinbles#
1) Risk free interest rate 6.64% 7.08% 7.29%
2) Expected life 4.50 years 5.50 years 4.51 years
3) Expecled volatility 42.83% 44.271% 45.98%
4) Dividend yield 2.16% 2.15% 2.19%
5) Price of the underlying share in the market at the time of aption grant (Rs ) 291.00 278.85 273.60

# the values mentioned against each of the variables are based on the weighted average percentage of vesting,

i) Summary of stock options - Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 :

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Particulars No. of stock Weighted  No. of stock Weighted
options average options average|
exercise price exercise
. (Rs.) # price (Rs.) #
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,12,763 2697 14,34,983 26.91
Options granted during the year - - - -
Options expired/forfeited during the year 11,350 27.45 12,392 26.00
Options cancelled/lapsed during the year - - 22,187 3533
Options exerciscd during the year 4,44,786 27.09 7,87,641 26,63
Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,56,627 26.58 6,12,763 2697
Options vested but not exercised at the end of the year 1,56,627 26.58 6,12,763 26.97 B

# Adjusted for additional options issued in the ratio of onc equity share for every one equity share held under Rights issuc made by the Company during August 2020. The options issued
under ESOP scheme 2010 arc excrcisable at Rs.2/- per option and adjustment options issued under Rights issue are excrcisable at Rs 50/- each, including premium of Rs. 48/- per option
(being the issue price under Rights allotment),

ii) Summary of stock options - MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023:

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars No. of stock Weighted No. of Weighted
options average stock average
exercise options exercise price
price (Rs.) (Rs.)
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 283,171 2.00 - -
Options granted during the year 6,49,326 200 283171 2.00
Options expircd/forfeited during the year 8,804 2.00 - .
Options cancclled/lapsed during the year # 85,674 2.00 - z
Options exercised during the year 30,485 200 - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 8,07,534 200 283171 2,00
Options vested but not exercised at the end of the year 36,216 200 - B

# includes 9,194 oplions cancelled / lapsed on account of true-down effect applied on the specific tranche of the grant covering all the beneficiaries due to non-achievement of specified
performance parameters at the Company level for the year ended 31 March 2024 as per the terms and conditions of the MMFESL RSU PLAN 2023.

Truc-down of options:

The vesting of options under each tranche of individual grants under MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023 is subject to achicvement of specified performance parameters at the Company level and at
the individual level for the relevant financial year as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board of Directors. If actual performance in a relevant
financial year against the specified parameters is lower than the defined thresholds, the granted options under a particular tranche would vest in proportion to the level of actual
performance (truc-down effect) and that proportion of options attributable to lower performance would be cancelled / lapsed with corresponding write-back of compensation expense
already recognized in the statement of profit and loss
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

34

Employee Stock Option Plan (Continued)

d)

e)

Information in respect of options outstanding :

Exercise price

Employce Stock Option Scheme 2010 -

- At Rs.2.00 oer oolion
- At Rs.50.00 per option

MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023 -
- At Rs.2.00 peroplion

As at March 31, 2025
No. of stock
options

76.411
80,216

8,07,534
9,64,161

Weighted No. of stack
average options
remaining life
14 months 2.94.002
14 months 3,18,761
79 months 283,17
8,95,934

As at March 31,2024

Weighted
average
remaining life

24 months
23 months

B0 months

Average share price at recognized stock exchange on the date of exercise of the option is as under:

Date of exereise

April 01 2024 to March 31, 2025

Year ended March 31, 2025

Weighted average
share price (Rs.)

286.73

Year ended March 31,2024
Date of exercise

April 01 2023 to March 31,
2024

‘Weighted averape
share price (Rs.)

27535

Determination of expected volatility

The measure of volatility used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return on the stock over a period of

time

The determination of expected volatility is based on historical volalility of the stock over the most recent period that is gencrally commensurate with the expected life of the option being

valued, The period considered for volatility is adequate to represent a consistent trend in the price movements and the movements due to abnormal events arc evened out.

Accordingly, since cach vest has been considered as a scparate grant, the model considers the volatility for periods, corresponding to the expected lives of different wvests, prior to the grant
date. Volalility has becn calculated based on the daily closing market price of the Company's stock price on NSE over these years. Similar approach was followed in determination of

expected volatility based on historical volatility for all the grants under the scheme.

In respeet of stock options granted under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 and MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023, the accounting is done as per the requircments of Ind AS 102 - Share-
based payment. Consequently, Rs.7.25 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs.4.49 crore) has been included under 'Employee Benefits Expensc' as "Share-based payment to employces' based on

respective grant date fair value, after adjusting for reversals on account of options forfeiled. The amount includes cost reimburscments (net of recoveries of Rs. 0,21 crore) to the holding
company of Rs.1.68 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs. 1.69 crore) in respect of options granted o employees of the Company and excludes net recovery of Rs.0,09 crore (March 31, 2024:
Rs,0.01 crore) from its subsidiaries for options granted Lo their cmployees.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Contineued)
jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
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Employee benefits
General description of defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering qualifying employces = The plan provides far lump sum payments to employees upon death while in
employment or on scparation from employment afler serving for the stipulated period mentioned under The Payment of Grawity Act, 1972. The Company makes annual contribution to the
Gratuity scheme administered by the Life I Corporation of India, HDFC life and Kotak life insurance through its Gratuity fund

Post retirement medical cover

The Company provides for post retirement medical cover Lo select grade of employees to cover the retiring employee and their spouse up 10 a specified age through Mediclaim palicy on which the
premiums are paid by the Company. The eligibility of the employee for the benefit as well as the amount of medical cover purchased is determined by the grade of the employee at the time of
relirement.

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investutent risk -

The plan liabilitics are calculated using a discount rate sct with refereaces to government bond yields; if plan asscts underperform compared to this yield, this will create or increase a deficit,
Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securitics, and other debt instruments

Interest rufe risk -

A decrease in government bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this is expected 1o be partially affset by an increase in the value of the plan's investment in debt instruments.

Variability in withdrawal rates -

If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then the gratuity benefits will be paid carlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits
are vested as at the resignation date

Regulatory Risk -

Gratuity Bencfit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There is 2 risk of change in the regulations requiring higher gratuity paymeats
(c.g. raising the present ceiling of Rs. 20,00,000, raising accrual rate from 15/26 etc.),

Inflatian risk -

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants
will increase the plan's liability. The post retirement medical benefil obligation is sensitive 1o medical inflation and accordingly, an increase in medical inflation rate would increase the plan's
liability.

Salury Risk -

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will
increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk -

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Concentration Risk -

Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very low

Life expectancy -

The present value of defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reli to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants, both during and after the employment An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratvity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit,
the acceleration of cashflow will Jead to an acluarial loss or gain depending on the relalive values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate,

Details of defined benefit plans as per aciuarial valuation are as follows:

Rs. in crore
Funded Plan Unfunded Plan
Gratuity Post retirement medical benefits
Year ended March 31 Year ended March 31
Particulars 2025 2024 2025 2024
L A s r ized in the Stat t of Profit & Loss
Current service cost 17.14 15.55 - -
Net Interest cost 0.63 1.02
Past service cost - - 5.09 -
Interest Income - (6.94) - -
Adiustment due to chanee in onening balance of Plan assets o (8.57) 2 =
Total cxpenses included in emplovee benefits expense 17.76 1.06 509 -
IL  Amountr ized in Other Comprehensive income
Remeasurement (rains)/losses:
a) Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from chanpes in -
- demographic assumptions 0.92 0.10
- financial assumptions {(3.60) (2.57) - -
- experience adiustments (1.34) 4.23 - -
b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in net interest expense/ 4.04 (8.41) = &
(income)
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income (9.99) (6.64) . =

 FR
S 101
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35  Employec benefits (Continued)

Details of defined benefit plans as per actaarial valuation are as follows: (Continued)

30, 22.10 for age 31-
50, 12,24 for 51 and

30, 15.00 for age 31-
44, 5.00 for 45 and|

above above|
Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a.) 6.54% 7.50%
Rate of Salary increase (p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%
Medical cost inflation (p.a.) - .
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years
In-service Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Urban Ultimate
Payment Mortality 5 =
II. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for impact of significant
assumptions on defined benefit obligation are as follows:
One percentage point increase in discount rate {5.46) (9.95)
One g ge point d in di rate 5.94 1117
One percentage point increase in Salary growth rate 5.85 1117
One percentage point decrease in Salary growth rate (5.48) (9.87)
Onc percentage point increase in attrition rate (0.36) -
One percentage point decrease in attrition rate 0.38 -
One percentage point increase in medical inflation rate - -
One percentage point decrease in medical inflation rate - z
1. Maturity profilec of defined benefit abligation
Within 1 year 30.96 21.00
Between 1 and 5 years 84.48 11833
Between 6 and 10 years 55.87 -
11 years and above 3572 -

Rs. In crore
Funded Plan Unfunded Plan
Gratuity Post retirement medical benelits
Year ended March 31 Year cnded March 31
Particulars 2025 2024 2025 2024
III. Changes in the defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 146.41 125.73 - -
Current service cost 17.14 15.55 - -
Past service cost - - 5.09 -
Interest expense 10.53 9.43 - -
Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising from changes in -
- demographic assumptions (0.92) (0.10) - -
- financial assumptions 3.60 257 - -
- experience adjustments 11.34 (4.23) - -
Benefits paid (32.02) (2.59) - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 156.08 146.41 5.09 -
IV. Change in the fair value of plan assets during the year
Opening Fair value of plan assets 137.71 103.59 - -
Interest income 9.90 15.35 - -
Expected return on plan assets 4.04 (8.41) - -
Cantributions by employer 9.05 21.15 - -
Adjustment due to change in opening balance of Plan assets - B.57 = -
Aclual Benefits paid (32.02) (2.54) - -
Closing Fair value of plan assets 128.68 137.71 - -
V.  Net defined benefit obligation
Defined benefit obligation {156.08) {146.40) (5.09) -
Fair value of plan asscts 128.68 137.70 - -
Surplus/(Deficit) (27.39) (8.70) (5.09) -
Current portion of the above (27.39) - (0.05) -
Non current poriion of the above - (8.70) (5.04) -
VL Expected contribution for the next reporting year 31.65 27.71 = -
Actuarial assumptions and Sensitivity
Rs. in crore
Funded Plan Unfunded Plan
Gratuity Post retirement medical benefits
I.  Actuarial assumplions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.54% 1.22% 6.82% -
Attrition rate 31.08 forageupto  27.00 forageup to| 34.08 for age up to -

30, 22.10 for age 31-
50, 12.24 for 51 and
above

NA -

700% -

60 years -

Indian Assured

Lives Mortality

(2012-14)

Urban

Indian Individual -
Annuitant’s
Montality Table
(2012-15)

(0.66)
0.79

(0.42) .
0.47 -
0.78 -
(0.66) .

0.05
0.40
1.32 -
137 -

Wi
MUMBAI
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36

Employee benefits (Continned)
Dectails of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows: (Contined)
The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, considers inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market

The plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities and corporate bonds

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other long term benefits are determined using actuarial valuations Actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions that may differ from aciual
developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to these complexity involved in the valuation it is highly sensitive

10 the cf in these pli All plions are reviewed at each reporting date. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and planned
service cost were measured using the projected unit cost method

/'s cC

The C ion 1o p fund, superannuation fund and national peasion scheme aggregating to Rs. 80.67 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs.78.39 crore) has been recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss under the head Employee benefits expense.

Compensated Absences

ptions used in determining obli

30, 22.10 for age 31-
50, 12.24 for 51 and

The principal g ablig for the C y are shown below;
Year ended March 31
Particulars 2025 2024
Rate of discounting 6.54% 1.22%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Altrition rate 31.08 forageup to 27,00 for age up to

30, 15.00 for age 31+
44, 5.00 for 45 and

above above]
Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Urban Ultimatc|
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss 10.45 9.57

The Company has not funded its compensated absences liability and the same conlinues to remain as unfunded as at March 31, 2025,
The estimate of future salary increase takes into accouat inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the balance shect date for the estimated term of the obligation.

Long Term Incentive Scheme

The Long-Term Incentive Plan is annually granted along with the performance eycle at the end of the financial year and determined on the individual performance rating criteria, awarded LTIP
will vest equally in 3 years. This in scheme is launched in current financial year

Actuarial and Sensitivity
Year endcd March 31
Particulars 2015 2024
Retirecment Age 60 Years -
Discount Rate 6.54% -
Altrition Rate 8.00% -
Performance Measurement 9% -
Reconciliation of the Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Year ended March 31
Particulars 2025 2024
Opening Net Liability - -
Expense recognised in the P&L 1.39 T o=
Contribution/Benefit Paid by the Company - &
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheel under “Provision for Retirement Bene 1.39 -

The Company has not funded its compensated absences liability and the same continues to remain as unfunded as at March 31, 2025,
Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

Additional disclosures

i) During the financial years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related

parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), cither severally or jointly with any other person (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

ii) There is no Benami Property held by the Company and there is no proceeding initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami pmpcrly under the Benami Transactions

iii} Disclosure of transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companics Act, 1956

{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

As at March 31, 2025

Name of Struck off Company

Nature of transactions with struck-off Balance Relationship with
Company outstanding as at  the Struck ofT
March 31,2025  company, if any,
(Rs. in crore) 10 be disclosed
1 SHIRIDI SRISAI SOLUTIONS PVT LIMITED Receivables 0.18 External
2 CONSOLE CARGO LOGISTICS SERVICES (1) PRIVATE LIMITED Reccivables 0.04 External
3 SAMBODHI TECH SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED Reccivables 0.05 Extermal
4 BALAJI INFRASTRUCTURE T&D PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.76 External
5  VHSQUARE HEALTHCARE PVT LTD Receivables 0.06 External
6 PALLAVIINFRA HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 007 External
7  PRODBUS INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 006 Exterml
8  MILLPOND HUMAN RESOURCE PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
9 SATHESRI AGRO PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - Externd
10 ASVRILOGISTIC PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - Externa
11 PUNEETH TECHNO PROJECTS (OPC) PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
12 4 SQUARE FITNESS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - Externd
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Rs, in crore
13 COCOWINGS ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
14 ZAFCON ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
15 RETONA MOTORS PRIVATE LIMITED Reccivables 0.09 External
16 CHOWDHARY MOTORS PRIVATE LIMITED Payables 0.05 External
17 APARNA AUTOMOBILES PRIVATE LIMITED Payables 0.0 External
18 LIANCE CONSULTANT&ENGINEERS PRIVATELIMITED Payables - External
19 GOMATESHWAR INVESTMENTS PVT LTD Corporate Depositor 0.02 External
20 VMS CONSULTANTS PVT. LTD Corporate Depositor 0.70 External
21 DREAMS BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED Shares Held by Struck of Company 476* External
22 UNICKON FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED Shares Held by Struck of Company 689* External

* Number of Equity Shares
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36  Additional disclosures (continued)
As at March 31, 2024

Name of Struck off Company Nature of transactions with struck-off Balance Relationship with
Company autstanding as at  the Struck off
March 31,2024 company, ifany,
(Rs. in crore) to be disclosed
I ASVRJLOGISTIC PRIVATE LIMITED Reccivables 0.00 External
2 MANSAROVAR INDIA AQUA BEVERAGES PRIVATE LIMITED L Reccivables - External
3 SHIRIDI SRISAI SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.23 External
4  SAMEODHI TECH SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED Rececivables 0.08 External
5  MILLPOND HUMAN RESOURCE PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.05 External
6  SATHESRI AGRO PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.04 External
7  CONSOLE CARGO LOGISTICS SERVICES ([)PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0,06 External
8  PROBUS INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.06 External
9  PARVATHI LIFE SCIENCES (OPC) PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
10 MRA REFINO PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
11 PUNEETH TECHNO PROJECTS (OPC) PRIVATE LIMITED Reccivables 0.01 Exterpal
12 4 SQUARE FITNESS PRIVATE LIMITED Reccivables 0.01 External
13 COCOWINGS ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.01 External
14 KIRAN ENVIRO-TECH ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
15 PALLAVIINFRA HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.09 External
16 VH SQUARE HEALTHCARE PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.07 External
17 BALAJI INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.76 External
18 AUTO WORLD PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
19 ZAFCON ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED Reccivables 0.01 External
20 LIANCE CONSULTANT&ENGINEERS PRIVATELIMITED Receivables 0.00 Exterpal
21 FAIRDEAL MOTORS AND WORKSHOP PVT. LTD. Payables - External
22 GOMATESHWAR INVESTMENTS PVT LTD Corporate Depositor 0.02 External
23 SAFNA CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED NCD 0.00 External
24 DREAMS BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED Shares held by stuck off Company 476* External
25 UNICKON FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED Shares held by stuck off Company 689° External

* Number of Equity Shares

iv) There is no charges or satisfaclion in relation to any debt / borrowings yet Lo be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
v) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companics (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

vi) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (cither borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ([ntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Bencficiarics) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiarics,
B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), including forcign catitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
company shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cntities identified in any manner whatsacver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guaranice, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

viii) There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of and has been dered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax under the [
Act, 1961. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income and related assets.

Tax

ix) All the secured non-convertible debentures of the Company including those issued during the year ended March 31, 2025 are fully secured by pari-passu charge on
Aurangabad office (wh pplicable) and / or exclusive charge on present and/or future receivables under Loan contracts/Hire Purchase/Lease, owned Assets and book debts. Further, the
Company in respect of secured listed non-convestible debt securities maintains 100% security cover or higher security cover as per the terms of Term Sheet/ Offer document/Information
Memorandum and/or Debenture Trust Deed, sufficient to discharge the principal amount and the interest thereon.

The asset cover available as on March 31, 2025 in respect of listed secured debt sccurilies is 1.08 (Masch 31, 2024, 1.08),

37 Aualytical Ratios

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, % Variance  Reasons for variance (if above 25%)
2024
Particulars Numerator Denominator Ratio Ratio
(Rs. in crores) (Rs. In
crores)
Tatal Capital ratio (CRAR) 21,437.51  1,16,967.79 18.33% 18.87% -2.87% NA
Tier - [ capital ralio 1783512 1,16,967.79 15.25% 16.39% -7.00% NA
Tier - II capital ratio 3,602.40 1,16,967.79 3.08% 2.47% 24.49% During the current year, the Company
has raised Tier I capital of Rs 1,500
crores
Liquidity CoverageRatio NA NA 277% 3% -10.82% NA
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39

Transactions in the nature of change in ownership in group entitics

During the previous year, the Company has completed the acquisition of 20,61,856 Equity shares of Rs.10 each of MIBL, at a price of Rs. 1001 per share on September 22 2023 involving a pay-
out of Rs.206.39 crore which has resulted in an increase in equity investment of an equivalent amount. Conseq) 1o this acquisition, MIBL has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company clfective from September 22 2023.

Capital management

The Company’s capital management strategy is lo clfectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its sharcholders. The same is done through a mix of cither equity and/or
convertible and/or combination of shart term flong term debt as may be appropriate.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and strategic investment plans. The capital structure is monitored on the basis of net debt Lo
equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio.

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adeq guidelines, the Company is required to maintain a capital
adequacy ratio cansisting of Tier I and Tier 11 Capital The total of Tier I Capital at any point of time, shall not exceed 100 percent of Tier I Capital. The minimum capital ralio as prescribed by
RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of Tier [ and Tier 11 capilal, shall not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted

value of off-balance sheet.
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a)

Capital management (Continued)
The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related to capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBI

Regulatory capital
Rs. in crore

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Tier - [ capital 17,835.12 16,308.04
Tier - I1 capital 3,602.40 2,462.39
Total Capital 21,437.51 18,770.43
Agpregate of Risk Weighted Assels 1,16,967.79 ©99,531.86
Tier - [ capital ratio 15.25% 16.39%
Tier - I capital ratio 3.08% 247%
Total Capital ratio 18.33% 18.86%

“Tier | Capital" means owned fund as reduced by investment in shares of other non-banking financial companies and in shares, debentures, bonds, outstanding loans and advances including hire
purchase and lease finance made to and deposits with subsidiaries and companies in the same group exceeding, in aggregate, ten per cent of the owned fund.

“owned fund™ means paid up equity capilal, preference shares which are compulsorily convertible into equity, free reserves, balance in share premium account and capital reserves representiog
surplus arising out of sale proceeds of asset, excluding reserves created by revaluation of asset, as reduced by accumulated loss balance, book value of intangible assets and deferred revenue
expenditure, if any.

“Tier Il capital” includes the following -

(a) preference shares other than those which are campulsorily convertible into equity,

(b) revaluation reserves at di d rate of fifty five pereent;

(c) General provisions (including that for Standard Assets) and loss reserves to the extent these are not attributable to actual diminution in value or identifiable potential loss in any specific asset
and are available to meet unexpected losses, to the extent of ane and one fourth percent of risk weighted assets. 12 month expected credit loss (ECL) allowances for financial instruments i.c.
where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, shall be included under general provisions and loss reserves in Tier Il capital within the limits specified by extant
regulations. Lifctime ECL shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital (numerator) while it shall be reduced from the risk weighted assets.

(d) hybrid debt capital instruments; and

(e) subordinated debt to the extent the aggregate does not exceed Tier [ capital,

Aggregate Risk Weighted Assets -

Under RBI Guidelines, degrees of credit risk expressed as percentage weightages have been assigned to each of the an-balance sheet assets and off- balance sheet assets. Hence, the value of each
of the on-balance sheet assets and off- balance sheet assels requires to be multiplied by the relevant risk weights to arrive at risk adjusted value of assets. The aggregate shall be taken into account
for reckoning the minimum capital ratio.

Leases

In the cases wherc asscts arc taken on operating lease (as lessee) -
As a lessee, the Company's lease asset class primarily consist of buildings or part thercof taken on lease for office premiscs, certain IT equip and general purpose office equipments used for
operating activitics.

Leases (Continued)

In the casces where assets are taken on operating lease (as lessee) - (Confinued)

Maturity Analysis - Contraciual Undiscounted Cash Flow:
Rs. in crore
As al As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Less than | year 101.56 86.64
1-3 years 169.31 151.97
3 - 5 years 116.99 116.52
More than 5 years 85.90 107.04

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 473.76 462.17
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40  Leases (Continued)
b) Other disclosures:

40

40

Following table summarizes other disclosures including the note references for the expense, assel and liability heads under which certain expenses, assets and liability items are grouped in the
financial stalements

Rs_ in crore

Amount for the year ended / As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Depreciation charge for Right-Of-Use assets for Leaschold premises (preseated under note - 31 "Depreciation, amortization and impairment") 82.15 79.19
ii)  Interest exp an lease lisbilities (p d under note - 28 “Finance costs”) 31.04 26.35
iii) Expense relating 10 short-term leases (included in Rent expenses under note 32 "Other expenses”) 3.56 2.50
iv)  Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in Rent expenses under note 32 "Other expenses”) 9.05 10.28
v)  Payments for lease liability 102.41 94.85
vi)  Additions to right-of-use assets dusing the year (refer note 11) 98.60 86,81
vii) Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period by class of underlying assel -

- Property taken on lease for office premises (presented under note - 11 "Property, plant and equipments") 33215 324.09
viii) Leasc liabilities (presented under note - 20 *Other financial liabilities") 383.19 367.92

In the cases where assels arc given on operating lease (as lessor) -
Key terms of the lease are as below :
i) Both New and Used vehicles are offered on Lease for a tenure ranging from 24 to 60 months.

ii} Customised leasing solutions are offered with value-added services like Fleet Management with regards to vehicle mai Insurance Lincluding claim settlement, pick-up and
drop, replacement vehicle etc

iii} The consideration payable is the monthly lease reatal which varies based on the make / model of the vehicle and tenure leased.

Rental income arising {rom these operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis aver the lease tenure and is included in rental income in the Statement of profit and loss. Costs,

including
depreciation, incurred in earning the leasc income are recognized as an expense.

Below are the list of risk mitigation strategy adopted by the company for the underlying assets as per provisions of Ind AS 116
= All the leased assets are insured.

- Hypothecation of assels in the name of company,

- Asset confirmations is obtained from lessee's on quarterly basis.

- Security deposil obtained to reduce the exposure on a case to case basis based on Customer profile.

- Variable lease payments based on usage of vehicles

Leases (Continued)
II) In the cases where assets are given on operating lease (as lessor) - (Continucd)

Other details are as follows:

Rs. in crore

Particulars Year ended Yenr ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) New vehicles to retail customers on operating leasc -

Gross carcying amount 571.59 457.30
Depreciation for the year 86.62 75.03
Accumulated Depreciation 178.05 128.31
i) Used and refurbished vehicles to travel operators / taxi aggregators -
Gross carrying amount 0.90 271
Depreciation for the year 0.01 0.12
| Accumulated Depreciation 0.87 2.68
Leases (Continued)
The total future minimum lease rentals reccivable for the non-cancellable lease period as at the Balance sheet datc is as under:

Rs, in crore
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

New vehicles to retail customers on operating lease -
Not later than one year 124.58

140.89
Later than one year but not later than five years 225.38 27908
Later than five years 0.01 -
349.97 419.97

Since here is no contingent rent applicable in respect of these lease arr the Comy has not gnized any income as contingent income during the year.
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40 Leases (Conlinnted)
M)  In the cases where asseis are given on finance lease (as lessor) -
Reconciliation of undiscounted lease payment (o net investment :
Rs. in crore
Partis Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross Investment 1,090.81 722.92
Less : Unearned Income 165.11 121.60
Net Investment befare charging allowance for Impairment loss 925.70 601.32
Less : Allowance for Impairment losses 7.52 402
Total Net Investment 918.18 597.30
Maturity analysis :
Rs. in crore
Particulars Within I year 1to5 years Over 5 years Total
Gross Investment 405.85 684.90 0.06 1,090.81
Less : Unearned Income 83.79 81.32 - 165.11
Net i before charging allowance for [mpairment loss 322.06 603.58 0.06 925.70
41  Operating segments
There is no scparate reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments' in respect of the Company.,
The Company operates in single segment only. There are no operations outside India and hence there is no external revenue or assets which require disclosure.
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in year ended March 31,2025 or March 31, 2024,
The Company is engaged primarily in the business of financing in India. During the current fiscal, the Company has started the activities as Corporate Agent (Composite) for providing insurance
solutions. 'Fees, charges and commission income' include fees / commission income from insurance agency business amounting to Rs. 211.25 crore for the year ended March 31, 2025,
42  Frauds reported during the year
There were 208 cases (March 31, 2024: 160 cases) of frauds amounting to Rs.6.33 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs.142.63 crore) reported during the year. Out of the fraud cases reparted during
the current year, the Company has recovered an amount of Rs.2.26 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs.5.34 crore) and has initiated appropriate legal actions against the individuals involved. The
claims for the un-recovered losses have been lodged with the insurance companies on merit basis
43 Contingent liabilitics and commitments (1o the cxtent not provided for)

Rs. in crore

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Contingent liabilitics
Demand against the Company not acknowledged as debts -

- Income Tax malters where Company has gone in Appeal 38.13 42,82
- Goaods & Service Tax matters where Company has gone in Appeal 7 0.89 0.89
- Service Tax matters where Company has gone in Appeal 93.66 90.30
- Value Added Tax matters where Company has gone in Appeal 44.70 44.70
Disputed claims against the Company lodged by various parties under fitigation (to the extent quantifiable) 547 4.89)
Guarantces 868,56 1,451.69
1,05L.41 1,635.30

ii) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 92.86 47,58
Other commitments - loan sanctioned but not disbursed 234.39 28.00
327.25 75.58
Total — L3ITR67 1.710 88|

The Company's pending litigalions comprise of claims against the Company primarily by the customers and proceedings pending with Income Tax, service tax, sales tax / VAT, Goods and
Services Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and p di
i where applicable, in its financial

gs and has adequatcly provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the
5. The amount of provisions / contingent liabilitics is based on management's estimate, and no significant liability is expected to arise

out of the same.

The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial performance and financial position regarding the amounts disclosed above, itis
not practicable to disclosc information on the possibility of any asit is deter ble only on the occurrence of uncertain future events.
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44 Transfer of financial assets
a) Transferred financial asseis that are not derecognized in their entirety - Securilization transactions
The Company has transferred certain pools of fixed rate loan receivables backed by underlying assets in the form of tractors, vehicles, equipments etc. by enlering in to
securitizalion transactions with the Special Purpose Vehicle Trusts ("SPV Trust") sponsored by Commercial banks for consideration received in cash at the inception of the
transaclion.
The Company, being Originator of these loan receivables, also acts as Servicer with a responsibility of collection of reccivables from its borrowers and depositing the same in
Collection and Pay-out Account maintained by the SPV Trust for making scheduled pay-outs to the investors in Pass Though Certificates (PTCs) issued by the SP'V Trust. These
securitization (ransactions also requires the Company to provide for first loss credit enhancement in various forms, such as corporate guarantee, cash collateral, subscription to
subordinated PTCs. as credit support in the event of shortfall in collections from underlying loan contracts. By virtue of existence of credit enhancement, the Company is exposed to
credit risk, being the cxpected losses that will be incurred on the transferred loan receivables to the extent of the credit enhancement provided.
In view of the above, the Company has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset and thereby does not meet the de-recognition criteria as
set out in Ind AS 109. Consideration received in this transaction is presented as "Associated liability related to Sccuritization transactions” under Note no.17.
The following table provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for de-recognition,
together with the associated liabilities:
Rs. in crore
Particulars N Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Securitizations -
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortized cost 8,541.39 5,561.43
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 8,672.79 5,592.45
Fair value of transferred asscts (A) 8,400.38 5,397.94
Fair value of associated liabilitics (B) 8,845.87 5,698.61
Net position (A-B) (445.48) (300.67)
b) Transferred finnncial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety - Assignment Deals
During the year ended March 31, 2025, the company had sold loans and advances measured al amortized cost as per assig it deals undertaken by the company. As per the terms
of these deals, since substantal risk and reward related to these assets were transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognized from the company's balance sheet to the
extent of share of assignee
The management has evaluated the irnp:lql of assignment deals done during the year for its business model. Based on the future busi plans, the pany's busi model
remains to hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows.
The Company has assigned loans (earlier measured at amortised cost) by way of direct assignment. As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related to these
assels were transferred to the extent of B0% to the buyer, the assets have been de-r ised from the Company's Bal Sheet The following table provide a summary of the
carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets:
Rs. in crore
Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2025 Margu 31, 2024~
Direct Assignment -
Carrying amount of de-recognized financial assets d at amortized cost 41.34 -
Carrying amount of expasures retained by the Company at amortised cost 10.33 -
*During the previous year, the Company has not transferred or acquired any loan exposures through assignment / novation and loan participation.
45  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required 1o spend 2% of its average Net Profit of the immediately three preceding financial years on CSR.

The Company’s CSR mission aims to actively contribute ta the sacio smic develoy of ities, cnabling individuals 10 partake in and derive benefits from the ongoing socio-
economic progress. The Company is dedicated to integrating economically, physically, and socially challenged groups into mainstream society through

its CSR initiatives,

The CSR activities of the Company shall include, but not limited to any or all of the sectors/activilics as may be prescribed by Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 ded from time to
time. Further, the Company reviews the sectors/activities from time to time and make additions/ deletions/ clarifications to the above sectorsfactivitics.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has incurred an expenditure of Rs 34.10 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs 24 crore) towards CSR activities which includes contribution /
donations made to the trusts which are engaged in activities prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII to the said Act and expense of Rs. 0.51 crore
(March 31, 2024: Rs. 1.23 crore) towards the CSR activities undertaken by the Company.
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Caorporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Continued)

Detail of amount spénl towards CSR activitics :

a)  Gross amount required ta be spent by the Company during, the year is Rs.34.58 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs 29,96 crore)
b)  Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year : Rs.34.58 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs. 29.96 crore).

¢)  Amount spent by the Company during the year on :

Rs. in crore
For the year ended March 31, 2025 < For the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
Particulars In cash Yetto be Total Ineash  Yet to be paid in Total
naid in cash cash
i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - = w - S <
ii) On purposc other than (i) above® 34.61 - 34.61 25.27 - 25.27
* The amount during previous year spend is including Rs.0.02 crores excess spent on other than related Lo an ongoing prajects
d)  Amount of shortfall at the end of the year: NIL (for relating to an ongoing project)
In casc of §. 135(5) unspeat amount Rs. in crore
Amount required to
Opesian balanes Amount deposited in Specified Fund | Amount required to be spent during, Amount spent bu.-.lmnsfu‘:ud 1o Closing
REHING, of Sch.VII within 6 months the year during the year* unapcat bk Balance
account related (o
ongoing project
471 471 47 4.7 - -

G Nature of CSR activities: Contributions / donations made to the trusts which are engaged in activities prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII 10
the said Act and CSR activities undertaken by the Company. .

f)  Provision made with respect to a liability already incurred by entering into a contractual obligation : Nil
There was no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are d for ial fc ble losses, At the year end, the Company has reviewed

and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts (including derivative contracts) has been made in
the books of accounts.

Reconciliation of movement of liabifitics to cash flows arising from financing activities

Year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars April | 2024 Cash flows Exchange Others March 31
(net) difference 2025
Debt securities 26,725.94 (1,564.11) - 14.19 25,176.02
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 54,318.83 15,134,02 43.39 7.67 69,503.91
Deposits 7,174.74 3,73333 - (14.82) 10,893.25
Subordinated liabilities 4,005.66 1,225.96 - (1.92) 5,229.70
Lease liabilities 367.92 (102.41) - 117.68 383.19
Total 92,593.09 18,426.79 43.39 122.80 1,11,186.07
Year ended March 31, 2024
Rs. in crore
Particulars April 12023 Cash flows Exchange Others March 31
(net) difTeresnce 2024
Debt securilies 24,745.07 1,966.42 14.45 26,725.94|
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 41,234.06 13,157.98 (76.49) 3.28 54,318.83
Deposits 5,524.60 1,655.37 - (5.23) 7,174.14
Subordinated liabilities 3,442.13 559.85 - 368 4,005.66
Lease liabilitics 349.61 (94.85) - 113.16 367.92
Total 75,295,47 17,244.77 (76.49) 129.34 92,593.09)
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a)

b)

Financial Risk Management Framework

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, interest risk, currency risk & liquidity risk. The
Company's primary focus is to achieve better predictability of financial markets and seck to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

The financial risks are managed in accordance with the Company’s risk management palicy which has been approved by its Board of Dircctors.

Board of Directors of the Company have established Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO), which is responsible for developing and
monitoring risk management policics for its business. The Company's financial services busi is exposed to high credit risk given the unbanked rural
customer base and diminishing value of collateral. The credit risk is managed through credit nonns established based on historical experience.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as inferest

rates, forcign exchange rates, cte. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while maximizing the return.

Pricing Risk

The Company's Investments in Commercial Papers, Certificate of Deposits with Banks and Mutual Funds are exposed to pricing risk. A 5 percent increase
in market price would increase profit before tax by approximately Rs 150.11 crore (March 31, 2024 : Rs 88.90 crore). A similar percentage decrease
would have resulted equivalent opposite impact.

Currency Risk

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Forcign currency risk arise majorly
on account of foreign currency borrowings. The Company's foreign currency exposures are managed in accordance with its derivative Risk Management

Policy which has been approved by its Board of Directors. The Company manages its foreign currency risk by entering into forward contract, cross
currency swaps, principal and interest rate swaps. Other derivative Instruments may be used if deemed appropriate.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period are as follows :

Rs. in crore
JPY US Dollar Total
As at March 31, 2025
Financial Assets = = -
Financial Liabilities 936.53 5964.24 6,900.77
As at March 31, 2024
Financial Assets = 5 -
Financial Liabilities 1,270.88 831.17 2,102.05

Hedge Accounting - Forwards & Swaps

Contracts that meet the requirements for hedge accounting are accounted as per the hedge accounting requirements of Ind AS 109 -Financial
Instruments, Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to
ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The Company enters into hedge relationships where the
critical terms of the hedging instrument match with the terms of the hedged item, and so a qualitative and quantitative assessment of effectiveness is
performed. Hedge effectiveness for all hedges are 100%.

Details of foreign currency forward contracts and swaps outstanding at the end of reporting period

Rs. in crore
Quistanding Contracts 2025 2024
Notional Value Carrying  Notional Value Carrying
() amount of #) amount of|
hedging hedging
instrument instrument
included in included in
Other Financial Other|
Assets | Financial
(Liabilitics) Assets /
Cash Flow Hedges
Buy Currency
Maturing in 1+ years
JPY/INR - - 831.13 (176.471)
USD/INR 5,141.00 (90.32) - -
Maturing less than year
IPY/INR 831.13 (221.16) © 439 (0.93)
USD/INR 827.70 17.08 827.70 (3.57)

There are no significant transactions of hedges which are ineffective.
it Notional value of respective currency pair have been converted into-presentation currency i.e. INR using vear end closing exchanee rate.
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The movements in cash flow hedge reserve for instruments designated in a cash flow hedge are as follows:
Rs. in crore

Particulars 2025 2024

Exchange Interest Total Exchange Interest Total

Rate Risk  Rate Risk Rate Risk Rate Risk

hedges hedges hedges hedges

Balance at the beginning of the year (0.09) (7.19) (7.28) 5.30 (10.04) (4.74)
(Gains)/Losses transferred to Profit or Loss - - e & - _
on occurrence of the forecast transaction
Change in fair value of effective portion of 4.7 {66.94) (62.23) (7.20) 3.81 (3.39)
cash flow hedges
Total 4.62 (74.13) (69.51) (1.90) (6.23) (8.13)
Deferred tax on the above (1.19) 16.85 15,66 1.81 (0.96) 0.85
Balance at the end of the year 343 -57.28 -53.85 -0.09 -7.19 -1.28
Of the above:
Balance relating to continuing hedges 3.43 (57.28) (53.85) (0.09) (7.19) (7.28)

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity lo a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.
Rs. in crore

Currency Change in rate  Effect on OCI

Year ended March 31, 2025 INRAPY (+-)10.00%  (+/-}93.77
INR/USD (+-)10.00%  (+-) 599.07
Year ended March 31, 2024 INR/JPY (+-)10.00%  (+-) 127.38
INR/USD (+/)10,00%  (+/-)83.37

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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49  Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)
49.1 Market Risk (Continued)
c) Interest Rate Risk
The Company uses a mix of cash and barrowings to manage the liquidity & fund requirements of its day-to-day operations. Further, certain interest bearing
liabilities carry variable interest rates.
Interest Rate risk on vanable rate borrowings is managed by way of interest rate swaps, wherever necessary.
Interest Rate sensitivity
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure o interest rate for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the end of
reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all
other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:
The carrying value of floating rate loans is Rs. 3,169.05 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs. 2,687.01 crore) and floating rate borrowings is Rs. 43,245.87 crore
(March 31, 2024: Rs. 40,686.46 crore).
Rs. in crore
Currency I[ncrease/ Effect on
decrease in - profit before
hasis nainfs tax
Year ended March 31, 2025 INR 100 400.77
Year ended March 31, 2024 INR. 100 379.99
d)  Off-sctting of balances
The table below summarizes the financial liabilities offsetted against financial assets and shown on a net basis in the balance sheet ;
Financial assets subject to offsetting
Rs. in crore
Particulars ) Offsetting recognized on the balance sheet
Gross assets Financial Assets

before offset liabilities netted recognized in
balance sheet

Loan assets
At March 31, 2025 1,16,311.91 (97.89) L,16,214.02

At March 31, 2024 99,292.33 (97.15) 99,195.18
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49 Financial Risk Managemenl Framework (Continued)

49.2  Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because ifs customers fail 1o discharge thir contractual obligations. The Company has 3 comprehensive framework for monitoring

credit quality of all its portfolios under ive b

taken through follow ups and legal recourse.

i} Credit Quality of Financial Assets

The following table sets oul information about credil quality of loans and i

d at

verticals based on Days past duc. The customer repayment and portfolio is tracked regularly and requircd stcps for rccovery are

d cost primanly based on days past due inl ion. The amount rep gross

carrying amount.

Rs. in crore
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

oss earrying value of Retail loans including Finance [ease

Neither Past duc nor impaired 89.657.93 79.565.25
Past Duc but not impaired:
- 1-30 days pas! duc 987438 6,799.24
- 31-90 days past duc 6454.22 5.099.84
1 ired (more than 90 days) 434048 344093
Total Gross carrying value as at reporting date 1,10327.01 94.905.26

Rs. in crore

Particulars

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024|

Gross carrying value of SME loans includi ills of exchanpe

Neither Past duc nor impaired 531025 3,533.97
Past Duc but not impaired:

- 1-30 days past duc 218.18 1,194.40
- 31-90 days past duc 55.05 40,94
Impaicca (sioce thnei 30 ) 6507 42,10
Total Gross carrying value as at reporting date 6,148.54 481241

Rs. in crore

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Gross carrying value of Trade Advances

Less than 60 days past due 3,186.76 2,853.29
61-90 days pas! duc 232 18.94
Impaired {more than 90 days) 838 6.87
Tatal Gross carrying value as at reporting date 3,197.47 2.879.10

Rs. in crore

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross carrying value of Financial Investments measured at amortised cost
Neither Past due nor impaired 1.219.81 1,388.85
Past Duc but not impaired:

- 1-30 days past duc . &
- 31-90 days past duc - -
Impaired (morc than 90 days) - -
Total Gross carrying value as at reporting date 1219.81 1.3RB.B5

The Credit quality of the loans is monitored

impact the company adversely, and henee the Company has.

A
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is primarily into retail lending business, there is no significant credit risk of any individual customer that may
basis
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Financial Risk Management Framewark (Confinited)

49.2  Credit Risk Management (Continucd)

)

iv)

i} Inputs considered in the ECL model

In assessing the impairment of financial loans under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the assets have been classificd into three stages. The three slages reflect the general pattern of credit
deterioration of a financial instrument. The differences in accounling between stages, relate to the recognition of expected eredit losses and the measurement of interest income:

The Company calcgorizes loan assets (except Trade advances) into stages primarily based on (ic Days Past Duc stalus.
Stage | :0-30 days past duc

Stage 2 : 31-90 days past due

Stage 3 : Morc than 90 days

The Company calcgorizes Trade advances into stages primarily based on the Days Past Duc status,

Stage | :90-60 days past duc

Stage 2 : 61- 90 days past duc

Stage3 : More than 90 days

The ECL cstimates arc forward looking and include probability weighted A ic overlay is applicd to the observed default rate (ODR) considering portfolio specific
macrocconomic factors that affect the Probability of Default (PD) duc 1o underlying cconomic conditions of the country.

The Company has computed expected credil losses for Trade Advance Portfolio based on historical movenient data, capturing transilions between stages and loss on historically wrilten off
unrecovered amounts from deafers,

For lcasing portfolio comprising of Operating and Finance Lease, the company uses ECL coverage of Indusiry Pecrs in similar busincss ling, cumxdmng limited history of collection and loss
data for the compleled life cycle for these portfolios which is necded for d 2 PD and LGD p for ion of ECL all

iii) Definition of default

The Company considers a financial asset o be in "defauli and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL ealculalions when the borower account becomes more than 90 days past duc on
its contractual payments

Since the Company’'s portfolio predominantly includes rctail vehicle loan portfolio with around 3 million loan accounts making it difTicult 1o deline default at an individual lean account, the
company has considercd the event of default when overduc is more than 90 days past due. The same is also in linc wilh the regulator’s definition of default, when overdue is more than 90
days pasi duc.

=

Exposure at default

"Exposurc at Defoult™ (EAD) represents the gross exposure balance when default had occurred. EAD is subject to impaimient calculation for Stage 3 assets. Fulurc Expected Cash llows
(Principal and Interest) for future years has been used as exposure for Stage 2.

v} Estimations and idered in the ECL model
The Company has made the following assumptions in the ECL Model:
a) Loss Given Default (LGD):

- LGD represents cxpected losses on the EAD givea the event of defaull, taking into account he tine valuc of cash flows from the date of defaull, discounted on effective interest rate (EIR).
1t is an estimate of the loss from a lransaction given that a default occurred.

Generally, common LGD is applied on the exposures in all the three stages

While, the general approach / methodology remains the same, the measurcment of ECL on retail vehicle loans is done on a slightly differentiated approach as ioned here below.

- For Stage 3 asscts with an ageing more than I8 months (540 DPD) (stressed pontfotio), provision is calculated by applying LGD at higher rate. Higher LGD rate is determined based on the
historical loss that has occurred during the tenor of individual assels forming part of specific portfolio of contracts with an ageing of more than 18 months (540 DPD) at the historical period

end date (i.c. 42 months from the reset /reporting date) based on the average life of the portfolio and is idered as model provision for ECL calculation instead of separalc classification as
overlay provision; )

- For Stage 3 asscis with an ageing up to 18 months (540 DPD), provision is calculated by applying the Composite LGD rate#;

- For Stage 1 and Stage 2 asscts, continue to derive and apply Composite LGD rate in caleulation of loss all

# Compositc LGD ralc : It is an cstimale of the loss {rom a transaction given that a default occurs. It is based on the historical loss on the portfolio thal has occurred during the tenor of the
individual assets forming part of the ponfolio. For ealculating LGD, the Company takes inio consideration the Stage 2 asscts that bave reached 90+ DPD in the past and Stage 3 cases of
historical period end daic (i.c. 42 months from the resct /reporting date) based on the average life of the portfolio. Actual cash Nows pertaining 1o this portfolio from the first default date lo
current resci/reporting date are then discounted at Loan EIR rate for arriving at this loss ratc

b) Probability of Default (PD):

- It is an estimate of likelihood of default occurring over a particular time horizon,

- For Stage | asscts, 12 months PD is calculated .

- For Stage 2 assets , lifc time PD is calculated for which a PD term structurc is built
- PD is applicd on Stage | and Stage 2 asscis on a porifolio basis;

- For Stage 3 asscls, PD is always at 100% as these are impaired asscls

The underlying methodology of Historical PD calculation remains the same for both Stage 1 and Stage 2 assels

Measurement of ECL

‘The assessmenl of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted.

It incorporates all information that is relevant including information about past events, current conditions and ble fi of futurc cvenls and cconomic conditions at the reporting
dalc. In addition, the cstimation of ECL takes into account the time valuc of moncy. Forward looking i ios d ined with ref 10 extemnal forecasts of economic

paramecters thal have demonsirated a linkage to the performance of respective porifolios over a period of lime have been applied 1o determine impact of macrocconomic factors.

ECL allowance {or provision) on Stage | and Stage 2 assets is measured using porifolio approach, whercas impaimment provisions on Stage 3 assets is measured at each individual asset /
instrument level.

- Financial assets that arc not credit impaired at the reporting dale
ECL for Stage | : Gross exposure is multiplicd by PD and Composite LGD percentage to armive ar the ECL allowance;

- Financial asscts (hat have had a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since wnibial recognition (unless they have low credit risk at the reporting date) but that do not have objective
cvidence of impairment:

ECL for Stage 2 : Future Expected Cash flows (Principal and Interest) for respective future years is mulliplizd by respective years Marginal PDs and Composite LGD percentage and thus

armived ECL all is then di d with the respective loan EIR to calculate the present value of ECL allowance. In addition, in case of Bills discounting and Channel finance, as the
average lifetime is of 90 days, a time to maturity factor of 0.25 is used in the ECL computation

1

- Financial asscts that arc credit impaired at the reporting date:

ECL for Stage 3: Difference between the gross exposure at reporting date and computad carrying amount considering EAD net of LGD and PV of actual cash flows il reporting datc
including compounded interest al loan EIR on net carrying value.

For Stage 3 asscis in refail portfolio, ECL allowance is calculated separately as follov:s:

- Stage 3 asscls with ageing up to |8 months (< =540 DPD)

ECL allowance = (Gross cxposure on reporting daie less Required Cartying value-A)

Required Carmrying value-A ={EAD less ECL allowance at Composite LGD rate less PV of actual cashflows ll reporting date plus mierest compounded @ loan EIR }

- Stage 3 assets with ageing more than 18 months (>540 DPD)

ECL al = (Gross exp on rep ¢ date less Required Camying value-8)

Required Carrysng value-B ={ EAD less ECL allowance at Higher LGD rate less PV of actual casillows (il reporting date plus interest compounded (@ loan EIR)

Undrawn loan commitments:
ECL on undrawn loan commitinents 1s caleulated basis the Stage m which that paruicular customer aiready exisls
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49.2

(i)

(viii)

Financial Risk Management Framework (Continned)

Credit Risk Management (Confinued)

ECL on Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) portfolio:

For loans provided under SME vertical, the general approach / methodology remwins similar ta the retail vehicle loans

The Business Entermrise and Retail Enterprisc Portfolio has been [urther segregated into secured and unsecured portfolio

A distinct PD specific lo sceured loans, including LAP, has been derived based on historical performance.

A scparale PD has been calculated for d loans, reflecting their higher risk prafile

Segmenting PD by sccured and unsccured loans i ision in risk and aligns with the port folio cumpo:lllm
The portfolio's Observed Default Ratc (ODR) is mudcllud using hislorical data (secured and d loans idcred together), |
incorporaling a three variable regression model

The LGD approach [ocuses exclusively on cascs where loans have defaulted, and all iated collections have been fully realized.

an h simular 1o Wheels Business

ECL on Lease business portfolio:
The customer segment catered under leasing business consist of employees of corporates (Employee Lease Programs) and B2B segment which includes business entilics, finms, trusts and
ics, fect ial vehicles, construction cquipment el

Since the Lease business comprising Operating and Finance lease is relatively a new line of business, there is limited history of coflection and Joss data for the completed life cyele for these
portlolios which is nceded for determining PD and LGD s for compulation of ECL all

In view of the above, the Company has adopled Industry level benchmark, i.c. ECL ge rate, for estimating ECL all on operating and finance Yease portfolio considering the
similarities in products offered, customer scgments calered and average tenure of lease contracts.

ECL on Trade Advance porifolio:

The portfolio compriscs of shori-lerm advance (o M&M and Non M&M dcalcrs.

The Interest-Free Trade Advance (IFTA) period generally ranges between |5 days to 75 days for Trade Advance (TA) facilitics offercd (o dealers.
SICR is assumed at 60 days past the lending date, considering the duc date logic instead of Days Past Due (DPD) logic.

The Company has computed Through the Cycle (TTC) PDs bascd on monih (h ilion matrix of histori data, capluring itions between stages. These transition
probabilitics arc used as input (o calculatc TTC PDs. Given the short tenure of the facility, management belicves that the impact of macro cconomic factors may not impact the PD of the
portfolio in the short span.

The has historically wrillen ofT! | amounts from dealcrs in adlierence to the Technical Write ofT policy. The portfolio's own historical experience provides a reliable LGD
which is considered for ECL compulati

ECL on Investments:

The company applics a d and comprehensive ECL approach to i} itical i ! in Got Securities (G-Secs), Bonds, Commcrcial Papers
(CPs), and Cenilficates of Deposit (CDs), Liquidity Pools for Short-Term Requirements, and Pa:s-ﬂmgh Certificates (PTCs) from securilisalion transaclions.

i, Investmenis in G-Secs, Bonds, CP, and CD
Investments in G-Sccs, Bonds, CP, and CD arc measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) or other comprehensive income (FVOCH)
Periodic revaluations ensure that market fluctuations and credit risks arc sccurately captured.

Fluctuations in fair valuc arc recorded in the profit and loss account or other comprel income, depending on the classification of the assel.

ii. Liquidity Pool Investments

Liquidity pool invesiments are categorized as financial asscts measured al fair valuc through profit or loss (FVTPL) or other comprehensive income (FYOCI) as per Ind AS 109.
Repular revaluations align their valuation with prevailing market conditions.

Fluctuations in the fair value arc recorded directly in the profit and loss account or other hensive income, depending on the classification

P

Excmption from Impairment Testing:
Since thesc asscls arc measured at fair value, additional impairment testing is not required under Ind AS 109, The (air value inherently reflects:
a Market Volatility: Adj for prevaili ic and market conditi

b. Credit Risk: Assnxsuwnl of the issucr’s avdll\\mhmcss
c. Govemance Practices: Regular compliance reviews ensurc

with regulatory guidclines. T ing of valuation meihodologi: h keholder confid

iii, Pass through Certificates (FTCs):
The creditworthiness ufllu: underlying loan poal is :uscswtt usmg ‘historical performance dala, default rates, and recovery trends
Insights (rom thesc cv ions guide the classi and risk provisioning of PTC i

Stage Classification:

Stage |: Investments with low credil nsk, requiring computation of 12-month ECL.

Stage 2: Investments with a significant increase in credit risk, neeessitating lifclime ECL.
Stage 3: Defaulted investments, for which lifctime ECL is caleulated with clevated pravisi

ECL Estimation Metrics: .

Probability of Defaull (PD): Based on historical data and forward-looking macrocconomic factors.

Loss Given Defaull (LGD): Reflecting recovery rates and collateral quality.

Exposurc at Deflault (EAD): The total value exposed to credit risk.

Time Value Adjustment: Futurc ECL amounts are discounted 1o present value using the effective interest rale, cnsuring accurale reflection of cconomic impacts.

ECL on Other Financial Assets:

MMFSL has Simplificd Approach 1o Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under Ind AS 109 for other financial asscts that involve credit risk. This approach is considered suitable for as reccivables
portlolios as aging and historical recovery trends arc the primary drivers of credit risk assessment. These assels include reccivables, | Claims, Professional Charges, Interest
Reccivables (Interest accrued but not yel reccived), Brokerage et

The calculation of lifctime ECL is based on historical coverage rates which incorporates Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). The coverage raie is used to estimatc the
credit loss for cach aging bucket, avoiding the need 1o compute PD and LGD scparalcly.

Reccivables Outstanding <90 DPD: A specific coverage rate is applied based on historical recovery pattems from wheels portfolio which is the largest portfolio for MMFSL and reflects
long term trends,

Reccivables Outstanding > 90 DPD: A 100% coverage rate is applicd, assuming all reccivablss aged beyond 90 days are fully uncollectible based on historical trends.
Forward Looking adjustmenis

The Historical 'Ds are converted into forward looking Point-in-Time PDs using statistical model incorporating the forward looking cconomic outlook, as required by Ind AS 109

EN iy

The macrc d by the Company arc robust reflections of the state of cconomy which resull into systematic risk for the respective product calegorics

Additienally, three different scenarios have been considered for ECL caleulation Aloag with the actual numbers {considered for Base case scenano and worst casc scemario), best case
seenanios- as not been provided weightage to take care of the forward looking ceonomic outloal.

Assessiment of slgnificant increase in credit risk

When deternuning whether the credit risk has icreased significantly since mitial recoguiticn, the Company considers both quanttative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Company's historical expenence, including forward-iooking infernation. As per Ind AS 109, loans zre required 1o be moved from Stage | 1o Siage 2 if and only il they have been the subject
ofa SICR. A SICR occurs when there has been a significant increase in ths nsk of @ defiult cccurring over the expected life of a financial mstrument, In linc with Basal guidance on ECL, the
definition of default and the convention for counting days past due adopted for accounting purposes will be guided by the definition used for regulatory purposes The Company considers
reasonabli and supportable information that is relevant and availabie without undue cost and ffori The Conipany’s accounting policy is not 1o use the practical expedient that the financial
assets with ‘low” credit nisk at the reporting datc arz deenied mot 1o heve had a significant wcrease w eredit nisk (SICR) As a result, the Company monilors all financial assets and loan
commtments that are subject 1o impairment for STCR
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(ix)

(x)

Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)

As a part of the qualitati of whether a 15 in default, the Company also considers a vancty of instances thal may indicatc unlikclincss to pay. In such instances, the
Company treats the customer at default and therefore assesses such loans as Stage 3 for ECL calculations. Such qualitative factors include:

i. A Stage 3 customer having other loans which arc in Stage | or 2,

ii. Not to consider Uncleared cheques as on reporting date for outstanding DPD caleulation for retail vehicle loans

iiii. Retail vehicle loans, where assct has been repossessed.

iv. Cases where Company suspects fraud and legal proceedings arc initiated

v. SME loans where the Company has resorted to its riphts under the SARFAESI Act

vi, Exposure of co ~applicant is considered for provision in Stage 3.

Further, the Company classifics cerain calegory of exposures in to Stage 3 and makes acceleraled provision up to 100% based on qualitative asscssment implying the significant
deterioration in asset quality or increasc in credit risk on selective basis.

The Company regularly reviews it's ECL model based on actual loss experience and update the p used for ECL calculali

Policy for write off of Laan Assets

The gross camrying amount of a financial assct is writlcn ofT when therc is no realistic prospect of further recovery. This is gencrally the case when the Company detcrmines that the debtor
does not have assels or sources of income that could generate sulicient cash flows to repay (he amounis subjeet to the write- ofl. However, financial assets that are wrilten of{ could still be
subject to enforcement activilics under the Company’s recovery procedures, laking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made from wrillen ofT asscis arc ncited ofT
against the amount of financial assets wrilten ofT during the year under "Bad debis and wrile ofTs" forming part of "[mpai on financial " in S of profit and loss.

Inpuis to the model

a.0bserved Delault Rales (ODRs) over past 60 months for each product category

b.Mncro cconomic variables provided by Economist Intelligence Unit (EIU)# for the past 5 years
¢.Macro economic variables projected by EIU for the next 5 years

# The Economist Intelligence Unit (EIU) is the research and analysis division of the Economist Group, providing forecasling, macio-econamic analysis and advisory services
through rescarch and analysis, such as monthly country reports, five-year couniry economic forecasts, country risk service reports, and industry reports.

A. Model process

2. Macro economic historical variables are lested for statistical robustness and filtered

b, These are converted into}yuarterly numbers applying cubic spline technique

. Variables that are acceptable are repressed with historical ODRs, considering 3 variables at a lime.

d. These combinations are further tested for statistical robustaess.

¢, Those that pass the test are sorted on R squared (fitness) and the best fit is selected.

[. This combination is passed through the Vasicek model 1o derive scalars that are used to project future PDs.

B. In the sel of i iables, the 2 iders best combination of variables for its respective product categories based on statistically tested model
oulpul representing higher level of correlation and as well as those which have busi | as per 2
C. In the selection of macro- ic variables for the best bi , the followi are idered

i. GDPP is considered as one of 3 variables compulsorily.
ii. Second Variable is from below list of parameters sclected by the which are idered relevant to the business:

|Nominal government consumption (LCU)

Description

Real GDP (% change pa)

Nominal GDP (PPP$)

Real private consumption (LCU)

Real govemmenl consumplion (LCU)

Real gross fixed invesimeat (LCU)

Real exports ol G&S (LCU)

Real imports of G&S (LCU)

Real domestic demand (LCU)

Real GDP (PPP USS at 2010 prices)

Real private consumption (US$ al 2010 prices)
Real gross fixed investment (USS at 2010 prices)
Nominal GDP (LCU)

Nominal private consumplion (LCU)

Nominal gross fixed investment (LCU)
Nominal cxports of G&S (LCU)
Nominal imports of G&S (LCU)
Nominal domestic demand (LCU)
Nominal GDP (US$)

Nominal private consumption (US$)

go o ion (USS)
Nominal gross fixed investment (USS)
Nominal exports of G&S (USS)

Nominal imporis of G&S (USS)
Nominal domestic demand (US$)
‘GDP defalor (2010=100; av)

Real agriculture (LCU)

Consumer prices (% change pa; av)
Lending interest rate (%)

| Budget revenue (LCU)

Budget expenditure (LCU)
Domestic credit growth (%)
Cansumer price index {av)

Consumer price index {end-period)
iii. Third Variable is selecied by model

D. Where scalars derived are beyond reasonable levels, a cap and a (loor is applied (o reduce variability,
E. Where reasonable scalars are not available, as measured by R square, the scalars of the nearest other portfolio are applied
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Finaneial Risk Management Framework (Continted)
Credit Risk Management (Continued)

Impairment loss

The d credit loss all ision for Retail Loans including Finance lease is d incd as follows:
Rs. in crore
Performing Loans:  Underperforming Impaired loans - Total|
12 month ECL loans - 'lifetime 'lifetime ECL credit
ECL not credit impaired
impaired
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2025 99.532.31 6454.21 434048 1,10327.01
Espected credit loss rate 057% 9.05% 5082%
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 (net of impairment provision) 98.969.48 587029 2,134.49 1,06,974.26
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2024 86.364.49 5.099.84 3,440.93 94,905.26
Expecled eredit loss rale 0.68% 11.45% 63.32%
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 (nct of impairment provision) 85.777.59 4.515.67 1,262.22 91,555.49
The d credit loss all ision for SME Loans including Bills of exchange is determined as follows: i
Rs. in crore
Performing Loans:  Underperforming Impaired loans - Tatal
12 month ECL loans - 'lifetime Yifetime ECL eredit
ECL not credit impaired
impaired’
Gross Balance as al March 31, 2025 6.028.43 55.05 65.07 6,148.54
Expected credit loss rate 0.22% 33.50% 76.15%
Carrying amount as al March 31, 2025 (nct of impaimient provision) 6,015.25 36.60 1552 6,06737
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2024 4,728.37 40.94 43.10 - 481241)"
Expected ercdit loss rate 0.66% 11.51% 62.85%
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 (nct ol impairment provision) 4,691.08 36.23 16.01 4,749.32
The d credit loss all provision for Tradc Advances is d d as follows:
Rs. in crore
Less than 60 days 61-90 days past duc Credit impaired Total
past due {more than 90 days)
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2025 3,186.76 31 838 3,197.47
|Expected credit loss rale 0.71% 4.84% 2987%
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 (net of impainment provision) 3,164.29 221 588 317238
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.853.29 18.94 6.87 2,879.10
Expected credil loss rate 0.40% 5.63% 100.00%
Carrying amouni as al March 31,2024 (nct of impairment provision) 2841.88 17.87 = 2,859.75

The contractual amount outstanding for trade advance that has been writicn off by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 and that were still subject to enforcement aclivily was

Rs 1.60 crorc (March 31, 2024: Rs 336 crore ).

The d eredil loss all provision for Financial I d at amoriized cost is d d as follows:
Rs. in crore
Performing Loans-  Underperforming Impaired loans - Total|
12 month ECL loans - "lifetime ‘lifelime ECL credit
ECL not credit impaired
impaired’
Gross Balance as al March 31, 2025 1.219.81 - - 1,219.81
Expeeted credit loss rate - &
Carrying amount as al March 31, 2025 (net of impairment provision) 1,219.81 E s 1,219.81
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,263 .87 - - 1,263.87|
Expecied credit loss rate 0,00%
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 (nct of impairmen! provision) 1.263.87 - - 1,263.87
Level of Assessment - Aggregation Criteria
The Company recognizes the expected credit lesses (ECL) on a collective basis that takes into account comprehensive eredit risk inf
Considering the ic and risk ck istics, pricing range, seetor concenteation (c g vehicle loans in unorganized scctors) the Company calculates ECL on a collective basis for all

stages - Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 asscls
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49 Financial Risk M Fr k (Continued)
49.2 Credit Risk Management {Confinued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to Retail Loans including Finanee Lease is, as fallows :

Gross exposure reconciliation
As at March 31, 2024

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount balance as at April 1 2023 67.237.62 4.852.75 3.655.11 75.745.48
(Changes duc lo loans rccognized in the opening balance that have
- Translers to Stage | 1,044.29 (934.81) (109.48) -
- Transfers to Stage 2 (3,856.09) 393532 (79.23) -
- Trans[ers to Stage 3 (1,395.58) (694.54) 2,090.12 ps
- Loans that have been derecognized during the period (8,792.29) (1,259.48) (1,226.79) (11,278.56)
New loans originaled during the year 48,192.62 736.93 305.20 49.234.75
Write-ofTs (2.37) @.21) 972.10) (983.68)
[mpact of changes on items within the same stage (16,063.71) (1,527.12) (221.90) {17,812.73)|
Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31,2024 86.364.49 5.099.84 3.44093 94.905.26
As at March 31, 2025
Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage 1 Stage2 Staged Total!
Gross carrying amount balance as at April 1 2024 B63G4.49 5,099.84 344093 94.905.26
Changes duc ta loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers to Stage 1 994.13 (906.18) (87.94) -
- Transfers (o Stage 2 (5.536.02) 5620.23 (84.22) -
- Transfers lo Stage 3 (1,950.74) {1,073.99) 302473 -
- Loans that have been derccognized during the period {8.858.46) {1,013.47) {1.068.85) (10,940,78)
Mew loans originated during the year 48,797.59 680.71 21584 49,694.14
Wrilc-ofls (5.62) (3L.B1) (771.54) (808.97)
Impact of changes on items within the same stage (20.273.08) {1,921.11) (328.47) (22,522.66)
Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31, 2025 99,532.30 6,454.21 434048 1,10.327.00
Reconciliation of ECL balance
As at March 31, 2024
Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Staged Total
ECL alfowance balance as at April 1 2023 533.82 51842 2.169.34 3221.58
Changes duc to loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers to Stage | 164.62 (99.87) (64.75) s
- Transfers to Stage 2 (30.62) 7747 (46.85) -
- Transfers to Stage 3 {11,08) (74.20) 85.28 -
- Loans that have been derecognized during the period (69.61) (134.58) (724.50) (928.69)
New loans originated during the year 326.49 8234 192.56 601.39
Write-offs {0.02) {0.98) (574.92) (575.92)
[mpact of changes on items within the same stage (326.70) 215.57 1,142.55 1,031.42
ECL allowance balance as at March 31, 2024 586.90 — 584.17 2.178.71 3.349.78
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49 Fil ial Risk M Fr, k (Conti i)
49.2  Credit Risk Management (Contimued}

Reconciliation of ECL balance (Continued)
As at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
.

Pariculars Stage [ Stage2 Stage3 Total
ECL allowance balance as at April | 2024 586.90 584.17 1mn 3.349.78
Changes due ta loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers to Stage | 159.72 {104.26) (55.47T) -
- Transfers to Stage 2 (37.69) 90.81 {53.12) -
- Transfers (o Stage 3 (13.28) {123.56) 136.84 -
- Loans that have been derecognized during the period {62.53) {119.09) (676.40) (858.02)
New loans originated during the year 176.95 61.99 107.59 44652
Write-offs (0.04) (3.66) (486.61) (490.31)
Impact of changes on items within the same stoge (347.22) 197.53 105445 904.77
ECL allowance balance as at March 31,2025 56281 583.93 220599 3,352.74

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that has been writlcn o[l by the Company during the ycar ended March 31, 2025 and that were stili subject to enforcement aclivity was
Rs 575.52 crorc (March 3 1, 2024: Rs 1,006.22 crorc ).

The overall decreasc in ECL allowance on the portfolio was driven by movements between stages and higher amount of write ofTs
An analysis of changes in {he gross earrying amount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to SME Loaus including Bills of exchange is, as follows :

Gross exposure reconciliation
As al March 31,2024

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total
Gross carrying amounl balance as at April 1 2023 438646 20.53 49.69 4.456.68
Changes duc (o loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers to Stage | 6.58 | (6.26) (0.32) -
- Transfers to Stage 2 (42.40) 4343 (1.03) -
- Transfers to Stage 3 (30.33) (7.40) 317 -
- Loans that have been derccognised during the period (1,406.70) (4.84) (€.12) (1,415.66)
New loans originated during the year 291039 476 2.64 2917719
Writc-ofTs (0.41) (0.19) (38.52) (39.12)
Impact of changes on items within the same stage (1,095.22) (9.09) (297) (1,107.28)
Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31, 2024 472837 4094 43.10 481241 |
As al March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
‘Gross carrving amount balance as st April 1 2024 4,72837 40.94 43.10 481241
Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balanee that have:
- Transfers to Stage 1 1.86 (1.67) (0.19) . 0.00
- Transfers to Stage 2 {(41.17) 41.82 {0.65) (0.00)
- Transfers to Stage 3 (69.23) (8.23) 7746 -
- Loans that bave been derecognized during the period (1,745.49) {12.41) {622) (1,764.12)
New loans originated during the year 3917.60 15.90 0481 393431
Writc-ofTs (8.04) (3.99) (28.80) (40.83)
[mpact of changes on items within thie same stage (761.46) (1132) (20.45) (793.23)
Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31, 2025 6,028.43 55,04 65.06 6,148.54
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49 Financial Risk Managemen| Framework (Continucd)
49.2  Credit Risk Management (Continued)

Reconciliation of ECL balance

As at March 31,2024

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Stage3 Total
ECL allowance balance as at April [ 2023 15.85 1.99 28.37 46.21
Changes duc te loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers to Stage 1 0.78 {0.58) {0.20) -
- Transfers lo Stage 2 (0.23) 0.88 (0.65)
- Trans(crs to Stage 3 (0.15) {0.81) 0.96 -
- Loans that have been derccognised during the period (1.69) 0.35) (2.59) (4.63)
New loans originated during the year 409 0.58 1.21 5.88
Wrilc-olTs - (0.02) (21.38) (21.40)
Impact of changes on ilems within the same stage (10.57) 333 13.64 640
ECL allowance balance as at March 31,2024 8.08 _5.02 19.37 3247
As at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Stage3 Total
ECL allowance balance as at April 1 2024 8,08 5.02 1937 3247
Changes duc to loans recognized in the opening balance thal have
- Transfers to Stage L 1.03 (0.94) (0.09) -
- Transfers (o Stage 2 (0.12) 041 (030) {0.01)
- Transfers to Stage 3 {0.21) (1.00) 1.20 (0.01)
- Loans that have been derecognized during the period {1.46) (1.53) (2.85) (5.84)
New loans originated during the year 73 6.08 0,61 14.00
Writc-ofls {0.02) {0.49) (12.84) (1335)
Impact of changes on items within the same stage 140 10.89 4443 5391
ECL allowance balance as at March 31, 2025 3.20 B.44 49.53 8

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets thal has been written off by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 and that were still subject Lo enforcement aclivity was
Rs.24.45 crore (March 3 1, 2024; Rs 40 48 crorc)

The increasc in ECL provisions was driven by increase in the gross size of the portlolio.

An analysis of changes in the outstanding exposure and the carresponding ECLs in relation to gther undrawn commitments is as follows :

Gross cxposure reconcili
As af March 31, 2024

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance of outstanding exposure as at April 1 2023 154.30 - - 154.30
New Exposures 28,00 - - 28.00
Ex) d: ized or d/ lapsed ( excluding writc-ofTs) {154.30) - - (154.30)

- T:'ausfc:s 1o Sl;gc 1 5 -
- Transfers 1o Stage 2 "

- Translers (o Stage 3 - = - -
Wrile-offs - - - -
[mpact of changes on items within the same slage - 5 =

Closing balance of outstanding cxposure as at March 31,2024 28.00 - i 28.00
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49.2

Financial Risk Management Framework (Continned)
Credit Risk Management (Continued)

Gross exposure reconciliation (Comtinued)

As at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stapel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance of outstanding exposure as at April 1 2024 28.00 - - 18.00
New Exposures 23439 - - 23439
Exp d ized or d/ lapsed ( excluding writc-ofls) (28.00) - - {28.00)
- Transfers Lo Stage | = = - -
- Trans(ers 1o Stage 2 - - - E
- Transfers to Stage 3 & S = A
Write-ofTs - - - =
Impact of changes on iems within the same stage - @ - .
Closing balance of sutstanding exposure as at March 31,2025 234.39 - - 234,39
Reconciliation of ECL balance
As at March 31, 2024

Rs. in crorc
Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance balance as at Aprl [ 2023 0.43 - - 043
New Exposurcs 0.02 - . 0.02
Exy derecognized or d/ lapsed { excluding write-affs) (0.43) i - (0.43)
- Trans(lers to Stage | - - = -
- Translers to Stape 2 - - - "
- Trans(ers to Stage 3 g P - -
- Loans that have been derccognized during the period - - & =
Impact of changes on ifems within the same stage - g & P
ECL allowance balance as at March 31,2024 0.02 - - 0.02
As at March 31,2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance balance as at April 1 2024 0.02 - - 0.0
New Exposures 0.69 - < 0.69
Exy d d or d/ lapsed ( cxcluding writc-ofTs) (0,02) - - (0.02)
- Transfecrs to Stage | = - 5 =
- Transfers to Stage 2 - = = -
- Transfers 1o Stage 3 - - - -
- Loans that have been derecognized during the period - - - s
Impact of changes on ilems within the same slage - = -
ECL allowance balance as at March 31, 2025 - 0.69 B - 0.69




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Naotes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

49

49.2

Financial Risk Management Framework (Continned)

Credit Risk Management {Continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the carresponding ECLs in relation to Financial Investments measured at amortized cosl is as follows :

Gross cxposure reconciliation

As at March 31, 2024
Rs. in crore
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Staged Total
Graoss carrying amount balance as at April 1 2023 1436.11 - - 1.436.11
Changes duc to loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Trans(ers 1o Stage | - - - ”
- Transfers to Stage 2 - = = =
- Transfers 1o Stage 3 - s z -
=1 that have been d d during the period (163.42) - - (163.42)
New Investments originated during the year 124.98 - - 124.98
Write-ofTs - i - -
Impact of changes on itcms within the same stage (8.82) - - {8.82)
Gross earrying amount balance as at March 31, 2024 1 388.85 = - 1.388.85
As at March 31,2025
_Rs. incrore.
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount balsnce as at April 1 2024 1,388.85 = - 138885
Changes duc 1o Ioans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers to Stage 1 = 1 7 “
- Transfers to Stage 2 = - - s
- Transfers Lo Stage 3 - = = -
- Investments that have been derccognized during the period (124.98) - & (124,98)
New Investments originated during the year - - " =
" |Wrilc-ofTs - ] = -
Impact of changes on ifems within the same stage (44.06) - - (44.06)
Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31,2025 1,219.81 - - 1,219.81
—
Reconciliation of ECL balance
As at March 31,2024
Rs. in crore
Particulars Stape 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance balance as at Apnl 1 2023 55.49 s . 55.49
Changes duc to loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers o Stage | - - 2 5
- Transfers to Stage 2 = = = z
- Transfers 1o Stage 3 - - - "
- Invesiments that have been derccognized during the period (0.98) - - (0.98)
New Investments originated dusing the year - = . -
Writc-olls . - - -
Impact of changes on items within the same stage - - = =
ECL allowance balance as at March 31, 2024 5451 - - 54.51
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49.2

Financinl Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Credit Risk Managemeni (Contlnued)
Reconciliation of ECL balance (Continued)

As at March 31,2025

Rs_in crore
Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Stage Total
ECL allowance balance as at April 1 2024 54.51 = . 5451
Chanees duc (o loans recoenized in the openime balance that have:
- Transfers to Stace | = = 5 -
- Transfers to Staee 2 g N . .
- Transfers to Stape 3 : - = - -
-Inv that have been d d durine the period - a S I
New Investments originated during the vear @ & = ~
Write-oils - - » o
Impact of changes on items within the same stage = = . = s
ECL allowance balance as at March 31. 2025 T . 5451 |
The | amount ding on financial i that has been wrilien off by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 and that were still subjest 1o enforcement

activity was nil (March 31,2024 : nil),

Sienificant chanees in the gross carrving value that contributed to change in loss allowance

The Company mostly pravide loans fo retail individual customers, which is of small tickel size. Change in any single customier repayment will not impact significantly to Company's
provisioning. All customcrs arc being monifored based on past duc and corrective actions arc taken accordingly to limit the Company's risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company's loan portfolic is predominantly to finance rctail automobile loans, The Company manages ion of risk primarily by phical region in India. The following
tables show the geographical concentrations of loans and trade advances:

Rs. in crorc
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Concentration by Geographical region in India:
North 40,642.29 33,372.40
East 2158275 21,039.12
West 34238.63 28.805.94
South 22,209.35 19379.31
Total Gross Carrying Value 1,19.673.02 1,02,596.77
— e

Maximum Exposure to eredit Risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk of loans and investment sccurities 's their carrying amount, The maximum cxposure is before considering the effect of mitigation through collateral,

Narrative Descrintion of Coliateral

Collateral primarily include vehicles purchased by retail loan s and machinery & property in case of SME The financial i are seeured by way of a first ranking
pari-passu and charge ereated by way of hypothceation on the receivables of the olher company
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49.2 Credit Risk Management (Continued)

Quantitative Information of Collateral

Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)

The Company monitors its exposure to loan portfolio using the Loan To Value (LTV) ratio, which is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the loan to
the value of the collateral. The value of the collateral for Retail loans is derived by writing down the asset cost at origination by 20% p.a on reducing balance
basis. And the value of the collateral of Stage 3 Retail loans is based on the Indian Blue Book value for the particular asset. The value of collateral of SME
loans is based on fair market value of the collaterals held.

Gross value of total secured loans to value of collateral:

Rs. in crore
Loan To Valuc Gross Value of Secured Gross Value of Secured
Retail loans SME loans
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
0-50% 7,517.50 6,365.54 2,183.72 1,720.06
51-70% 15,982.16  13,653.35 1,074.94 917.03
71 -100% 64,844.68  56,893.97 610.80 300.27
- |Aboveé 100% - 21,244.73  17,352.61 41.14 233.26
1,09,589.07 94 .265.47 3,910.59 3,170.63
Gross value of credit impaired loans to valuc of collateral:
Rs. in crore
Loan To Value Gross Value of Retail loans Gross Value of SME loans
in Stage 3 in Stage 3
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
0-50% 604.52 102.93 27.51 7.46
51-70% 714.56 117.61 5.10 1.34
71 - 100% 1,781.86 481.88 6.31 1.30
Above 100% 1,239.54 2,738.51 26.15 33.01
4,340.48 3.440.93 65.07 43.10

The below tables provide an analysis of the current fair values of collateral held for Stage 3 assets. The value of collateral has not been considered while

recognizing the loss allowances.

Fair value of collateral held against Credit Impaired assets

Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 Maximum Vehicles Plantand Land and Book Debts, Surplus/(De Total Net  Associated
exposure Machinery Building Inventory ficient) Sceured  Exposure ECL
to Credit and other Collateral Caollateral
Risk Working
Canital items
Retail Loans 4,340.48 6,750.71 - - - 2,596.74 4,153.97 186.51 2,205.99
SME Loans 65.07 - 42.57 38.15 44.00 85.69 39.03 26.04 49.53
Mareh 31, 2024 Maximum  Vehicles Plantand Land and Book Debts, Surplus/(De Total Net  Associated
exposure Machinery  Building Inventory ficient) Secured  Exposure ECL
to Credit and other Collateral Collateral
Risk Working
Capital items
Retail Loans 3,440.93 2,578.87 - - - (381.64) 2,960.51 480.42 2,178.71
SME Loans 43.10 - 25.98 43.52 0.07 62.88 6.69 36.41 19.37
T
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Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)

49.3 Liquidity Risk Management

a)

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established Asset and Liability Management
Committec (ALCO) for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring

forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Maturity profile of non-derivative financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods.
The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the carlicst date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Rs. in crore

Particulars Less than 1 1-3 Years 3-5Years 5 years and

Year above
Non-derivative financial liabilitics
As at March 31, 2025
Trade Payable : 1,228.89 - - =
Debt Sccuritics :
- Principal 8,571.00 7,649.63 5,102.50 3,900.50
- Interest 1,608.30 2,189.49 1,088.10 769.46
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securitics)
- Principal 24,896.28 37,738.05 6,828.81 68.79
- Interest 4,131.60 3,699.00 297.75 0.51
Deposit :
- Principal 3,993.64 5,904.55 1,028.25 -
- Interest 615.63 1,127.86 278.70 =
Subordinated liabilities :
- Principal 175.00 1,380.25 336.87 3,356.86
- Interest 431.62 713.13 575.92 1,003.01
Other financial liabilitics 463.24 184.04 128.29 105.60
Total 46,115.21 60,586.00 15,665.20 9,204.73
As at March 31, 2024
Trade Payable : 1,524.89 - - -
Debt Securities :
- Principal 9,560.75 10,561.40 754.35 5,978.00
- Interest 1,906.89 2,413.39 1,033.67 1,443.25
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) :
- Principal 18,603.73 26,827.60 8,782.36 111.12
- Interest 3,227.24 3,352.80 481.18 0.79
Deposit :
- Principal 2,660.39 3,588.40 948.41 -
- Interest 504.35 682.63 253.51 -
Subordinated liabilities :
- Principal 27432 1,108.01 447.24 2,193.74
- Interest 33832 572.77 41336 695.31
Other financial liabilities : 1,898.47 304.93 129.36 108.58
Total 40,499.36 49.411.92 13,243.44 10,530.79

(3¢ 10712
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49  Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)
49.3 Liquidity Risk Management (Continued)

b) Maturity profile of derivative financial instruments

The following table details the Company’s liquidity analysis for its undiscounted value of derivative financial instruments.

Particulars

Derivative financial instruments
As at March 31, 2025

Foreign exchange forward contracts
- Payable

- Receivable

Interest Rate swaps

- Payable

- Receivable

Currency swaps

- Payable

- Receivable

Total Payable
Total Receivable

As at March 31, 2024

Foreign exchange forward contracts
- Payable

- Receivable

Interest Rate swaps

- Payable

- Receivable

Currency swaps

- Payable

- Receivable

Total Payable
Total Receivable

Rs. in crore
Less than 1 1-3 Years 3-5Years 5 years and
Year above
233.74 49.81 - -
- 6.02 - =
8.21 59.78 19.26 -
47.18 - - _
24.33 - < -
289.13 109.59 19.26 -
24.33 6.02 - -
0.97 199.74 - -
4 3.15 - %
- 164.23 - -
0.97 367.12 - -
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
49  Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)

49.4 b) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial instruments measured at fair value
Rs. in crore

Particulars Unquoted Equity
investment

Year ended March 31, 2025

Opening balance 42.41
Total gains or losses recognized:

In Profit or loss

a) in profit or loss -
b) in other comprehensive income 84.26
Fair value of -

Purchases made during the year -
Disposals made during the year =
Transfers into Level 3 -
Transfers out of Level 3 -
Closing balance 126.67

Year ended March 31, 2024

Opening balance 42.41
Total gains or losses recognized:

In Profit or loss

a) in profit or loss =
b) in other comprehensive income =
Fair value of -

Purchases made during the ycar -
Issues made during the year -
Disposals made during the year -
Transfers into Level 3 3
Transfers out of Level 3 -
Closing balance 4241

c) Equity Investments designated at Fair value through Other Comprchensive Income

The Company has made the below equity investments neither for the purpose of trading nor for the purpose of acquiring controlling stake,
and accordingly, the investment has been classified in other comprehensive income as per [nd AS 109.5.7.5.

Rs in crore
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Equity investment in Smartshift Logistic Solutions Private Limited

Fair Value of Investments 126.67 42.41

There are no disposal of investment during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

o ol
=¢ 10‘/1:"%;;}"‘3 |

S £ ”~ *
o h uw.nomz}
\ 7t MUMBAI
N
SSRE on
N Ace

—




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

49

49.4

Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)

d) Financial Instruments measured at amortized cost
Rs in crore

Particulars Carrying Value Fair value Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
As at March 31, 2025
Financial assets
a) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 3,869.31 3,869.80 3,781.23 - 88.57
b) Loans and advances to customers 1,16,214.02 1,17,980.45 - - 1,17,980.45
¢) Financial investments - at amortized cost 1,219.81 1,252.78 1,252.78 - -
Total 1,21,303.14 1,23,103.03 5,034.01 - 1,18,069.02
Financial liabilitics
a) Debt securitics 26,204.83 26,441.52 25,560.65 880.87 -
b) Borrowings other than debt securities 69,734.92 69,913.48 - 69,913.48 -
c) Deposits 11,404.15 11,617.38 - 11,617.38 -
d) Subordinated Liabilities 5,529.57 5,499.93 2,960.00 2,539.93
¢) Other financial liabilities 790.60 788.21 - 407.41 380.80
Total 1,13,664.07 1,14,260.51 28,520.65 85,359.06 380.80
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets
a) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 2,955.99 2,973.94 2,409.74 - 564.20
b) Loans and advances to customers 99,195.18 98,655.46 - - 98,655.46
¢) Financial investments - at amortized cost 1,388.85 1,404.49 - 1,404.49 -
Total 1,03,540.02 1,03,033.89 2,409.74 1,404.49 99.219.66
Financial liabilities
a) Debt securities 26,725.94 27,965.63 26,992.11 973.52 g
b) Borrowings other than debt securities 54,318.83 54,482.68 - 54,482.68 -
c) Deposits 7,544.18 7,686.98 - 7,686.98 -
d) Subordinated Liabilities 4,005.66 4,347.98 1,680.87 2,667.11
¢) Other financial liabilitics 687.92 681.35 - 319.99 361.36
Total 93,282.53 95,164.62 28,672.98 66,130.28 361.36

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2.

Valuation mcthodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at
fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only.
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Financial Risk Management Framework (Continued)

49.4 d) Financial Instruments measured at amortized cost (Continued)

Short-term financial assets and liabilitics ‘

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of
impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, balances other
than cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and trade payables. Further, such financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed at Level 1 fair
value.

Loans and advances to customers
The fair values of loans and advances are estimated by discounted cash flow models based on contractual cash flows using actual yields.

Financial Investments
For Government Securities and bonds, the quoted market price as on date of reporting is considered for fair value computations. Where such price is
not available, quoted market price of similar instruments.as on date of reporting is considered.

Borrowings other than deposits from public
The fair value of borrowings is estimated by a discounted cash flow model incorporating interest rate estimates from market-observable data such as
secondary prices for its traded debt itself.

Deposits from public
The fair value of deposits received from public is estimated by discounting the future cash flows considering the interest rate applicable on the
reporting date for that class of deposits segregated by their tenure.
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Maturity analysis of assets and liabilitics

The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

Rs. in crore
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Assets Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months

Cash and cash equivalents 1,666.56 - 1,666.56 31107 = 311.07
Bank balance 3,777.92 91.39 3,869.31 2,378.04 577.95 2,955.99
Derivative financial instruments 25.69 5.26 30.95 - - -
Trade receivables 53.02 - 53.02 2474 - 24.74
Loans 43,226.76 72,987.26 1,16,214.02 37,167.83 62,027.35 99,195.18
Investments 5,105.40 5,295.08 10,400.48 2,398.52 7,252.30 9,650.82
Other financial assets 152.89 94.64 247.53 158.72 70.11 228.83
Current tax assets (Net) - 601.68 601.68 - 609.78 609.78
Deferred tax Assets (Net) - 640.99 640.99 - 691.08 691.08
Property, plant and equipment - 876.38 876.38 - 811.11 811.11
Intangible assets under development - 65.10 65.10 - 105.10 105.10
Capital work-in-progress - 0.52 0.52 - 0.15 0.15
Other Intangible assets - 172.89 172.89 - 14.61 14.61
Other non-financial assets 587.48 121.27 708.75 464.16 96.59 560.75
Total Asscts 54,595.72 80,952.45  1,35548.18 42,903.08 72,256.13 1,15,159.21
Liabilities
Financial Liabilitics
Derivative financial instruments 276.82 113.23 390.05 0.93 33434 335.27
Payables
Trade Payables .
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - - - - - 4
and small enterprises
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 1,208.56 - 1,208.56 1,459.47 - 1,459.47
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other Payables
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 2.71 - 2.71 2.80 - 2.80
and small enterprises
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 17.62 - 17.62 62.62 - 62.62
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities 9,572.72 16,632.11 26,204.83 10,429.72 17,267.32 27,697.03
Borrowings (Other than Debt Sccurities) 25,124.62 44,610.30 69,734.92 18,752.13 35,715.09 54,467.22
Deposits 4,249.79 7,154.36 11,404.15 2,729.26 4,814.92 7,544.18
Subordinated Liabilitics 443.71 5,085.86 5,529.57 512.35 3,757.80 4,270.15
Other financial liabilities 436.00 354.60 790.60 35333 334.59 687.92
Non-Financial Liabilitics
Current tax liabilities (Net) 69.73 - 69.73 119.26 - 119.26
Provisions 145.27 .77 217.04 123.18 81.95 205.13
Other non-financial liabilities 163.71 2.46 166.17 145.51 5.16 150.67
Total Liabilitics 41,711.26 74,024.69 1,15,735.95 34,690.56 62,311.17 97.001.72
Net 12,884.46 6,927.77 19,812.23 8,212.53 9.944.96 18,157.49
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51 Related party disclosures:

i)  Asper Ind AS 24 on 'Related party disclosures', the related parties of the Company are as follows:

a) Helding Company Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
b) Subsidiary Companics: Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited
(entitics on whom control is exercised) Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Scevices Ltd Employees' Stock Option Trust
MRHFL Employces Welfare Trust

Mahindra Finance CSR Foundation

c) Fellow Subsidiaries: Mahindra USA, Inc
(entities with whom the Company has transactions) NBS International Limited

Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limited
Mahindra Defence Systems Limited
Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Limited
Mahindra Logistics Limited
Mahindra Construction Co. Limited
Bristlecone India Limited
Gromax Agri Equipment Limited
Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Limited
New Democratic Electoral Trust
Mahindra Susten Pvt Limited
Mahindra & Mahindra Contech Pvt Limited
Mahindra Two wheeler Limited
Mahindra Sumit Agriscience Limited
Swaraj Engines Limited
Mahindra Heavy Engincs Limited
Mahindra Teqo Pvt Limited
Fifth Gear Ventures Limited
Mahindra Acrostructures Private Limited
Mahindra Agri Solutions Limited
Mahindra Electric Automobile Limited (MEAL)
Mahindra HZPC Private Limited
Mahindra Last Mile Mobility Limited
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited
Mahindra Solarize Limited
Mahindra University
Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited
Naandi Community Water Services Private Limited
Sustainable Energy Infra Investment Managers Private Limited

d) Joint Ventures / Associates: Mahindra Finance USA, Inc
(entities on whom control is exercised) Mahindra Manulife M: Pvt. Lid

Mahindra Manulife Trustee Pvi. Ltd.

¢} Joint Venlures /A iates of Holding Company: Tech Mahindra Limited
(entities with whom the Company has transactions) Smartshift Logistics Solutions Pvt Lid
PSL Media & Communications Ltd

f) Key Management Personncl: Mr. Raul Rebello

Mr, Anish Shah

Mr. Milind Sarwate

Dr, Rebecca Nugent

Mr. Diwakar Gupta

Mr. Ashwani Ghai

Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma

Mr. Amarjyoti Barua

Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Ceased to be KMP w.e.f April 29, 2024)

Mr. C. B. Bhave (Ceased to be KMP w.e.f February 02, 2023)
Mr. Dhananjay Mungale (Ceased ro be KMP w.e.f July 23, 2024)
Mrs. Rama Bijapurkar (Ceased to be KMP w.e.f July 23, 2024)

g) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
(where there arc transactions) Mr. Joan Rebello
Mr. Dinesh Iyer (Ceased fo be refatives of KMP w.c.f April 29, 2024}
Mrs. Janki Iyer (Ceased to be relatives of KMP w.e.f April 29, 2024)
Mrs. Giriia Subramanian (Ceased to be relatives of KMP w.e.f April 29, 2024}
Mr. Rishcek Ramesh Iyer (Ceased (o be relatives of KMP w.e.f April 29, 2024)

ek o)

(CO)/‘




vlahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 1
] [ ‘ .
lotes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Confinued) e
- the year ended March 31, 2025 ) o
s. In crore
1 |Related party disclosures: (Contied) Rs, in crore
i)| The nature and volume of transactions of the Company during the year with above related parties were as follows:
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Particulars Holding Company Subsidiary Companics Fellow Subsidiaries / Assaci Key M. 1 latives of Key
Associale of Holding Personnel Management Personnel
| Company
urrent < . i Vil i
€« r\‘:;r Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year Cur;::: Previous Year Cu::::_ Pm\;c_:l; C“:I,'::_ Prc\;n::: e :;“: Previous Year
Subvention / Incentive income
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 19.17 28.61 - - - < - z B 5 - -
- Mahindra Last Mile Mobility Lid - - - - 9.88 7.94 - - - - o 5
_|Lease rental income
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 93.73 100.G4 < = = z 9 z P = - -
- Suslainable Energy Infra Invesiment Managers Private - - - - 0.20 = . - - - = -
- Mahindra & Mahindra Conlech Private Limited - - - = = 0.01 - - = - - -
- Swaraj Engines Limited - - - v - 0.41 0.39 - - - - = =
_|- Mahindra Susten Private Limited - - - - 0.30 0.39 - = = = = =
_|- Mahindra Heavy Engines Limited - - = - 0.04 0.28 - - - - - H
_|- Mahindsa First Choice Wheels Limited - - - - 0.28 0.61 - - - - E z
- Mahindsa Solarize Privale Limiled - - - - 0.07 0.13 - - - - - =
- Mahindea I d Business Solutions Limited - - = = .30 0.24 - = = N = 3
- Mahindra Teqo - - - - 0.13 0.17 - - - - - =
- Mahindra HZPC Pvt Lid - - - - 0.13 0.06 - - - - = .
- Mahindra Last Mile Mability Ltd - - - - 4.20 0.74 - = = & _ N
_|-Mahindra Summit Agriscience Limited - - - - 1.50 1.44 - - - = = =
_|- Mahindra Two Wheelers Limiled - - - - 0.01 0.10 - 5 = = - N
_|- Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Lid - - - - 0.59 0.03 - - - A = 5
- Mahindra Lilt Developers Lid. - - g = 0.95 0.14 - - = 5 5 N
- Tech Mahindra Limited - - - - B.51 0.51 - - - - = =
- Mahindra Agri Solutions Ltd - - - P 1.42 0.67 - = - - = =
- Mahindra Defence Sysiems Lid - - - - 0.60 - = = - - = =
pE Smartshill Logistics Solutions Pvt Lid. - - - - 0.47 - - = = = = =
_| -Mahindra Aerostructures Private Limited - - - - 0.02 = R = = . = =
_|-Mahindra Eleciric Automobile Limited (MEAL) - - - - 0.20 N - = = N = i
'- Mahindra World City (Jaipur) Limited - - - - 0.02 - B _ & = N =
'-Mahindra Logistics Limited - - - - 0.02 - - - 5 . = =
_|Interest income
_|- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 2.17 1.85 - - " = = = = = = -
Income from sharing services
- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited - - 4.07 4.83 - z % s = - N -
_|- Mahindra Insurance Brokess Limited - - 1.56 2.35 - = = & 5 = = :
- Mahindra Manulife Investment Management Pvi Lid - - = = - - 1.05 0.59 - - " N
_|Otlier Incame
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 0.34 Q.88 - - - - - - - - g2 =
- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limiled - - 0.22 0.07 - = = = N T = =
: - Mahindra ¢ Brokers Limited - - - 0.00 - = e s N B n N
_| Dividend Income
_|- Mahindra Insurance Brakers Limited - - 15.46 2.89 2 - - - - - N =
Interest expense
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited - 0.05 - - - = = = - & = =
: - Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limiled = - 13.54 15.87 = - = % 5 = n n
_|- Tech Mahindra Limited - - - - - 2.43 - - - - - “
- PSL Media & C: ications Lid - - - - 0.07 0.07 - - - - - -
- Mahindra Holidays & Resorls India Lid - - - - 11.92 8.97 - - - = - =
- Mr Ramesh kyer - L & = - = - - 0.06 0,06 - -
_|- Mr Raul Rebello - £ g - - - - - - 0.00 - i
_|-Others = B = - = 2 ] 5 = = 0.18 0.16
Other expenses
_|- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 25.32 52.10 - - - o = = = - = =
- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - - - - - - - = - N 5 =
_|- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited - - 0.16 - - - - B - = - x
_|- Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limited - - - - 23.73 24.37 - - - - & -
- Mahindra Defence Systems Lid - - - - = 1.52 iz E = = - "
_|- Bristlecone India Limited - - - - 0.54 0.24 - - . E = 2
- Mahindra Integrated B Solutions Limited - - - - 61.87 59.33 - - - - = -
_|- Mahindra Finance CSR. Foundalion - - - - - S = - N - = =
- NBS I | Limited - - - - 0.58 0.65 - - = 5 o R
- Meru Mobility Tech Private Limited = - - - - 0.01 - = - - ~ =
_|- Mahindra Solarize Privale Limited - - - - - - - . N = = =
_|- Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Ltd - - - - 0.08 0.03 - - - 5 - -
- Teeh Mahindra Limited = = - - 62,72 12.27 - - - = % =
- Others - - - - 0.28 0.07 - - = i N N
_|Donations
- Mahindra Finance CSR Foundalion - - 0.02 - = - = E . - = =
- National Democralic Electoral Trust - - - - 21.00 - - = = z = 2
- Tech Mahindra Foundation - - - - 0.15 - - - 3 5 N ~
_|Remuncration .
- Mr Ramesh Iyer 2 3 - . - - - - 3.65 8.15 - =
|- Mr Raul Rebello = = 5 ] - - - - 3.95 3.90 N T
_|Sitting fecs and commission
- MrC_B. Bhave - 0.57 033 | =~ 77 e Fillaa.™
- Mr. Dhananjay Mungal - - 024 0.53 7/
- Ms Rama Bijapurkar o - = 0.23 050 L
_|- M Milind Sarwate - - 0.69 0.57 B
- De Rebecca Nugent. - - 0.54 0.46 - | %
- Mir Diwakar Gupta _ N N 065 T R
- Mr Ashwani Ghai N - 0.47 0.30 3
+ Mr Vijay Kumar Sharma = - - 045 - Y
|- Mr Siddhartha Mohanty ) - we— iy




Particulars olding Company Subsidizry Companies Fellow Subsidiaries / Associate campanics Key Management
Associate of Holding Personnel
] Company i "

Current . rren
Year Previous Year| Currvent Year| Previous Year Cu ‘

Relatives of Key
Management Personnel

s | Current Previous|  Current| Previous| Current
Previous Year, i
Year, Year] Year| Year| Year Year|. Frofiqus Vear

=T

sement Mrom parties
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 1.86 2.64 - - 2 S
- Gromax Agri Equipment Limited - - - - 390 3.10

- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited - - 1.37 0.99 -
indra First Choice Wheels Limited - - - - 0.07
indra [ Brokers Limited - - 3.75 0.07 -

Reimb to parties
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 25.91 - -
|- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - - 0.06 -
- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited - - 093 117 - - B = -
- Mahindra USA, Inc 3 = - = 3.09 2.65 -
- Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limited - - - - 0.42

- Mahindra Lifespace Developers Ltd. - - - - 0.02
- Mahindra Manulife Investment Management Pvi Ltd - - - - - )
- Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Lid - - - - 0,01 - = = o)
- Mahindra Last Mile Mobility Ltd - - - - 0.16 - - -

Purchase of fixed assets (inel Capital advances)
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 126.34 147.55 - - -
= Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited - - 0.01 0.18 -
- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - - 0.25 0.02
- Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limiled - - - -
- Mahindra Lifespace Developers Ltd. - - - - 0.19 - - -
|- NBS International Limited - - - - 9.19 9.61
- Mahindra Electric A bile Limited (MEAL) - - = - an

Sale of fixed assets
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 0.44 0.23 - a -
- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited - - 0.05 0.67 . N = =
- Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limiled - - - - 0.27 0.19
"- Mahindra World City (Jaipur} Limited - - - - 0.20 - - -
Iny made
- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited - - 3 =
- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - - = 206,39 -
- Mahindra Manulife Trustee Company Pvi Ltd - - - - =
- Mahindra Finance USA, Inc - - - = _
- Mahindra [deal Finance Lid - - - - "

- Mahindra Finance CSR. Foundation - - - M -
- New Democratic Electoral Trust - 5 = =
- Smartshift Logistics Solutions Pvt Lid. - - =

Sale of Investments
- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - - - -

Fixed deposils faken
- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - - 180.00 13.50 - =
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited - - - -

- PSL Media & C ications Lid - - - - 021 0.65 - - - - -
- Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Ltd - - - - 25.00 135.00
- Mr Ramesh lyer - - - - -
- Mr Raul Rebello - - - -
- Others - - -

Fixed deposits matured
- Mahindra [nsurance Brokers Limited - - 115.50 23.00 -
- PSL Media & C ications Ltd - - - - 021 - - . N =
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited - 4.19 - B -
- Mohindra Holidays & Resorts [ndia Lid - - - - 15.00 - - - = = _
- Mr Ramesh [yer - - - - -

- Mr Raul Rebello 5 5 = 5
- Others z = - = -

Dividend paid
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 405.97 386.64 - - -
- Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Lid
Employees’ Stock Option Trust - - 0.61 1.08
- Mr Ramesh lyer - S - - - - - - 1.00 0.98 N =
- Ms Rama Bijapurkar - - - - - - - - 0.02 0.02 = a
- Mr Dhananjay Mungale - - ~ - - - - - 0.01 0.01
- Mr Raul Rebello - - - - - - - - 0.00 0.00 - -
- Others = = 2 - £

Inter corporate deposits laken
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited - - - = =
|- Mahindra Brokers Limited - = = 37.00
- Tech Mahindra Limited - < - R

Inter corporale deposits repaid / matured
|- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited - - N N N
|- Mahindra I Brokers Limited - - 41.00 74.50 -
- Tech Mahindra Limited - - - - - 200.00
|- Mahindra Holidays & Resorls India Lid - - - - - 140.00 - = - =

Debent issued
- Mahindra & Mahindra Limiled - - :

Debentures matured
_|- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited - - - - -

Subardinated debt repaid
- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limiled -

- - ARVTAL S - : E : - :
£97 N\ :

R Y \ o) - 1 p =
z ___k_f;\‘_"EMEW}DI - - : - o 2
| N =2/ i
- N : = :

Inier corparate deposits given
|- Mahindra Manulife Invesiment M Pyt Ltd -

Inter corporate deposits refl
- Mahindra 1 Brakers Limited -
- Mahindra Manulife luvestment Management Pvi Lid -

7
# & - = 2
&7

Pt
et




Particulars

Holding Com pany

Subsidizry Companies

Fellow Subsidiaries /
Associate of Holding

Company

Associate companies

Key Management
Personnel

Relatives of Key
Management Personnel

Current
Year,

Previous Year|

Current Year

Previous Year|

Current
Year]

Previous Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year|

Current]  Previous
Year, Year

Current|

Previ
Year| ous Year|

Issuc of Share Capital {incl Securities premium)

- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

- Mahindra & Malindra Financial Services Lid
Employees' Stock Oplion Trust

as at the end of the period

Receivables

~ Mahindra & Malindra Limited

- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

0.17

_|- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

_|- Mahindra Manulife Investment Management Pvt Lid

- NBS International Limited

- Mahindra & Mahindra Contech Private Limited

- Mahindra Susten Private Limiled

- Gromax Agri Equip Limited

- Mahindra Integraled Solutions Limited

0.02

_ |- Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Lid

_|- Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limited

- Swaraj Engines Limited

- Mahindra Two Wheelers Limited

-~ Smartshift Logistics Solulions Pvi Lid,

 Maindra Teqo

0.01

_|- Mahindra Heavy Engines Limited

0.00

_| -Mahindra Aerostructures Private Limited

_|- Sustainable Energy Infra Investment Managers Privale

_|- Mahindra Lifespace Developers Lid.

0.14

_|- Tech Mahindra Limited

0.45

- Mahindra Last Mile Mobility Ltd

2.61

- Mahi Defence Syst, Lid

- Mahindra Agri Solutions Lid

0.02

Loan given (including interest accrued but not due)

- hill Lopistics Solutions Pyt Lid.

“|inter corporate deposils given (including interest
accrued bui not due)

Invesiments

__|- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

799.29

799.29

_|- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

206.84

206.84

_|- Mahindra Manulife Invest M ment Pyt Ltd

195.30

195.30

- Mahindra Manulile Trustee Company Pvt Lid

0.50

0.50

- Mahindra Finance CSR Foundati

0.00

0.00

_|- Mahindra Finance USA, Inc

210.55

210.55

_|- Mahindra Ideal Finance Lid

77,97

1197

- New L ic Electoral Trust

- Smarishill Logistics Solutions Pvi Lid.

Subordinate debt held (including inferest accrued
but not due}

_{- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

Payables

- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

_|- Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

_|= Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

- Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limited

2.04

2.4

- Tech Mahindra Limited

9.97

0.90

- Mahindra USA, Inc

233

0.42

_|- Mahindra Inlegrated Business Solutions Limited

1.41

117

_|- NBS Intemational Limited

1.02

- Malindra Defence Systems Lid

0.38

- Bristl Indin Limited

0.02

- Mahindsa Electric Automobile Limited (MEAL)

L.50

- Others

0.00

0.00

Inter corporate deposits faken (including interest
accrued but not duc)

- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

- Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

21.64

63.96

|~ Toch Mahindra Limited

- Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Ltd

Debentures (including interest accrued but not duc)

1= Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

" |Fixed deposits (including interest accrued but not
duc)

_ |- Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

- Mahindra I Brokers Limited

- PSL Media & Communications Ltd

0.86

0.88

|~ Mahindra Holidays & Resorls India Lid

164.54

145.63

- Mr Ramesh [yer

- Mr Raul Rebello

- Others

Kev Management P ) as defined in Ind AS 24 - Related Pasty Disclosures

W
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

51

i)

Related party disclosures: (Confinned)

Details of related party transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) are as under :

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control the
activities of the Company or its employees. Accordingly, the Company considers any Director, including independent and non-exceutive directors, to be key
management personnel for the purposes of IND AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

Name of the KMP

Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Vice-Chairman & Managing Director)
(Ceased to be a director w.e.f April 29, 2024)

(Appointed as Director w.e.f. May [, 2023 )

Mr. Dhananjay Mungale (Independent Director)
(Ceased to be a director w.e.fJuly 23, 2024)

Ms. Rama Bijapurkar (Independent Director)
(Ceased to be a director w.e.fJuly 23, 2024)

Mr. C.B. Bhave {(Independent Director)
(Ceased to be a director w.e.f Feb 02, 2023)

Mr. Milind Sarwate (Independent Director)

Dr. Rebecca Nugent (Independent Director)

Diwakar Gupta (Independent Director)

Vijay Kumar Shanma
(Appointed w.ef. May 15, 2024)

Ashwani Ghai (LIC of India representative)

Siddhartha Mohanty (LIC of India representative)
(Ceased to be a director w.e.f May 22, 2023)

Nature of transactions

Gross Salary including perquisites
Commission

Stock Option

Others - Contribution to Funds

Mr. Raul Rebello (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)

Gross Salary including perquisites
Coimmission

Stock Option

Others - Contribution to Funds

Commission
Silting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Commission
Sitting fees

Rs. in crore
L
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
3.65 7.69
- 0.46
3.65 8.15
3.62 3.67
0.33 0.23
3.95 3.90
0.14 0.33
0.11 0.17
0.24 0.50.
0.14 0.33
0.09 0.14
0.23 0.47
0.34 0.33
0.23 0.17
0.57 0.50
0.40 0.33
0.29 0.21
0.69 0.54
0.40 033
0.14 0.10
0.54 0.43
0.40 0.08
0.24 0.15
0.64 0.23
0.35
0.09 -
0.45 -
0.39 -
0.08 0.04
0.47 0.04
- 0.04
- 0.04




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

51

iv)

Related party disclosures: (Continued)

Disclosure required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

As at March 31, 2025
Rs. in crore
Particulars Relationship Balanceas  Advances/ Repayments/ Balanceas on
on Aprill, investments sale March 31,
2024 2025
(A) Loans and advances - - - -
(B) Unsecured redeemable non-convertible subordinate debentures - - - -
(C ) Investments:
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited Subsidiary 206.84 - - 206.84
Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited Subsidiary 799.30 - 799.30
Mahindra Manulife Investment Management Private Joint Venture 195.30 - - 195.30
Mahindra Manulife Trustee Private Limited Joint Venture 0.50 - - 0.50
Mahindra Finance CSR Foundation Wholly owned Subsidia 0.00 - 0.00
Mahindra Finance USA, LLC Joint Venture 210.55 - - 210.55
Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited, Sri Lanka Subsidiary 71.97 - - 77.97
Smartshift Logistics Solutions Private Limited Fellow Associate 9.50 - - 9.50
New Democratic Electoral Trust Fellow subsidiary 0.02 - - 0.02
1,499.98 - - 1,499.98
Total 1,499.98 - - 1,499.98
As at March 31, 2024
Rs. in crore
Particulars Relation Balanceason  Advances/ Repayments/ Balance as on
April 1, 2023  investments sale March 31,
2024
(A) Loans and advances & = " i
(B) Unsecured redeemable non-convertible subordinate debentures
(C) Investments
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited Subsidiary 0.45 206.39 - 206.84
Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited Subsidiary 799.30 - 799.30
Mahindra Manulife Investment Management Private Limited Joint Venture 195.30 - - 195.30
Mahindra Manulife Trustee Private Limited Joint Venture 0.50 - - 0.50
Mahindra Finance CSR Foundation Wholly owned Subsidia 0.00 - 0.00
Mahindra Finance USA, LLC Joint Venture 210.55 - - 210.55
Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited, Sri Lanka Subsidiary 71.97 - - 71.97
Smartshift Logistics Solutions Private Limited Fellow Associate 9.50 - - 9.50
New Democratic Electoral Trust Fellow subsidiary 0.02 - - 0.02
1,293.59 206.39 - 1,499.98
Total 1,293.59 206.39 - 1,499.98
Notes :

i) Above loans & advances and investments have been given for general business purposes of the recipient and figures arc at historical cost.
ii) There were no guarantees given / securities provided during the year




Mahindra & Mahindra Financiai Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

52

Disclosures Pursuant To Master Dircction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As
amended from time to time)

Rs. in crore
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Sr.  Particulars Amount Amount Amount Amount
No. Qutstanding Overdue  Outstanding Overdue|
Liabilities
1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
not paid :
(a) Debentures :
- Sccured 22,974.56 - 20,848.41 -
- Unsccured 1,076.79 - 995.41 -
(b) Deferved Credits - - - -
(c) Term Loans 52,998.12 - 46,392.36 -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and Other Borrowinps 30.48 P 229.50 "
(e) Commercial Paper 2,153.48 - 4,882.12 -
(f) Public Deposits 6,947.62 - 6,109.41 =
(g) Fixed Deposits accepted from Corporates 4,456.53 - 1,434.77 -
(h) External Commercial Borrowings 7,022.09 - 2,102.05 -
(1) Associated liabilities in respect of securitization transactions 8,684.41 = 5,592.45 =
(i) Associated liabilitics in respect of securitization transactions 999.82 -
(k) Subordinate debt (including NCDs issued through Public issuc) 5,529.57 = 4,005.66 -
(I) Other Short Term Loans and credit facilities from banks - - 2.47 -
2) Break-up of (1) (f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid) :
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - & & "
(b) In the form of parily secured debentures i.c. Debentures where there is a shorifall in - - - -
the value of security
(c) Other public deposits 6,947.62 - 6,109.41 -
Amount Outstanding
As at As at|
March 31, March 31,2024
2025
Assct side:
3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables Jother than those included in (4) below] ¢
(a) Secured = =
(b) Unsecured 6,149.03 4,992 85
4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and hypothecation loans counting towards AFC activitics :
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial lease % <
(b) Opcrating lease 2.1 16.75
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assets on hire - -
(b) Repossessed Assets = -
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activitics :
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed 162.14 108.37
(b) Loans other than (a) above 1,09,953.15 94,101.95
5) Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :
1. Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity - i
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 161.43 11.83
(iii) Units of mutual funds 78.12 52.86
(iv) Government Sccurities 1,941.69 583.03
(v) Investments in Certificate of Deposits with Banks 2,330.40 967.73
{vi) Investments in Commercial Papers 593.75 757.41
2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity - -
{b) Preference - -
(i1) Debentures and Bonds - .
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Sccuritics - -
(v) Certificate of Deposits with Banks 5 E
(vi) Commereial Papers & P
(vii) Investments in Pass Through Certificates under securitization ransactions = -
(viii)Investment in Triparty Repo Dealing System (TREPS) - 124.98

e
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

52

Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As

amended from time to time) (Continued)

(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

Category

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companics in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total

Category

1. Related Parties
(n) Subsidiarics
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total

8) Other information:

Particulars
i) Gross Non-Performing Assels :
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties
i) Net Non-Performing Asscts :
(a) Related partics
(b) Other than related parties

iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt :

6) Borrower group-wise classification assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :

As at March 31, 2025
Amount nct of provisions

(v) Investments in Pass Through Certificates under securitization transactions

As at March 31, 2024
Amount net of provisions

Rs. in crore
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, March 31, 2024
2025
Amount Amount
Outstanding Outstanding
5) Break-up of Investments : (Continued)
Long Term Investments :
1. Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity 0.18 0.22
(L) Preference - <
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 333.88 479.18
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Sccuritics 3398.41 5193.63
2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity 1562.62 1478.36
(b) Preference e -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - 1.59

Secured  Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
12.54 8.89 21.43 485 6.66 11.51
1,10,102.75 6,142.86 1,16245.61 94,205.47 5,002.94 99,208.41
1,10,115.29 6,151.75 1,16,267.04 94,21032 5,009.60 99,219.92

7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments ( current and long term ) in shares and securities ( both quoted and unquoted ) :

As at March 31, 2025
Market Value/  Book Value Market Value/
Break up or (net of

fair value or  provisions)  fair value or

As at March 31, 2024

Break up or (net of provisions)

Book Value

NAV NAV
1,029.60 1,029.60 1,084.11 1,029.60
533.02 533.02 448,76 448.76
8,870.83 8,837.86 8,188.10 8,172.46
10,433.45 10,400.48 9,720.97 9,650.82
Asat As at
March31, March 31,2024
2025
Amount Amount
4,413.94 3,490.90
2,155.89 1,285.96
0.18 1.81

W100672
MUMBAI




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. i crore

53 Disclosurcs Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Scale Bascd Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)

[ Capital
Particulars Asat March  As at March
31,2025 31,2024
CRAR (%) 18.33% 18.36%
CRAR-Tier [ Capital (%) 15.25% 16.39%
CRAR-Tier Il Capital (%) 3.08% 247%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1I capital (Rs. in crore) 1,500.00 700.00
IT) Investments
Rs. in erore
Particulars As at March  As at March
31,2025 31,2024
Value of [nvestmenls
(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India 10,166.47 9,416.81
(b) Outside India 288,52 288.52
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
{a) In India - -
(b) Outside India 54.51 54.51
(iii) Net Value of [nvestments
(a) In India 10,166.47 9,416.81
(b) Qutside India 234.01 234.01
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opening balance 54.51 55.49
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year - -
(iii) Less : Write-ofT / write-back of excess provisions during the year - (0.98)
(iv) Closing balance 54.51 54.51
II) Derivalives
a)  Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Cross Currency, Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
Rs. in crore
As at March  As at March
31,2025 31,2024
(i) The noticnal principal of swap agreecments 8,582.05 2,372.22
(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under - -
the agreements
(i) Collateral required by the Company upon entesing into swaps - -
(iv) Concentration of credil risk arising from the swaps = i
(v) The fair value of the swap book ( Asset / (Liability (net)) (359.10) (335.27)

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Denvative
The Company has not entered into any exchange traded derivative
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued) -
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
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Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)
(Centinned)

IIl) Derivatives (Continied)

b)

<)

i)

iii)

d)

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
The Company is nol carrying out any activity of providing Derivative cover to third partics
Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivalives

Qualitative Disclosures —

The Company undertakes the derivatives transaction 1o prudently hedge the risk in context of a particular borrowing or to diversify sources ol borrowing and 1o maintain fixed and floating
borrowing mix. The Company does not indulge into any derivalive trading ir It The Company reviews, the proposed transaction and oulline any considerations associated with the
transaction, including identification of the benefits and potential risks (worst case scenarios); an independent analysis of ial savings from the proposed transaction. The Company
cvaluales all the risks inherent in the fransaction viz, counter party risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk, basis risk etc.

Credit risk is controlled by restricting the counterparties that the Company deals with, to those who cither have banking relationship with the Company or are intemationally renowned or
can provide sufficient information. Market/Price risk arising from the fluctuations of interest rates and foreign exchange rates or from other factors shall be closely monitored and
controlled. Normally transaction entered for hedging, will run till its life, irrespective of profit or loss. However in case of exceptions it has to be un-winded only with prior approval of
M.D / CFO [ Treasurer. Liquidity risk is controlled by restricting counterparties to those who have adequate facility, suflicient information, and sizable trading capacity and capability to
enter into transactions in any markels around the world,

The respective functions of trading, confirmation and setilement should be performed by different personnél. The front office and back-office role is well defined and segregated. All the

denivatives t ions is q y itored and reviewed by CFO and Treasurer, All the derivative transactions have ta be reported to the board of directors on every quarterly board
meetings including their financial pasitions.

Quantitative Disclosures —

Foreign currency non-repatriate loans availed:

Rs. in crore
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Currency Interest Currency Interest
Derivatives Rate Derivatives Rate
Derivatives Derivatives
i) Denivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
- For hedging 8,582.05 231272
ii) Marked to Markel Positions [1]
(a) Assel (+) Estimated gain 30.95 - = -
(b) Liability (-) Estimated loss (309.81) (80.24) (332.58) (2.69),
iii) Credit Exposure [2] = = z =
iv) Unhedged Exposures = “ - =




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continwed)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

53  Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank O India (Non-B

(Continued)

IV) Disclosures relating to Securitization

il ©

y — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)

a)  Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of sccuritization transactions as required under Master Direction — Reserve Bank of india (Securilisation of Standard Assets) Dlrccuans
2021 vide circular no. RBI/DOR/2021-22/85 DOR STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22 daled September 24, 2021

Rs. in crore

Sr  Particulars
no

1) No,.ot‘ Special Purpose Entities (SPEs) holding asscts for

ion transactions ongi

2) Total amount of sccuritised assets as per books of the SPEs

a) Off-balance sheet exposures
First loss-
- Credit enhancement in form of corporate undertaking
Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
First loss-
- Cash collateral term deposits with banks
Others -

4)  Amount of exj to i

=

other than MRR

a) Off-balance sheet exposures
(i) Exposure to own securitizations
First Loss
Others -
- Excess Interest Spread
(i1) Exposure to third party securitizations
First Loss
Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
(i) Exposure 10 own securifizations
First Loss
Others -
- Cash collateral term deposits with banks
(i) Exposure to third party securitizations
First Loss
Others

Gain/loss on sale on account of sccuritisation
servicing, cle.

during the financial year is disclosed.

Credit Enhancement ;

a) Opening Balance Outstandi

b) Addllions during the year (Fn:.sh Transaclions)

¢) Top Up during the year

d) Reductions during the year (Matured Transactions)
¢) Withdrawal during the year

) Closing Balance Qutstanding

Excess Interest Spread (EIS) (Amount Held In Trust)
a) Opening Balance Outstanding

b) Additions during the year (Fresh Transactions)

c) Top Up during the year

d) Reductions during the year (Matured Transactions)
¢) Withdrawal during the year

B Closing Balance Outstanding

- Retained interest in pass through certificates (excluding accrued interest)

d by the NBFC (only the 21 16
Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) relating to outstanding sccuritization exposures (o be reported here)

3) Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet -

5) Sale consideration received for the securitised assets (for transaclions executed during the year)
6) Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post-securitisation assct

* The Company has assumed Role of Servicer for all outstanding securitization transactions. Servicing fee received 14.20 13.16

T) Performance of facility provided. Please provide separately for each facility viz. Credit enhancement, liquidity support,
servicing ageat cte, Mention percent in bracket as of total value of facility provided

As at March
31,1025

As at March
31,2024

8,672.81 5,592.45

858.35 1,449 61

982.33 443.78

819.74 679.46]

6,477.28 292880
Nil Nil

1,893.39 2,103.46
778.17 378.69

830.88 588.76

1,840.68 1,893.39

896.13 96556

18.06 3.70
186.18 252.14
555.08 32527

545.29 896.13
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

53 Disclosures Pursnant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)
(Continucd)

1V) Disclosures relating o Sccuritization (Confinued)

s Asat March  As at-March

™ Particulars 31,2025 31,2024
no

8) Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past, Please pravide breakup scparately for each asset class i.c.
RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc #
# {may mention average default rate of previous § years

a) Agriculture & allied activitics* 7.44% 8.58%
b) Auto Loans* 5.52% 6.33%
* % of NPA to total advances 1o that assel class

9) Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underlying asset. Please provide breakup separately for Nil Nil
each asset class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans elc

10) Investor complaints -
a) Directly/Indirectly received Nil Nil
b) Complaints outstanding Nil Nil

b)  Details of Financial Assets sold to Sccuritization / Reconstruction Company for Assel Reconstruction

During the current year and the previous year, the Company has not sold any financial assets 1o Securitization /Reconstruction Company for assel reconstruction.

V) Disclosures relating to loans transferred / acquired through assignment / novation and loan participation

a)  During the current year, details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company

As at March  As at March
|s|; Particulars 31,2025 31,2024+
1) No. of accounts 749 -
2) Aggrepate value (net of provision) of account sold $1.67 -
3) Apgregate consideration (to the extent of 80% of asscts assigned) 41.34 -
4) No. of transaclions 1 -
5) Weighted average maturity (residual maturity) (in months) 4740 -
6} Weighted average holding period (in months) 7.89 -
7) Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR of the assignor) 20.00% -
8) Coverage of tangible security coverage 100.00% -
9) Rating-wise distribution of weighted loans Unrated -

10) Number of instances (transactions) where transferor has agreed 1o replace the transferred loans
11) Number of transferred loans replaced
12) Net gain on d ili i

& of fi I under ised cost calegory 1.90

*During the previous year, the Company has not transferred or acquired any loan exp through assig { novation and loan participation
b)  During the current year and the previous year, the Company has not transferred or acquired any stressed loans
¢}  During the current year and the previous year, the Company has not acquired any loans not in default through assignment
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
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Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)
(Continued)

¥I) Exposures

a)

b)

c)

d)

°)

Exposurc to Real Estate Sector (refer note no. 54 (A) (1))
Exposure to Capital Market (refer note no. 54 (A) (2) )

Details of financing of parent company products

Of the total financing activity undertaken by the Company during the financial year 2024-25: 44 % (March 31, 2024: 44%) of the financing was towards parent company producits.

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) /Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

During the current year and the previous year, the Company has not ded the prudential exposure limits for Single Borrower Limit (SGL) /Group Borrower Limit (GBL).

Unsecured Advances

As at March 31, 2025, the amount of unsecured advances stood at Rs. 6,161.54 crore (March 31, 2024: Rs.5,027.31 crore), There are no advances d apainst i ible asscls

VII) Miscellaneous

a)

b)

<)

d)

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

Sr. Regulator Registration  Valid From Valid Up to
no no,

1) AMFI Registered Mutual Fund Advisor (ARMFA) ARN-30156  Aug 05, 2022 Aug 04, 2025
2) Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority -Corporate agent CA0939 May 21,2024  May 20, 2027

Disclosure of Penalties and siriciures imposed by RBI and other regulators

During the year under review, BSE had levied a fine of T 23,600 (including GST) under Regulation 60(2) of the Listing Regulations, with respect to delay in submission by 1 (one day) of
the intimaltion of record date for two ISINs during the month of November 2024. The Company has requested for waive-off, and the matier is under consideration with BSE.

Related Party Transactions
(Refer note no. 52)

Rating assigned by credit raling agencies and migration of ratings during the year
Credit Raling -

During the year under review, CRISIL Ratings Limited (CRISIL), has reaffirmed the credit rating of the Company’s Long Term Bank Facilities, Non- Convertible Debentures,
Subordinated Debt, Bank Facilitics and Fixed Deposit as ‘CRISIL AAA/ Stable’. The rating on the Company’s Short-lerm Bank facilitics and Curnmurcm.l Paper has been reaffirmed at
“CRISIL A1+ which indicates very strong degree of safety regarding timely pay of financial obligati Such securities carry lowest credit risk..

During the year under review, India Ratings & Research Private Limited (IND), which is part of Fitch Group, reaffimed the rating of Company's Long-term Debt instruments,
Subordinated Debt programme, Bank Facilities and Fixed Deposit Programme as ‘IND AAA/Stable’ and Principal protected market linked debenture as IND PP-MLD AAA /Stable, The
Company's Short Term Bank Loans, Commercial Paper has been rated at IND Al+.

During the year under review, CARE Ratings, also reaffirmed the ‘*CARE AAA; Stable’ rating to Company's Long-term debl instrument and Subordinated Debt programme.,

During the year under review, Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited (BWR) has, reaflfirmed the ‘BWR AAA/stable’ rating of the Company's Long-term Subordinated Debt Issue

The ‘AAA’ ratings denote the highest degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry lowest credit nsk
*Al+" ratings indicate very strong degree of salety regarding timely payment of financial obligations. Such securities camy lowest credit risk.

VIIL Net Profit of Loss for the period ,prior period ilems and change in accounting policies

There are no such matenal items which require disclosures ir the notes 1o Accounts in terms of the relevant Accounting Standard.

"|L'Inu‘




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

IX) Revenue Recognition

Refer note no. 2.6 under Summary of Material Accounting Policies.

X) Indian Accounting Standard 27 (Ind AS 27) - Consolidated and Separatc Financial Statements (CFS)
All the subsidiaries of the Company have been consolidated as per Ind AS 27, Refer consolidated financial statements (CFS)

53 Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Seale Based Regulation} Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)

(Continued)

XI) Provisions and Contingencics

Rs. in crore
Particulars As at March  As at March|
31, 2025 31,2024
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account
Pr for depreciation on In t - (0.98)|
Provision towards non-performing assels (Stage 3 assets) 53.36 (4.93)
Provision made towards Income fax 779.45 664.93
Other Provision and Contj ies (Loan commi ) 0.67 (0.41)
Provision for diminution in the fair valuc of restructured advances - -
Provision for Standard Asscts (Stage 1 and Stage 2 assets) 5.59 112.83
Draw Down from Reserves
Year ended March 31, 2025 : Nil
Year ended March 31,2024 ; Nil
XII) Co ion of Deposits, Advances, Exg ¢s and NPAs
a) Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs)
Rs. in crore
Particulars Asat March  As at March
31,2025 31,2024
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 3,229.25 963.28
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the NBFC. 28.3% 13.4%
b) Concentration of Advances
Rs. in crore
Particulars Asat March  As at March
31,2025 31,2024
Tolal Advances to twenty largest barrowers 1,322.63 1,354.63
Percentage of Advances Lo twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC L1% 13%
c) Concentration of Exposurcs
Rs. in crore
Particulars As at March  As at March
31, 2025 31,2024
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers { customers 1,322.63 1,354.63
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC on borrowers / customers 1.1% 1.3%
d) Concentration of NPAs
Rs. in erore
Particulars As at March  As at March
31, 2025 31,2024
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 24.65 18.42
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

53  Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)
(Continued)

XII) Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs (Continued)

¢) Seclor-wise NPAs *

Particulars Asat March  Asat March.
31,2025 31,2024

Percentage of Percentage of|
NPAs to Total NPAs to Total
Advancesin  Advancesin
that sector that sector|

i) Agriculture & allied activities 5.0% 4.5%
it) Auto loans 3.7% 3.5%
iii) MSME 1.1% 0.9%
iv) Corporate borrowers 0.8% 0.8%
v) Unsceured personal loans 2.3% 2.2%
vi) Other personal loans - -
vii) Services

* NPA represenl stage 3 assels

N Movement of NPAs *

Rs. in crore
Particulars Asat March  As at March
31, 2025 31,2024
1} Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.84% 1.28%
ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance 3,490.90 3,717.10
(b) Additions during the year 2,973.04 2,214.13
(c)Reductions during the year (2,050.00) (2,440.33)
(d)Closing balance 4,413.94 3,490.90
iii) Movement of Nct NPAs
(a) Opening balance 1,285.96 1,507.08
(b) Additions during the year 1,630.66 774.62
(c) Reductions during the year (760.73) (995.74)
(d)Closing balance 2,155.89 1,285.96
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
(a) Opening balance 2,204.94 2,210.03
(b)Provisions made during the year 1,342.37 1,439.50
(c)Write-ofT / write-back of excess provisions (1,289.27) (1,444.59)
(d)Closing balance 2,258.04 2,204.94
* NPA represent stage 3 assets
XIII Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiarics abroad)
Rs. in crare
Total Assets
Name of the Joint Venture/ Subsidiary Other Partner in the JV/ Subsidiary ~ Country Asat March  As at March
31,2025 31,2024
Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited [deal Finance Limited, Sri Lanka Sri Lanka 287.95 20438
Mahindra Finance USA, LLC* De Lage Landen Financial Services uUsa 4,653.59 4,795.35

*For financial reporting purpose, Mahindra Finance USA, LLC is considered an associate
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
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(Continucd)

XIV; Off-balance Sheet SP'Vs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per acconnting norms)

Domestic

N/A

Name of the SP'V sponsored -

Overseas

N/A

XV) Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

As at March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Particulars 1to 7 days 8told L5daysto Over1 Over2 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 year & Over 3 year & Over 5 Total
days 3ldays monthup monthsup months & up months &up uptoIyears upto 5 years years
to 2 months to 3 months (o 6 months to 1 year
Deposits 29.01 444.86 525.65 160.33 245.71 1,041.29 1,802.94 6,092,00 1,062.36 - 11,404.15
Advances 1,263.44 1,869.91 1,829.81 4,063.99  4,183.83 10,190.74 17,737.94 53,247.59 18,108.83  3,717.94 1,16,214.02
Investments 785.40 8.89 597.48 1,110.69 983.72 645.72 973.51 1,758.14 713.39  2,823.54 10,400.48
Barrowings 1,333.53 191.39 397745 3,031.91 4,394.10 7,661.11 12,639.18 41,650.92 12,261.88  7,305.76 94,447.23
Foreign Currency - 200.12 40.98 - - 23.62 1,647.66 5,109.71 - - 7,022.09
liabilities
As at March 31, 2024
Rs. in crore
Particulars 1to 7 days 8tol4d 15dayste Over | Over 2 Over3 Over 6 Over I year & Over 3 year & Over s Total
days 3ldays monthup monibsup months & up months &up upte3years upto5 years years
to 2 months to 3 months {0 6 months to I year
Deposits 2701 2835 86.45 134.06 176,32 553.24 1,723.83 3,735.36 1,079.56 - 7,544.18
Advances 897.06 91112 5058.09 344327 3509.18 8,491.03 14,858.08 44,294 .00 15,741.87 1,991.48 99,195.18
[nvestments 524.90 - 326,30 322.18 153.12 - 1,072.02 2,812.22 1,422.11  3,017.97 9,650.82
Borrowings 2,466.16 508.77 945.88 2544.94 5760.12 5,647.18 11,402.99 36,758.45 9,980.68  8,262.62 84271.79
Foreign Currency - 203.06 - - - 33.30 181.80 1,738.45 - - 2,156.61
liabilities
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

53 Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (As amended from
time to time)

XVI) Exposure

a) Exposure to Real Estate Scctor
Rs. in crore
Asat Asat

Category March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

i) Direct exposure
a) Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by morigages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure  1,291.89 630.15
would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits

b) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by morigages on commercial real eslah:s (ul'ﬁ:u buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, 50.01 50.17
multi-family residential buildings, multi- ted ises, indusirial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and ¢ ion, etc.). Exp would also |nt:lud|: non- fund based (NFB) limits.

¢) Investments in Mortgage Backed Sccurities (MBS) and other securitized exposures -
a.  Residential a -
b.  Commercial Real Estate - -

i) Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based ¢xposures on National Housing Bank and Housing Finance Companies. 17.93 2591
Total Exposure to Real Estate Scetor 1,359.83 706.23

b) Exposure to Capital Market

Rs. in crore
As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
(i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus 126.85 42.63
of which is nol exclusively invested in corporate debt*
(i)  Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares - -
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds
(i)  Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or conventible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual - -
funds are taken as primary security
{(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - -
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.c. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds docs not fully cover the advances
v) S d and d ad to stockbrokers and g issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers # -

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other sccurities or on clean basis for meeting - -
promoter’s contribution 1o the equity of ncw companies in anticipation of raising resources

(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -

(viit) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - -
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds

(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading - -
(x) All exposures to Altemative Investment Funds:
i) Category 1 = &
ii) Category Il - -
iii) Category I = =

[ 12685 42.63
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
c) Sectoral exposure
Rs. in erore
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total Gross Percentage| Total Gross Percentage
Exposure NPAs  of Gross Exposure NPAs  of Gross
(includes on NPAsto| (includeson NPAs to
balance sheet total| balance sheet total
and off- exposure and ofl- exposure
S balance sheet in that| balance sheet in that,
ectors
exposure) sector| exposure) sector|
1) Agriculture & allied activities 17,098.73 901.42 5.3% 15,588.35 720.86 4.6%
2) Industry
i) Micro and Small 2,796.47 3494 1.2% 2,070.57 17.50 0.8%
i1) Medium 1,219.63 1.52 0.1% 554,70 1.29 0.2%
iii) Large 669.92 0.15 0.0% 749.08 0.01 0.0%
iv) Others - Trade advances to Dealers 3,197.47 8.39 0.3% 2,879.10 6.87 0.2%
Total of Industry 7,883.49 45.00 0.6% 6,253.45 25,66 0.4%
3) Services
i) Transport Operators . 23,405.07  1,12030 4.8% 29,34033  1,259.11 43%
ii) Others 1,462.52 28.46 1.9% 1,438.06 2431 1.7%
Total of Services 24,867.59  1,148.76 4.6% 30,778.39  1,283.42 4.2%
4) Retail / Personal loans
i) Consumer Durables 53.31 0.23 0.4% 7838 5.59 1.1%
ii) Vehicle/Auto Loans 67,308.79  2,257.09 3.4% 4793009 141028 2.9%
iit) Personal loans 672.81 16.70 2.5% 427.72 5.52 1.3%
iv) Others 1,788.29 44.74 25% 1,540.39 39.57 2.6%
Total of Retail /Personal loans 69,823.20 2,318.76 3.3% 49.976.58  1,460.96 2.9%
5) Others (if any; to specify) - -
1,19,673.01  4,413.93 3.7% 1,02,596.77  3,490.90 3.4%
i) The disclosures as above shall be based on the scctor-wisc and industry-wise bank credit (SIBC) return submitted by scheduled rcial banks to the Reserve Bank and published by Reserve

Bank as ‘Sectoral Deployment of Bank Credit’.

i) In the disclosures as above, if within a sector, exposure to 2 specific sub-sectorfindustry is more than 10 per cent of Tier I Capital of a NBFC, the same shall be disclosed separately within that
scctor. Further, within a sector, if exposure to specific sub-sectorfindustry is less than 10 per cent of Tier I Capilal, such exposures shall be clubbed and disclosed as “Others” within that sector.

d) Intra-group exposures
Rs. in erore
Yearended | Yearended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
i) Total amount of intra-group exposures 1630.26 1532.87
ii) Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 1630.26 1532.87
iii) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 1.25% 1.36%
e) Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Details of its unhedged foreign currency exposures :
As at March 31, 2025:Nil
As at March 31, 2024-Nil

Policies to manage currency induced risk:

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate duc to changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arise majorly on account of foreign currency
borrowings. The Company's forcign currency exposures are managed in accordance with its Foreign Exchange Risk M Policy which has been approved by its Board of
Dircctors. The Company its foreign y risk by entering mnto forward contract and cross currency swaps.

XVII) Related Party Disclosure (refer Annexure - 1)
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Contined)
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

XVIII) Disclosure of complaints
a) Summary information on complainis received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

XIX)

XX)

XXI)

Sr no Particulars Year ended  Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints peading at beginning of the year 405 158
2 Number of complaints received during the year 43174 17857
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 40024 17610
31 OF which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - _
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 3,555 405
Maintainable complaints reccived by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5% Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 1737 853
5.1 ©OF 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 528 262
5.2 OF 5, number of complaints resolved through iliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman 428 299
5.3 OF 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC - 1
6 Number of Awards unimpl ted within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) = =

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 {Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking

Financial Companies, 2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

* It shall only be applicable to NBFCS which are included under The Reserve Bank - Int d Ombud

1 Scl , 2021

b) Top five grounds of complaints reccived by the NBFCs from customers
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints relating Number of Number of % increase/ deerease in | Number of kaints | Or5, ber of plaint
to) complaints pending ¥ received the number of complaints | pending at (he end of pending beyond 30 days
al the beginning ol during the year received over the previous the year
the year year

Year ended March 31, 2025
Loan and advances 122 25396 148% 1404 194
Levy of charges without prior notice/ excessive char, 12 3908 364% 684 16
StafT behaviour 111 2583 1% 612 387
Fraud 42 1643 233% 447 259
|Difficulty in operation of accounts 2 B8O 215% 45 22
Others 116 8764 123% 363 226
Total 405 43174 142% 3555 1,104
Year ended March 31, 2024
Loan and advances 88 10238 -8% 122 7
Levy of charges without prior notice/ excessive charg 1 843 -31% 12 %
Staff behaviour 46 2565 13%| 111 16
Fixed deposit related - 32 -35% 3 -
Difficulty in operation of accounts - 279 1368% 2.00 -
Others 23 3900 115% 158 12
Total 158 17857 8% 405 35

Breach of covenant

During the current year and previous year there is no i of breach of t of loan availed or debl securities issued,

Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning
Disclosure of details of divergence, if either or both of the following conditions are satisfied.
a) the additional p ioning requi

and impairment loss on financial i for the

period, or

b) the additional Gross NPAs identificd by RBI/NHB exceeds 5 per cent of the reporied Gross NPAs for the reference period.

d by RBI {or National Housing Bank(NHB) in the case of Housing Finance Companies) exceeds 5 percent of the reporied profits before tax

As per the RBI inspection report for the reference period March 31, 2024, the assessment of Divergence in Assct Classification and Provisioning is below the threshold as defined under a) and b)

abave and hence the details as required in tabular form is not presented here.

Disclosure for NBFCs-UL

Mandatory listed within three years of identification as NBFC-UL - Not Applicable for the Company

XXII) Loan to Dircctors, Senior Officers and Relatives of Directors

i} Directors and their relatives
i) Entilies assacialed with directors and their relatives

iz1)_Senior officers and their relatives

Year ended | Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2028

2024




Mahindra & Mahindra Financidl Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

53

Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Dircctions, 2023 (As amended from time to time)

XXIII) Public disclosure on liquidity risk :

a

b

<)

d)

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

As at March 31, 2025
Sr. Type of instrument Number of Amount % of Total % of Total
no. Significant (Rs. in deposits Liabilities
Counterparties crore)
1 Deposits Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 Borrowings 19 72,670.65 637.2% 62.8%
As at March 31, 2024
Sr. Type of instrument Number of Amount % of Total % of Total
no. Significant (Rs. in deposits Liabilities
Counterparties  ¢rore)
1 Deposits Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 Borrowings 19 60,013.25 836.5% 61.90%
Top 20 large deposits {(amount in Rs. in crore and % of total deposits)
As at March 31, 2025
Description Amount % of Total
(Rs. in crore)  deposits
Total for Top 20 large deposits 3,229.25 28.3%
As at March 31, 2024
Description Amount % of Total
(Rs. in crore)  deposits
Total for Top 20 large deposits 963.28 12.8%
Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs, in crore and % of total borrowings)
As at March 31, 2025
Description Amount % of Total
(Rs. in crore) borrowings
Total for Top 10 borrowings 59,289.58 52.53%
As at March 31, 2024
Description Amount % of Total
(Rs. in crore) borrowings
Total for Top 10 borrowings 48,642.29 51.76%

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product*

Sr. Name of the instrument/product
no.

1 Non-convertible debentures (Secured)

2 Term loans from banks (including FCNR loans)

3 Extemmal Commercial Borrowings

4 Associated liabilitics in respect of sccuritization transactions

5 Triparty repo dealing and settlement (TREPs) against Government securiti

6 Deposits

7 Subordinated redeemable non-convertible debentures
8 Commercial Papers (Unsecured)

9 Inter-corporate deposits (ICDs)

Funding Concentration pertaining to insignificant instruments/products
Total borrowings under all instruments/products

As at March 31, 2025

Amount
(Rs. in crore)

24,051.35
52,998.12
7,022.09
8,684.41
999.82
11,404.15
5,529.57
2,153.48
1,12,842,99
30.48
1,12,873.47

% of Total
liabilities

20.78%
45,79%
6.07%
7.50%
0.86%
9.85%
4.78%
1.86%

97.50%
0.03%
91.53%

As at March 31, 2024
Amount % of Total
(Rs. in crore) linbilities
2281491 2343%
44,790.86  46.00%
2,156.61 221%
5,597.66 5.75%
1,534.71 1.58%
7,544.18 1.75%
4.270.15 4.39%
4,882.12 5.01%
S 0.00%
93,591.20 96.12%
387.38 0.40%
93,978.58 96.52%

*The amount stated in this disclosure is based on the audited financial statements for the years cndcd March 31,2025 and Man:h 31,2024,

** Top counterparty and top 20 deposits are arrived excluding interest accrued.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

53  Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023 (As amended from time to time) (Continued)

XXIII) Public disclosure on liquidity risk : (continued)

¢) Stock Ratios

As at March 31, 2025
Sr. Name of the instrument/product Amount % oftotal % of total % of total
no, (Rs. in crore) public funds  liabilitics assels
a) Commercial papers (CPs) 2,153.48 1.91% 1.86% 1.59%
b) Non-convertible debentures (NCDs) with original maturity of less than | year Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) Other short-term liabilitics 422493 3.74% 3.65% 3.12%
As at March 31, 2024
Sr. Name of the instrument/product Amount % oftotal % of total % of total
no, (Rs. in crore) public funds  liabilities assefs
a) Commercial papers (CPs) 4,882.12 5.19% 5.01% 4.23%
b) Non-convertible debentures (NCDs) with original maturity of less than 1 year Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) Other short-term liabilities 3,624.55 3.86% 3.72% 3.15%
N [Institutional set-up for liquidity risk ent

The Liquidity Risk Management framework of the Company is govemed by its Liquidity Risk Management Policy and Procedures
approved by the Board. The Asset Liability Committec of the Board (ALCO) and Asset Liability Management Committee (ALMCO)

oversee the impler tion of liquidity risk manag, strategy of the Company and ensure adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by
the Board.

The Company maintains a robust funding profile with no undue concentration of funding sources. In order (o ensure a dwcrslﬁcd
borrowing mix, concentration of borrowing through various sources is monitored. The Company maintains a positive c lative 1 h

in all buckets, As on March 31, 2025, the Company maintained a liquidity buffer of approximately Rs.10,434 crore.

Definition of terms as used in the table above:

a) Significant counterparty:
A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterpartics accounting in aggregate
for more than 1% of the NBFC's total liabilitics.

b) Significant instrument/product:

A "Significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate
amount to more than 1% of the NBFC's total liabilities.

¢) Toual liabilities:
Total liabilities include all extemnal liabilities (other than equity).

d) Public funds:
“Public funds" includes funds raised either directly or indirectly through public deposits, inter-corporate deposits, bank finance and all
funds received from outside sources such as funds raised by issue of Commercial Papers, Debentures ete. but excludes funds raiscd by

issuc of instruments compulsorily convertible inte equity shares within a period not exceeding 5 years from the date of issue.
[t includes total borrowings outstanding under all types of instruments/products.

¢) Other short-term liabilities:
All short-term borrowings other than CPs and NCDs with original maturity less than 12 months.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Jfor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

54  Disclosure as required under Guidelines on Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress issued by RBI

During the year ended March 31, 2022, to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress, the Company had invoked resolution plans for eligible borrowers
based on the parameters laid down in accordance with the resolution policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the

guidelines issued by the RBL

i) Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August 2020 and RBI2 021-
22/31/DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 5, 2021

Format - B: For the half year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore
Type of borrower Exposure to Of (A), Of (A) amount Of(A) amount  Exposure to
accounts aggregate debt writien off paid by the accounts
classified as  that slipped into during the half-  borrowers classified as
Standard NPA during the year during the half-  Standard
consequent to half-year year consequent to
implementation implementation
of resolution plan of resolution
— Position as at plan — Position
the end of the as at the end of
previous half- this half-year *
year B) (©) (D) (E)
(A)
Personal Loans 112,70 13.54 0.94 40.56 57.66
Corporate persons » 4.70 - - 4.70 -
Of which, MSMEs - & - ~ _
Others - =
- Vehicle loans for commercial purpose 145.49 13.04 2.04 58.99 71.42
Total 262.89 26.58 2.98 104.25 129.08

~ As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
* In respect of OTR 2.0, above includes restructuring implemented till September 30, 2021
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Mabhindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Sfor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

54  Disclosure as required under Guidelines on Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress issued by RBX

During the year ended March 31, 2022, to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress, the Company had invoked resolution plans for eligible borrowers
based on the parameters laid down in accordance with the resolution policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the

guidelines issued by the RBI.

i) Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RB1/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August 2020 and RBI2 021-
22/31/DOR.STR.REC.11 /21.04.048/2021-22 dated 5 May, 2021

Format - B: For the half year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in crore
Type of borrower Exposure to Of (A), Of (A) amount Of(A) amount  Exposure to
accounts aggregate debt written offl paid by the accounts
classified as  that slipped inte during the half-  borrowers classified as
Standard NPA during the year during the half-  Standard
consequent to half-year year conscquent to
implementation implementation
of resolution plan of resolution
— Position as at plan — Pesition
the end of the as at the end of
previous half- this half-year *
year (B) <) (D) (E)
(A)
Personal Loans 327.36 14.18 1.76 111.18 200.24
Corporate persons 21.85 - - 6.33 15.52
Ofwhich, MSMEs - - - _ R
Others - >
- Vehicle loans for commercial purpose 469.85 17.23 6.40 176.62 269.60
Total 819.06 31.41 8.16 294.13 485.36

" As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
* In respect of OTR 2.0, above includes restructuring implemented till September 30, 2021
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

55

impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109

Year ended March 31, 2025

Disclosures Pursuant To Master Direction — Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023 (As amended From Time To Time)

i) A comparison between provisions required under extant prudential nerms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) and

Rs. in crore
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Assct Gross Loss Net Carrying Gross  Provisions  Difference
classification Carrying  Allowances Amount Carrying required as between Ind
as per [nd Amount as per (Provisions) Amount as per per IRACP AS 109
AS 109 Ind AS  as required IRACP norms  provisions
under Ind and IRACP
AS 109 norms
(1 (2 (3) (4) (5F(3)-4) (6) (M=(4-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage | 1,08,747.49 598.48 1,08,149.01 1,08,118.05 432.77 165.71
Stage 2 6,511.58 602.48 5,909.10 4,.813.37 19.26 583,22
Subtotal for standard 1,15,259.07 1,200.96  1,14,058.11  1,12,931.43 452.03 748.93
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 2,58743 924,28 1,663.15 4,226.39 438.85 48543
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 1,182.09 690.59 491.50 1,322.77 595.59 95.00
1 to 3 years Stage 3 479.66 479.70 (0.04) 475.48 319.97 159.73
More than 3 years Stage 3 1.22 1.16 0.06 0.94 0.93 0.23
Subtotal for doubtful 1,662.97 1,171.45 491.52 1,799.19 916.49 254.96
Loss Stage 3 163.54 162.31 1.22 150.75 150.75 11.56
Subtotal for NPA  Stage 3 4,413.94 2,258.04 2,155.89 6,176.34 1,506.10 751.95
Subtotal for Business Assets 1,19,673.01 3,459.00  1,16,214.01  1,19,107.76 1,958.13 1,500.88
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc.  Stage | 10.28 56.64 (46.35) 10.28 56.64 -
|which arc in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered Stage 2 1.33 0.02 1.30 1.33 0.02 R
under current Income Recognition, Asset Classification '
and Provisioning (IRACP) norms Staged 08 041 aar 0.98 0.41 B
Subtotal 12.59 57.07 (44 47 12.59 57.07 -
Total  Stage 1 1,08,757.77 655.12 1,08,102.66 1,08,128.34 489.41 165.71
Stage 2 6,512.91 602.50 5,910.41 4,814.70 19.28 583.22
Stage 3 4,414.92 2,258.45 2,156.47 6,177.32 1,506.50 751.95
Total 1,19,685.60 3,516.07 1,16,169.53 1,19.120.35 2,015.19 1,500.88




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Sfor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

55

impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109 (Continued)

Year ended March 31, 2024

Disclosure as required under RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020
on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

i} A comparison between provisions required under extant prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) and

Rs. in crore
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Asset Gross Loss Net Carrying Gross  Provisions  Difference
classification Carrying  Allowances Amount Carrying rtequired as between Ind
as per Ind Amount as per (Provisions) Amount as per per IRACP AS 109
AS 109 Ind AS as required IRACP norms  provisions
under Ind and IRACP
AS 109 norms
(n )] (3) ) (5)=03)-@ 6) (7)=(4)-(6)
Performing Assets .
Standard Stage 1 93,946.14 606.40 93,339.74 93,759.90 375.04 231.36
Stage 2 5,159.73 590.25 4,569.48 3,983.02 16.37 573.88
Subtotal for standard i 99,105.87 1,196.65 97,909.22 97,742.92 391.41 805.24
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,551.19 663.18 B88.01 243839 275.85 387.33
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 1,103.85 705.90 397.95 1,490.90 693,73 12.17
1 to 3 years Stage 3 669.62 669.62 - 672,81 493.54 176.08
More than 3 years Stage 3 5.63 5.63 - 5.63 5.59 0.04
Subtotal for doubtful 1,779.10 1,381.15 397.95 2,169.34 1,192.86 188.29
Loss Stage 3 160.61 160.61 - 246.12 246.12 (85.51)
Subtotal for NPA 3,490.90 2,204.94 1,285.96 4,853.85 1,714.83 490.11
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc.  Stage | 22.13 55.32 (33.18) 22,13 55.32 -
which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered  Stage 2 2.28 0.05 223 2.28 0.05 -
under current Income Recognition, Asset Classification  Stage 3 0.61 0.16 0.44 0.61 0.16 -
and Provisioning (IRACP) norms
Subtotal 25.02 55.53 (30.51) 25.02 55.53 -
Total Stage1 93,968.27 661.72 93,306.56 93,782.03 430.36 231.36
Stage 2 5,162.01 590.30 4,571.711 3,985.30 16.42 573.88
Stage 3 3,491.51 2,205.10 1,286.40 4,854.46 1,714.99 490.11
Total 1,02,621.79 3,457.12 99,164.67 1,02,621.79 2,161.77 1,295.35




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

55

Disclosure as required under RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13,2020
on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

i) A comparison between provisions required under extant prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) and
impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109 (Continued)

Since the total impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 is higher than the total provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning) as at
March 31, 2025 and March 31 2024, no amount is required to be transferred to ‘Impairment Reserve’ for both the financial years. The gross carrying amount of
asset as per Ind AS 109 and Loss allowances (Provisions) thereon includes interest accrual on net carrying value of stage - 3 assets as permitted under Ind AS 109,
While, the provisions required as per IRACP norms dees not include any such interest as interest accrual on NPAs is not permitted under IRACP norms.

The balance in the ‘Impairment Reserve’ (as and when created) shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital. Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this
reserve without prior permission from the Department of Supervision, RBI.

ii) As at March 31, 2025 and March 31 2024, there were no loan accounts that are past due beyond 90 days but not treated as impaired, i.e. all 90+ DPD ageing loan
accounts have been classified as Stage-3 and no dispensation is considered in stage-3 classification.

iii) Policy for sales / transfers out of amortized cost business model portfolios

Sale/ transfer of portfolios out of amortized cost business model:
As a short-term financing arrangement, the Company has been transferring or selling certain pools of fixed rate loan receivables backed by underlying assets in the
form of tractars, vehicles, equipments elc. by entering in to securitization transactions with the Special Purpose Vehicle Trusts ("SPV Trust") sponsored by
Commercial banks for consideration received in cash at the inception of the transaction. As a part of annual budgetary planning and with the objective of better
liquidity and risk management, the Company, at the beginning of the year, obtains approval of Asset Liability Committee and Risk Management Committec of the
Board of Directors for undertaking securitization transactions of certain value of standard assets comprising the collateral based loan receivables at appropriate
times during the year.

These transactions are carried out after complying with RBI guidelines on securitization of standard assets. The consideration received through such securitization
transactions is utilized for funding regular vehicle loan disbursements to customers who service their loans through fixed instalments over a specified period of loan
tenor. Besides using securitization as allernate financing tool, it is also being used as a effective Balance sheet management through betier liquidity and risk
management by transfer of assets from risk averse to risk takers.

When the assets in the form of loan receivables are sold / transferred to an SPV/Bank through securitization transaction, then on a consolidated portfolio level, such
sale/transfer does not change the Company's business objective of holding financial assets to collect contractual cash flows.

The Company remains exposed to credit risk, being the expected losses that will be incurred on the securitized loan portfolio to the extent of the credit
enhancement provided. Any increase in losses as compared to the expected loss shall require the Company to present its credit enhancement / cash collateral to help
compensate the investors This is as per the requirement of the Reserve Bank of India. Thus, the Company as per Ind AS 109 has retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Accordingly, these financial assets are not de-recognized by the Company from the financial statements prepared under Ind AS. Since the contractual terms of these
financial assets give rise to cash flows, that are solely payments of principal and interest, on specified dates, these assets meet the SPPI criterion and are thus
continued to be recognized in the books at amortized cost.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Sfor the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

56  During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has made a contribution of Rs. 21.00 crore to New Democratic Electoral Trust, a Trust approved
by the Central Board of Direct Taxes under Electoral Trust Scheme, 2013 to enable Electoral Trust to make contributions to political party/parties
duly registered with the Election Commission, in such manner and at such times as it may decide from time to time. This contribution was as per the
provisions of section 182 of the Companics Act, 2013. There was no such contribution made during the year ended March 31, 2024

57 [Events after the reporting date

There have been no other events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

58  Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 58
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Ltd
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Mahindra &
Mahindra Financial Services Limited ("the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its share of net profit after tax and total
comprehensive income of its associate and joint ventures, which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures referred to in the Other Matters
section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, the relevant circulars, guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) from time to time ('RBI Guidelines’) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,
2025, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group, its associate and joint ventures in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
SS'I%Q%

¢ FRN: \
I

(7 o)
<-,!-—'-‘7 V100672 ° Egjj
\ .}gi,‘mr.\u;f/

1




M M Nissim & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us along with the consideration of audit report of the other auditor referred to in the ‘Other
Matter’ paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

A. Key Audit Matters for Parent

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Standalone Financial Statements)

Impairment of loans and advances to customers
(Refer Note 2 for material accounting policies and Note 50.2 for credit risk disclosures of the

As at March 31, 2025, the Parent has reported
gross loan assets of ¥ 1,19,673.02 crores against
which an impairment loss of Z 3,459 crores has
been recorded. The Parent recognized
impairment provision for loan assets based on
the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") approach laid
‘Ind AS 109 -

down under Financial

Instruments’.

The estimation of ECL on financial instruments
involves significant management judgement
and estimates and the use of different
modelling techniques and assumptions which
could have a material impact on reported
profits. Significant management judgement and
assumptions involved in measuring ECL is
required with respect to:

> ensuring completeness and accuracy of the
data used to create assumptions in the
model.

> determining the criteria for a significant

increase in credit risk.

Our audit included assessing the
appropriateness of management’s judgment
and estimates used in the impairment
analysis through procedures that included,

but were not limited to, the following:

e Obtained an wunderstanding of the
modelling techniques adopted by the
Parent including the key inputs and
assumptions;

e Considered the Parent's accounting
policies for estimation of Expected Credit
Loss on loans and assessing compliance
with the policies in terms of Ind AS 109;

¢ Obtained an understanding of the

management's  updated  processes,
systems and controls implemented in
relation to impairment allowance
process.
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» factoring in future economic assumptions
techniques used to determine probability of
default, loss given default and exposure at
default.

These parameters are derived from the Parent's
internally developed statistical models and
other historical data.

Disclosure

The disclosures regarding the Parent’s
application of Ind AS 109 are key to explaining
the key judgements and material inputs to the
ECL results. Further, disclosures to be provided
as per RBI circulars with regards to Non-
Performing Assets and provisions is also an area

of focus.

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the overall financial statements and
extent estimates and
judgements involved, it required significant
auditor attention. Accordingly, we have
identified this as a key audit matter.

of management's

Accuracy of the computation of the ECL
estimate including reasonableness of the
methodology and assumption used to
determine macro-economic overlays;

Tested the
effectiveness

design and operating
of key controls over
completeness and accuracy of the key
inputs and assumptions considered for
calculation, recording, monitoring of the
impairment loss recognized and staging
of assets.;

Assessed the critical assumptions and
input data used in the estimation of
Expected Credit Loss models for specific
key credit risk parameters, such as the
movement logic between stages,
Exposure at default (EAD), probability of
default (PD) or loss given default (LGD);

Evaluated the reports and working for
the methodology wused in the
computation of Through The Cycle PD,
Point In Time PD and LGD, among
others;

Performed test of details over calculation
of ECL, in relation to the completeness
and accuracy of the data;

Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they believe
significant  assumptions used in
calculation of expected credit losses are
reasonable;

Assessed the appropriateness and
adequacy of the related presentation and
disclosures of Note 50 “Financial Risk

Management”  disclosed in  the
Standalone financial statements in
accordance  with  the  applicable
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accounting standards and related RBI
circulars and Resolution Framework.

Information Technology and General Controls

The Parent is highly dependent upon its
Information Technology (IT) systems for
carrying out its operations and owing to the
significant volume of transactions that are
processed daily basis as part of the operations,
which impacts key financial accounting and
reporting. The Parent has put in place the IT
General Controls and application controls to
ensure that the information produced by the
Parent is complete, accurate and reliable.
Among other things, the Management also uses
the information produced by the entity’s IT
systems for accounting and preparation and the
presentation of the of the financial statements.

Since our audit strategy included focus on
entity’s key IT systems relevant to our audit due
to their potential pervasive impact on the
financial statements, we have determined the
use of IT systems and related control
environment for accounting and financial
reporting as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures for assessment of the
IT systems and controls over financial
reporting, which includes carrying out the
key audit procedures, but were not limited
to the following:

e Obtained an understanding of the
Parent’s key IT systems, IT General
Controls which covered access controls,
program/ system changes, program
development and computer operations
ie., job processing, data/ system backup
and  incident management and
application controls relevant to our audit.

o Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the general IT
controls over the key IT systems that are
critical to financial reporting. This
included evaluation of entity’s controls to
ensure segregation of duties and access
rights being provisioned / modified
based on duly approved requests, access
for exit cases being revoked in a timely
manner and access of all users being re-
certified during the period of audit.

e Tested application controls (automated
controls), related interfaces and report
logic for system generated reports
relevant to the audit of loans, expenses,
payroll, borrowings and investment
among  others, for  evaluating
completeness and accuracy and;

e Tested compensating controls or
performed alternate procedures to assess
whether there were any unaddressed IT
risks that would impact the controls or
completeness and accuracy of data.
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We have also relied on IS and other
technology audits conducted during the
year.

B. Key Audit Matters for Subsidiary Companies ~ Key Matters reported by the Auditors of
Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Ltd. for the year ended March 31, 2025

Key Audit Matter

I Auditor’s Response

Impairment of loans and advances

The subsidiary has recognized impairment
loss allowance of Rs. 460.29 crores in its
Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
2024- 25. The subsidiary has maintained
impairment provisions amounting to Rs.
609.78 crores as at March 31, 2025,

Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
allowance for loan losses are determined
using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The
estimation of impairment loss allowance on
financial instruments involves significant
judgement and estimates. The key areas
where we identified greater levels of
judgement and therefore
increased levels of audit focus in the
subsidiary’s estimation of ECLs are:

e Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires several data inputs. This
increases the risk that the data has been
used to derive assumptions in the model,
which are used for ECL calculations, may
not be complete and accurate.

o Model estimations Inherently
judgmental models are used to estimate
ECL which involves determining
Exposures at  Default (“EAD"),
Probabilities of Default (“FD") and Loss
Given Default (“LGD”). The PD and the
LGD are the key drivers of estimation
complexity in the ECL and as a result are

the most significant

judgmental aspect of the Subsidiary’s
modelling approach.

management

considered

e Economic scenarios - Ind AS 109 requires
the Subsidiary to measure ECLs on an
unbiased forward- looking basis

Key audit procedures included:

Performed end to end process
walkthroughs identify the key
systems, applications and controls used
in the impairment loss

fo

allowance
processes. Tested the relevant general IT
and application controls over key
systems used in the impairment loss

allowance process.

Assessed the design and implementation
of controls in respect of the Subsidiary’s
impairment allowance process such as
the timely recognition of impairment
loss, the completeness and accuracy of
reports used in the
allowance process and management
review processes over the calculation of
impairment allowance and the related

impairment

disclosures on credit risk management.

Testing management’s controls over
authorization and calculation of post
model adjustments and management
overlays, if any.

Evaluated whether the methodology
the
compliance of the relevant accounting
standards and confirmed that the
calculations are performed in accordance
with the approved methodology,
checking mathematical accuracy of the

applied by Subsidiary is in

workings.

Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calculations
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reflecting a range of future economic
conditions. During the year, the
Subsidiary has engaged an industry
expert to assist it in review and updation
of the ECL model.
The underlying forecasts and assumptions
used in the estimates of impairment loss
allowance are subject to uncertainties and
other macro-economic factors, which are
often outside the control of the Subsidiary.
Given the size of loan portfolio relative to the
balance sheet and the impact of impairment
allowance on the financial statements, the
subsidiary’s auditors have considered this as
a key audit matter.

to assess the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data and reasonableness of
periods considered, economic forecasts,
weights and model
applied.

assumptions

o Testing the ‘Governance Framework’
over validation, implementation and
model monitoring in line with the RBI
framework.

o Assessed whether the disclosures on key
judgements,
quantitative data

assumptions and
with respect to
impairment loss allowance in the
financial statements are appropriate and

sufficient.

o Obtained management representations
wherever considered necessary.

IT Systems and Controls

The Subsidiary has separate software
applications for management of its loan
portfolio from origination to servicing and
closure and for the routine accounting,
Transfer of data from / to these applications
is critical for accurate compilation of financial
information. Further, the Subsidiary’s
financial accounting and reporting processes
are dependent on information systems
including automated controls in systems,
such that there exists a risk that gaps in the IT
control environment could result in the
financial accounting and reporting records
being misstated. The Subsidiary’s auditors
have identified ‘IT systems and controls’ as
key audit matter because of the high-level
automation, number of systems being used
by the management and the inherent risks/
complexity of the IT architecture.

The Subsidiary’s auditor performed the
following key audit procedures:

e Performed control testing on user access
management, management,
segregation of duties, system and system
application controls over key financial
accounting and reporting systems.

change

e Tested key controls operating over
information technology in relation to
financial accounting reporting
systems, including system access and

and

system change management, program
development and computer operations.
o Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over user
access management which includes
granting access / right, new user
creation, removal of user rights.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Parent's Boards Report
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10.

including annexures to the Boards Report (including annexures thereto) and Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MDé&A"”) (collectively referred to as “Other Information”), but
does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.
The Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s
Report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the Other Information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Other Information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the the
Parent’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associate and joint
ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including
the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, RBI Guidelines and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the
Group are responsible.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Board of Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective management and Board
of Directors of the companies in the Group, its associate and joint ventures are responsible
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for assessing the ability of respective companies, its associate and joint ventures to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

11. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, its associate and
joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

o  Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls based on our audit;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management;

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group, its associate and joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
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report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group, its associate and joint ventures to cease to continue
as a going concerry;

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation; and

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group, its associate and joint ventures to express
an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely res'ponsible for our audit opinion.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities

14.

15.

included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and are therefore the Key Audit Matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

16.

We did not audit the financial statements of six subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 9,454.44 crores as at March 31, 2025, total revenue (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 662.96 crores and total net loss after tax (before
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17.

18.

19.

consolidation adjustments) of Rs. (133.33) crores and net cash inflows of Rs. 163.69 crores for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These
financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net (loss) after tax of
Rs. (4.89) crores and total comprehensive loss of Rs. (4.99) crores for the year ended March
31, 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of two joint
ventures. One joint venture has been audited by other auditors and the other has been
audited by M. P. Chitale & Co., one of the joint auditors of the Parent, whose report has been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
joint ventures, is based solely on the report of the other auditors and the procedures
performed by us as stated under Auditor’s Responsibilities section above.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit after tax
of Rs. 70.11 crores and total comprehensive income of Rs. 70.11 crores for the year ended
March 31, 2025, in respect of an associate, based on their financial statements which have not
been audited by their auditors. According to the information and explanations given to us
by the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on “Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors and the financial
statements certified by the Management.

These Consolidated Financial Statements include the figures for the year ended March 31,
2024 which were audited by predecessor auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion as
relevant on those Consolidated Financial Statements vide their audit report dated May 04,
2024. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

20.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint ventures referred
to in the ‘Other Matters section’ above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements;

10
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of the other auditor, except for the matters
stated in paragraph 18(g)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the Rules”);

(c) The Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with

the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the IND AS

specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(€) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors of the Parent, and

Y

taken on records by the Board of Directors of the Parent and the records of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors are
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Parent and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure I
wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act. Based on auditor’s report of respective subsidiary companies and
joint ventures incorporated in India, the company has paid remuneration to its directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of report of the other auditor on the separate financial
statements of the subsidiary as noted in other matter paragraph:

The Consolidated Financial Statements discloses the impact of pending litigations the
consolidated financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 44 to the Consolidated
Financial Statement;

ii. The Group has made provision as on March 31, 2025 as required under the applicable

law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
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iv.

contracts including derivative contracts as detailed in Note 47 to the Consolidated
Financial Statement;

During the year, the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India, has regularly transferred the required amounts to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund as detailed in Note 20 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries and joint ventures

()

which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of
such subsidiaries, and joint ventures respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such
subsidiaries and joint ventures to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manmner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries, and joint
ventures (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries as disclosed in Note 37(vi) to the
Consclidated Financial Statement;

The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries and joint ventures
which are companies incorporated in India, whose Financial Statements have
been audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of
such subsidiaries and joint ventures respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts no
funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint ventures from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
or any of such subsidiaries, and joint ventures shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries as disclosed
in Note 37(vi) to the Consolidated Financial Statement;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries and joint ventures which are companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation under
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sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contains any material misstatement.

v. The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Parent
during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

As stated in Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of
the Parent have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of
the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Such dividend proposed is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Parent has used various
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, which have operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software, except in respect of customer masters in
two accounting software wherein earlier value is not retained, databases maintained in
two accounting software where the audit trail feature was not enabled for part of the
year and five accounting software where the audit trail feature at the database level
(DML logs) was not enabled throughout the year to log any direct data changes. Based
on our procedures performed, we did not notice any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with. In respect of the aforesaid masters and databases, in the absence
of audit trail for the said period, the question of our commenting on whether the audit
trail was tampered with, does not arise. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved
by the Parent as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Based on the examination which included test checks performed by the respective
auditors of subsidiary companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Subsidiary companies
and joint ventures have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software,
except for the below mentioned exceptions by one of the subsidiary company’s auditor.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Subsidiary has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, which have operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that the audit trail log for any
change at direct data base level is not preserved for the period April 2024 to September
2024. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of
the audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of accounting software. The
Subsidiary has not preserved audit trail logs for the previous year at a database level.
Except these exceptions, the audit trail log has been preserved by the Subsidiary in
accordance with statutory record retention requirements.

21. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies Auditor's Report Order, 2020 (“CARO”/ “the Order”) issued by the Central
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Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of
respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report
that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO
reports of the said companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, except for
the following in the Parent’s Standalone Financial Statements.

a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees” State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the
Company. As explained to us, the Company does not have any dues on account of Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise and Value Added Tax.

The following undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund are in arrears
as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable:
Name of | Nature of | Amount | Period to | Due Date of | Remarks
the the Dues due in | which the | Date payment
Statute Rs. amount (if paid)
relates
Provident | PF 14,85,672 | April 2022 - | Various | - Due to
Fund Contribution September | due pending
2024 dates Aadhar
Seeding of
employees

b. To the best of our knowledge, report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act has been filed by the predecessor Joint Statutory Auditor in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government
on June 12, 2024.

For M M Nissim & Co. LLP For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 107122W/W100672 - Firm Regn. No.101851W

. j%\‘ W{ Jm ’ /

Kol 2 s { 1or12aWi
P} WA ‘ .
/ HA e - {2y Win0e72

— \To MUMBAI §’
Sanjay Khemani \’\"jééﬁfo\}i/ Ashutosh Pednekar
Partner S Partner
Membership No.: 044577 Membership No.: 041037
UDIN: 25044577BMOBDN5486 UDIN: 25041037BMLWNT7506
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbeai
Date: April 22, 2025 Date: April 22, 2025
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IIIJ‘I

Annexure

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

referred to in paragraph 18 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Ltd of even
date:

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Mahindra &
Mahindra Financial Services Ltd (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”), its subsidiary companies,
and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India, as of March 31, 2025, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements
of Group, as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, and joint ventures which are
companies incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Parent considering the essential component
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the ‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls of the Parent and
its subsidiary companies and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India, with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, and Guidance Note issued by the ICAI Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
these Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the subsidiary companies, and joint ventures, which are companies
incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A Company'’s internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, and joint ventures, which are companies
incorporated in India, have maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls established by the Parent considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements in so far as it relates to six subsidiary companies and two joint ventures, which are
company incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding report of the auditors of
such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For M M Nissim & Co. LLP For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 107122W/W100672 Firm Regn. No.101851W
.‘” S | c
\{ ’u; AN e . a( ﬂﬂ,,m/
Sanjay Khemani Ashutosh Pednekar
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 044577 Membership No.: 041037
UDIN: 25044577BMOBDN5486 UDIN: 25041037BMLWNT7506
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: April 22, 2025 Date: April 22, 2025
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Cansolidated Batance Sheet
as at March 31, 2025

Rs. incrore
Particatars

ASSETS

Financiat Assets
a) Cashand cash equivalerus
b} Bank balance other than {a) above
c) Dernvative financial instriments
d) iRecesvables
1} Trade receivables
10y Other receivables
¢) Loans
) Invesanents
‘) investments accounted ustng Bquity Method
uy Other investinants
g} Other financial assets

Moa-financial Aseets
a) Current b assets (Net)
kY Deferrc:d tax Assets (Net)
c) TFroperty, plant and equipment
d) Capital work-in-progress
e} Intangible assets under development
£} nher intangible assets
23} Other non-finznctal assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities
a) Derivative financsal mstruments
b)Y Payables
1) Trade Payables
1) total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises

Note

b W

# (i}
i)

Her (]
o)
H by
12 )
T2 bj
13

Total Assets

I8)
15

1i) totat outstanding dues of ¢rednors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprises

1y Other Payables
1) total owtstanding ducs of micro enlerprises and small enterprises

1) tota} cutstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterprises and smali enterprises

c] Debt Secunties

d) Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities)
e} Deposils

f) Subordinated Liabilities

g} Other financial Liabihtica

Non-Financiad 1isbilities
u} Currentiay Habilities (Net)
b)) Prowvisions
e} Other non-financial abihities

EQUITY
a} Cquiy Share Capsal
b) Other Equity
Equity attrdnzable to owners of the Company
Nan-coatrollmg inlerests

ta
17
14
19
20

[N
o

23

Totat Liabilities and Equity

The accompanying notes form an imtegeal part of the consolidated financial statements i 37

In terms of our report anached.
For M M Nissim & Co LLP

Chartered Accoumtants
Firm‘g Regisiration Na: 1071 22W/W100672

L
/ -
5
e

I g"
W R
L
Sanjay Kkemani E‘F
Fartrer £
Membership Na: 0443577

10712201
W100672

HUMBAL /&

For M I, Chitale & Co.
Chartercd Acconmanis
Firn's Registiztion No. 101851W

5{.1.%{"‘\ e -

Ashutosh Pednelar
Pariner

Membership No: 041037
b

April 22, 20235

As at

March 31,2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

1,830,258 903,54
4,016.95 3,171.55
30.95 -
246.69 17335
£,23,503.56 1.56.343.96
1,106.19 1.019.43
9,483.60 8.579.03
262.84 25158
1,40,491.03 { 90.442.44
736.36 73347
B28.55 $01.80
1,027.13 952,97
0.52 0.15

65.64 10544
179.82 24.99
77621 624.53
361423 3.273.35
14340526 123,715,179
391,61 33527
0.33 042
1,440.32 1,678 60
2.7 2.80

17487 61.71
29,561.90 30,984.91
71,753.53 56,943 87
11,373.97 7.533.19
6,103.84 4.753.46
1,042.44 $77.87
1,21,988.52 1,03.172.10
82.22 128 60
25694 254,73
204.89 185.50
54376 568,53
24698 246.88
2128248 10.686.37
21,529.46 19,933.25
43.52 3] 61
21,572.98 19,974 86
1,44,105.26 1.23.715.79

For and on belialf of the Board of Directors

Mahindes & Maliindra Financial Services Limited

; ;1_“:‘_ - !\ .
(_i;{)/v\_ L N O W (-

“"Be. Anish Shan
Chairman
fDIN: 02719429

radeep Kumar Agrawzl

Chief Financal Offfcer

Mumbaj
Apnil 22,2025

Ruul Rebello
Managing Dirvector & CECG -

[DIN 10052487)

3

Brijbala Batwal
Company Secrerary
Membership No FF5120



Mahbindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of profit and Joss
for the period ended March 31, 2025

Rs in crore

Particuiars Note Period ended Period ended
March 3, 225 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
i) Intercst income 2 £6,566.40 14,412.33
#) Dividend income N -
iti) Rental income 153.45 t15.40
w) Fees, charges and commission income 23 527.87 £84.32
v} Net gain on faic value chanpes 26 21.97 27.08
vi) Sale of services 27 1,191.51 1,057.66
vii} Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized cost catepory 1.90 -
I Totat Revenue from operations 18,463.10 15,796.85
1 Ctber income 28 67.36 173.47
1§ lotal income (E+18) 18,530.46 £5.970,32
Expenses
i) Finance costs 29 8,415.43 6,959,20
ii) Fees and conumnission expense £,045.23 867.84
) izpairment on financial instruments 30 2,085,536 1,955.75
) Lmployee benefits expenses 34 1.354.94 226144
vy Depreciation, amortization and impainment 32 32121 274,85
vi) Others expenses i3 1,346.61 111917
v Total expenses 15,568.78 13,438.25
v Profit before exceptional items, share of profit of associate and joint venture and tax (IIF-1V} 2,961.68 2.532.07
Vi Exceptional itams ' - R
v Share of Profit of Associate and Joint Veature 65.23 56.k1
VIt Profit before tax (V +VY1 + VIE) 3.026.91 2588 18
0.4 Tax expense ; ¢ fit}
i) Current tax 526,93 746,40
i1} Deferred tax (54.89} {70.97y
766,04 645,13
X Profit for the year (VII-1X) 2,260.87 1,943.05
Xi Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
{A) (i) tems tirat wilt not be reclassificd to profit or loss
-Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans {7.49) (8.81)
-Nat gain / (loss} on equity instrumients through OCI 84.26 -
- Share of other comprehensive incomne / (10ss) of equity accounted investees {0.10) {0.1%)
(ii} income tax impact thereon 94} (19.33) 223
Subtotal (A) 571.34 {6.73)
(B) (1) ftems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
-Exchange differences in teanstating the financial statemens of foreign eperations 3.36 B3
-Net gain / {loss} on debt instruments through OC! 97.38 71.58
-Effective partion of gains and oss o1 designated portion of hedping instrwnents in a cash Oow hedge {62.23) (3.38)
-Share of other comprehensive income / (loss) of equity accounted investecs 71.64 10,93
(ii} Incomne tax impact thereon 9 i} (8.85) (17.26)
Subtotal (B} 5530 70,40
Other Comprehensive Income (A + 8) §08.64 63.67
XU TFotal Comprehensive Income for the year (X £ X1) 2.369.51 2,006.72
Profit for the vear attributable to:
Owners of the Company 1,261.87 1,932.69
Non-conrolling interests (1.8} 10.36
1,260.87 1,943.05
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Crwaers of the Company 107.23 60.26
Non-controlling interests 1.41 3,41
108.64 63.67
Total Cemprehensive Income fer the year attributable to:
Crwmers of the Company 2,369.10 1,992 95
Non-comtrolling inlerests ¢.41 13.77
21,362.51 'é{}{]&. 72
X Eamings per equity share (Face value Rs.2/- per equity share) 3
Basic (Rupces) 18.32 15.66
Diluted (Rupees} 18.31 1565
The accompanying notes fonm an intepral part of the consofidated financial siatements. fie 57

In terms of our report attached.

For M M Nissim & (o LLP
Chartesred Accomtiarty
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For M P, Chitale & Co. \NL{;,\‘:;LL;E’;:”}%

Chartered decouptanty
Firm's Registeation No: 1G61851W

Ashutesh Pednckar Pradeep Kumar Agrawal

Puariner Chief Fanciof Qfficer
Membership No: 841637

AMuwnbai NMumbai

April 22,2028 Apnit 22, 2025
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For and on behatf of the Board of Direstors
Mahindra & Mabhindra Financial Services Limited

Es

Raul Relﬁllu
Managing Director & CEQ
§DIN: 10052487)

Bribata Batwal
Company Secretary
Muembership No.F3220
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Jfor the period ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

Particulars

Ay CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before exceptional items and taxes

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Impairment on financial instruments (excluding bad debis and wrile offs)
Bad debts and write offs

Interest expense

Interest income from loans

interest income from other depasits with banks

MNet (Gain} / loss on fair vaiue of derivative financial instruments
Unrealized foreign exchange (Gain)/loss

Share based payments to employees

Net (Gain)/loss on fair value changes

Interest income on invesiments

Dividend income

Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment

Net (gain}/ loss on sale of investments

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capitai changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital -
Loans

Trade receivables

Other financial asseis

Other financial liabilities

Other non-financial assets

Trade Payables

Other non-financial Habilities

Derivative financial instruments

Provisions

Cash generated from / (used in} operations before adjustments for
interest received and interest paid

Interest paid

Interest received from loans

Cash generated from / {used in) operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

8y CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sate of Property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investments measured at amortized cost
Proceeds from sale of investments measured at amortized cost
{Increase) / decrease in lnvestment in Triparty Repo Dealing System (TREPS) (net)
Purchase of invesiments measured at FVOCI
Proceeds from sale of investments measured at FVOCE
Purchase ol invesiments measused at FYTPL
Proceeds from sale of investments measured at FVTPL
Consideration received on partial disposal of subsidiary,
Proceeds from / (Investments in) term deposits with banks {net)
Dividend income received
Interest received from other deposits with banks
Interest income received on investments measured at amortized cost, FVOCT, FYTPL and at cost
Change in Earmarked balances with banks

NET CASH GENERATED FROM [ {(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (BB)

f':,

y
Hir ?071“?&1’%‘% il
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Period ended

Period ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2.961.68 2,532.07
321.20 274.85
574.20 305.60
1,558.91 1,714.89
8,561.85 6.934.79
(15,687,77) (13,57321)
{318.80) (266.11)
(107.25) 11.05
37174 (76.49)
5.90 5.90
237 {3.55)
(524.37) (552.06)
(4.41) (6.97)
(13.28) 0.86
(2.636.7T) (2,698.42)
(18,141.35) (22,370.62)
(68.30) (71.41)
(14.37) {0.75)
31.96 37.39
(145.23) {217.23)
{191L.61) 41323
(13.58) 12.52
131.08 145.10
{8.06) (61.06)
(21,066.19) (2474925
(6.522.04) {6.92533)
12.856.58 14,052.60
{14.731,65) (17.621.88)
(870.23) (826.67)
{15,601.88) (18.448.55)
{441.89) (323.30)
§9.10 52.78
(4,076.29) (3,230.91)
4,011.31 3,464.70
124,98 (124.98)
- (167.41)
476.39 44526
{18,373.51) (3,691.29)
17,126.91 3,933.38
- (206.39)
(843.82) 1,770.78
324.80 2§9.11
525.22 528.52
(6.99) 0.03
(1,076.89) 2,670.28




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Confinued)
Jor the period ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

Particulars

&

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings through Debt Securities
Repayment of borrowings through Debt Securities
Proceeds from Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Repayment of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Proceeds from borrowings threugh Subordinated Liabilities
Repayment of borrowings through Subordinated Liabilities
(Decrease} / Increase i loans repayable on demand and cash credit/overdraft facifities with banks (net)
Ingrease / (decrease) in Public deposits {net)}

Payments of lease liabafity

Dividend paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN} FENANCING ACTIVITIES (C)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivatents at the beginning of the year
Unrealised gain/(loss) on foreign currency cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR (refer note 3}

Compenents of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

- Cash on hand

- Cheques and drafis on hand

- Balances with banks in current accounts

~Term deposits with original maturity up to 3 months
-Interest accrued on Term deposits

Total

Note :

Period ended Period ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
28,723.60 19,552.48
{29.913.08) (:7.580.68)
42,918.51 36,804.26
(28,250.28) (23,934,92)
1,600.00 700.00
(284.04) (140.15)
- (169.97)
3,703.24 1,708.98
(114.84) (105.22)
{777.78) (739.88)
17,605.33 16,094.90
926.56 316.63
9263.54 586.53
0.5 0.318
1,830.25 H3.54
358.99 65.35
16.28 27.92
340.57 262.89
1L 412.00 54738
241 -
1.830.25 903.54

I} The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Ind AS 7 on "Statement of Cash Flows',
2) Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets represents additions to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets adjusted for

movement of capitab-work-in-progress during the year.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Finaacial Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial $tatements (Continuext)
Jor the period ended Mareh 31, 2023

Rsin croce

1

21

.3

2.3

15

COMPANY INFORMATION

Mehindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’} with Carporate [ No.: L659ZIMHI991PLCO59642, moorporaied on | January 1991 and domiciled in India, is a public linited
company, headquastesed i Mumbal, The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC'), primarily engaged ist financing new and pre-owned auto, uiility vehicles, fractors, passenger cars
and commercial vehicles through its pan India branch network The Company has a diversified lending portfolio across refail, smalt and medium entesprises and comimercial customers with a
significant presence in rural and semi~iwban india,

The Company is repisicred as 2 Systemically Tmportam Deposit Accepting NBFC as defined under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India ('RBU') Act, 1934 with effect from 4 Septermber
1998, with registration ne. 1300996 and classified as NBFC-fnvestinent aad Credit Company (NBFC-ICC} pursvant to gircular DNBR (PD} €C No 097703, 50,001 /2018-1% dated 22 Febnuary 2019,
The equily shares of the Company are listed on the Naltonal Sieck Exchange of India Limited {"NSE") and the BSE Limited (*3SE") in India. The Company is a subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra
Lirnited

The Company's registered office is at Gateway Building, Apoilo Bunder, Munbai 400001, Indra,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

Statement of camplinnce and basis for preparation and presentation of financiak statements

The consolidated financial statements of Mahindra & Mahindea Financial Services Limited (the Parent) and its subsidiaries (‘the Group') and its associales and joint ventures have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Siandards as per the Companies {Indian Accounting S1andards) Rules 2015 a5 amended and notified under scction 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the

Act™), I conformity with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions/ expectations issued by RBI or other vegulators are implemented as and when they aze issued/ applicable

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is inilially adopied or a revision to an extsting accounling standard requires a change in the
accaunting policy hitherto in wse,

These consolidsted finascial statements bave been approved by the Company's Board of Directors and authorized fos issue on April 22, 2025,

Funclionsl and preseniation currency

These i 1al st are d in Indian Rupees (NI or *Rs.') which is also the Group's functionzl cusrency. AR amounts are reunded-off to the nearest croze, uatess indicated olherwise.
Basis of measurement

The eonsolidated financial ststements have beea prepared on the historical cost basis exceps for certain assels and Habilities whick are measured af fair values as required by relevant tad AS.

Rasis of consolidation
The consotidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. Subsidiaries are consolidated on a Fine-by-line basis frorn the date the canirod is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases. Changes in the Group's interest in subsidiaries that do not reselt in a loss of control dre accounted as cquity transactions. The carrying amount of the Compaay's interests and
the non-conlrofting interests ("NCI*) are adjusted to refiect the changes in their relative interests in e subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the ron-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly tn equity and sitributed to owners of the Company.

fnter-company transactions, batances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losscs are also chiminated unless the tzansuction provides evidence of
an tmpairment of the asset transferred. These financial statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.

Assocltes

Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence. fnvesimen in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, afler initially being recognised o cost,

Jaint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint contral of the azrangement have the righs 10 e net assets of the amangement. Envestment in joint venlures are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, afier initially being recognised at cost

Measurement of fzir values

The Group's certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabifities
The Group has esiabiisked policies and procedures with respect t the measgrement of fair vafues

Fair values are categenised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuzlion techniques as follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (wnad3usied) in active markets for identical assets and Habilities

- Level 2: dnputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for (he assel or hability, either directly or indirectly,

- Level 3: Inpuis for the asset ar liabifivy that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
for the period ended March 34, 2025

Rs. in crore

16

Use of estienates and judgments and Estintztion naceriainty

In preparing these financial satements, management kas made fudgments, extimates and assumptions that alfcct the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reporred amoums of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and the disclosures of contingent Habilities, Actusi resuits may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assomptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Revisions 10 ¢stimates are secognised prospectively

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, thal have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amouats
of assels and liabilities within the next financial year, are desesibed below. The Group based iLs assurmptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were issued, Existing
circumstances and assumptions aboul futute deveiopments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising tkat aze beyond the contro! of the Group. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Fallowing are areas that involved s kigher degree of estimate and judgrient of complexity in determining the carrying amount of some assets and liabilities.

Effective Intecest Rate (EER} Metbod

The Group Tecognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected ke of the loans given / taken, This cstimation, by
nature, requires an elemeni of judgment regarding the expected behaviowr and life-cyele of the instruments, ag welt as expecied changes to other fee income/expense that are integral pasts of the
instrument.

Impairment of Financial Assels

Fhe measurement of impairment losses on Joan assets and commitients, requires judgment, in estimating, 1he amount and timing of future cash flows and tecoverability of collateral values while
determining the impairment losses and assessing a significant increase in credit sisk

The Group’s Expected Credit Loss (£C).) calculation is the catput of & complex smaded with & number of underdyieg assumplions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies,
Elements of the ECL modet that are considered accoanting judgments and estimates inclede:

- The Group's ¢zitetia for assessing if there has been a sipaificant increase in credit risk

- The classification of fiancial asseis when their ECL is assessed on a coltective basis

- Development of ECL model, including the variogs formulse and the choee of inputs

- Selection of forward-lvoking mactocconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, te desive the cconomic inputs into the ECL modc!

- Management overlsy, If any, used in circuw whers Judges that the cxisting inputs, assumplions and model technigues do not captuze all the risk factors relevant to the Group's
lending portfolies.

It Lias been the Group's palicy 20 regularly review its model in the comtext of actual loss expericnce and adjust when secessary (refer note $1).

Provisions and confingent liabilitics

The Group dous not recounise a contingemt liability but discloses its exisignce in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclesed in the f& Tal s. However, contingent assets are assessed conlinualty and if it is vinually certain thal zn inflow of economic benefits
will urise, the asset and related income are reeognised in the petiod in which the change occurs.

Contingent Liabilities n 1espect of show cause notices are considered onty when converted into demands

The reliable measure of the amounts pertainiag to liligations and the regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of the Group's business are disclosed as contingent lisbilities

Estimates and judgenents are continzally evalumed and are based on historicat experience and ather factors, including expeciations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and
that are believed (0 be reasonable uader the circomstances,

Provision for inceme tax and deferred tax assets:

The Group uses estimates and judgments based on the relevant tulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, affowances and disallowances which is exercised while determining the provision for
ingome tax, including the smounl expected io be paid/recovered for uncertain tax pasitions. A deferred Wx asset is récognised to the extent that it is probable that future saxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax fosses, i any, can be utifised. Accordingly, the Group exercises its judgment to reassess the carrying amonnt of deferred 1ax assels at the
end of each reportting period

Drefined Benelit Plans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity abligation are determined wsing aciuaoal valuations. An actuarizl valustion invalves making various assumptions thas
may differ from actual developmenls in the future. Thesc include the determination of the discount rate, fsure salasy increases and mortality rates. Dy to the camplexities invalved in the valuation
and its long-term nalure, a defined benefnt obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed at each Teporting date,

Going Concern
The finascial statements of the Groug are prepared on & going concern hasis for the year ended March 31, 2025
The Management is satisfied that the Group shall be sble so continue its business for the foresesable fusure and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going congern

assumption. kn making this the M has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions. including Esture projections of profitability, cash flows
and capital resources.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
for the period ended Marcle 31, 2625

Rs. it Crore
L7 Revenwme recognifion ;

at Recogaition of interes( income

Enterest income is recogoised in Sistement of profil and foss using the effective interest method for all Brancial instruments measured at ansortised cost, debt instruments measured at FEVOCT
and debr instruments designated at FYTPL. The “cffective interest rate’ is the rate that exacily discounts estimated finure cash payments or receipts through the expecied Bfe of the financial
instrument.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integaal part of the contract. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attrvutable to the acquisition of fuanciat asse

If expecrations regarding the cash flows on the Gnanclal asset are revised for reasons other than credit rigk, the adjustment 5 cecarded as a positive of negative adjustment to the carmying
amousnt of the assel in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income, The adjustment is subsequently amartised through Interest income in the Statement of profit and
loss.

The Group calculates interest income relyted to financing business by applying the EER to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credis-impared assets,

In ¢ase of eredit-impaired financial assets, the Group recognises intgrest income on the gmortised cost net of bepairment toss on financial pssets at EXR I financial asset is no Jonger credit-
impaired, the Graup reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis {amortised cost).

Additional interest levied ox custamers for delay in repayments/ non payment of contractual cashflows is recogaised an realisation.
Interest on trade advances, are recognized when they become measusable and when it is not unreasonable 1o expect their ultimate coltection.

Income front bilt discounting is recognized over the tenure of the instrument sa as to provide a censtant periodic rate of return.

-Interest income from on investments is recagnised when it is cortain that the ccenomic benefits will flov to the Group and the armount of inceme can be mezsured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a tine basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and st the effective interest rate applicabie

b) Reeognition of interest inceme on seonrilized loans

The Parent company securitizes certain paols of foan receivables in accordance with applicable RIS guideines. The Parent Company, being Originator of these loan receivables, also acts as
Servicer with # respensibifity of colicction of reccivables from its botrowers and depositing the same in Collection and Payout Account maintained by the 5PV Trust for making scheduled
payouts to the inveslars in Pass Through Centificates (PTCs) issued by the SPV Trust. These securitization transactions also requires the Parent Company to provide for firsi loss credi
enhancement in various forms, such 2s corporate guarantee, cash collateral, subseription to subordinated PTCs. as credit suppori in the event of shortfall in coliections from underlying loan
contracts. By vinue of existence of credit cahancement, the Paremt Company is exposed to credit risk, being the expected losses that will be incusred on the transferred loan receivables 1o
the extent of the credit enhancement provided

In view af the above, the Parent Company has retained substantially all the risks and sewards of ownership of the financial asset and thereby does not meet the de-recopnition criteria as sct
outin Ead AS 109, Considesation ceceived in this transaction is presented as "Associated Habiliy related to Securitization transactions” and the loan receivables securitized are continued o
be seflected as foan assets. These loan assets are carried at amonized cost and the interest income is recognized by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than credit-impaired assets.

I case of credit-impaired financiaf assets, (he Parent Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost zet of impairment loss on financial assets as IR, If financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, the Parent Company severts to calewlating interest income on @ gross basis (amoriised cost).

) Subvention intome

Subvention income received from manufacturer / dealers at the inception of the loan contracts which is directly atribusable to individual loan contracts in respect of vehicles financed is
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method over the tenor of such Jozn contracts measured at amortized cost.

En case of subvention meome which is swbject 1o comfirmalion from masufactarer and received later than isception date is recogaized in the Statement of profit and loss using straight line
method over the tenar of such loan contracts.

(1) Rentad Income

income from operating eases is recognised in the Statemient of prafit and loss on & straighr-line basis over the lease term. n cenain lease astangements, variable rental charges are also
recognised over aad above minimum commitment charges hased on usage pattern and make/model of the asset.

€) lacome from finance fcase
The incotne eamed on finance lease arc recoguised in the Statement of profit and loss account based on pattern reflecting constant periodic return on the groups's net investmest in lease.
The fees / charges teceived towards flect management services rendered to customers is recognized over the lease term

3] Fees, charges and commission income 3
The Group cecognises service and administration charges at poiut in lime towards rendering of additional services to its loan cusiomers on satisfactory completion of service delivery.

Fees and commission that are not directly linked o the sourcing of financial assets are recognised at pofnt in time in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the sight ta reccive the same 15
established
fastrument Returs Charges levied on customers for non payment of instalmenis an the contractual date is recognised on realisalien,

Distribution income is earmed by distribution of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements. The inceme so earned is recognised on sugcessful distribution on
behalf of other entities subject 16 there being no sigrificant uncertainty of its recovery from the other ent

Foreclosure ot prepayment charges are collected from Joan customers (or carly paymenl/closure of Toan and are tecognised on realisation

Colicction fee related to transfered assets under securitisation tcansgctions 1 recognised an remittance of collection praceeds to Spedial Purpose Vehicle {SPV) created under securitizalian
transaction

Collection fee related to transfered assets under assignnent deals is recognised on remittance of collection proceeds (o assignecs as per Lhe service agreement entered with the assignees
g} Incoms on Berecogniscd (Assigned) Lonns ¢

Gains arising oul of direct assignment srassactions comprises ol the difference between interest oo she loan portfofio and she applicable rate al which the direct assignment is enlered into
wilh the assigree, afso knawn as the right of exvess interest spread (E15) The future E1S basis the expected cash fiow on execution of the transaction, discounted at 1he applicable rate
entered into with the assignes is recordsd upfiont i the statement of profit aad loss

b Sale of services:

Income fram insurance broking business services is recognised net of Goods and Service Tax (GST) amount on rendering of services. Brokerage income is recognized on recetving detals of

the paticy issued by the insurance company or eeel _Lp_f brokersge whichever is earber The revenue from zendering of consultancy serviees is recognised in propodion 1o the stage of

campletion of the transaction at the rcpon&giif’ﬁ!{éf i o -
o &
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements (Continued)
for the period ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crore

2.8

29

210

Property, Plant and Equipments (PPE)

PPE are stated ot cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses}, less accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impatrment loss, if any.

Cost of acquisition consists of purchase price ar construction cast which is the amount paid, freighs, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable ¢o bringing the asset ta the
iocation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manaer intended by the management

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying ameunt of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving rom the cost incurred wilt flow to the enterprise and
he cost of the item can be measured.

Other repairs and maint cosis arc exy ¢ off as and when incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of P'PE {excluding lease improvements) outstanding al cach balance sheet date are disclosed scparately as "Capital advances® under other son.financial assets.
Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are not ready for its intended use ar the ceporting date and cost of leasshold inprovemends. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of
impairment Joss, if any. On completion of werk related to leasehold progerty improvements, the relevant cost is capitalized and the same is amortized over the lease term )

Depreciation on FPE is provided on straight-line basis in accordance with the useful fives specified in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 on a pro-rata basis subjeet to exceptions listed here
belaw. Depreciation metheds, usefut lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year, and changes, i any, are accounted for prospectively.

1n accordance wilh Ind AS 116 - Leases, the Right-Of-Use assets {Leaschold premises) are initially recognized at cost which comprises of fritial smount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at of prios to the commencement date of the fease fess any lease incentives. These are subsequently measured af cost less accymulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Right-Qf-Use assels {Leasehold premises) are depreciated from the commencemest date on a siraight-line basis over the shorter of the lcase term and useful life of the underlying assel.

The estimated useful lives used for computation of depreciation are as foilows

.60 years
310 6 years

Buildings .....
Computers and Data processing units .
Furniture and fixtures ...
Office equipments .
Vehicles .
Vehicks under kase _....Over the lease 1erm of the sespective agreements
Right-Of-Use asseis (Leaschold premises) ...................Over the lease term of the respeclive agrecments

Exceptinns ta ascful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2613 -

- Assets costing less than Rs 5000/ are fully depreciated in the period of purchase.

- Vehicles provided to employees as part of Cost-To-Company (CTC) scheme are deprecizted using estimated useful life of 4 years.

- Repossessed vehicles capitalized for own use are depreciated a¢ 15% kading Lo an cstimated useful like of 6.67 years

PPE is derecognized on disposal er whes no future ¢conomic benefits are expected from its use. Assets setired from active use and held for disposal are generally siated @ the lower of 1beir net book
value and act realizable value. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized @ other income / netted off from any loss on disposal in the Stztement of profit and foss in the year the asset is derecognized

2} Intangtbie assets :

Intungible assets are stated at cost less acsumulaied amottization and accumulated imspaicmenl toss, i any,
Subsequent expenditure is capitafized only when il increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All ather expenditure is recognized in profit ar
loss ay incurred.

Intangible assets representing computer software arg amortised using the straight-fing methed over 2 petiod of 3 1o § yeass, which is the Management's estimate of wscful §fe. Amortization
metheds, usefi lives snd residual values are reviewed in vach financial year, and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Intangible agsets not resdy for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheer are disclosed as "Entangible assets znder development™

Ag intangible asset is derecopnised on disposal, or when ne future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains o losses arising frem derecognition of an intangible asses,
measured a5 the difterence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss whes the asset is derecognised

53 Ietanzibie zssels under development :

The Groug, initially recognizes intangible asset under development at cost during the development phase based on the management's judgernent that 1echnological end economic feasibility is
confirmed Upon completion of the development phase, the arsount is capitalized as intangible asset.

Foreign exchange iransaclions and translations ;

a) Initial recognition

Transactions iz foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing cxchange rates between the reporting cusrency and  foveign curcency on the transsction date

b Transtation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated inta the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
setilement of such transactions and from the translation of nonetary sssers and Habilines deaominated in foreign currencics ar year end exchanpe rates are recognised in Suatcment of profit
and loss

Foreign exchange differences regarded 25 an adjustment 1o borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
tosses are prescated in the Statement of profit and loss on  net basia

Noo-monetary ilems thal are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates af the date when the fair value was determined. Translanon differences on
assers and Labilities carried a1 fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Thus, iranslation differences on nen-monetary assets and liabifities such a3 equily instruments held
at fair vaiue through profil or loss are recognised in profi or foss as part of the fair value gain or loss and wanslation differences on nor-reonctary assets such as equity investments clagsified
as FYOC! are recogaised in other comprehensive income.

Nor-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in foreign currency are nel retraushated at reperting date.




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Neotes to Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
for the period ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in erore

2,11 Financial instroments &
a) Fritial Recognition -
Financial assels and financial Habilities are recoguised when the Group becomes a party ta the comractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assess and financial lizbilities are initially recognized at fair value, Transaction costs that are divectly attributable to the acquisition of issue of financial assels amd Brancial Fabilities
{other than financial agsers and financiat lizbilitics at FVTPL) are 2dded to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assels or financial lisbilities, as appropriate, on initial recogrition
Hawever, trade teceivables that do nat contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Transaclion costs directly sitributable te the acquisition of firancial
assels of financiat Fabilities at FVTPL, are tecognised immediately in Statement of profit and loss.

by Classification and subsequent measurement -
- Financiaf assets
Cn fitiad recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost;
= FVOCT - deld instrumends;
- FVOCT - equity insérumenss;
- F¥TPL

Ameortised cost -

The Group's business moedel is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher Jevel of aggregated portfokios being the level at which they are managed. The financial assel
is held within a business model of collecting contraciual cash flows as per the contractual wrms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payment of principal and interest
{*SPPI") on the principal amount oulstanding. Accordingly, the Group measures Bank batances, Loans, Trade receivables and other financial instruments al amortised cost.

FVOCI » debt instruments -
The Growp measares its debt instruments at FYOCT when the instrament is held within a business medel, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash fiows and
seifing finaacial assets; 2ad the cantractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPE test.

FVOCT - equity instraments -
The Group sub 1 all equity i s &1 faic value shrough profit or loss, unless the management has clected to classify irrevocably some of its equity iavestments as
equity mstrumm:s at FVQCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equily under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments and are not held for trading.

If the Group elects to classify an equity instroment 2s at FVOCL, thea all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recopnised in other comprebensive income. This
cumulative gain or loss is aot reclassified to siatement of profit and loss on disposal of such instruments. Envestments representing equily interest in subsidiary, joint venture and associste are
carricd at cost less any provision for impairment.

Financial assets ace not reclassified subsequent 10 thelr initial recopnition, except if and in the period the Greup changes its business model for managing fizancial assets

Al financial asset not classified as measured at amestised cost or FVOCT are measyred at FVTPE. This inchedes all dervative financial assels unless designated as effective hiedge instrument
which are accounted as per hedge accounting requirements discussed below.

Subsequent measureinent of linanciaf assets

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest methed. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. laterest incoms and
impairment provisions are recognized ix Statement of profit and loss Any gain and toss on derecognition is recognized wm Statcment of profit and foss.

Debt investment at FVOCE are subsequenaly mieasured at fair valze. Interest income st coupon rate and impaitmest provision, i€ any, ere recognized in Statement of profit and foss Net pains
ot losses on fair valuation are recognized in OCI. On derecogrition, gains and lesses accumulated in OC1 are reclassified 10 Statement of profit and loss

For equity invesiments, the Group makes an elcction on an instrument-by-instrament basis 10 designale equity investments as measured st FYOCI. Thesc elecled mvestments are measured
at fair value with gains and Josses arising from chazges in faiv value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserves. The cumulstive gam or Jass is not
reclassified so Statement of profit and loss on disposal of the mvestments. These investments in equity are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for strategic purpose. Dividend income
received on such equity i are ised in 5 af profit and loss

Equity investiments that are not designated as measured at FVOCE are designated as measured at FVTPL and subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Financial assels al FYTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any imerest or dividend income, ars recopnised in Statement of profit and loss.

ch Financiat liabilities and equity instruments:

Classification as debt or equity -
Drebt and cquity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financiai liabilities or as equity in accordance with (he substance of the cantractual arrangements aad the definitions
of a financial Hability aad an equity instrument

Equity insteuments -
An equity instrument is any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an eatity afler deducting ali of its Habilities. Equity instruments issued by Group are recogsised ot the
proceeds received. Transaction costs of an cquity transaction ase recogaised as a deduction from eguity.

Financial liabifities -

Financiat liabilities are classified and measured al amortised cost or FVTPL. A financiat lizbility is classifted as at FVTPL i 11 is classified as held-for-trading er it is 2 derivative (thal does
not meet hedge accouming requirements) ar it is designated as such on initial recognition. Qther financial liabilities are subsequently measizred at amortised cost asing the effective inlerest
meihod. interesl expense and foreign exchange gains and losses arc recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is alse recognised in Statement of profit and
loss
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes to Consclidzted Financial Statements (Continsed)
for the period ended March 31, 2035

Rs. in crore
241 Financial instraments ; (consd)
i1 Firancisl gearaniec contracts:

A financial guarantee contract is 3 contract that requires the issues to make specified payments o seimburse the hobter for 4 Toss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instroment.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measueed at their fair values and, if not designated as al FVTPL, are subscquently measured &t the higher of

- 1he amount of loss allowance determined Jn accordance with impairment requitements of lod AS 109 - Financial Instruments, and

- the amount initially 1ecognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance with the principles of Ind AS [15-Revesue from Contracts with
Customers.

) Derecuznition
Financial assets
The Group derecopnises a finaacial asset when the contractual rights ta the cash flows from the financial asset expire, ar it transfers the rights to receive the contraciuad cash thaws in a
transaction in which substantially &t of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are iransferred or it which the Group seither transfors nor tetains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain cantrol of the financiat assel.

If the Group enters into transactions whezeby it transfers assets recognised o its balance sheet, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferved asseis are nat Gerecognised.

Financial fiabilities
A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation in respest of 1he Tability is dischazged, cancelled or expires. The dillerence between the carrying value of the financial liahility and the
cansideration paid is recognised in Statement of profit and loss

The Group also derecognises a financial lizhility when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantigdly different. In this case, o now financial Fiability
based on the modificd terms i3 recognised at fair value,
1] Derivative fi ial instr and hedge ing

The Group enters islo derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward contracts, currency swaps and inlerest rate swaps, 1o manage its borrawing expasure to foreign
exchange and interest rate risks.

Dierivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are iseated as separate derivatives when their risks and characieristics are not closely refated 1o these of the host contracts and the
haost contracts are nol measured at FYTPL.

Derivatives are inilially recognized at fair value on the date on which the contracts are entered into and are subsequenily remeasured 1o their [air value at the end of each reporting period
The resulting gainfoss is recognized in Stazement of profit and foss immediately unless the derivative is designated and cllective as a hedging instrument, in which event the liming of the
recegnilion in profit or Joss depends on the nature of the hedging refationship and the nature of the hedged ilem.

‘The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as ithes fair value hedyes or cash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign exchange
risk on firm commilments arc accounted for as cash flow hedges

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instremest and the hedged item, along with its risk management abjectives and its
strategy for undertaking various liedge transactions. Furthermore, a2 the inception of the hedge 2ad on an ongeing basis, the Groug documents whether the hedging mstrument is highly
effective in offseiting changes in fair values or cash Mows of the hedged item attnbutable 1o the hedged Tisk

Changes in fair value of the designated ponion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised i profit or Joss immediately, 1ogether with any changes in (he fair value of the
hedged asset or hability that ase attributable to the hedged risk

The effcctive portion of ¢hanges in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualily as cash Bow hedges is recopnised in other comprehensive income and a lated snder
hedging reserve. The gaan or Joss refating to the inefective portion is recognised immediately in the profit or loss

Amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income and accumuiated in equily {relating to effective pontion as deseribed above) are reclassified to profit or Joss in the pesiods
when the bedged ftom affects profit or loss

Hedpe accownting is discontinued when the hedging insiniment expires of is seld, 1erminated, ot exercised, or when it no fonger quadifics for kedge accounting. Any gain or foss Tecognised
in other comprehensive Income and ac lated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is uitimately recognised in profit or Joss. When a
forecast transactlon is no loager expecied 1o occus, the gain of Joss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis (Continued)
for the period cided Marchr 34, 2025

Rs. in crone
2.4 Financial instruments @ fomitd)
3] {mpairment of Aeanciaf instruments

Equity instrurnents are nol subgect to impairment vwider Ind AS 109,

The Group recognises lifeime expected credit losses (ECL) when there hos been a sigmificant increase in credit risk since initial recogrition and when the financial instrument is credit
impaired. 1 the credit sisk on the financial instrument has not iacreased signilicantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal 1o 12 month ECL. The assessmient of whether Tifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default accurring, since inital
recognition. 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that s expected to result from defaul events on a financial instsument that are possible within 12 months afler the
seporting date.

When determining whether credit risk of 2 financial asser has increased significantly since baitie recogniticn and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and
suppertable information 1hat is relevant and available withaut undue cost or effost. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analygis, including on historical experience
and forward-locking information (refer note 51)

The Group recognizes liferime ECL for wade advances The expected credi losses on trade advances are estimzled using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience.
The industry benclimarking is used (o Jeasing portfolio in the absence of suflicent history.

Maragement overlay s used 10 adjust the BCL allowance in ey es where manag judges that the existing inputs, assumptions and madel techniques da not caplure all the risk
factors relevant to the Group's lending parifolios. Emerging local or plobal macroeconomic, micra economic or potitical events, and natural disasiers thas are not incorporated to the
current parameters, tisk ratngs, or forward looking information are ples of such circumstances. The use of management overlay may impact the amount of ECL recognized

Lass sttowances for financial assets measured ar amantised cost are dedueted {rom the gross casrying amaunt of the asscis, For debt securities measuzed at FYOCH, the loss allowance is
recagnized in OCL

Loan contract renegofiation and modifications:

Loans are identified as renegotiated and classiied as credit impaired when we modify the coatractual payment terms due to significant credyt distress of the borrower. Renegotizted loans
remain classified as credit impaired until there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate a significant seduction in the risk of non-payment of futuze cash flows and retain the designation of
rencgotiated until maturity or derecognition.

A loan that is renegatialed is derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new agreement is made on substantially different terms, or if the ferms of an cxisting agrcement are
modificd such that the rencgotissed loan s a substantially different financial instroment. Any new loaas that arise foliowing derecognition events in these circumstances are considered to be
ariginated credit impaired financial asset and will continue la be disclosed as renegotiated loans.

Other than originated credit-impaired loans, all other modified loans could be transferred out of stage 3 if they no longer exhibh any evidence of bring credit impaired and, in the case of
renegotisted foans, there is suflicient evidence to demonstrale 4 significant zeduction in the sk of non-payinent of future cash flows aver the minimum observation periad, and there are no
other indicators of impairment. These loans could be transferred to stage 1 or 2 based an the risk assessment mechanism by comparing the visk of a defaull ocourring &t the reporting date
{based on the modified contraczial terms) and the risk of 2 default occurring at initial recognitian (based on the original, unmodified contractual terms), Any amount written off as & resuly of
the modification of contractual tesms would not be reversed.

Loan modifications 1hal are not identified as renegotinled are considered to be commercial restructuring Where & commercial restructuring results in a modificasion {whether legalised
through an amendment 1o the existing lerms or the issuance of a new loan contract) such that she Group's rights to the cash flows under the original contract have expired, the old loan is
derccognised and the new loan is recognised a8 faic value. The rights to cash Nlows ase generally considered to have expired if the commercial restructure & 1 market rates sad no payment-
related concession has been provided. Mandatory and general offer Joan modifications that are not borrawer-specific, for example market-wide customer reliel prograrmes announced by
the Regulator or other stauitory body, have not been classified as rencgotisted loans and so have not resufted in derecognition, hut their stage allocation is determined considering afl
available and supportable information under our ECL impairment policy.

h} Simplified approach for irade receivables and comiract assets -
The Group foilows simplified approach’ for recogaition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables that do riot ¢antain a significant financing component. The application of simplified
approact does siot require the Company to track changes in credit nisk.

it Collateral repessessed -

The underlying loans in respect of which Is Bave been rep d but not sold are considered as Stage 3 assets and impairment allowance is estimated as per the ECL policy.
in the normat course of business, the Group does not physically repossess asscts/properties or other assets in its retail portfolio, but enpages external agents to recover funds, peneraly by
selling at auction, to settte outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers! obligors. As a result of this practice, the assets / praperties under legal reposscssion processes

are nol recorded on the balance sheet
i Wrike offs -

The gross carrying amount of a financial assel is written off when there is no realistic prospect of funther recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtorfborrowsr does not kave assets or soucees of income that could generate sufficient cash flows o repsy the amounts subject to the wrile- off as per the Group's policy. However,
financizl assets thar are wrilten off could still be subject 1o enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account fegal edvice where apprapriate. Any recoveries
made from written off assets are netted off against the amoum of finzncial assets written off during the year under "Bad debts and write offs* forming part of “lupairment on financial
instruments” in Ststement of profit and loss
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21 Ewmployee benefits:
a} Shert-term emMoyee beneflits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-lerm employes benefits. Fhese beaefits include salaries and wages, bonus
and ex-gratia. Shor-term emnployec benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A Tability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as 2 result of past service provided by the employes and the obligation ¢an be estimated reliably

i) Coniribution to Providest Fund and ESEC and National Pension Scheme -

The defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund {administered through Regional Provident Fand Olfice), superanaiation scheme and employee state insurance corporation aand Nationat
Pession Scheme are postemployment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no legat and construclive obligation 1o pay fiither amounis beyond its
conttibutions. The Supctannuation scheme, a defined contribution scheme, administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset 10 the oxtent that a cash refisnd ot a reduction in future payments is avaable.

Group's contribution patd/payable during the year 1o provident fund, Superanauation scheme, ESIC and National Pension Scheme is recognized in the Statement of profil aud {oss,

c} Gratuily and post retiresment medical benefit -

‘The Company's liability towards gratuity snd post setiremem medical benefit schemes are determined by independent actuasies, using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined besefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated fiture cash outflows by reference to market yields at the eud of the reporting period on government bonds that bave
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Fast services are recognized at the earlier of the plan amendment / curtailment and recogpition of related restructuring
costsiterminahon benefits.

The: Group determines the nel interest expense {income) on the net defined benelt Liabitity (asset) for the peried by applying the discouny 1ate used 1o measore the defined benefit obligation
al the beginning of the annual period to the then-uet defined benefit liability {asset), taking inlo accaunt any changes in the net defined bencfil Bability (asset} during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net intorost expense and other expenses refated 1o defined benefit plans are recognised i the Statement of Profit and Loss

When the calculation resiults in a potential agset for the Group, the recogrised asset is linsted to the present value of cconomic benefits avaitable in the form of any future refunds from the
plan or ceductions in future contribution to the plan. To calculate the peesent value of economic benefits, consideration is given 16 any applicablc minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement gainsflosses -
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprismg of actuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets excluding interest income are recognised immmediately in the balance sheet with:
corresponding debil or credit 1o Other Comprehensive Income {OC1). Remeasurements are nol rectassified to Statement of profit and loss in the subsequent period.

Remeasurement gains or losses oo loag-term compensated absences that are classified as other long-term benefits are recognised in Statement of profit and less

d) Leave encashment / compensated absences / sick leave -
The Group provides for the encashment / availmen of feave with pay subject to certain rules as per leave policy of the Group. Fhe employecs arc catiflod to accumulate feave subject 1o

certain limits for future encashment / availment. The liability is provided based on the awmber of days of unutilized teave at cach balance sheet date on the basis of a7 independeat actuarial
valuation,

) Employec stock aptions :

Compensasion cost on Equity-settled share-based payments to employees aye recognised as an expense at the fair value of equity stock eptiow at the grant date. The fair value determined ay
the grant date of the Equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
visl, with a corresponding increase in equity.

n Long-Term Incentive Plan:

The Group pays Long Term [ncenlives ta certain empleyces on fulfifment of preseribed criteria/conditions. The Group's liabtity towards Long Term Encentive is determingd actoarially
based on certain assumptions regarding rate of lnterest, staff attrition and montalily as per Projected Unit Credit Method. Expenses towards loag term incentive are recognised in the
Stgtement of Profit and Loss

2.13 Finance cosls :

Finance osts include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective fivancial Instruments measured at Amortised cost - bank term loang, associated habilisties in
respect of securitisatian transactions, non-coavertible debentuzes, Rxed deposits mobilised, commercial papers, subordinated defis and exchange differences arising from foreign cureency borrewings
to the extent they are cegarded as an adjssument lo the interest cost. Finance costs are charged to the Statement of profit and foss.

Interest expense on lease lishitities computed by applying the Group's weighted average incremental borrowing tate has been included under financa costs

A
S
et N “"‘\\.:‘

W,

=3

o AUMBA
'




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Mates to Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
for the peried ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in crove
LE4 Faxation - Currend and deferred tas:

[ncome tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in Stalement of profit and loss except fo the extent that it relates to an item recogoised directly in equily or ir other
comprehensive income.

) Current fax :

Current tax comprises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year determined in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years, The Group’s curtent fsx is caleulared using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for mcome taxes including judgment on whether tax pesitions are probable of being sustained in tax assessmients. A tax
assessment can invelve complex issues, which can enly be resolved over extended time periads,

Current tax assets ang liabilities are offsct only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amausis, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the linbility on & net
basis or simultancously.

Current tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they refate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly ir equity, in which case, the current
tax is also recogmised in other comprehensive income or ditecily in equity sespectively

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax seturns with respect o situations in which applicable tax regutations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

by Dreferred tax :

Deferred tax assets and Itabifitics are recognized for the futore 1ax consequences of temporary differcaces between the carrving values of assets and lisbilities and thelr respective tax bases
Defersed tax Habilities and assets are measured at the (ax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the Bability 1s scttled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and fax faws)
that have been enacted or substantively cracted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax fiabilities and assets reflects the tax consequence that would follow from
the wanner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover of settle the carrying smoust of its asseix and fiabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extant that it is probable that futuze taxable income will be available against which the deduciible temporary difference could be usilized. Such
deferred tax assets and labililies are not recogaised if the temperary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and #abilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profi. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of cach roporting peried and reduced 1o the extast that i is no losger probable that sufficient
taxable prefits will be available to alow all of past of the assel to be recovered. Deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to ilems that are recognised
in other comprehensive income of disectly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or disectly in equity respectively,

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset anly if there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets against current tax fiabilities and the deferred tax assets and the geferred tax
liabilities relate 1o ircome taxes levied by the same 1axation authotity on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settie curcent tax liabilities an a net
basis or simuisaseously.

2.15 Frovisions, contingent lisbilitics and contingend ussets:

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation {degal or constructive} as a result of a past event, and & is probable that an cstflow of resaurces embodying economic bencfits wilt be
required 1o settk the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each batance sheat dale and adjusted 1o reflect the cursent best estimate. If it
is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required 1o settle the abligation, the provision is reversed. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

“The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 1aking inte account the risks and uncerltainties
surrounding the obligation. Provisions are dettrmined by discounting the expecied foture cash fows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the t3me value of money and the risks
specific 10 the Habiliy.

When there 15 a possible obligation or a presem obligation in respect of which the Hkelihood of cutflaw of resources is remete, no provision is made. The disclosure of contingent liability is made
when there is a possible obligation or present obligation 1hat may, but probably will not, require an outfiow of resources. The Group alse discloses present obligation for which a reliable estimate
canni! be made as a coniingens liability. Contingent Liabilities are reviewed al each Bufance Sheet date.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.
When some or all economic benefils required to selile a provision are expecied w be recovered from third party, a receivable is recognised s an asset, if it 1s virtually centain that reimbursement wilt
be reecived and the amount can be measured reliably.

2.16 Gross obligation value of written put aptions 1o Non-controtiing laterest (NCT} :

For the writien put options held by the Group for acquiring remaining interest in s subsidiary, gross obligation is recognised by debit 10 Other Equity for the expecied amount payabie in case of
exercise of the put by the WNCI




Mahkindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements {Contineed)
for the persod ended Mareh 31, 2023

Rs. in crore

17

.18

Leases &

Where the Group is the lessec -

As 3 lessee, the Group's lease asset class primarily consist of buildings or part thereof taken on iease for office premises, certain IT equipments and general purpose office equipments used for
operating activities. The Group assesses whether a confract contains 2 lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o coatrol the use of an
identified asset tor o petiad of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 10 contral the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract
involves the use of an idestified assei (i) the Group has substantially all of the econamic benefits from use of the asset through the pericd of the lease and {ti} the Group has the right to dieect the use
of the asset

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROU”} and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessce, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term feases) and low value leases. For these shori-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the fease

The carrying amount of lease abililies is remeasured if thers is a modification, a change in the lease term, a chinge in the lease payments {e..., changes to future paymenis resulting from a change in
an index of rate used o determine such lease payments) or a changa in the assessment of an oplien to purchase the underlying asset. ROU assets and corresponding lease liabilities constitate lease
cantracts for office premises.

Certain lease arrangemenss includes the options (o exiend or terminate the lease belore the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these oplions when it is reasonably certain
that option to extend will be exercised and option to terminate will not be exereised

The fight-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost which comprises ofinitiat amount of tease liability adiusied for any kiase paymests made at of prior 10 the commencenient date of the lease less
any lease incentives. These ere subsequently d at cost less aceumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date ona
straight-ine basis over the lease term.

The tease liability is initially soeasured al smortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments that are not paid at the commencement dare, discousted using the Group's incremeatal
average borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessinent if whether it wilt exercise an exiension
o a termination eption.

In the Balance Sheet, ROU assets have been included in propesty, plant and equip aud Lease liabilities have been included in Other finzngial liabilities and (ke principat poction of lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows. The Group has used a single disceunt zate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Where the Group is the lessor -

At the inception of the fease, the Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease or an opezating lease. Whenever the terms af the Tease transfer substantially aff the risks and rewards of
awnership to she lessee, the contzact is classified as 2 finance lease. AR other leases are classified as operating leases,

The Group has given certain vehicles on lease where it bas substantialy retained the sisks and rewards of ownership and henée these are classilied as operating leases. These assets given on operating
leasc are included in PPE. Lease income is recognised in 1he Statement of profit and loss as per contractual rental unless another systemalic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
the benefit derived from the leased asscl is diminished. Cous meluding depregiation ace recognized a3 an expense in the Statement of profit and Tass. Initial direct costs are recopaised immediately in
Stmtement of profit and toss.

In case of assets uader Finance Lease, amount seceivable fram lessees are recognised at the net investment in the leases measured by using the interest rate implicit in the lease contract. Al initial
direct cost incurred Lo put the leased asset for intended use are included in the initial measurement of net investment.

In accordance with Ind AS 116, Leases, the financial information has been presented in the fofowing manner.

) ROU assets and fease liabiliies have been included within the line items "Froperty, plant and squiy " and “Other f ial Babilities" respectively in the Balance sheet,

b) Interest expenses on the lease lizbility and depreciation charge for the right-to-uss asset bave been included within the line items "Finance costs”™ and "Depreciation, amontization and impairment”
respectively in the statement of profit or foss,

c) Shert-term iease payments and payments for leases of low-value assefs, where exemption as permitted under (his standasd is availed, have been recognized as expense on a straght line basis over
the lease term in the statement of profis or loss,

4} Cash payments for the principal g iniiest of the lease lability have boen presented within “financing activities” in the statement of cash fows;
The disclosures as required in accordance with Iné AS 116, Leases, ave set out under note np 42
New standards or amendeeents 1o the existing standards and ofher prononncements

Ministry of Corporate Affaizs {"MCA™} nolifics new standard or amendnients 16 the existing standards under Companics (Indizn Accounting $1andards} Rules as issued from time Lo time. As on 31
March 2025, there i3 no new standasd notified or amendment 1¢ any of the existing dards under Compasies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

. HUMBAL
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Mahicdra & Mahindra Financiat Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financiad Statements (Continucd}
as of March 34, 2025

Rs. tn crove

3

Cash and cash equivalents

R, ducrare
March ¥i. 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 58949 65,35
Cheaues and drafts on hand 628 ITYr
Balances with banks in 2urgent 22counis 20.57 263 89
‘T deposits with orteiml nuaianw vp 1o 3 monihs L4280 SET.38
Interest acerued on Tem: depasits 241 B
EE30.25 i X 3T)
Bank bafzaces other ¢han cash and cash equivatents
Rs. introre
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Earmarked balances with banks -
- Dnclaimed divideng aceounts 66 .57
Trrm deposits with malsity fess than 12 months - 435 932
- Free 241254 2.515.12
«Under lien # 1.429.66 477460
Tmerest acsrued on Term depasits 169,74 168,59
4.016.95 317155
# Deetails of Term deposits - Under Eon
Ry in crore
As at Murch 33, 2625 As at March 31, 2024
Particulirs Bank Osher Total Bank  Chber financial ssels Total
batances  Gnancial balances (Note B}
athey than Axsets asher thin
casks and {Nate 8) cash and
eash cash
For Sistutary Liquidity Ralio 356,00 - 35600 . -
For scouriizalion transactious 982.78 - 9E2.78 444.23 - 44423
Lepal deposits 8,27 - 827 081 - [T} 3]
For tawards Constituent Subsidiary General Lesiper 30,68 - Jhiy 36,90 - 3090
(C3GL) agcounl
{Chhee collzteral deposils 52,61 - 52,61 166 - 1.66
Total 142966 - 1,431%.66 477,69, - 47760
Derivative financial isstrigments
R tncrore
As at March 37,2028 As at March 31, 7024
Notionad  Fairvalee  Notionab  Fair valoe of Assets
HMIBGERES of Assels  amounty
i3 Currency decivatives :
Forward conlracts 1.669.90 326 -
Oplions 327.7% 25.6% - -
{hhers - -
Deferred premivn: on furciga currency loan forward contracts
Derivative contract receivables - -
Exchange pain seeeivable on forward contracl on fonzign currency loans - -
uhers
Todat derivative financial instowements 2,496 70 5 b -

a e}
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Netes to Consolidsted Financial Satements {Continued)
as o Mareh 31, 2033

Rs incrare

[ Reecivables

Re incrare
Marck 31, 2925 March 31, 2824
Trade receivables
1} Sceurcd, considered good
- Lease tentsl teceivable on operahing lsase transactions s nn
Less - Impatrment loss allowsace 0.43) {5.46)
272 16.76
iy Unsecured, considered good
- Subvention and ather inceme receivables 243.97 156.59
iii) Ceedit impaired :
- Trade receivabic ouistanding 1246 -
- Subvention and eibier income receivables - -
1.26 -
Less : Impaimment loss atiowance {1.26) -
246,69 173 35
T e

There is to due by directors o other officers of the company of any fitm or privatc contpany in wiich any director is 3 paraer, 2 director or 3 mentber.

Trade Receivabies aging scheduke

As at Masch 34, 3025 R, i crore
Particutars OCutstanding for fellowing periods from due date of payment
Lessthau 6 6months - [-2vears  1-3 years Muore than 3 years Total
months L vear
i} Undispuicd Trade receivables -
-~ considercd geod pL LR 013 48 12 R - 244 42
~ which have significant incrense in credi sisk 1.31 - - - - 13
- credit impaired ne? 040 1.00 [ F3 - 125
ii) Disputed Trade Receivabios -
- congidered good - - - - - -
~which have significant imtresse in credit sk - - - - - -
~ gredil impaired - - - - - +
Tatal 246,07 @33 14§ L) - 14818

There is ncithier an instange where due date i5 wol specified nor ary unbilled dees.

As at March 38, 2érid Rs. in crore
Particulars Dutstanding for follawing periods from due date of payeacnt
legsthand  Smonths - 1 -2yoars 2 -3 ymacs More than J veary Foul
months | vear
) Undisputed Trode receivabiles —
- considered pood 167.39 - - - - 16739
- which have significant increase in credit nisk 65 - - - - 10.65
= credis impaived 0.77 - - - - 077
i) Disputed Trads Recoivables
~ considered good - - - - . -
— which Jave significant inciease in credi zisk - - - - - -
- eredii émpared - - - - - -
Total 178,61 - - - - 17881
There i neither an iastansg where duc date is not specified nor any unbilied dues.
Reconcitiation af npairent kiss allowaace on (rade receivables Rs. in crore
Particulars March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Empairmaent loss allewance as at beginning of 1he year {5.46) .99
Net increased{decrease) dudng the year un 153
Impaitmcnt Joss allowanee at the end of the year {1.69) {546}
7 foans
Ry incrore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

4) Loans (21 amortised cost) :

Retail loans E9.050,30 9441063
Small and Medioem Enterprisc (SME} firancing AMZS 83 17570
Loans under housing fisance Dusiness T50).0% 7,209 08
Bills of exchange 13 LOS4.H
Trade Advances 3,E99.70 28710
Finasce fease 1.097.23 Tid.52
Otther lnans 2nd advances 6.08 20K
Totad (Groas) 1,27588.41 1,10625.82
Lzss : Empainnent loss allowance (£, 074 85) (3681 RGY
Total (Net} 1,23 413,36 §.06.343.96
B} 1) Secured by tangible asscls 12848336 Le4.851.22
it} Secured by intangible asscls - -
ity Covered by bank / Government guatantees 1152 13336
iv) Unsecuzed! 616343 5.041.04
TFotat (Gross} EI7588.42 1.18.025.82
Less : Impairment lass allowance {4.074.85) (3.68 1863
Total (Nct) 1.2} 511,56 106,343 9%

C} i} Loans i bndia

a) Public Sccior - -

b) Others 127 R840 1.0%.754.1%
Total {Gross} 12745440 10238419
Less © Impatment bosn allowance (4,568.35) (713N
Tatal {Net) - C {iy 1,23.086.95 106,106 82
it} Loans sotside India 434641 1il6d
Loss - lnpairment loss allowance {658} AN
Total {Net} - € (i) £27.51 23715
Totul (Neth- € (i+ii) EE3IS13.56 £.06.343 30

Notes

- There is no loan asset measured at FVOCT ar FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.

« Refer nowe no 50 for infonmagion eined o stape-niss classification of Toan wssets and ECL movemen
¢ Iacludes loans against Fixed Deposits
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limifed

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
as et Mareh 31, 2025

Rs. in crare

9

[tl]

(i)

Other financial assets

Rs. in grore

Sccurity Deposits

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Gross 113.41 20.02
t.ess © impainnent foss allowance {0.48) -
Net 11293 90.02
Excess Interest Spread on Direct Assignment 1.90 -
Others #
Gross 148,96 162.28
Less : Impainnent loss allowancs (8.95) {0.72)
MNed#t 148.01 161.56:
162.84 251.58
# includes receivables related o insurance claims and online payment aggregators
Deferred tax assets (net) and Tax expense
Deferred tax asseis (net)
Rs. in crore
Balance as  (Charge)/ Acquiredin  Charge/ Balanceas (Charpe)) Acquiredin  Charge/ (credit) Balance ss at
at credit fo business {eredit) te at credit to business to OC1 Mareh 31, 2025
Aprit 1, 2023 prefit and  combination 0Ct March 35, profitand combinxztion
loss & Translation 2024 loss & Translation
differences differences
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
tiabilities :
- Share based payments {4.75) (1.67) - - {6.42) (251} - - (8,93
- Application of EIR on financial assets & liabilities (68.19) (14.01) - - (82.20) (14.15) - - (96.35)
- FVTPL financial assel (4.78) {0.93) {0.35) (6.06) (i.3H - - (7.40)
- Others # {12620} 43.95 008 - {82.23} 10.50 0.04 - (71.69)
{203.98) 2734 008 {0.35) {176.91) {7.50) 0.04 - (184.37)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets .
- Provision for empioyee benefits 3345 (4.21) - 223 3547 {0.63) - 1.87 3671
- Met gain / (foss) on equily lnstruments through OCl - - - - - - - (21200 (21.20)
- Amortization and Interest in respect of lease - - - - - 1.60 - .60
payments
- Derivatives 5196 {3.05) - - 48.91 0.68 - - 45,39
« Allowance for ECL 634.38 34,97 - {17.76) 631.59 55.64 - (24.31) 682.72
- Provision on standard assets £53.53 {16.08} - - 137.53 i2.78 - - 15631
- Other provisions 76.46 27.92 - 0.83 105.2] {7.68) - 13.66 113.19]
949.78 43.63 - (314.78) 978.71 $21.3% - (28.18) 1,012.92
Net deferred tax assets 745.80 6.9 0.0§ (15.05) 30180 54.89 0.04 (18,18) 828,55
# inciudes deferred 1ax on account of seeuritization transactions, fair valuation of Govt. securities / bonds and timing differences arising on PPE.
Income fax recognized in Statement of profit anid Joss
Rs. in crore
March 3¢, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Current tax:
in respect of current year 82093 717.72
in respect of ptior years - {1.63)
820,93 716.10
Deferred tax:
In respect of current year crigination and reversal of temporary differences (54.8%) {70.97)
Adustments due to changes in tax rates - -
Adj recognised in the current yr in relation (o the deferred wax of prior years - -
Write down / Reversal of previous write-downs of deferred tax assets - -
Im respect of prior years ) A
(54.8% (79.97)
Total Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss 766,04 645,13
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes ta Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ax al March 31, 2025

Rs. 1 croce
10 Deferred tax asscts (net) (Continned)
(iii) Income fax recognized in Other Comgpreheasive Income
Rs. ini crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2624
Facome tax related to items recognised in Gther Comprehensive fncome during the year :
Remeasurement of defined employee beaefits 1.87 2.23
Net gain / {loss) on equity instruments through OCL (21.20) -
Net fair value gaie on investiments in debt snstruments at FYTOCT {24.51) (16.91)
Net fair value gain on investments i equity shares at FVTOCI - .
Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge 15,66 (0.35)
Investee's share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted investments - -
Total Income tax recognised in Gther Comprehensive Income (28.18) {15.03)
Rs, isy crove
March 31, 2025 March 3§, 2024
Classilication of income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Income taxes related to items that will not be reckassificd to prefit or loss {19.33) 223
Income taxes related 1o items thal will be reslassified to prafit of loss (8.85) (£7.26)
Total {28.18) {15.03)
() Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss is as follows:
Rs. in crore
As at As at

Profit before tax
Applicable income fax rate
Expected income tax expense

Tax eftect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense at tax rafe to reporied income tax expense:
Effect of income exempt fiom tax

a) Dividend [ncome

Effect of expenses / provisions not deductible in determining taxable profit

a} Penalty {case settlement, MSME interest, other penalties)

by} Doration and CSR

¢} Any ether ilem

Effect of tax incentives and concessions (research and development and other allowances)
a} Section BOJJAA
b) Others

Effect of diffcrential tax rate
Adjustments recognised in the current year in refation to the current tax of prior years -

Others

3) [mpact of VsV

b} Deferred Tax

c) fiterest w/s 234 on Curvent Tax
d} Excess Tax Provision for CY
¢} Gthers

Reported income tax expense

March 31, 2025

3 March 2024

2,961.68 2.532.07
25.168% 25.168%
745.40 §37.27
(3.89) (0.73)
007 0.08
15.02 647
.67 577
(1.09) (5.09)
(3.41) (3.22)
0.92 0.76
a0 (1.63)

7.83 -

0.85 -

0.32 262

0.44 0.57

3.83 220
766,04

645.13
iy |
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Seevices Limited

Nutas to Consolid

d Financial 51 {Conrinuad)

et Marcis 31 JU3Y

i, e

i)

Cther noncfinangiaf assets

Rz inrrore
Aarch 3L 2035 Maeek 10,2004
Capitat advances 8L.99 4521
Propuid expenser 06,57 £740
Hulnees with Government Avthimines 152,39 413328
Unamaortisad placement and arangernent fass paid in bonowing @stonmcis a0k [RLY
pviecs Fr.o3 174
Oher advances PR} 2046
T76.2% 624 5%
Berivative financks? imstvuments
Hs. in craee
March 38, 2025 Mureh 31,2024
Notienal  Fair valae of Novins! Fair value of
amounts Liabitities vl 1inbrifetics
Cusreney {interest rate dedvatives Unkedged:
Forwssd coatracts - - - -
Currency swaps Opticas 4506 705 709.00 154,30
Fetal (A) 201066 4308 11300 154 30
Currency f luterest cote derbvatives Hedged:
Forward cintmicts 430315 LT #3452 17740
Carrcacy snap=Options. [RLENES LN #2170 157
['qul () A044.09 3458 b8e332 180 47
‘Total derivetive Snumclal instruments (A+ 51 BRSNS L) K] 237233 33537
Alovement in Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
R, In crure
March 31,2028 Moxch 51, 2024
Dafance o the beginming of the veae {1383 .34y
lzcognised on Cash Flowe fledge Reserve 62.3%) {1.39)]
Reutssifiad W prefit or oss i -
Insasme Fax elating o gain” bovs on e O 15.66 045
(23.85) R

1{37%.‘
ey ‘11 W LGQD
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes o Convalidaded Fimarcial Statements (Conrinuedy

ar at Mawch 31 2025
R crone

15 Payabks

K incrore

B Trede Peysbles
P !

March 32, 2025

Massch 33, 2004

diag dues of macro winad sl i3 D42
i} towl Fng dues of eredy Qrer than wmicra P and sl enterpiiics 1440.32 167860
1y Crher Paywhics
1 touk dag dues of micro pises and vmiat enle 2 T8
W} totad ding dues of cred; her Yisn miere sk vk 17.K? 6171
LAcE23 134353 |

Micto, Smail and Melizr Euterprises:

Rused on and to the exicul of the information received by the Company livm (s supphors during the vear regindmg their stetus under the Migio, Smoll md Medum Enterprises Developmiest
Act, 2006 (MEMED Act), the total eustanding durs of btiera and Small salerpiscs, which ae cututanding for mote than the stipabsted peeiad snd other disclostes 43 per the Minee, Soiall

and Medivm £ Devetop

ArL 2006 (hersinaiier refermed o axthe MSMED Act") are given behrs:

R e crore

March 31, 3925 March 313024
a3 Dues temaining anpuid to any supplice at the year and
- Prncipat 0364 323
= Interest ea the shave - B
b Inleiest paid in torma ol Sectia 16 of the MSMED Act slong with the simeunt af payment made K 1he stppliee beyond e sppoitied day
during e year
- Vrincigaf paid bevond the ompointed dale a.ny 169
= Toterest paid i terens of Sextiony 16 of the MEMIED Aci aon 0.43!
) Amount of inlerest duc and payable for the preriod of deliy on payneats made beyond the appoinled day during thie year - -]
B Amoual of inlerest secraed and remsining wopaid . .
e} Fusther interent due and payable evas in the soceceding years, undil steh diie when 1he iaterest due an shove isc acioally pod 5 the smadt - R
enlomrises
Trade Pavables nging schedule
As a1 Maich 31, 238 Ry in crare
Purticulars Oursiunding for foflowing pedods brom dur date of pryment
Lewsi than T year 1-2 peurs 2-3 years Mors Mg 1 yeatk Tokal
RMSME pALS G05 - B p 11}
Oty 141278 258 1042 1503 1.459.59
Fetal 141454 2341 o042 1303 461,50
Divwpates dues -
- MSME - . - - -
- Dby . - - w.0u o6
“There i seither an instinee whens doe dalk is pot specifiod nor there is any unbillat Jue
As ul March 31, 2u24 #x In trore
Parliculars Qutslunding for followhag pertods Trom due date of praymant
Lzss than | year 1.2 years 2.3 years Mon: than  wars Total
i AMSME o - . - 31
B} Cherr LAYIAY BENE) 755 15T [RIUXH
Tatal Love a2 .95 1574 114353
Diisprated dues -
- MSME - - - - -
- Gthers - - - [ D04

Thete is resther i instance where due dale is oot gpeciivd nos fhere is any unbitied duc,
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Mahindra & Mabindra Financial Services Limited

Notes o Copodid,

d Figancial § 1<

ax at kfarch 11328
Fs naure

£6 Debt Seaurities

R in cxore

At Amartived cost
Mon-vonvertible debentares {Secured)

Nem-couventible debentires {nsecured}

Cemmaereal Fapers {Unso eed)

Tolal

13chr securities in india
Debs securitics outsde fndia
Towi

Rupee Denominmed Securod Bonds ovorsens (Masala Honds)

Marck 31,2025 Marck 31, 2034
1513418 padns 2RE)
2,163.31 263260
245941 500815

A8 88490 EOE LT
IIRGEID 3398491
2965590 J69E49)

Hote: There i mo debi seeurity nessured £ FVEPL or devigiated 3t FVTPL

The Secured Non-coavertible debuanieres are secteed by pustpusar charges on office premises, PPE, book debis and exclizive charges o receivablos Under Ingn conlraets to tie exend of

100% of catstanding secored debentutes

“Fhe ralcs mentioned above aee the applicalilc rates as al the year end date. These inehedes foating sate ks which are hased on MCLR # T-bilf plos spread

Dretalis of Non-canyertible debenraves (Secured) -

R #n crere

From thr Bulsnce Sheet date

AYIssued on arivaie placemenl bask (wholcssicl -
Reouvable on maturiry

Mataring withia T vear

Mamring benseen 1 venr w3 vears

Maturing between 3 vears ta 3 yexs

Maturing bevond 5 vears

Sub-tolsl 2¢ face value

Renavable in Hall veariv instakinents :
Matusing within | vear

Maturing between | vear 1o 3 veany
Matuting between F veurs i § vears.
Subdolal st face vahie

Sub-total at Bace valoe (A}

B Isvicdd om retadl nablic jxsie -
Renuvable o muturity
Mawring witldn | vear

As sl Barch 31, 2025

Ag sl March 31, 2004

Intercet Rute Range Amouar Intecest Hote Range Amount
4.25%-9,00% GASR5E 1AStE Y50 432950,
SI5HASY 138923 1053350
TIRGY, 38 CIHLEE 1.939.45
TAS%H.35% 1208390 T45%R A% £IRR00]

23.283.23 1129095

635% fIzse
635% 5625 435% 3615
N 4.35% 6875
16875 22500

23.357.98

taturing hetwern 1 vear to 3 veary DI -9I0% $42.18 B.20%-9, 50 86015
Saturing betwoen 3 veurs to § vears
Maturing between 1 vear to 3 vears
Sub-totel 3t face value (BY BE918 #69.15
Tomk er lace value {A+ B 2532713 233445
Lext: Unamortised disconnting chiarges 2549 KR}
Adid: Interes) accrued hul notfue 1.037.64 933.37
T otk wnirtsed cost 25249, 1E PSR
Dierails uof Nenwonverdhbe debentures (Rssscured) - Rs. [ croee
From the Balunee Sheer dste As 21 March 31,1025 As i March 31,2034

Enterest Rute Range Amounst  Interest ftate Range Anount
Repovabile on matoziry :
Matuting within | vear H31%-R45% £75.00 Bk
Matypiar between | vene to 3 veary A31% AT5.00 47508
Matarizg bevond 3 vears PR MM 00034
Mutuihg betacn 3 vedes t 5 vors
Matueing between | vear lo 3 vears
Mataping within | vear
Totui af Muce value 205000 147538
ess Unamotiised deotimting charges 4,65 113
Add: Interest scenued bul not due 1295 16343
Total anmortised st 215331 263260

4

£Ra

107122 I
100672

f(‘ MUMBA! S5
;\«.«NWIH\'@\‘!
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Mahindra & Mahindra Financist Services Limiled

HNaies te Conratidaicd Finencial Statements (Condinued)
ws af Afercir 51, M2§

Ry i crore

16 Debt Securities (Consivued}

Betalls of Commercial Papers (Unserured): Re. i erore
Froum the Rafrice Sheel date Asat March 31 2025 As ut Masch 31, 2024

Intecest Rale Range Amouns Isterest Rate Renge Asoany]
Renavable o maturin
Mataring willin | vess 7I5% N ZSO000_ TH0e 30 5.675.00]
Tuexd at fuce value 230000 517500
Lesy Unumontised discounting chitres 5% 1635
Adtd: Inierest accrued butnot dae -
Totel umortised cost 245941 506815

17 Borrewings (Other than Debt Securiries)
Rs. in crore
Murch JE 2025 March 31, 2024

At Amersed cost
#) Tennlosns

) Seoured -
- from banka 4£837.66 18,647.07
- frony banks in teien cumency 116,91 64 34
- Exrernal Commareial Deprowings TR0 AL
« Ausuiated liabiities in rexpeet of weanUsation Hansucticys Bi44.6) $61477
- Triparty rego dealing and settferrent (TREPs} zpamst Govemment seeuriiies 499 §2 -
- ftem vthet parties (National Housing Nandk) - -
3 Unnsecaned -
- from hanks - 247
= {rom other panics - sns?
B} Lawm From relaied prrtiey
Unsequad «
- Intet-corporate depasita {1005} . REny
€} Loxns repaysbic an demand
Securad -
~fionm ks 0.6 -

- Csh crada fucthiies with banks - .
a3 Odherfvans and wdvuncs

Unsccarel «
« Inter-corparte deposits {1011 ather Whan reluted pariics 884 187.60
- Leuns (othes than 10D - 2508
TFolal 71,753 43 56043 87
Berrowingrm India 4,625 5469107
Bocrouings outde hidia KRR 2250.20
Fanl 71,753.83 56043 47

Note: There Is no Bormowing despnated 31 FVEP],

The secused wrm laans are scaned by exclasive charges oa ceerivables uider bvm ombmets and book debly 0 e extentof 10073 of outstanding soouced hoans
The bosseowbigs have not heen puasantoed by dirastrs o others. Also the Group bas et defauhod i eepasiment of principel and miceest.




Mabindra & Mahindra Finarcial Services Limited

Notes to C Financial {Continusd)

wi a Mareh £1, 3025

Ry, o1 crore
7 Dorrowings (Qer tean Debt Secusides) (Contineed)

Belafls uf ferm dystes Fiman banks {Seenied)

Re Iy croge

From the Baleace Shecl date As a1t Murch 38, 2025 As 31 March 31, M4

Interest Hate range Asmiuar  Interest Rate runge Adeant
13 Repayatle oo maturioy
Wataring withiz | vear 16053 70% 1L £33 950 249608
Maturing between T year ta 3 yenrs 170% -8.29% SO0 IR0 48010
Maturing bete.con 3 vears 1o § vaars - 10
Tetal for repayable oaL matusity 224860 327000
) Repayable ln instalszends :
i) Mamlhdy -
Nisbuing within ¥ year R
Maturing between b year i 3 year .
Mtturing between 3 vears o 3 yeurs -
Sab-Tetsl . - - -
i) Quearterly -
Mataring wilhin § year £70%% 1203108 Sassunn TATHAG,
Msturing betweon & yenr fo 3 years 515%-8, 192960 3.7086-0.00 14,057 62
MEsturing betwiven 3 vears o $ vears .40 -8.80% 452501 5150900 Bl B
Matuting beyond § years
Suh-Tutal 3581008 2700783
it} Half yearly -
Matring withine ¥ yedr 137076 £.25%4 K10 336208
Biuturing henwees T yesr i ver o £.236.18 S R4K.56
Maturing bevond 3 vears to § yoars TI9%- 44N £ARLTE 154503
Maturing beycad § years RS S0.00 FTIHM
Sub-Tatsl 335171 [EEIURD|
iv) Yearly -
Maturing within 1 vear T19%-0.00% 130542 T.59%-9 Dita 50625
Matwriog bitwoey 1 yearto ) years §.30%-900% 397ER 59%0.00% EATO A
Biataring herween 3 years o 3 vears 0.0 26500 §.50%9.00% 14500
Sulbi-Tetal AEIEEL [ALLAN
Tarst for repayabile in instalments 5249961 4514679,
Totat {£+2) {Ax per contraciual tenns) 5474041 4056279
{.es5. Unamontised Finance Codt .25 .48,
A, Tnterest apcrucd bul ot due 2.4 LYY
Torst Amariises Cost 5483188 4364707
Detadls of Secured term losns from haoly in foreien currenev (LKRY

Rs. in crure

From the Dalasice Sheet dute Azt March 31,2025 As ot March 21,2024

Iiterest Rute range Amaunt  Insercs Rate ranoe Amoany
Repayuble on manuriy :
Muturing within ¥ yest TIE% - 10457 9291 1B19%- (159 4110
Bfaturing botnren § yearto 3 yoars FA5% - HLL0% 1783 12.59% - ER A9 P53
batning boyomd } years to § yoars
Totsl $1002 €3 83
Less Unamorised Finaioe Cod X1 -
udd: Interent cscrued bulnot due 037 571
Totsl Aupnriised Coxl 31631 64 54




Mahindra & Mahindra Financiat Services Limited

Notes 40 Conselidk

d Financiat 5 1L

&

aror Aarih 31, 2008

R, acqgee

17 Borrowlngs (Other fhan Debt Sceurities) (Crontinwed}

Detsils of External Commercial Borrowingy (USD & JPY)

Ry inernse

Fron: the Bafance Sheet date

Maturing within 1 year
Mateing butween T year 10 3 years

sy Unamartived Finance Civat
Adit: Interest scenued bulnol doe
Tuatal

A 30 Murch 34, 028

Inerest Rale range Amount  fndercd Rate raoe Amaunt
174345 1% 363,59

S114.48 [EAL R A R [z ki)

6,928.37 210738,

2760 5.53

34,56

Asa March 35, 2024

Details of mssncinied Babifies related 10 Securitltation Irasssetions

Tolal

R, in crarg
Froen the Batence Sheel date Ax ot Marth 12025 A a0 Mureh 31,2024
Tntesest Rate vange Amatint  Inlerest Rate mange Amuny
Maturing within T year 4.Jet2 0T 347399 154152
Matnriog between | year ta 3 years ERI VLY L5561 2656.91
Naturine between 3 vears 1o 3 vears B.5085-Bo0% 680.50 410.47]
Maluring beyond 5 vears 1879 =
£7129.8¢ SAGLG
{ess. Unamartied Fianice ot 0.63 0
Aidd: Tnteiest soorued b am due 15.38 554
Tozsl Hid461 SALETT
Secured by exclisive charge e cecivables pades haaa eoairacts and beok debts o 1he wxtend of 100% of eutstanding secuned bans
Detalls of Tripurty repa dealing and settlement (TRET) ugalast Goversment securities
B in crore
Fron thie Balwnce Sheet date Asat March 31, 2015 Asai March 15, 2024
Tneerest Bate rauge Amount  Iatoest Rawe raare Ameany
Maluring wiiltin | year E0U.04 .
Mutvrmg belween 1 yeur fo 3 yeami
Muuzmg bifween 3 veas 1§ vears
Baturing hevond § yeary - B
2,01 .
Lcss: Unamortised Fnance Cost .
Ad: Interest nocrued but not due .1

09951

Beinlls of Unsecured term dosm from banks

Sceured by exclvsive charge oa soccivabbes under Sour comirscs 2 book debts (o the catent of H0% of autstnding sccared foans

Rs. incriute

Fross the Babance Sheet duit As z Mareh 31,2015 At March 31, I8H

Tnlerest Rode range Amnnt  litercst Bato ranae Aot
Repayable oo maturity -
Matmeing within 1 year 9.25% 147
Tota) - 247
Faese Duamantised Fhvance Cost - +|
A Ipten seomued bad oo dus 0.00;
Totz] Amartised Cont - 24T
Dretalls of Unaccured izem loans from ethers

Rs.m o

Froin the Balance Sheet dare Ay at March 35, 2625 Avat Marck 31, 3024

Intercst Ratc ranee Amoune  Inierest Rats ranee Amannd
Repuyabie on muturily :
Maturing within T you Lo 5.0
Matdring hetweon § yearto § sears 220% 75 60
Tols} - L5000
Lesr. Ununiortised Finaies Cost - -
Add: intezet socnued but net due 082
Total Amorlised Cosi - 150.62

Fhryen
IR )
.,‘_3.,‘2_‘:;:‘_:;_4’

=
s




Mahindra & Mahindra Financtal Services Limited

Kalex to C
ar at Marci £, P15

d Financizt § £

R oo
7 Borranings (Olher than Debt Socurilies} (Conringed)

Detaits of Loans from related partics & Other Parties (Ursecsreds - bntec-corperate depostts (1GD=)

its. by crure,

From the Balance Shieet dule Asal Mapd 31,2625 A at Mand 3, 2022
Dnfcrcorparate deposits (3CDs) (Relaind Parties) Interest Rete range Atwunt  Balcrest Rate fungie Antount
Repayable on naaturity :
Maturing witlin 1 year ATH 6% S0
Masnszing between | year L 3 voars
Fanal - $0.60
£ova: Hnamortized Pinance Cost - |
Add: Interest acerued but aol due A9
Yotal Amortised Covt - 9159
Inter-catporaie depaslts (IC0s} (Otiver Than Related Parlies)
Kepryahi on mazurily ©
Munring within | vear 215% (0] 6.70%8.00% 183.00
Yol £50 195,60
Less Ugamorused Finance Cost - E
Add: laterest accraed but not due 254
Total Amortised Cosl 18T 5
Detuils of Loans copeyable on demand {Secured}-with anls
Re tnsrore
From e Eslance Sheel date As at March 31, 2038 At March 33, 2024
Interest fLake range Amount  lnterest flate range Antount
Repayuble or maturicy
Maiuring within 1 yeaz BIE% - 0% 960 i
Tolal pa X1 -
ey Unanortised Finanee Cost - -
Addd laterest aecrued bt act doe
Tatal Amertised Cost 9,40 -
Dretzlls of Unserured Toans athies dhun ter-corparate deposits (20T :
Rs. in crore
From the Bslance Shect date As 9t March 31, 3028 g at Mawsh 31, 2024
inierest Rale renge Amaunt  Interes Rate sange Aumonn
Repayable o matisrity 1
Mutaring within 1 year - nne2in 2505
Matuting berwesn | year da 3 vesrs - .
Tatef + 2503
Less: Unamontisad Fmance Cost - .
Ad: nterest mieryet but nol due
Tatad Awnrtised Coxt - 25458
B Depoiins
R In crore
Macch 38,2025 March 31, 2024
AF amorived cost
Deposits (Bnsecured)
= Puhbe doposies® 6839GF 6,035 46
- Accepaal fiom comporates 433495 149773
Total 113739 753312

Noger There ia nir odher deposdt measured a1t FYTTL or doignated o EVEPE,

*There ure no amedats St ace due and remain unpaid o fnvestor Edueation snd Pratection Fund 49 et the chose of the year. theee was nodelay in tisnsfering any amount wr the lnveste

Tduestion wnd Prosection Fund by 1he Pareat Compaay.

Detuity of Depostis (Unsecured) - Pobbic deposits ¢

Rs. In crore.

From the Balance Sheet daie As st March 31, 2025

Asat Murch 3%, 2034

Interest Rate cange Amoant  Interest Ruie range Arnount
Repavshic on mararity :
Maturine sithin § vear 575% -23.5% 199494 S B3% - 25 0% 24635383
Maturing berwoen 1 vear 1o 3 viws 590% - 25% SHTI05 S5 IR 1ser
Maturing bevend 3 vears 125% -21% 1,038.55 50 - 18 8GR 95703
Total ut Cace value [ R EAL SN L
Less Unamodised disconnbing charses 31 2246,
Ak Interest acemiad bat s duc 504,60 J5BA4
Toret Anrartised cast 11.573.97 R R
19 Submeilinated lialiiities
R ip crore
March 31,2025 March 31,2024,
Al Amortised cosl
Suberrd ¢ ved b ible deb - private placoiieat 354157 FER08
d - retaif public sssue 2.562.27 L4 IS
Fosak L ALE 2 4753 a6
Subordinated fiabilitics in ndr 610383 4753 46
Subopdimated Sabilities cutside frcha - -
Totsd GI0IRE EREATL

Nose There i3 no Sabordinated Hability mooaseed at FVTPL or designated at FYTPL




Mahindra & Mahindra Financiat Services Limited

Nates do Conselliated Financial Coptinied)
ar ant Afrcit 1), 3028

B3 s

B Subardisated lisl

thess (Coninaed)

Drotaits of Subsrdinnled Rabilivies (14 Amirtised coss) - bhordizated redeemabi ceriibic debranures
fe in crare

From the Balance Sthees duie Asat March 31 038 As ol Murch 31,2024

Inrerenl Rute range Ansouat  bterest Kae rnpe Antoint
AT Bssued on private pizcement busis -
Htepavabie on maturity :
Sdutaring within | vear 23508 R T 235.08
Malnring bebneen | vans te 3 vears 6740 3.90%.9.10% 35700
IManuring betawen 3 veus (o § vears X $35.48 BRI 1260
Maturing hevond § vears 1A E 5% 286290 2358350 1367 98
Sube-tolul at face valye (A) 143498 2,064 HiH
BY e on el public fisue -
Henavalile on maturiiv :
Matusing within { vear TI5%7 85 5932
Maturing behveen T vear kr 3 vears TG -9.00% 135025 B30 933,61
Matuging betworn 3 seaie w5 vears 93549 3% 33681 TH0 9,500 Th412
Matwrine bovond § vears TH5%A.05% B34 THSR 054 64396
Sub-fotel ot face vulue (B1 236105 2443
Total ot Feee vibue (A+ D13 AEO0.98 448511
Fas: Unnapontised discounting charges 2403, 1586
Add: Inlwest acesued but not due 32588 BT 01
Total wmortised coxt GA0384 £T3340

The respective basineees in the groap has used the bocrosaings from baaks sid Gnzrciad o stitctions Fos the specic purpose for which it was tahen.

The Gioup s aed bren Seclired o wilfubdefaubier by any bank or linunctel imstization or consonim thereof, n sevordunee with the guidlines on wiliol defaaliers issued by the Reserve
Rank of Indhs

W Other Brancial Habilitieo
R ln crore
Mazch 31,2075 Morch 31,2025

Enterest menrued but ol due oo bonawiings - .

Enctanmed disdands @ 168 03!
Entctaiged matuncd depisits and micrest sceneed e XM 4.37
Eropewsite / advances received pyzinst Lot spreenents 533 3551
Hnsance prentiunt paysble 5.8 1838
Salary, Honur and performanee payable 0.4 1112
Brovision for exparses 2435 2273
Lense liabiliies (refor note 47) 51399 295.13
Othees 148.34 G1e
Total [XEERT] 87187

7 Thete sie wa asmn b die F0F fansler w the Inveskor Edcatanr and Protection Fand ander Scctice 123 of Contgrnies Act, 7013 4 04 the vear s

21 Proviafons
R én crore,
Murch L2028 March 31,2024

Frovisics For smpls e benclite

- Grpudiy frefer et 10} hLE) .62
« Leave encashment 9355 .23
« honus. ingantines and petfomaance pay $47.44 1N
- Pt nutivvrnent incdical bevellt EAZ] -
Provision [0 Iz ecmnutment (N1 106

 Tatrf 2__5_[..74 234 TY

2t Other non-fiaancial bl

R b ororr,
Muzch 31,2025 Mazch 31,2024

B
10712

WID0ET2 " § oo

I~
Dedrted subvenhes inceme 625 1437 MUMBAL i
Staturary dues end oxes vavable 154 K1 16367 Y
Gthiers m 796 i
. - {:N\“;?‘ﬁ
R
Tatal 20490 15540 e

13 Equity Share Capltat

Rs b crure
A at Asat
M¥arch 31,2005 March M, 201
Authiocised:
2 50040000, 600 €31 March 2024: 2500000 Eaurn dharcs of K32 eseh Stk i) S0k
FO00,000 (11 Mareh 2024, 30 90,0007 Redeempble prefiecence shares of Bs 14 each ) 300,
Tesed, Sylrscribed and prid-u
1235829920540 Mlareh 2073 123.55 299207 Eauity shnies of R 2 caeks fiefhv pacd o M1 270
Lass : 6.68.537 (31 Maich 2024: 11.43.585) Equity shares of Rx2'~ each tokly usid 1y issened t0 ESOP Trust ander Company’s ESUP Schapes 133 1331
st 1o yet aBiothedd v enploves pending evereise of ik optims,
Adjusted Ivard, Sebscrived and puid-up Shate copial T3
March 31, 2625 Maseh 31,2024
Nu.of thiarss R, ifs cruce Noalare 15, e escte

at  Reconcitlation af nuaeder of sqnity shares und arvrnl vutstanding:

tewred, Subscritesl anid paid-up:
Nalance 41 the beginning of the yexr 121589980 HTaE 12385290 M
Ad - Fresh alfoument of shates - - .

Ratanee at the onid ol the veer L3,85.23.9%0 MK P XSS 2090 HH
Less Shures wxsed 1o ESOP Tnusi buk ad vet slhviied o cuiphryees 664,537 3 FEAIAOR 023

Adjusted Issond, Sutseried snd prid-up Share capiol 113,486,543 698 1L 436,182 156 K3

B} Ninber of sty shares hedd hy holding company or uttimzte

koldin g company nsluding shares held by bix subsidisries f axsouiates:
lodding company : Mahhidse & Mabiadia Limited 64.43,99 907 128 8H GIALIHGET 124,88
Pricenugpe of hobbng (%4} 2.06% 3 iary

v} Starcholders holding mure than 5 percent of the sppregute shayes:
hEshindes & Malindis Eimited 64,43,99,941 12% 5k Ol 429 9RT 126 88
Purcenlive of holding (*a) F06% 52t

2 Ternw £ rlvhes sriachrd focanlty shares ©

The Compusty has only cuc cinss of cquny shares having 2 per vatue of B2 per sbare, Each hatlder of cqoity sdaress s cndited hrave vt s hare. Flie dovidend
proqrrsead hy fhe board of diractos nnd wppreved by the sharchobdons i the vl pruens] meenng iz pad in bedis pipecs, W i wvent of haaidittion of The
Company. e hokdars of ruity shaes witl be cntided to recorre camaiag assels of e Cumnpay, atter distritution of 38 prefacitial amounts The i wilk
e i Fruparticn by the ramber of cquity alares hehd b the shagcholdars




Malindra & Mahindra Financiad Services Limited

Nater to C tidated Financiat § 1€ &

g st Marcs;

10T

Ry, grerre

23

Eaquiry Share capital {Cemtinued}

Other Equity

Deseription of the nature amil purpose of Other Equity {refes Sulomens of Chatgesin £quity) -

Statutory reserve

Statubory newerve hea hoen orettad purstont 10 seation 4308 of the RN Acti934 and scetion 260 of the Natioaal Houstng Act, (957 The reserve fismd can b utised only Tt fimited

plapines ot spasiiied by KRN ased NI pespoctively, roat time W time snd every! such uidisation shall be iponed to the RI and BN respostively, within specifies period of ine frem the
dats of such utihsation

Capitat redenplion reseeve (CHR)

Capital redomption r¢seive repesents (eseove sroaled pupatand 1o Section 55 (2) (e} of ihe Companies Act, 2013 by lansfer of sr amount equivalenl & naminad valie of the Preference shares
redeemed. Tie CRR. may be otifised by e Compnry, i paybag up unissued shazes of the Company 10 be issucd to e members of the Compuny 2 fuly pnd honus shates i sceopduies
with the provisiots of the Compandies Ac, 2013

Serwritict premivm rescrve
Seearities premiam weseve i3 gsed fo recand the premiaim on e of shates. The reen can be utibised only {ur limded perpuses sich 21 issmance of bonug shanes fn accontanos with e
preaisions of Hie Companics Act, 2063

Genieral reserve

Generai reserve is ercated Ditcugh annush tansfer af peofis ot & specified perccntage in accontines with applicsbls regilatinus undor the ensta hile Companies Ast, 1996, The parpose of these
tiansfers was tn cawure (hat if » Jividesd distibution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid ep capilsl of the Company o1 thut vear, then the total dividend distribution i fess than e
1otal distribatoble profits for tha yeas, Consequent o infeeduchion of the Componies Act, 2 3, the requircment lo masdatanify ranafer specificd percastage of net profits 1o Geners] rrserve
Bas hetn withdian. Howaver, ke snount previeu sy tinsfered 2o e Genar reserve com be wtilised ooty in accordonce with the specHic tequircments of the Cimppaties Act, 211

Emplayee stock opricns nutstsnding

The Empioyes Stock Oprions cotstanding teprosents amotnl of reasrve sreated by recognition of compensution cost AL gral dale Tair vadur on shock options vested bof aof exereised by
emplovees and unvesiod stock oplicns i the Statement of profiv and s in tespect of equity-scttled share oplions granied ta the clipible emplovees of the Company md e subsidisdies in
eseance of the Employee Stock Option Pl

Retoined toeningy
Retained camings of scouminluted surphes ceprosents folal of alt profits ivtsined since Conpnys nception. Retaived eamings me crodilod with cutrent yoar prafits, iducad by losse:
dividend payooty, fransiers fo Geaersl reservs of any sdel other appropriations o specilic reserves.

Elemenis uf Other Equity with batance:

Particulary Nature wnd purpost March 3¢, 2028 Mierch 11,2024

Sadutory terarve For the parent Company, Statutory ceseriss reprusents reserve futd creatod jruuzan to Seution 4510 ol i pES A1) LIREST
RBI Acl, 1934 thruugh trensfor of spesificd perecniage of net jprofit evoey year befiue any dividend is

declared. The restrve liund can be uiliasd ouly o Binktad porposes & spovifind by RBL Goms ime o Sme

wad cvery such utihzation sha be repacted 1a the R withins specificd period of time from the date of such

waiilizativa, Simitarly. i1 inchudex iransfrs made by the houing fnetce business xod te Sei Lanka

surbsidiary of the Grodp az poy the soquiresents of National Nousing Sank (NIIR aad Centrat Renk of Sti

Lanka sampectively.

Capital rabmiplion seserte aepresents reserss erated prsusnt to Scetion 35 (27 e} ol the Cnmmnus Act, 5300 S0.00,
2013 by waisfer of an amuun equisalont o aorminal vatue ke Preferonoe shites redoninod.
ity kot utifized by the Company, in paying np umsaed shares of e Company W be isued ta te

Capiisl sedempiion resene

mierbers of the Company as fully paid Lo shiures in acourdance with the provisions of the C
Act, 013
Securitiey prentium Securitics preminm i wsed 10 1acned the preminm on fsie of shases. The tosceve can be utfied anfy fot 719548 TI%606
Timited putpxress such 3¢ isstiairco of bonas shares in sepomdancs with the provisons of the Companics Acw
2013,
Guneral esenve Gv:n:wl reserve i clmmd rrongh waaeal teanstor of profos an o specifiod pﬂmug:mmdaw with K14, 50 Elzo%
pihiceblc zeyulations umder 1h il Conpssies Act, 1956, £ t to futrouction of i

Compardes Acx, 1021, the requitement te mandutenly transfer spocitizd pazcentsge of net peofits 1o Sepoal
reserve las boon withdeswn However, e aurount prevusly iasilirsad to ths Genersk resare can be
wtifized oaly e accordance with the specilie requirements ub e Companics Aee, 2033,

Eorphes slock aptiuns motdanding The Employee Stk Opitioss oustanding repiesents amoun of roserve crested by recognition of 2642 3045
rnpencaton cost of grs date foir vabes on stack cptions vesiod but non exercived by smplayees and
unwested stk options i (e Statsmant of proft and boss in rospect of aqoity-scitiod share options grapted
r thie eligible employecs ol the Parenl Compuay and its suiidizrics in the proup in parsuance of the

Employcs $61k Opiion Plan.
Retamed camusgs Retnivod carrings or sccumlaiad surphs tegessnts whial of 4l profits sotnad singr. Grovp's inccption 937289 £,364.28
Hetained carmi aredited with ¢ vean profits, redoced by Iosse. i any. dividend payouts,

tramsfors b Gencral vescrve or sny sweh ehor sppreprisiion i specific soservs

bt compachansive income
- Dbt insuruinents theaugh OCH The Granp tocogntics ehatpes i sio (a3 satoe of dobt i held with 5 daial business oby ) o457 T
collot and il in odlier compechensine incone. Thess chumges sre secumulatad i the FYOCT debs
incestmentsresare. The Geoup s ot om this esoevs o proft o ko when the dolt

d. Any impai losa o such ? imaedtiately to the
Sratement m’!‘:uﬁ and Lurss
~ Exquiny i srunents teough OC1 The Groop has opesd tr recogrise chinpes in the far valut of certain ipvestmenty in aquily in other 145 2147

camprehansive insonc. Fhese charges are accumutated in the FVOCH equity investments 1eserve, The
Growp uansfers smouats from Bis rosre to ek taivings when the relgven oquity imvestarmis arc

dereignived.

- Bffectiva portion uf cash Thow bedges | cepresents the cumul it {oeies) ariving et teval £ the deri designatad oz 15355 129
carh Ml hodges theough OCT

~ Fortign Cutrency Fransiotion Reserve  ln asg of foreign sabsidiaries, revenue items dicdaied al the averege rite prevathng dusing the yeaz £41.93 TEE3Y

At akets ad liabilitics are consersed a1 mates prevading ot the end 0T the year, Any axcharipe difforenee
arisimt om consalidativn 5 reeogwised to Bre Forsiger Cumeney Tianstation Heserve (FCTRE

“Toiel Other Eguity 19.686.17
Bividend disributions wade and propased
3 Dividend on oquity shates deetared eod paid durg the yerr

Rs in craze

Murch 312025 March 312024

Dividend paid TI838 LR
Prudit for the televant veu 1.75%.62 1981 32
Dividend a3 3 percentage of prufit for the relovant year 442% 3745
) Dividands prouoscd tor s a5t the abtkk geneitl mocting (os txdguised as 8 Kability ns st rospective reporting date)

Ry in crore

March 312628 March 31,2024

Facg value por share (Rupees) T Py
Dividend perecuisge 325 A5
Drividend per shars (Rupers) 650 Lt
Fotal Dividersd o Eqaity shares (o) FIYCY T8
Profti after 12 b the refevand yeat () 234504 175462
Dividiend proposed 3¢ 4 percentage of prafit alter x {ah) 3.2

The dividond dectred or poid devsing the yesr by the comprsy 18 in compliance with socteon 123 ol the Comyunies At, 2013, s applicibic

FRN : %
TN
WiotsT: § ol
i MUHBAL S

R e




Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenients (Comtinned}
Jor tiwe year anded March 31, 2035

Rs. incrore

24 Enterest income

Rs. in crore
Marck 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
B On finawcial instewments measured at Amortised cost (refer note 2.7)
Intezest on loans 15.434.13 13.372.43
Interest en Finance lease 142.74 $7.34
incote from bill discounting 120.62 106.07
Interest income from investrnenls . 249.08 261.64
Interest on ferm depasits with banks 3i8.80 26611
) Oafl tal i d &t fair vafue theeugh QCI (refer nate 211 b)
Imerest income from invesimenis in debt instraments 30L03 118.24
Tota! 1656640 14,412.33
Note: There is no loan asset measured at FVTPL
28 Fees, charges and commission income
Rs, in crore
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Fees / charges on loan transactions 29699 165.1
Income from commission services - life insurance 149.94 -
Income from commission services - general insurance 61.31 -
Comimission f brokerage received from mutual fund distribution/other debt praducts 6,77 747
Collection fees refated to transferred assets under securitisation transactions 1295 12.02
Total [ §27.87 184.33
Revenue from contracts with customers
Ser out below is the revenue Trom contracts with customers and sceonciliation to the siatesent of prafil asd Jass,
Ra. i erore
Particolars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Type of services or service
Fues and commission income 52187 -
Total revenue from contract with custamars - -
ieagraphical markets - -
India - .
Outside [ndia - -
Total revenye from contracl with tustomers - -
Timing of revenue recognition - B
Services transferred @t a po time - -
Services transferied over time - -
Tatat revenue from contracl with custpavers - -
Contract balances
Rs. in crore
Particalars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fees, conwnission and other receivables 16,69 173.35
246,69 173.35
-Impaisinent loss alloswvance reeognised om contract balances is Rs. Nit (Previous year Rs, Nil)
-Contract asset 2s on March 31, 2025 is Nil (Previous year Nif)
26 Net gain / (loss) ow Mair vatue changes
Hs, in crore

March 31,2028 March 31, 2024
A} Net gain/ {loss) on financial instiumsents at FVTPL

i} On trading portfolio
- Investments (0.42) .39
it} On {inancial mstruments designated a2 FYTPL 1393 20.63
B)  Others » Muwal fund units 846 4.06
C)  TFotal Net gain / (logs) oo financial instruments at FYTPL 1197 2708
Fair value changes :
- Realised 131 -
- Unrealised 20,66 27.08
D) Total Met gain / (loss) on linancial instruments at FVTPL 21.97 27.0%
1 S et s e

Nole: Fair value changes in dus schedule are olher than those asising on accounl of accrued interest income/expense

17 Sale of services
Bs. in crore
Narch 3§, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income from insurance broking business services ELESLSS 1,057.66
Tatal 119151 1,057.66




Mahindea & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Notes 1o Consoliduted Financial Starements (Continned)
Jar the year ended March 31, 2023

Rs. incrore

W Otherincame

Rs. in eroeg

March 35, 1025 March 3%, 2024

Net gamn en derecopnition of propeety, plant and equipment 432 697

et zain on sale of mvestments measured at amortised cost (0.34) 1.0%
Income from shared services 5609 164.75
Others .29 0.66

Total G136 F73.47

29 Fizance costs

R, ingrore

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Ou lmancial Habiities measured at Amortised cost

Interest on deposits LS 490,27
Interest on botrowines 4.674.27 3.629.54
Interest on debt seeunties 2.630.68 2.438.83
fmerest on subordimated habilities 414.50 313694
Mot zain / {losst in fair value of derivative financial instrements (167.25) 9.47
Interest expense om lease lisbilives (refer nole 42) 39.99 36.08
Other borrowing, costs £5.73 18.07
Tatal

Mote: There is no financial liability measured at FVTPL,

30 Tmpairment on Goancial instrements

R, in crow

March 31, 2025 Maech 31, 2024
On Enancial instraments measired at Amortised cost
Bad debis aud write offs 168040 19Lie
Loans 39302 3271
tinvesttents . - {0.98)
Loan commuitment 0405 12.74Y]
‘Trade receivables and other contracts 1.59 f4,54}
Tatak 5, 355

Note: There is no financial instrument measured at FVOCI.

31 Employce benefits

B in crope

March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Salaries and wayes 217113 2,085.69
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 14518 12698
Share based payments (0 employees 6.61 6,56
Stafl welfare expenses 3603 4221
Totat 2358494 226144
3z Depreciation, amertization and impaicment
Rs. in crove
March 31,2025 March 31, 2624
Brepreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (refer note L1) 176.25 161.35
Amoertization and impairmsent of intangible assets (refer note 12) 4LH 13.85
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset (refer note 11 and 42) 103,65 95.68
Totad 3z1.21 27483 1
3 Other expenses
Rs. in crore
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rent 18.97 17.14
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on ingome 16.43 1596
Electiicity charges 2530 21.99
Repairs and maintenance 13.74 1496
Communication Costs 56,78 5946
Priming tnd Stalionety 1541 16.28
Advertisement and publicity 1154 44l
Directors' fives, allowances and expenses 5K 179
Auditor's fees and expenses -
- Audit fees .20 1.85
- Taxation matiers - -
- Other setvices 0,74 0.68
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.8% 0.4
Leyal and professional charpes 19394 150,95
Insurance 1584 1577
AManpower outsourcing cost 22249 H¥193
Donations 25.02 489
Corporate Social Responsibility (C3R) expenses ¥l 2683
Conveyance and travel expenses 187,18 00487
Onfier oxpenges 431,65 27841
Total 134661 Lijaas

34 Eurning Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is caleulated in accordance with Ind AS 33 ‘Earmings Per Share' by dividing the net profic for the year aitnbutable 10 equity holders of die Group
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Dituted EPS$ is calculated by dividing the net proti atisibutable o equiy
holiders of the Company by the weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares of the Company

Rs, in crome

March 3, 2028 March 31, 2G24
Profit for the year (Rs. in crore} 116187 1.532.69]
Weirlted average number of Equity Shares used in computing basic EPS 1,23.46.29.576 1.23.39.32,506
Effect of potential dilutive Equity Shares on account of unexercised emnlovee stock onnans 4.16.316 647,658
Weiphted average number of Touity Shares used in computing difuted EFS 1.23.50.45.892 1234580164
Basic Earnings per share (Rs.) (Face value of Rs. 2/~ per share) 1832 15,66
Diluted Eaminus per share {Rs.) 18.31 15.65
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352 Employee $tock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Parent Entity

The Company had allotted 48,435,025 Equity shares (face value of Rs.2/- each) (adjusted for stock-split in the ratic of 5:1 in Febmary 2013} under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 at par on
February 3, 201 to Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited Employees’ Stock Option Trust {"the Trust”) set up by the Company. The Trust holds these shares for the benefit of employees
and allots equity shares 1o eligible employees on exercise of stock options as per the terms and conditions of ESOF scheme granted as per the recommendation of the Compensation Committee.

Pursuant lo the Rights issue of one equity share for every equity share hield as on record date, at an issue price of Rs.50 per Equity Share (including 2 premium of Rs. 48 per Equity Sharc), made by the
Company, 20,63,662 equity shares have been allotted to the Trust in respect of its rights entitlement on August 17, 2020, All the option holders (benefictaries) under existing grams have awtomaticaliy
became cotited 10 additional options at Rs.50/- per option 25 rights adjustment and aceordingly, the aumber of sutstanding, options stand augmented in the same ratio as the tghts issue, All the terms and
conditions applicable 1o these additional options issued under rights issoe have remaired same as onginzl gramt.

Upou exercise of stock options, including additional options issued as per Rights issue, under the schemne by cligible employees, the Trst had issucd 70,25 425 cquity shares to employees up to March
31, 2025 (March 31, 2624: 65 50,154 equity shares), of which 4,753,271 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 7,87,641 equity shares) were issued during the current year This has resulied in an increase in
equity share capital by Rs. 0.1 crore for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 : Rs. 0.16 crore).

#) The terns and conditions of the Employees Steck Option Plans
i} Emgployees Stock Option Schemne 2018
Particulars ‘Ferms and conditions
Type of arrangemant Empoyees share based payment plan adininistered through ESOP Trust
Contractual life 3 years from the date of each vesting
Number of vested oplions exercisable Minimum of 50 or number of options vested whichever is lower
Method of settlement By issue of shares at exercise price
Vesting conditions I 5 equal tranches @ 20% each on expiry of 12, 24, 36, 48 and 60 monihs from the date of
grant
i) MAHINDRA AND MAHINDRA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED — RESTRICTED STOCK UNIETS PLAN 2023 (“MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023™)

Newly formutated employee stock option plan. namely, Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited ~ Restricted Stock Units Plan 2023 {“MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023™) in atcordance with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, and the same was approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 28,

2023,

Particufars

Type of arangement
Contractual life
Vesting terms & conditions

Vesting Schedule

Mumber of vested options exercisable
Method of seuieinent

Terms and conditions

Employees share based payment plan administered thirosgh ESOP Trust

5 years from the date of each vesting

RSUs granted under the MMFSE RSU Plan 2025 shali vest not carlier than sminimum Vesting
Period of 1 {Ome) year and pot Jater than the ssaximun Vesting Period of 7 (Seven) years
from the date of Grant of such RSUs,

The vesting of RSUs would be based on achievement of performance parameters.

The Committee would lay down the parameters for vesting of KSUs which would include one
wr more of the Company perfermance parameters such as;

a) Assct Quality

b} Assets Under Management (AUM) Growth

¢) Cost control

d} Profit growth

¢} Return on Assets (ROA)

f} Erigital maturity: use of technolopy and data

) Envitonmenta), Socizl & Governance {E5G) performance

In 3 or 5 equal tranches on expiry of 12, 24 and 36 months {i.¢. 33.33% cach) or on expiry of
12, 24,3648, 60 months (i.e. 20% cach), up to & maximum of 7 years from the grant date
Minimum of 56 or number of options vested whichever is lower

By issue of shares a1 exercise price

b) Options granted during the year:
i) Employee Steck Option Scheme 2010

Afier formulation of new scheme - MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023, no further stock options can he granted under the old scheme - Employees’ Stack Option Scheme 2010, However, live options alteady
vested can be exercised within the validity period as per the terms and conditions of the scheme.

Following are the stack option grants under this scheme which were five during the year with remgining validity perad for exercise of vested options.

Particulars Grant dated  Grant dated  Grant dated
January 5,  January 24, October 24,
2017 018 2018
£
{ 22l
Exercise price (Rs.) 2.0¢ 2.40 2.00 ¥%:}6\?g£? &
h =
Fair valie of option {Rs.} 337.36 49592 355.34 */4{*/

ﬁ?":L‘; AG "0\5‘"”/
i) MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023 =

furing the year ended Masch 31, 2023, the Company has granted 6,49,326 stock options {March 31, 2024 : 2,853,171} to eligible emplayees under the newty formuiated employee stock option pian,
namely, MMPSL RSU PLAN 2023, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Einployee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, which was approved by the
Board of Directors in their mecting held on April 28, 2023

Following are the grants wihich are liver under MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023,

Particulars Grant dated  Grant dated | Grant dated
Cietober 21 April 23 | Octodber 26

2024 2024 2023

Excreise price (Rs.} 200 200 2.60
Fair vatue of option (Rs.) 262,53 246.47 246.47
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£}

o)

The key assusnptions used in black-schofes snodel o7 calculating, fair value as on the date of grant are:

Year ended
March 31, 2025

October 21 April 23
2024 W4

Variables#
) Risk free interest rate 6.64% 7.08%
2) Expected life 4.50 years 5.50 years
3) Expected volatikity . 42.83% 44.27%
d) Bividend yield 1.16% 2.15%
5} Price of the underlying share in the market at the time of option grani (Rs.} 291.60 27885

Year ended
March 31,
24324

Grant dated Grani dated  Grant dated

QOctober 26
2023

1.29%
4.51 years
45.98%
2.19%
273.60

# the values mentioned against each of the variables are based on the weighted averape percertage of vesting.

i} Summary of stock options - Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 ;

As at Macch 3, 2025

Particulars No. of stock Weighted

options Averzge exercise

price (Rs) #

Options outstanding al the beginning of the year 6,12,763 26.57
Qptions gramed during the year - .

Options expired/forfeited during the year 11330 2745
Options cancelled/lapsed during the year - -

Options exercised during the year 4,44,786 27.09

Options outstanding at tie end of the year 1,356,627 2658

Options vested but not exercised af the end of the year 1,56,627 2638

As at March 3§, 2028

Na. of stock
optiens

14,34,983
12,392
22,187
7.87.641
6,12,763
612,763

Weighted
average
exercise

price (Rs)} #

2691
26.00
35.33
26.63
2697
26.97

# Adjusted for additional options issued in the ratio of one equity share for every one equity share held under Rights issue made by the Company during August 2029. The options issued under ESOP
scheme 201 are exercisable at Rs 2/~ per option and adjustncnt options issued under Rights issue are exercisable at Rs.50/- each, including premium of Rs. 48/- per option (being the issue price

under Rights allatment).

i} Summary of stock options - MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023:

Particalars

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year
Cptions granted during the year

Cptions expired/forfeited during the year

Gptions cancelled/lapsed during the year

Ghptions exercised during the year

Gptions ousstanding, at the end of the year

Options vested but not exercised at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2025

Nao. of stock
aptions

2,83,17)
649,326
8,804
85,674
30,485
807,534
36216

Weighted No. of Weighted
average stock average
exercise  options excreise price

price {Rs.} {Rs.}

2.00 - -
2.0 2,83.171 100
2.06 - -
2.00 - -
2.00 - -
006 233171 2.00
200 - -

As at March 35, 2024

# includes 9,194 options caneelled / lapsed on account of true-down effect applied on the specific tranche of the grant covering all the beneficiaries duce to non-achievement of specified perfomance

paramnelers at the Company level for the year ened 5t March 2024 as per the terms and condtlions of the MMFSL RSE PLAN 2023,

True-down of options:

The vesting of options under each tranche of individual grants uader MMFSL RSU PLAN 2023 is subject to achicvement of specified perfomance parameters at the Company leved and at the
individual level for the refevant financial year as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Comnitics (NRC) of the Board of Birectors, If actuad performance in a relevant financint year
against the specified parameters is fower than the defined thresholds, the granted options under a particular tranche woutd vest in proportion 1o the fevet of actual performance (true-down efTect) and
that proportion of optiens attitutable to lower performace would be cancelled / lapsed with cosresponding write-back of compensation expense atready recognized in the siatemens of profit and loss

Information in respect of options uutﬂ:.im!m \Eﬁ‘ ‘T%\\

N
7 ‘% FRM T »\\ A5 at March 31, 2025 As ut March 31, 2024
Exercise price = 107992 w MNa. of steck Weighted No. of stock Weighted

WTGOG:’ aptions average otions average

Ul’i“f\

fife
6.‘?5

Caployee Stock Option Scheme 2050 - 3] ﬁ‘c

- At Rs 2,00 ver oniton i 76411 4 monilis 2.94.002 24 moenths
- AL R 80,00 per option 80,216 14 mionihs 318761 3 months
MEMFSL RSU PLAN 2013 - . :

- AUR=.2.00 per option Q— aAULBAL 8 EERUER RS 9 monlis 283171 80 mouths

pe . 264,161 § 95,014

'3? WUHE,*. remaining rentaining life

% S &
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Lmployee Stock Gption Plan {Continued)

e) Average share priec at vecognized stock exchange on the dite of exercise of the option is as under:

Year ended March 31,2024

Weighted average Date of exercise Weighted average
share price (Rs.)

Year ended March 31, 2025

Tiate of exercise
share price (Rs.)

Aprit 01 2024 to March 31, 2025 April 01 2023 to March 31, 2024
286.73 27535

) Dectermination ¢f expected volatility
The mensure of volatility used in the Black-Scholes optien pricing model is the annualized standaed deviation of the continuously compounded rtes of retuen on the stock tver a pedod of time.

The determination of expected volatitity is based on historical volatility of the stock over the most recent period that is generally comamensurate with the expected life of the optior being valued. Fhe
period considered for volatility is adequate to represent a consistent trend in the price movements and the wovements duc to abnonmal events are evened ow.

Accordingly, since each vest has been considered as a separate grant, the model considers the volatility for periods, cowresponding to the expected Jives of diffesent vests, prior to the grant date.
Volatikity has been caleuiated based on the daily closing market price of the Company’s stock price on NSE over these years. Simtlar approach was followed in determiration of expected volatility

based on historical volatility for alf the grants under the scheme.

In respeet of stock options gramted under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 and MMFESL RSU PLAN 2023, the accounting is done as per the requirements of Ind AS 102 - Share-bascd paynent.
Consequently, Rs 7.25 crore (March 31, 2624; Rs.4 49 crore) has been included under 'Empioyee Berefits Expense’ as "Sharc-based payment to employees' based on respective grant date fair valye,
afler adjusting for reversals on account of options forfeited. The anount includes cost reimbuzsements {net of recoverics of Rs. 0.2] crore) to the holding conpany of Rs.1.68 crore (March 31, 2024:
Rs. 1.69 crore) in respect of opbiens praated to employees of the Company and excludes net recovery of Rs.0.0% crore (March 31, 2024: Rs.0.01 crore) from its subsidiasies for options granted to

their eraployees.
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35b Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Housing finance subsidiary:

The Housing finance Company has used fair value method to account for the compensation cost of steck options. Fair value of options is based on the
vatuation of the independent valuer using the Black -Scholes medel.

Description of ESOP Scheme:

Pacticulars ESOF

Vesting requirements Stock Options due for vesting on each vesting date shall vest on
the basis of time L&, mere continuance of employment as on
relevant date of vesting.

Vesting Conditions 25% on expiry of 12 montlis from the date of graat

25% an expiry of 24 months from the date of grant

25% on expiry of 36 manths from the date of grant

25% on eapiry of 48 months from the date of grant
Method of Settlement Equity settled

Number and weighted average exercise price of options

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sr.  Particulars Number ofoptions Weighted Avernge Number of options Weighted Average)
Na Exercise Price Exercise Price
1 Quistanding at the beginning of the year $0.51,108 26.05 16,57,128 3133
2 Granted during the year - - - -
3 Forfeited ! Lapsed during the year 437,405 46,33 4,112,757 48.82
4 Exercised during the vear 128,905 17.61 1,931,263 2272
5 Outstanding at the end of the year 4,84,798 1000 19,51,108 2605
& Exercisable at the end of the year 317386 10.00 599639 3814

Range of exercise price and weightled average remaining contractuat life of outstanding options:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Grant date Number of Options  Weighted Average Weighted Avernge Number of Options  Weighted Average  Weighied Averape
Outstanding Remsaining  Exercise Price (3} Quistanding Remaining  Exercise Price (¥}

Contractunt Life (in Coniraciual Life (in

years) years)
07-Oct-17 - 0.00 67.00 2,35,343 052 67.00
G8-Dee-17 - 0.00 67.00 42,853 069 67.00
14-Jan-18 - 0,80 £1.00 18,000 0.79 47.00
16-0Oct-1% 19,051 .21 10.08 15,854 1,93 18,00
18-Jan-21 12,500 2.18 18.00 3812 283 H
21-Ot-21 3,97,76% 2.42 10.00 6,06,802 3.36 10.00
19-Oct-22 45478 305 10.00 74,544 4.14 1000

2
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Entployec benefils
General deseription of defined Benefit plans

Gratuity

Most of the entilies operates a prawity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefin payable is the greater of the amount caloulated as per the Payment of Grasuity Acl, 1972 er she
Company scheme applreable to the employee. The benefit vests upan completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employess on relisement or on
sermination of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesling. Most of the entities makes annual contribution 1o the gratuity scheme
administered by she Life Insurznce Corperation of [ndia through its Gratuity Trust Fond

Post retirentent medical

The Pasent Company provides for post setirement medical cover o select grade of employees to cover the retiring employee and their spouse upto a specified age through mediclaim
policy on which the premivms are paid by the Company. The eligibility of the employee for the benefit as well as the amourt of medical cover purchased is detennined by the grade of
the employee at the fime of refirement

Through its defined benefit plans the company 5 exposed 10 3 number of nsks, the most significant of which are detailed below

Asset volatifity -
The plan lizbilities are calculated usiog a discount rate set with refercnces to government bond yields; if plan assels underperforn compared to this yield, this will create or increase a
deficit. The defined benelit plans may hold equity type assels, whick may camry volstility and associated nisk.

Change in bond vields -
A decrease in government bond yiclds will increase plan liabilities, although this is expeeted 10 be panizily offset by an increase i the vatue of the plan's investment in debt ingtrumenis.

Variabifity in withdrewal rafes -
Ifactual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate sssumption then the gratuity benefils will be paid earlier than cxpected. The impact of this wilt depend on whether the
henefils are vested as at she resignstion dae

Repulatory Risk -
Gratuity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 {as smended ep-to-date). There is a nisk ol change in the regulations requiring hisher gratsty
payments (¢ g radsing the presenl ceiling of Rs. 20,050,000, saising accrual vate from 15726 e1e)

Inflation risk -

The present valuc of some of the defined benelit plan obligations are caloutated with reference to the future szlaries of plan participants. As such, ar increase in Gie salasy of the plan
panicipants will increase the plan'’s fiability. The post retirement medical henefit obligation is sensitive 1o medicat inflation and accordingly, an increase in medical inflation rate would
increase the plan's liabihity.

Life expectancy -
The presear vatue of defined benefit plan obligation is caleulaed by reference to the best estimate of the movality of plan panicipants, both duting and afier the employinent Asn

increase in the life expectancy ol the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

I acwal mortality rates are higher than assurmed mortality rale assumption than the graiwny benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is o condition of vesting on the death
benefit, the acceleration of cashflow wili lead to an actuarial loss er gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growih and discount rate.

Details of defined benelit plans 25 per actuarial valhetion are as follaws:

Rs. in crore
Particulars Fuaded Plan Uatunded Plan
Gratuity Post reticement medical
Year ended 3f March
2025 2024 25 2024
l.  Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Current service cost 20.81 18.62 - B
Net lnterest cost 1.00 189 - -
Past service cost - - 524 -
Interest [ocome - (6.94) - M
Adpustment due 1o change in opemng balance of Plan assets - (8.55) - -
Total expenses included in cmployee benefits expense 2282 502 3.24 -
H. Amount recogpised in Other Comprehensive income

Remeasurement (gains)osses
a)  Actwanal {gainsylosses ansing from changes in -

- demographic assumptions .33 0.05) - -

- financial assumplions {3.39 (6.28) - -

- experience adjustments (14.02) 1.84 - -
b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in net 441 (7.3} - -

interest expensef (income)
Total amount recognised in other comprebensive income {12.67) (1182} - -
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3¢ Employee benefits (Continued)

Details of defined hencfit plans as per actvarial valaation are &s follows: (Contimucd)

Rs. in erore
Particulars Funded Plan Unfunded Plan
Gratuity Post retirement medical
Yesr ended 31 March Yenr ended 31 March
2028 2024 2025 2024

11 Changes in the defined benefif abligatien
Qpening defined benelit obligation 173.93 15027 - -
Add/(tess} on aceount of cumrency fluctuation 0.06 0.08 - -
Current service cost 20,81 18.62 B -
Pasi service cost - - 524 -
Interest expense 1269 11.39 - -
Remeasurement (gains)losses arising from changes in - - - - -

- demographic assumptions {151} {0.08) - -
- financial assumptions 3.8 110 - -
- experience adijustments §.65 {2.00} - -
Benefirs paid {39.01) (6.45) - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 179.38 173.93 5,24 -

1V, Change in the {xir value of plan assets during the yeer

Opening Fair value of plan assets 152,32 117.82 - -
Interest income 10.59 15.35 - .
Expected return on plan assels 4.22 {7.34} v -
Cantributions by employer 11.67 4.1 - -
Adjustment due to change in opening balance of Plan aspets - 8.55 - -
Actual Return on plan assels in excess of the expected retum (037 (0.38) - .
Actual Benefits paid (38.48) (6.45) - -
Closing Fair value of plan assels 139.98 15232 - -

V. Net defined benefit obligntion
Defined benefit obligation (179.35) 173.93 (8.14) -
Fair value of plan assets 135895 152.31 - -
Surplus/(Deficit) £39.40) (21.62) {5.24) -
Current portion of the above (39,40 {7.52) 0.09% -
Non current portion of the above - {14.10) {5.15) -

V1. Expecied contribution for the mext reporting yesr 31.65 27.71 “ -

Actuarinl assemplions and Sengitivity .

L Actuarial assumpiioas Mnrch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024] March 31,2028  March 31, 2024
Discount Rate {p.2.) $.54% 7.50% £.82% -
Altrition rate 34,13 for age 2700 for age | 34,08 for age up fo -

up to 30, 20.66 up to 30, 15.06 | 30, 22.10 for age

forage 3I-50, forage31-44,( 21-50,12.24 for

9.70 for 5T and  5.00 for 45 and 51 and above

above above
Expecied rate of retyrn on plan assets {p.a.) 6.54% 7.50% NA

Rate of Salary increase {p.z.) 7.60% 7.00% C.00% -
Medical cost inflation (p.a.) NA NA 7.00% -
Retirement Age 60 yeurs 60 years 60 yoars -
Tn-service Morality indisn Indian | Indinn Assured -

Assured Lives  Assured Lives |  Lives Mortality

Mortality Mortality {2012-14)

(2012-54) {2012-14) Yltimaie

1f. Quantitative sensitivity anzlysis for impact of significant
assumptions on defined benefit obligation are as follows:

One percentage point increase in discount rate (5.77) (10.8%) (0.67) -
One percentage point decrease in discount rate 6,25 11.98 0,80 -
One percentage point ingrease in Salary growth rete 616 11.97 ¢.01 -
Ong percentage point deerease in Salary growth rate {5.80) (10.84) (6.01) -
One pescentage point increase in atinition sate (0.36) - {0.42) -
One pereentage point decrease in sitrition rate 38 - 0.47 -
One percentage point increase in medical inflation rate - - 078 -
One percentzge point decrease in medical inflation rale - - {0.66} -

1. Maturity profile of defined beneli obligation
Within 1 year 41.9%8 33.27 0.05 -
Between 1 and 5 years 97.22 149.33 07 -
Between 6 god 10 yoars 56,14 132 -
11 years and above 35.72 - 3.1 -

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuanial valuaticn, comsiders inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employiment market.

The plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities and corporate bonds,

The cast of the defined benefit plans and other lony term benefits are detenmined using actuarial valustions. Actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions that may differ
from aciuel developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount sate, future salasy increases and mortality rate. Due 1c these complexity involved in the
valyation #t is highly sensitive to the changes in these sssumptions. All assumptions sre reviewed a2t each Teporting date. The present valve of the defined benefit obligation and the
refated current service cost and planned service cost were measured using the projected unit cost method,

The costribution 1o provident fund, supersnnuation fund and national pension scheme at Group level aggregsting to Rs.103.9C crore (31 March 2024: Rs. 305.9¢ crore} has been
recagnized in the Statement of profit and loss under the head * Employee benefits expense”.

WAn08TE
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i)

i}

Employee benefits (Contimeed)

Conrpensated Absences
The principal assumptions vsed in detennining obligations for the Company are shown bejow:

Year ended 31 March

Particnlars 25 2024
Rate of discounting 6.54% 122%
Expected rate of salary increase 1.00% 7.00%
Allgition rate 3L.0R for age  23.00 for age up

upio 30, 221 15 30, 16,00 for
for age 31-50,  ape 3544, .00

1528 for ST g 45 gnd above
and above
Morsality Indizn  [ndian Assured

Assured Lives  Lives Mostality
Mortality {2012-14)

2012-14} Ultimate
Urban
Expenses recognised sn statement of profit and foss 11.27 12.68

The Group has not fiznded its compensated absences liability and the same continues to remair as unfunded as a1 March 31, 2025,
The estimate of fizlure salary increase takes into aceount inflation, senierity, promotion and other relevaat factors.
Discount sat¢ is based on the prevailing market yields of Indias Govemnment Bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation

Long Term Incentive Scheme

In the parent company, the Long-Term Inceniive Plan s annually granted aloag with the performance eycle at the end of the financial year and delermined on the ndividual performance
rating ¢riteria, swarded LTIF will vest equatly in 3 years This incentive scheme 1s launched in current financial year

Actuarial assumptions and Sensitivity

Year ended 31 March

Particatars 2025 2024
Retirement Age 46 Yesrs -
Discount Rare 6.54% -
Adlritton Rale 8.00% -
Performance Measurement Higher -

empioyee rating

Reconciliation of the Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Year eanded 31 March

Particulars 2025 2624
Opening Net Liabthiy - -
Expense recognised in the P&R L3 -
Caniribution/Benefit Paid by the Company - -
Amount secopnised in the Balance Sheet under “Peovision for Reticsmem Benefins™ 139 -

oy BMURAG

o UREA
. P,
The parent company has not funded its fong term incentive plan liabitity and the same continues 1o remain as unfunded as at March 31, 2025 R '%lb«‘w
Discount cate is based on the prevaifing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the abligation.
Additional disclosures
Duning the financial years ended 3§ March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group hias not granted any Toans or advances in the nature of loans 1o promaoters, divectors, KMPs aud she
velated parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of
repayment

There is no Benam: Property heid by the Parent and its indian subsidiaties and there is no proceedings initiated or pending against the Parent and its indian subsidiaries for holding any
benami properiy under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and ruics made thereunder.

Disclosure of transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companics Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956
As at March 31, 7025

Name of Struck ofl company Nature of ransactions with stuck-off  Balance Refationship with
Company outstanding as  the Struck ofl’
at 31 March company, if any,
2025 to be disclosed

{ SHIRIDI SRISA[ SOLUTIONS PVT LIMITED Recesvables 9.8 Exernal

2 CONSOLE CARGO LOGISTICS SERVICES {I) PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables .04 Exiernal

3 SAMBODH TECH SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED Reeeivables 005 External

4 BALAN INFRASTRUCTURE T&D PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 076 Externat

5 VHSQUARE HEALTHCARE PVTLTD Receivables 0.06 Externai

6 PALLAVEINFRA HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 007 External

7 PROBUS INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 006 External

8§ MILLPOND HUMAN RESOURCE PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External

4 SATHESRI AGRO PROGUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED . Receivables X - Externai
i} ASVRI LOGISTIC MFRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
I BUNEETH TECHNO PROIECTS (OPC) PRIVATE LIMITED Racaivables - External
12 4 SQUARE FITNESS PRIVATE LIMITED Recevables - External
13 COCOWINGS ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED Recenvables - External
14 ZAFCON ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED Recesvables - External
15 RETONA MOTORS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables £.09 Exernal
16 CHOWDHARY MOTGRS PRIVATE LIMITED Pavables 0.05 External
1 APARNA AUTOMGBILES PRIVATE LIMITED Pavables 001 External ;
1% [IANCE CONSULTANT&ENGINEERS PRIVATELIMETED Payables - Externat :
19 GOMATESHWAR INVESTMENTS VT LTD Carporate Deposilor 002 External
29 VAMS CONSULTANTS PV LTD Corporate Depositor 0.70 External
21 DREAMS BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED Shares Held by Struck of Company 476+ External
22 UNICKON FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED Shares Held by Struck of Company HEG* External

*+ Nunther of Equity Shaces
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37 Additional disclesures {continacd)
ifi) Disclosure of transactions with the companties struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 ar section 560 of Companies Act, 1936 {contimed)
As at March 31, 2024
Name of Struck ofl ¢company Mature of Iransactions with struck-off Balaace Relationship
Company outstanding as at with
31 March 2024 the Struck ofl’
{Rs. In crore) company, if any,
I ASVRI LOGISTIC PRIVATE LINITED Receivables 3.00 External
2 MANSAROVARINDIA AQUA BEVERAGES PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - Bxternal
3 SHIRIDL SRISAI SOLUTIONS PREVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.23 External
4 SAMEODH: TECH SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.09 Externat
5 MILLPOND HUMAN RESOURCE PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 005 External
£ SATHESREAGRO PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.04 Extermal
7 CONSQLE CARGO LOGESTICS SERVICES (DPRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.06 External
8§ PROBUS INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 606 External
T PARVATHI LIFE SCIENCES ¢OPC) PREVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
16 MRA REFINOG PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - External
11 PUNEETH TECHNQ PROJECTS {(OPC) PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.0 External
12 4 SQUARE FITNESS PRIVATE LIMITED _ Receivables 001 External
13 COCOWINGS ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 001 External
i4 KIRAN ENVIRQ-TECH ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITERD Receivables - External
15 PAELAVI INFRA HOLDING PREVATE [SMITED Receivables 0.0% External
16 VH SQUARE HEALTHCARE PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.07 External
17 BALAJUINFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED Recvivables 0.76 External
185 AUTO WORLD PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables - [Extesnal
19 ZAFCON ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables 0.0 Exiernat
20 LIANCE CONSULTANT&ENGINEERS PRIVATELIMITED Recesvables 0.00 Extemal
21 FAJRDEAL MOTORS AND WORKSHOP PVT. LTD. Payables - Externat
22 GOMATESHWAR INVESTMENTS PVT LTD Carpornte Nepositor 0.02 Exiernal
23 SAFNA CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED NCD G.00 External
24 DREAMS BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED Shares held by siuck off Company 476% Extemal
25 UNICKON FINCAP PRIVATE LSMITED Shares held by stuck off Company 089* Extcrnal
* Number of Equity Shares
iv)  There is no charges or satisfaction wn relation o any debt / borrewings yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond Ihe statutory period.
v} The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companics (Restriction or number of Layers) Rufes, 2017
vi) Utitisation of Borrawed funds and share preminm:
A} The Group kas not advanced or leaned or invested fisds (cither borrowed funds or share premium o any other sources or kind of finds) {o any other personds) or entity(ies),
wckuding foreign emities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or othenwise) that the Inlermediary shall -
(&) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(it} provide any guarantec, security or il like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries,
B) The Group has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitios {Funding Party) with the understandiny, (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the proup shalt -
{1) directly or indirectly lend or invess in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatseever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Uitimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the Ultbmate Beneficiaries
vii) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypro currency or Virtual Currency ducing the financial year.
viit} There are no transactions which have not been recorded i the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. Also, there are na previously uarecorded income and related assets,
3% Anailytical Katios
%5 af Mareh 31, 3023 Aval March 31, ERRA T RO Hunsons for vavisoee {(f ahove 25%
iy
Numeritor  Benmninaior EEIHY
(Re i (I I cvares)
Trares)
Total Capr ata {CRARY 2143751 1,16,967.79 18.33% 18.87%: -1 86% NA
Ther -1 £l i7,835.12 1,16,967.19 15.25% 16.39%% BN NA
Tiaw - 1F 0 1y 3,602.40 11696779 308% 2.47% 24.49% Durting the current year, the
Company has raised Tier {1 caphal
of Bs 1,500 crores
ity Coversgn NA NA 271% 311% -10.93% N
39 Teransactions in the nature of change in ownership in other ¢ntities
During the previous year, the Parent Company has completed the acquisition of 20,61,856 Equity shares of Rs. 10 ¢ach of MIBL, at 4 price of Rs. 1001 per share on Sepiember 22 2023
involving a pay-oin of Rs.206.39 crore which has resulted in an increase in equity investment of an equivalent amount. Consequent to this acquisition, MIBL has become & wholly
owned subsidiary of the Parent Company effective fiom September 22 2023,
The consolidaied financial statements of previous year have been given effect of this transaction fo reftect the relevant accounling implications as at 30 Sepiember 2023 and the same
has been carried forward in the results for the previous year ended 31 March 2024
40 As required under the ‘Companics (Audil and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021, read with sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Compames Act, 2013, the Pacent and its indian

subsidianies has used aceounting software for maintaining its hooks of account for the financial vear ended 31 March 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edis top) facitity
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the sofiware excepl that audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level to log ary direct
data changes, wherein adequate aflernate cantrol tools have been deployed to momtor the direet data changes effected a1 the data base level

Furiher, as required under proviso to Ruie 3(1) of the Companies (Accounis) Rales, 2014, the audit trail has been preserved by the Parent and its indian substdiaries as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.
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41 Capital management

The Group's capttal management strategy is to effectively deternnne, raise and deploy capilal so as to create value for ts shareholders. The same is done through a mix of cither equity
and/or convertible and/or combination of short term Jong fern debi as may be appropriste.

The Group determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and strategic investment plans, The capital structure is monilored on the basis of net
debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfotio of the Group.

The Parent Campany is subject to the capital adeguacy requiremenis of the Reserve Bank of india (RBE). Under RBIs capitzl adequacy guidelines, as applicable, the Parent Company is
required to maintain a capital adequacy ratic consisting of Tier T and Tier 11 Capital. The total of Tier II Capital at zny point of time, shall not exceed (00 percent of Tier I Capital. The
minimum capital ratie as presenbed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Parent Company, consisting of Tier 1 and Tier [1 capital, shall not be less than 19 percent of iis aggregate
nsk weiphied assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off balance sheet

The Parent Company has complied with all regulatory zequirements related 1o capital and capital adequacy ratios as presenbed by RBL details of which are gives below -

Repulatory capital

Asal As at]
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tier - | capitat 17.835.12 1630894
Tier - I capital 3,602.40 246139
Total Capital 2143751 18,770.43
Aggrepate of Risk Weighted Assels 1,06,967.7% 99,531.86
Tier ~ [ capital ratte 15.25% 16.39%
Tier - Il capital ratio 3.08% 2.47%
Totat Capital ratio 18,33% 18.46%

The housing finanve business of the Group is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the National Housing Bank (NHB) and has comphied with all regulatory requirements
reisled 1o reguiatory capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by NHB

42 Leases

I} Lt the cases where assets are (aken on operafing lease {as lessee) -

As 3 lesse, the Group's lease asscl class primarly consist of buildings or part thereol taken on lease for office premises, certain 1T equipments and general puspose office equipments
uged for operating serivities.

a} Maturity Analysis - Contractaal Undiscounied Cash Flow:

Rs. in crore

Asat As atl

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

L.ess than | year 126.55 112.54
i-3yecars 133.50 22377
3 - 5 years 148,75 148 91
More than 5 years 110,54 144 13
Total undiscounted lease fabilities 61934 626.15

Other disclusures:

Following table summarizes other disclosures including the note references for the expense, asset and liability heads under which certzin expenses, assets and liability ifems are grouped
in the financiai siatements

Rs. in crore
Amount for the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Depreciation charge for Right-Of-Use assets for Leaschold premises (presemied under note - 31 "Depreciation, smortization and impairmes ™) 193,65 99.65
it} Imterest expense on zase labilitivs (presented under note - 2% “Finance costs™) 3599 35.08
iif) Expense refating to short-term feases (included in Rent expenses under note 33 " Other expenses”) 419 17.10
iv} Expense refaling 1o leases of ow-vaiue assets (ingluded in Rent expenses uader nate 33 Cnher expenses™} 1578 1225
v)  Payments for principal portion of lease Lability 128 83 8595
vi}  Additions {o right-of-use assets duning the year {refer note 11} 110,86 104 04

vt} Carrying amount of nght-of-use assels at the end of the reporting period by class ef underlying asset -

- Property taken on lease for office premises {presented under sote - 11 "Property, plant and equipments™} 434.02 435.15

viii) Lease liabilities (presented uader note - 20 "Other financial Jiabilities™) 303.99 46543

1} intke cases wlhere assets are given on eperating lease (as lessor) -
Key terms of the lease zre as below :

i) Bath New and Used vehicles are offered on Lease for a tenure ranging from 24 1o 60 months.

1) Customised leasing solutions are offered with value-added services like Fleet Management with regards to vehicle maimenance, Insurance management including elaim sewlement,
pick-up and drop, replucement vehicle etc

iii} The consideration payable is the monthly lease rental which varics based on the make / model af the vehicle and tenure leased,

Renta} income arising from lhese operating leases is accounted for o0 a straighs-fioe basts aver the lease 1enure and is included in rental income in the Slatement of profit and loss
Costs, inchiding depreciation, incurred in earning the lease income are recognised as an expense,

Below are the list of risk miligation sirategy adopted by the group for the underying assets as per provisions of Ind AS 116
- All the leased assets arc insurcd

- Hypotheeation of assets in the name of the respective enlity.

- Asset confirmations is obtained from lesee's on quartetly basis

- Secunty deposit obtained 10 reduce the exposure on & case lo ¢ase basis based on Costomer profile

- Vanable lease payments based on usage of vehicles
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Leascs (Cantinued;

Other defails are as follows:
Rs. in ¢rove

Particnlarg Year ended Year ended
March 31, 20258 Maech 31, 2024

Grross carrying amount 571,59 457.80
Depreciation for the year 85.62 7503
Accumulated Depreciation 178.94 13831

it) Used and refurbished vebiicles to travel operalors/ taxi aggregators -

Gross carying amount 0,90 2.1
Depreciation for the year 0.81 01z
Accumulated Depreciation 0.87 268

The total future mintmum lease rentats receivable for the nop-cancetlable lease peniod as at the Balance sheet date is a5 under:
Rs. in crore

Particulzrs Asat As at!
March 31. 2025 March 31,2024

i) New velticles (o redail customers an operating lease -

Wot faier than one year 124.58 140.89
Later than one year but not ater thaa five years 22538 279.08
Later than five years 0.0 -

349.97 41997

i) Usee and refurbished vebicles to iravel operators / taxi aggrepalors -
Wot fater than ong year - -
Later than one year but not later than five years - -

Lt the cases where assels sre given on finance lease (as lesser) -
Reconcitintian of undiscounted lease paymest 1o net investment ;

Ks. in crore

Particulars Asal Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2034
Grass [nvestment 1,191.23 827132
fess Unearned Income 187,62 143 11
Met Investment before charging allowance for Impairment loss 1,004.61 683 61
Less - Allowance for Impairment losses 971 6.51
Total Net investment 99490 7710
Maturily analysis Rs. in crore
Particulars Within 1 year I1n 8 vears Crver 5 years Tolat
Gross investment 448,81 74336 0.08 1,192.23
Less : Uncamed Income 2507 91.55 - 187.62
Net ipvestment before charging allowance for Impairment loss 35374 650.80 006 1,604.61

Frauds reparted daring the year

There were 258 cases (33 March 2024; 369 cases) of frauds amounting 1o Rs.7.16 erore (31 March 2074. Rs.#43.15 crore) reported by the Group during the year. The Group has
recovered an amount of Bs.2.44 crore (31 Margh 2024: Rs 6.07 crore) and has initiated appropriate legal actions againss the individuals involved. The claims for the un-recovered fosses
have been Indged with the insurance companies on merit basis

Contingeat liabilities and commitments (1o the extent not provided for)

Ks. in crore

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Contingent Habilities
Demand apainst the Company not acknowledged as debts -

- Income Tax matters where Company has gene in Appeal 39,69 44 51
~ Goods & Service Tax matlers where Company has gone in Appeal 0.39 089
- Service Tax maiters where Company has gone in Appeal 2360 40.30
- Value Added Tax matlers where Company has gone in Appeal 44,70 4470
Disputed ¢laims against the Company lodged by vasious parties uader liigation (to the extens quantifiable) 7.48 $.59
Guarantees 863,56 1,451.69

Other money for which the Comipany is cantingently lable - -

Sub-Totaf (i . _ 1,654,468 1.638.69
i) Commitoenis
Estimated amount of contracts remaining 16 be executed on capital account 97.34 4370
Other cammitingals 766,08 597 11
Sub-Totak {ii) 863,42 645.81
Total 1,918.18 2,284.50

The Group's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Group primarily by the customers and proceedings pending with Income Tax, sales ta/'VAT and other authoritios. The
Group has reviewed all its pending fitigations and proceedings and bas adequatciy provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the econtingent Hiabilities where applicable, in
15 (inancial statements. The amount of provisions / contingent lishiities is based on sient's estimate, and no significant liability is expected to arise out of the same

The Group does not expeet the outeome of these proceedings 1o have & materiaily adverse effect on its financial performance and Gaancial position regarding the amounss disclosed
abrove, 31 is not praciicalle to disclose information on the possibility of any reimbursements as it 1s determinable only on the oecurrence of uncertain future events
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45 Traosfer of Gnancial assets
#)  Transfereed financial assets that are mot Eerecognized i theie enfirety - Securitizaiion transactions
The Group has transferred certain poals of fixed rate loan receivables backed by undedying assets in the form of tractors, vehicles, equipments etc. by entering in to secusitisation
transactions with tlse Special Purpose Vehicle Trusts ("SPV Trust"} sponsored by Commercial banks for consideration received in cash at the inception of the transaction.
The Group, being Qriginator of these loar receivables, also acts as Servicer with a responsibility of collection of receivables from its borrowers and depositing the same ia Collection
and Payout Account mainlatned by the SPV Trust for making scheduled payouts to the investors in Pass Through Cestificates (PTCs) issued by the SPV Trust These securitisation
transactions also requites the Group to provide for first loss eredil enhancement in vasious forms, such as corporate gusraniee, cash collateral, subscription o subordinated PTCs ete. as
credit support in the gvent of shortfall in collections from undeslying loan contracts. By virtue of existence of credit enhancenient, the Group is exposed to eredit tisk, being the expected
losses that will be incurred on the transferred loan receivables to the extent of the ¢redit enhancement provided
in view of the above, the Group has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the fianeial assel and thereby does not meet the derecognition criteria as set oul in
Ind AS 109. Consideration received in this transaction is presented as “Associded ltability related 10 Securitisation transsctions” under Note no. 17,
The following table provide 2 summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that pant ot all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognitian,
topether with the associated habilities:
. Bs. in crore
Farticulars Macch 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Secaritisationsy -
Carrying smount of transferred assets measured o amortised cost §,623.56 5,589.23
Carrying amount of associated liabilities {Term Loan) £,732.9% 5,608.83
Fair value of assets (A) 8,481.49 5,425.67
Fair value of azsociated liabilities (B) 8.909.62 5.716.38
Net position st FV (A-B) {42713} {290.71)
b}  Transferced financinf assets that sre not derecognized in (heir entirety - Assipnment Denls
During the year ended March 31, 2025, the parent company had sold Joany and advances measured at zmortized cost as per assignment deads undertaken by the company. As per the
terms of these deals, since substantial risk and reward related 1o these assets were fransferred 10 the buyer, the assels have been derecognized from the group's balance sheet to the extent
of share of assignee
The management of the parent company has evalualed the impact of assignment deals done during the year for its business model. Based on the Ruire business plaos, the parent
campany's business model remaing to held the assets for collecting contractizat cash flows.
The Parrent Company has zssigned loans {sarlier measured a1 amorlised ¢ost) by way of divect assignment. As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related 0
these assets were transferred to the extent of 80% to the buyer, the assets have been de-recognised from the Group’s Batance Sheet. The following table provide a summary of the
carrying amount of the derecognised financial asscts:
Rs. in crore
Particulars Asat Asa
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024*
Direct Assignment -
Cuartying amount of de-recognized financial assets measured at amonized gost 4134 -
Carrying amount of exposures retained by the Company at amortised cost 101 -
*During the previous year, the Company has not trausferred or acquired any Yoan expasures through assignment / novation and loan participation.
46  There was no Schente of Amangements approved by the Competent Authority in 1ermy of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year
47 The Group has a process whereby periodicaily ali Tong term contracts {including derivative coatracts) are assessed for malenal foresceable losses. At the year end, the Group has
revicwed and ensured that adequale provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable Josses on such long term contracts Gncluding derivative
contracis) has been made in the books of accounts
48 Reconciliation of movement of linbilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Year ended March 31, 2025
Hs. in crore

Particulars March 3§, Businesy Cash flows Exchange Others March 31,
2024 Combiunation (nel) dilference 2023
Diebi secusities 29,888 .41 - (1.189.48) - 7.36 18,706.29
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 56,78%.54 - 14 668 23 43.39 KENE] 71.534.30
Depaosils 7.57473 - 330324 - {13.88) 16.864.09
Subordinated lizbifities 446645 - 1.315.96 - (2.43) 577996
Lease liabilitzes 49513 - {114 84} - 12370 503.99
Totxl liabilities from financing activities 98.814.26 o 18.38%.11 £3.39 §47.87 1,17,388.63
Year ended March 31. 2024 Rs. in erore
Particulars March 31, Business Cash flows Exchange Orthers March 31,
23 Combinstion {net) difference 2024
Dbt seeuntics 2191279 - 1.971.80 B 382 29,8884
Barrowings (Dther than delt securzties) 44, 154,40 - 12,699 37 {(76.49 12.26 5678954
Deposits 5.458.74 - 1.708 98 - 7.01 TAT4T3
Subordinated habilities 1.902.63 - 55085 - 397 4.466.45
Lease fiabilities 481.64 - (405.22) - 11871 49513
Total linhilities from (nancine activities 81,910,240 - 16,834,780 {76,490 145,77 98.814.26
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49  Segment information
Primary segment {Business Segntent)

The Group's business is organised in to following segments and the management reviews the performance based on the business segments as
mentioned below:

Segment Activities

Financing activitics Financing and leasing of automobiles, tractors, commercial
vehicles, SMUEs and housing finance.

Other reconciling items Insurance broking, asset management services and trusteeship

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and Habilities are either specifically identifiable with individual
segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such alfocation, segment disclosures retating to revenue, resulis, asscts
and liabilities have been prepared.

Secondary segment (Geographical Segment)

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic
segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The following table pives information as required under the Ind AS -108 on Operating Segments:
(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 Year ended 31st March 2024
Financing Others Tatal Financing Others Fotal
Activities Activities

External Revenue 17,141.49 1,450.53 18,592.02 14,919.74 1,094.93 16,014.67

Inter Segment Revenue - - 61.56 - - 44.35

Net Revenue 17,141,49 1,450.53 18,530.46 14,919.74 109493 15,970.32

Sepment Results (Profit / (Loss) before 2,790.68 236.23 3,026.91 2,420.70 167.48 2,588.18

tax) :

Add : Other unallocable income net of - - . - . .
unallocable expenditure

Net Profit before tax 2.790.68 236.23 3,026.91 2.,420.70 167.48 2,588 18
Segment Assels 1,41,603.55 936.80 1,42.540.35 1,21,353.89 826.63 1,22,180.52
Unallocated corporate assets - - 1,564.91 - - 1.335.27
Total Assets 1,44,105.206 1.23.715.7%
Segment Liabikities 1,22,158.20 291.86 1,22,450.06 1,03,363.70 248.63 1,03,612.33
Other unatlocable Habilities - - 82.22 - - 128.60

Total Liabilities 1,22,532.28 1.03,740.93
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50.1

Financizl Risk Managemeat Framework

In the comrse of is business, the Group 15 exposed {o cenain financial risks namely credit risk, interest dsk, currency risk & liquidity risk. The Group's primasy focus is 10 ackieve beliar
predictability of financial markets and seck (e minimize potential adverse effects on ils fnanciat performance

The (inancial ¢isks are managed fn sccordance with the risk management paticy which has begn approved by the Board of Ditectors of the respeciive Group companiss.
Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary in the housing finance busizess have eslablished Asset and Lability Management Commitiee ¢ALCO), which is tesponsible for

developing and moattoring 1isk management policies for ils business. Fhe fi tal services busi is exposed to Bigh credit risk given the pabanked rural customer base and
dinunishing value of coffateral. The credit sisk is managed throtgh credit normys established based on historical experience.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value oz future cash flows of ficancial instruments will Quctume due (o changes in market variables such as interest rales, foreign exchange rates, elc.
Thie objective of market risk management is L0 manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while maximising 1he retum

&) Pricing Risk
The Group's Investmient in in Commercial Papers, Certificate of Deposits with Banks and Muteal Funds are exposed o pricing risk. A 5 percent increase tn Net Assels Value
{NAV) would increase profil before tax by approximately Rs 165,08 crore (31st March 2024 © Rs 98.12 crore }. A similar percentage decrease would have resulted equivalent
apposite impagl

b Currency Risk
Cutrency Risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument wilt flucluate due 10 chanpes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arise majorly on account of foreign
cureacy botrowings. The Group's foreigh currency exposures are inanaged in accordancs with its dedivative Risk Managemenl Policy whick has been approved by its Board of
Directoss. The Group manages its foreign currency risk by cnlering ine forward contract and crosy currency swaps, principal and interest rale swaps. Other desivative Insiruments
may be used il deemed appropriate.

The carrmving amiounts of the Group”s foreign currency exposuse al the end of the reporting period are as fotiows:

Ry, in crore
JPY US Doltar Totat

as at March 31, 2025
Financial Assels - - -
Financial Liabhihties 936.53 | 5.964.24 6.966.77
As al 3E March 2024

Firancial Assels - - -
Fimancial Liabilites 1.276.8% B3LE7 2,102,053

Hedpe Aecounting - Forwards & Swaps

Conlracts thas mect the requirements for hedpe accounting are acooumted as per the hedge accounting requirements of Ied AS 104 -Financial Instruments. Hedge effestiveness is delernvined at ihe
inception of the hedge relationship and through periedic prospective clloctivencss assessmicnds Lo ensure thal an economic relationship exists betneen the kedged dems and hedging mstrement. The
Group emters into hedge relationships where the critical 1erms of the hedging instroment match with the terus of the hedged item, and o 2 qualitative and quaniilative sssessnient of elfectiveness is
perfemmed, Hedpe elliectiveness for alf hedecs arc 100%

Betalls of forcign cureency forward coatracis and swaps ontstanding at the end of repoeting period Rs. in crote
Gutstanding Conltracix 1025 2024
Noticnat Vatue  Carrying amountof  Netional Value  Carrying amaunt of]
() bedging instrument {#) Bedging instroment;
included in Other included in Other|
Financial Financial
Assets / {Liabilities) Assets / {Liabikities)
Cash Flow Hedges
Buy Currency

Maturing in 1+ years

JPY/NR - - ERER K] {176.47)
USOANR 3,14500 (9032} - -

Maturing less than yvear

JPYANR £35.13 (22116} 43 (093},
USDHINR 82770 17.08 ¥27.70 (357}

Theee are no significant transactions of hedges which are inefioctive
# Notwnal value of respective currency pair have baen converied into preseatation currency: £o. INR using vear end closing exchange rate.

The movements in cash flow hedge reserve for insiruments designated in a cash Mow hedpe are as follows: Rs. in crore
Particulars s 2024

Excisange Interest Tatal Exchange Taterest Total

Rate Risk Rate Risk Rate Risk Rate Risk

hedges hedges hedpes hedges

Batasece &t the beginning of the year (G 09} {7.19) {7 28} 5.30 {i604} {4.74)
{Gains)Losses tanslersed 10 Profit or Loss on occumence of the - - - - - "
forecast transaciion
Change in fair value of effective posion of 471 {6090 {6223} (7.1 381 (339
cash Bow hedpes
Total 462 (7413} {6%.51) {1.90) 615} 8.13)
Deferred (o on the shove (19 1655 1566 185 (.96) OB
Balsnce at ¢l end of the year 343 (57.28) {33.85) {0,051} (7T.19) (7.28)
OF (1 above

Biitance relating lo cominging hedges A43 {5728} 155.85%) {0.09) {71 (7.28)
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Rs. incrore
50 Financial Risk Management Framework (Continsed)
5.1 Market Rish (Contined)

Foreign Covrency Sensitivigy
The lollowing tables demonstrale the sensitivitv to a bly possible change in exel ¢ rales, with all other variables held constanl

Currency  Change in rate Effect on QCY

Year ended 31 March 2025 TNRAIBY (+-) 10.04% (+/-1 93,77
NRAISD {+-) 10.00% (+H.) 59907
Year ended 11 March 2024 INRAPY {+/-) 10.00% (+-312738
INRAISD (/=) HL0U% (+{-383.37

The sensitivity analysis is uvnrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange rish because the exposure at e end of the reponing period does nol reflect the
exposure during the year.

ck  Interest Rate Risk
The Group uses a mix of cash and borzowings 1o manage the liquidity & fund requirements of #s day-lo-day operations. Further, certain snterest bearing Habililies curry variable
inlerest rates
Enterest Rale visk on varable rate bormowings is managed by way of interest rate swaps, wherever necessary.

Interest Rate sengitivity

The sensitivity analysis below have been derermined based on exposure 1o fizancial instrumenis at the end of the reporing year, For foating rate Habilities, analysis i$ prepared
asseming the smounl of Hability ouistanding a1 the end of the seponiing year was ouistanding (or the whole vear.

‘The {ollowing jable demansirales the sensilivity {o a tenasonably possible change in inerest rates on that portion of foans and borcowings affected. With all other variables heid
constant, the Group's profit before 1ax is alTected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

The carrying value of Noating rate toans is Rs. 8,297.61 erore (March 31, 2024: Rs. 6,451, 1% crore) and Noating 1ate borrowings is Ks. 45,E17.74 crare (March 31, 2024:
Rs.43,581.43 crorg)

Rs. in crore
Currency Encroase / decrease  Effect on profit
in basis poins before tax
{Range}
Year ended 3} March 2023 ENR 100 368.20
¥ear ended 3§ March 2024 ENR 100 JRE 6

dy  OfMf-setting of balances
The 1able below summarises the financiat habilities olfsened against Gnonciat assets and shown on a eet basis i 1he balance sheet:

Finencizl asscts subiect 1o affsetting

Particubars Offsetting recognised on the balance sheet

Assets
Gross xsseds  Financial labilities recopaised in
before offset netied balance sheet
Loan assels
Al 3 March' 2023 11631191 (#7839} L1621.02

A13E March' 2024 99.292.33 (9155} 9919518




Mazahindra & Makindra Financial Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year eruded March 31, 2023

Rs. incrare

50 Financial Risk Mznagement Framework (Contintued)
S2 Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will mcur a foss becsuse s customers il to discharge their contraciuzl obligations. The Group has 3 comprehensive framework for
woniloring eredit quality of its retait and other loans based on Days past due monnoning at period end. Repayowent by mdividuat customers and portfolin is tracked sogularly and
required steps for recovery an: taken Uirough follow ups 2nd legal recourse.

i) Credit auakity of financial leans and investments
Fhe followiag 12ble sets ous information about credit quality of Toan sssets and investments méasured at aswrtised cost based on days past due information. The amount fepresents
REOST CHTVIRE amOuRt
Rs. e erove
Particulars H March 2028 31 March 2024
Gross carrying value of Retail leans including Finance lcase
Neither Past due nor impaired 89 919.00 79.701 81
ast Dus but not impaired : - -
1-30 davs past due 9.970.55 683664
1190 davs past due 6.499.43 5.13338
tmpaired {more than %0 davs) 434855 3.433.32
Total Gross carrvine value 25 at reporting date £,£0.737.53 9532515
Rs. in crore
Particufars 3E Macch 2025 31 March 2024
Gross carcving valoe of Residential loar ussels
Nesther Past die nor inpsaired 612728 $729.63
Past Due but not impaired
1-30 davs past due 246,35 23018
31-90 davs past due 480.52 39836
Inpaired {more thas 90 davs} 548.95 55691
Fotal Gross careving value as at renorting date 7.503.09 T1.2090% ,
Rs. in crore
Particulurs M March 2025 31 March 2024
Grass carrving value of SME. foans including Bills of cachassee
Newther Past due nor sopaired 5.810.18 353397
Past Do but not impaiced
1-30 davs past die 21818 L1940
31-90 days past duc 55.64 49,94
Impaired (more than 90 davs) £5.07 4300
TFotal Gross carrving valuc 23 ot reporting date 6.148.54 451241
Rs. in crorg
Particulars 3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross carrving value of Trade Advaeces
Less than 60 davs past due 3.188.50 2833.3%
6§80 davs past due 132 18,54
Impaired (more than 90 davs} 8.38 6.47
Toal Grosy careving value 63 at reperting date 3.198.20 z3M.10
Rs. in ¢rore
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross carrving value of Firancial Investingnts measured at amortised cost
Meither Past dh nior impaired 255,87 1383322
Past Due bui not impaired -
1-30 davs past due - -
33-90 davs past duc - .
[mpaired {more thar 90 davs) - -
TFotal Gross earrvine value as at reparting date 1.255.87 131322

The Credit quasity of the loans is manitered concurrently. Since the group is primarity into retail Jending business, there is no significam eredit risk of any individual custoer that
may impact the group adversely, and hence the Group has caiculated its ECE allowances on a collective basig.

(i) Tnputs considered in the ECL model
In assessing the impaiment of financial foans under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Madel, the assats have been classificd it three stages. The throe stages reflect the general
pattern of credit detcrioration of a financial instrument. The differences in accounting botwoen stages, relate to B recogndion of expected credit Tlosses and the measurement of
nterest Income.

Tie Group eategarnises Loan Assots (excopt trade advanees) into stages primarily based on the Days Past Due stalus,
Stage 1 - ¢-3C days past duc

Stape 2 ;3190 days past due

Stage 3 - More than 90 dsvs

The Group catepasises Trade Advanees inte stages primanly based on the Bays Past Duc status,
Stage 1 1 0-60 days past due

Stage 2 1 61-90 davs past duc

Stage 3 @ Morg than H davs

The ECL esttnates are farward looking and includ: v wiighted A macro ic overlay is applisd 10 the observed default rate (ODR) considening portfolio
specific macrocconomic factors that affeet the Probability of Defauh (£ due 1o underlving economic conditions of the country.

The Parent company has computed expected credit fosses foe Trade Advance Portfolie based on historieal movwement data, capuuring transivions betweer stages and lass on
Instericaiiy writken off unrecoversd amouits from dealers

For leasing portfolio comprising of Operating and Fiaance Lease, the parent company: wses ECE coverage of Industey Peers in sinmiar business fine, consigering limited history of
eolleetion and loss data Tor the completed 1ife cycle for these portiolios which is necded for determining BD and LGH parameters for computation of ECL allowasee
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Financial Risk Manag t Fr: k (Conrintied)

Credit Risk Management (Consinued}

Defimition of defawl

The Group considers a financiat asset o be in "default™ and therelore Stage 3 (credit impaired] for ECL caleatations when the bomower besomes more than 90 past due on its
contrctual payments.

Since the group’s pordfolio predominantly includes rewil loan pertfolio with around 3 mitton loan accounts making it dilficul o define default at an individuat loan 2ccount, the
group has considered 90 days past due as the event of default, The same is also in line with the vegulator's definition of default of 90 days past due

Exposure ar default

"Exposure at Defaull” (EAD] represents the gross exposure balance when default had occurred. EADY is subject 1o impairnment cakeulation for Stage 3 assets. Future Expected Cash
flows (Prisncipal and nerest) for futere years has been used as exposure for Stage 2.

Estirnativnx and assumplions copsidersd in ECL model

The Parent Company has made the foRowing assummplions in the ECL Model:

a) Loss Given Default (LGD).

- LGD represcnts expested fusses om the EAD given the event of defaull, taking into account the time vatue of cash Mows from the date of defaull, discounted on effective imerest rate {EIR}.
1t is an estinate of the loss from a ransaction given that a defaull occusred.

While, the general approach 7 methodology remains the saime, the measurement of ECL on retail vehicle Ioans is donc on o shightly differentisted approach as meatioued here below,

- For Slsp¢ 3 asscis with an ageing motc Uian 18 months (540 DPD) (st & porifolio}, provision 15 calenlated by applying LGD at highor rate. Higher LGD rate is delermined based on
the historiest loss that has cecurred during the tenor of individual assets ferming past of specific portfolio of contracts with an ageing of morc than | K months (540 DPD} at the bistorical
period end dals (5.c. 42 months from the reset frepatting date} based on the average life of the pertfalic and s considered as modet provision for ECL calculation;

- For Stage 3 asscts with an ageing upte |8 months (540 DPD), provision is cakeulated by applying the Composite LG rate#;

- For Stage | and Stage 2 assois. continee 10 derive 2od apply Conwposite LGD cate th calculation of loss aflowanees

# Composite LGD eate © 10 is ar estinuie of the loss from 3 transaction given thal a default ozcurs. I is based eu the histerical loss on the portfotia that has oceurred during the tenor of the
individual assots forniing part of tho parifolio. For calculating LGD, the Conpany takes inlo consideration lhe Stage 2 assets thal have reached 90+ DPD in the past and Stage 3 cases of
Tistasical peried end dale (ic. 42 months fram: the resel /reporiing dalc) based on the sverage Hife of the portfolio, Astual cash (ews pertaining to this portiodio from the first defaule date 1o
curtgnt resetfroponiing dale are thon discountsd at Loan EIR. rale for arriving ai this foss rate.

b) Probabilisy of Default (PD):

- [t 15 an estinwie of bikelihood or risk of defauit accuming over 2 particolar tine horizan,

- For Stage | assets, 12 months PD is considered which represents defaelt events that are possible witkin 12 smonlhs afler the zoporting date.

- For Stage 2 assets . i tine PO is considered which represants dofanll events that are possibile over the expected Life / tenos of the financis! instrument
- 80> is appticd or Stage | and Stage 2 assels on a ponfolio basis;

- For Stage 3 asscls, PD is abways at 100% as these are impaived assels

The underlving roethodology of Historicad PE calculation remaing the same for both Stage | and Stnge 2 asseis.
Measurcment of ECL
The assessment of encdit nisk and jon of ECL are unbiascd and probaba ighted

It incorparates all information that is relevant including informabion about past events, current conditions and reasonable farceasts of Ruture evenls and economic conditions at the
repecting date, En addition, the estimation of ECLL takes inla account the time value of moncy. Forward Tooking economic scenarios determined with reference to external forecasts
of ceonomic parauscters that have demonsirated 3 linkage to the performaznce of respetive portiohios over 2 period of time Bave been applied 1o d inc impact of macroe
faclors,

ECL allowsnes (or provision) on Stage § and Stage 2 assets is measured using ponfolio appreach, whereas impaitment provisions on Stape 3 asscts is measered at cach individual
assct f instrament fevel

- Financial agsets that are not eredit impaired at the reposting date:

ECL for Stage 1 ; Gross expesure is multiplied by PD and Composite LGD percentage to amive at the ECL allowance;

~ Fipancial assets that have bad a signéficant increass in credit risk {SICR) since initizl recognition {unfess they Tave low credit cigk al the reporting date} but that o not have
objective evidence of impajrment

ECL for Stage 2 : Future Expocted Cash flows (Principal and Interest) for respective future years is multiplied by respective years Margizal PDs and Composite EGD percentage
ard thus arrived ECL allowanes is then discourted with the respective foan EIR 10 caleulate the present value of ECL allowance In addition, in case of Bilis discounting and
Channct Fstance, a6 the average hifetime is of 90 days, a time to maturity fretor of 0.25 is used in the ECL computation.

- Financial assety that are eredit sspasred al the reporting date:

ECL for Siage 3 Differsnce berween th: gross exposure al reporting date and compuled carryisg antount considering EAD net of LGI and PV of actual cash floss 1ill seporting
date incleding compotnded interest at joan EIR on med carrying value,

For Stage 3 asscis in retail portfalic, ECL allowance is caleulated separaicly as follows:

~ Stage 3 assets with ageing up 10 18 months (< =348 DPD)

ECL allawance = {Gross exposure ot reporting date kess Required Carrying value-A)

Required Carrying valuc-A ={EAD Jess ECL aliowance at Composite LG rate less PV of actiai cashflows till reporting date plus imerest compounded & loan EfR)

- Stage 3 assers with ageing more than 18 months (>340 DED)

ECL allowance = {Gross exposure on reporting date less Required Casrying value-B)

Reguired Carrying value-I3 ={EAL legs ECL allowance at Higher LG rate less PV of aciual cashilows (il repotting date plus interest compounded & loan EIR]

- Undrawn loan commilments:
ECE. on und loan i is ezleulated basis the Stage in which that pasticofar customer afncady exists

ECL an Smafl and Medinm Enterprise (SME) partfalio:

Fot Joans provided under SME vertical, the gereral approach / methodelogy remains siméfar to the rtail vehicle joans,

The Business Enerpaise 3nd Retail Emerprise Portiblio has been furdier sepregased inlo secured and unsecused postivlio

A distingt PD specific to secured loans, inchudiog LAP, has been derived based on historical performance

A separate D has been ealculated For unsecured loans, reflecting theie higher risk profile.

Segmenting PD by secured and unsecured loans improves precision in risk measurement and aligns with the pariiolio composition.

‘The portloliv's Observed Default Rate (GDR) is modelled using historical data {secured and unsecured foans considered together), leveraging an approach similas to Wheels
Business incorparating a three variable regression model.

The LGD approach focuses exclusively on cases where loans have defaulted, and all associated collections have been fully realized,

ECL on Ecase business portolis:
“The customer segment of the Parcat Company 2otered under leasing business consist of employees of corporates (Eroploves Lease Programs) and B2R segment whick includes business
iy, firms, (rusts and sogictics, flovt operators, fal vehicley, i i ok,

Since the Least business comprising Cperating aod Fimaace leass was relatively new line of business, there is limited history: of calizetion and loss data for the completed life cyele lor these
posifolios whicls is necded for delermiining M'D and LGD paranscters for comsputation al ECL allowsnce

In view of the above, the Parent Conmpaey s adopted Industey ovel benchmark, i.c. ECL coverage rate, for estinaling ECL affowance on operating and finance Jease portfolio considering
he simifariies in produets offcred, custonr sepments catered and average tonure of keass contracts
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302 Credit Risk Munngement {Continued)
ECL oo Trade Advance pacifaliv:
The ponifolia conprises of xhori-fersm advance lo M&M and Non M&M dealers
The Imierest-Free Trade Advance (IFTA) period generally ranges beoween 15 diys 1o 75 davs (o Trade Advance {TA) frcilities effercd to dealers
SICK is assumed at 60 davs past the knding date, considering the due datc logic instead of Days Past Due (DPD} logic.
The Parens Company has computed Theough the Cycle (TTC) PDs hased ov month-on-roonth transition merrix of historical movement datz, capburing transitions between stages. These
tranzition probabilities are used as input to calculate TYC PDs. Given the shert tenure of the Gacility, managsnwnt believes What the impact of macro ceonosmic factors may not impact the BD
of the portfolio in the short span.
The Parent Conpany has b thy writicn off d amaunls (rom deaicrs in adberence to the Technicat Writa ofT policy. The porfolie’s own hislorical experience providss a
reliable LGD estimate which is considered for FCL computation.
ECL on Imvestmenty:
The group applics a strectured and comprehensive ECL approach to thece eritical ipvesiment calegories: Investmenis in Government Securities (G-Secs), Bords, Comnercial Papezs (CPs),
snd Centificates of Deposit (CDs), Liguidity Pools for Short-Term Requireniznts, end Pass-Through Certificates (PTCs) lrom scouritisation fransactions
i. Investments in G-Secy, Bonds, CP, and CD
[nvestments ie G-Sccs, Bonds, CP, and CD are seasured at fair value Uwough profit and Juss (FVTPL) or other conprehenzive incoms (FYOCT):
Periodic revaluations ensure that markel Muciuations and credil risks are pecwrately captured,
Flutluations in fair value are recorded in the profit and loss account or other comprehiensive income, depending on the classilication of the asset
it Eiquidity Pool Envestments
Liquidity pool invesimenls are catoyorized as financial assels measuted at fair valus through profit o loss {FVTPL) ef vilier comprehensive income (FVOEC]} as per Ind AS 109
Begalar sovaluations align their valuation with provaifing market conditions.
Flucluations in the fair value are recorded direcily in $he profit and loss account or other comprehensive inconi, depending on the classification,
Exemption from Frpaivment Testing:
Since 1hesc agsels are mcxs:zn:d at iz vatue, additional impaiment festing is nol required ander Tnd AS 109, The fair value inhezently reflecis:
a. Market Volatiliny for T iting ic and market condi
b. Credit Risk: Assessmunt of the i9sue:"s eredilwusthiness,
¢ Goverranee Practices: Repular conplisnae ieviews cnsure alignnnt with regulatesy goidelines, Transpacent reporling of valuati hodoteges enk heholder confidence.
fiz. Pase shrough Certifieates (PTOs):
The ereditworthiness of the underlying loan poed is assessed using historical perfornance daw, default rates, and recovery: trends,
Insights from these evaluations gaade the classificaiion and risk provisioning of PTC fnvestments
Sunge Classification:
Stage 1 Investoents with low eredit eisk, requiring compuistion of | 2-nonth ECL
Stape I lavestments with a significant increase in credif risk, sccessitating lifsting ECL.
Srage 3 Defaulted investments, for which lifetlime ECL is calculated with elevaied provisioning sequirements.
ECL Estimation Aetricy:
Probabilite of Defauit (PI¥Y: Based on historical dato and lorward-looking mocrocconomic lactors
Loss Given Defauk (LGD): Reflecting recovery raies tad collateral quafiy,
Exposure at Default (EAD): The latai value exposed to eredit risk.
Tine Valne Adjustvent; Funre ECL amounts are discounted to presont value using the offestive intesest rate, enswring accurate reflection of ccononat impacts.
ECL on Other Firancial Assets:
MMFSL has Simplified Approsch i fixpecred Credin Loss {ECLY under lind AS 109 lor other [inanzut assels that involve credil risk. This approuch is considersd suilable for as receivables
portfolios as aging and kutorisl zecovery treads are the primany drivers of credil sisk assessment. These assels include receivables, Insurange Claims, Professional Charges, Inerest
Ruceivables (Intceest accrued bul not vet specived), Brokerage die
The calerlation of Ldelims ECL is based on histerical coverage rales which sncorporates Probability of Defanlt (P5) and Loss Given Default (LGD). The covernge rate is used 1o oxtimate
the credit loes for cach oging bucket, avoiding the need (o compits PD sod LGD separakely,
Receivables Ouistanding £ 90 DPD: A specilie coverage rate is applicd based on historical recovery paticrns from wheels povtlitio which is the fargest portfotia for MMTSL. and reflccts
lenp lerm teends.
Rece